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Introduction

We are one of the world's leading
gambling companies. Millions of people
enjoy betting with us every year.

Our brand, high street presence,
product range, user experience and
large-scale investment remain powerful
drivers in this market. Our vision is

to be the brand in everyone’s hand.

With compelling growth opportunities,
we aim to grow our market share
further by investing in digital and
iInternational expansion. And we

are building a sustainable business
by balancing our commercial priorities
with our responsible gambling goals.

Hoda yinens

FNRUBAOD)




02

Willlam Hill PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Chairman’s statement

A motivated
team driving
Improvements

This business has been in
transition. Now, we've returned
to strong growth, with a new and
reinvigorated leadership team

in place implementing our plan
to lead the industry and create
long-term value.

Image rermgved

Performance overview

williarm Hill delivered a strong perfarmance
in 2017, reflecting our focus on rejuvenating
Online, building an attractive omni-channel
propaosition and growing our position in

the US.

Group net revenue' grew 7% to £1.7bn.
There was aloss of £43.7m before
interest and tax as a result of £335.0m
of exceptional charges and adjustments,
principally a £238 3m impairment to the
value of the Australian business and £61.7m
of costs relating to the transformation
programme. These substantial charges
reflect the transition the business is
going through, whether regulatory or
transformational changes.

Adjusted operating profit?, which gives a
clearer picture of underlying performance,
rose 11% to £291.3m, supported in particular
by strong growth in our Online and US
businesses. Basic, adjusted earnings per
share? rose 24% to 27.6p. Qur balance sheet
is strong, with net debt to EBITDA® reducing
to 1.4 times {2016: 1.8 times).

Online built positive momentum in 2017,
penefiting fraom improvements we have
made aver the last 18 months. Retail
delivered a resilient performance in a year
without a major internaticnal footbalt
tournament. In the US, double-digit growth
was driven by mobile betting. Australia grew
net revenue and profits but performance

is being impacted by the credit betting ban,
and we are undertaking a strategic review
of the business.

We are also making good progress on

the transformation programrme, which
over the tong term wilt deliver improved
revenues, greater cost efficiency and better
organisational effectiveness.

The Board has approved a fult-year
dividend of 13.2p per share, up 6%. While
this increase is befow the basic, adjusted
EPS growth rate, it brings usin line with
our policy of paying out arcund 50% of
underlying earnings.

QOverall, the Group has regained strength,
focus and purpose, and with momentum
building we are focused on delivering our
strategic priorities as we look ahead with
renewed confidence.
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Corporate governance I have thoroughly enjoyed my time as
Chairman of William Hill and | leave performance

Over the last two years we have
significantly strengthened the Board,
increasing the breadth and depth of
knowledge and the experience we
contribute to the Group.

We are pleased to welcome Roger Devlin,
wha joined the Board on 1 February 2018
as Chairman Designate and takes over
from me as Chairman on 2 April 2018 when
| step down. Rager combines extensive
experience of listed companies with highly
relevant experience in the leisure, sport
and gambling sectors, which makes him
the ideal person te lead the Board over
the coming years.

Philip Bowcock and Ruth Prior took on the
CEOQ and CFQ roles in March and October
respectively, and it is satisfying to see
how well they have performed. They
are a strong team, with complementary
skills. Phitip is also building an experienced
and effective Executive team wha bring

. a healthy blend of longevity from within
the Group and new insights from other
companies and industries.

Qur three additional Non-executive
Directors — John (¥Reilly, Robin Terrell

and Mark Brooker — have integrated well
and brought a new dimension to Board
discussions. I'm delighted that Mark and
John have taken on chairmanshigs of the
Corporate Responsibility Committee and
new Transfarmation Oversight Committee,
respectively, as their industry experience
has been invaluable.

A few thank yous. First, tc Ashley Highfield
for his service to the Board over the nine
years of his term as a Non-executive
Director and his further contribution

as Chair of the CR Committee Second,
Imelda Walsh had informed the Board in
2077 that after six years as a Non-executive
Director she was considering whether ta
take on new opportunities and she has
now confirmed that she will not seek re-
election at the 2018 AGM. Her stewardship
of the Remuneration Committee has been
exemplary. Third, to my Board colleagues
and everyone across the business for their
support aver the last seven and a half
years. Finally, and on behalf of the Board,
to our William Hill colleagues. There have
heen some challenging moments over

the last few years, but their passion for
the business and commitment to our
custorners have been crucial to making
William Hill strong again.

knowing that the business is nowon a
strong footing and well placed to embrace
the oppartunities and challenges ahead.

Outlook

lLooking ahead, we continue tc focus on

the UK growth opportunity, now that Online
is growing well again, Retail is competing
strongly and cur omni-channel strategy

is delivering a differentiated and attractive
customer experience. This is underpinned
by the transformation programme, which
continues to deliver benefits in terms

of both revenues and costs.

International expansion remains a key
goal for the Group, both for the ability to
generate faster revenue growth and for
the benefits of diversifying our sources
of income.

The potential for the Supreme Court

of the US to overturn the federal banon
sparts betting presents the Group with
an axciting opportunity and one that we
ariginally positioned ourselves far as far
back as 2012. We ook forward to hearing
their decision this year.

There are challenges ahead. The long-
awaited outcome of the UK Government's
Triennial Review of gaming machine stakes
and prizes willimpact Retail but we will
benefit from gaining much-needed clarity
on the likely future cash flows from that
business. We are also facing tough decisions
on the Australian business, given how
significantly regulation has moved — and
continues to move — against us there,

and recognising that management may
need to prioritise our growth engines in
the UK and the US.

Consolidation remains a praminent
feature of this industry and is likety to be
so for some years to come, particularly
as substantial shareholder value can be
generated from synergies. Our goal is to
ensure William Hill is well placed to make
the best decisions for sharehalders.

Gareth Davis
Chairman

highlights

£170n

Loss before
interest and tax?

—£437n1

Adjusted
operating profit?

£291.3m

+11%

Basic loss per share

Basic, adjusted
earnings per share?

2/76p

+24%

Dividend per share

13.2p

+6%

1 Netrevenueis an industry term equivalent to revenue
as definad in the notes to the financial statements.

2 Weincurred a statutory loss due to exceptional iterns.
Adjusted cperating profitis defined as profit before interest
and tax, excluding excaptional itams and other defined
adjustments, Further detail on exceptional items and
adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial
staternents.

3 Adjusted EPSis zalculated using adjosted profit after
tax and is used for remuneration purposes (see page 68
onwards} and in evaluating performance for dividend palicy
purposes. Further detail on adjusted measures is provided
innote 3 to the financial statements. The calculation of EPS
measures 15 shown in note 11to the financial statements.

4 Net debt for covenant purpases and EBITDA for covenant
purposes are nan-statutory measures used to assess
cormpliance with our debt covenants. These are explainad
further in note 23 tathe finandial statements.

FIBUIBAGS)
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Our business today

One William Hill. Meeting our
customers where they want us.

Online

Retall

Image removed

L

Image removed

Cur Crline business has been around since 1998 when we
launched www.williamhill.com. Since then, we have made
significant advances in bringing customers a vast and engaging
product range, tailoring the customer experience ang investing
in our brand. We are now one of the leading online betting

and gaming providers to customers in the UK, Italy and Spain.
Arpund 2.4 million customers gambled with us online in 2017,
Our customers nave access to more than a million betting
opportunities every week. This includes in-play and pre-match
sports betting, and a wide range of gaming products. Our
customers can bet with us wherever and whenever they want,
enhancing the fun of watching a match and enjoying the thrill
of gaming,

Find out more
Fage 22

US

William Hill is one of the most recognisable names on the

UK high street, having taken bets in licensed betting offices
(LBQs} since 1966, Today we have 2,342 of the 8,500 shops

in the market. We offer sports betting on football, horseracing
and other sports as well as gaming on machines, Customers
can place a sports bet over-the-counter (OTC) or via our
innovative, proprietary self-service betting terminals (SSBT).
Having successfully completed the roll-out of these in 2017,
we now have at least one in every shop. And for the customers
whg love their shop as much as online, we offer a great crmni-
channel experience.

Find out mora
Page 24

Australia

Image removed

Image remaved

Wwith the US patentially apening up sparts betting, we are

well placed to be an early mover. We created this business

i June 2012 by acquiring and merging three small sports

book operators under the William Hill brand. Now, we are the
largest operator of land-based sports betting shops {'sports
books’) in Nevada. We have 57% market share, running sports
books in 108 out of the 190 casinos in Nevada. In Nevada, our
customers also bet with us on our maobile app. We are also the
exclusive bookmaker for the State of Delaware's sports lottery.

Find oyt more
Page 26

In Australia, we are ane of the top three providers of online
betting with aver 270,000 active customers, We offer sports
betting products online, on mobile devices and by telephone.
Our business in Australia was created through the acquisition
of Sportingbet (including Centrebet) and tormwaterhouse.com
in 2013, These two businesses have been rebranded William Hill.

Find out rmore
Page 27
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Product range Group net revenue' Group net revenue' )
>‘I m by division by market :
betting opportunities available 2077 2077

online every week

Customers

2./m

active digital customers worldwide

43%

Our digital divisions accounted for
43% of Group net revenue in 2017

18%

International markets accounted for
18% of Group net revenue in 2017

Group marketing

£1/5m

invested in 2017

Heritage

30+

years of heritage

Graph removed

Graph removed
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High street footprint
(at year-end)

2,342

shops in UK

international presence

10

countries where we have a presence

Onlina 36% UK 82%

Australia 7% Australia T%

Retail 54% us 3%

us 3% Italy and Spain 4%

Cther 0% Other 4%
2016 2016

Our digital divisions accounted for
41% of Group net revenue in 2016

International markets accounted for
18% of Group net revenue in 2006

Colleagues

c16,000

employees

Online 4% UK 82%
Australia % Australia 7%
Retail 56% us 3%
us 3% Italy and Spain 4%
Other 0% Other 4%

1 Net revence is an industry term equivalent £o
revenue as defined in the notes to the financial
statements
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CEQ's review

Strategy overview
with Philip Bowcock

Chief Executive Officer

‘William Hill is regaining strength, focus and
purpose, with a new leadership team in place.
Growth is being powered by Online and

the US, Retalil generates strong cash flows
and there are exciting opportunities for
expansion in the UK and internationally,
particularly in US sports betting”

Image removed
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Our three
focus areas

We are focused on three
strategic priorities to drive
UK growth and internaticnal
diversification.

Grow UK
market share

Grow international
revenues

Deliver key projects:
technology and
transformation

Overview

William Hill begins 2018 in a much stronger
position after a year of significant change
for the business. We continue to gain
ground in the UK whera customers are
responding to our improved Online and
omni-channel offers. We are a leader

in sports betting in the US and are well
positioned to benefit should more states
start to regulate if the pending Supreme
Court opinion is positive.

Looking ahead, we will invest in more
innovation in Online and our omni-channel
platfarm, as weli as in the LIS tc ensure

we can unlack its full potential at the right
moment. A key pillar of our strategy moving
forward will be to act in a sustainable

way and to take greater account of all our
stakeholders than we may have in the past.
In the months ahead we will be taking a
numper of steps o ensure that we embed
this approach for the long term.

We have continuved to expand the already
extensive skill set of the Executive team.
Ruth joined us as CFQ in October and we
are pleased to welcome UIrik Bengtsson,
the former President and CEO of Betsson
Group, in the new role of Chief Digital
Cfficer, overseeing Online, global data,
glabal brand, marketing and customer
service. Crispin Nieboer, after two very
successful years in charge of the Online
business, is moving into the role of Group
Corporate Development Director, with
the US being his immediate priority.

With a strengthened team in place, we have
started this World Cup year with a renewed
sense of purpose and look forward to
maintaining our momentum.

Personally and on behalf of the Board,

| would also like tG record gur thanks to
Gareth Davis, who steps down as Chairman
in April after more than seven and a half
years in the role. Gareth has steered the
Board through some challenging times,
during which his resilence and good
humour have been invaluable. He leaves
with our thanks and very best wishes.

Strategy overview

In August 2017, we outlined our three
strategic priorities and we have made good
progress against these this year.

Grow UK market share

The UK has been and continues to

be our nearterm prierity given the scale

of our business and the continued growth
of the digital market. Cur brand, high street
presence, product range, user experience
and large-scale investment in marketing
and technology remain powerful drivers

in this market and we aim to grow our
market share further.

After a pericd of underperformance,
Online is now competing well again. We
continue to enhance the product and user
experience for custorers, with innovations
like #tYourQdds and improvements to make
our service quick and easy to use. We have
optimised our digital marketing activities
and are investing in new capabilities

using programmatic marketing and
artificial intelligence to make these even
mare effective.

Recognising that a significant proportion
of customers want to gamble both inthe
shops and online, we have built strong
foundations for our ‘'omni-channel’
experience, including our proprietary self-
service betting terminals, and will continue
to extend this to ensure customers can
enjoy our products and experiences
however suits them best. Retail remains a
strong partner to Ontine, with a prominent
brand within UK communities and a high-
quality service provided by cur shop teams.

Grow international revenues
Internationally, there are opportunities
for us to take cur established expertise
into other markets, particularly as digital
has broken down borders and more
governments are moving to regulate
online gambling. Our goal is, ultimately,
ta reduce our refiance on the UK, where
any economic, fiscal or regulatory changes
currently have a meaningful impact on
our perfarmance.

The US is an obvious opportunity for us

as we are the leading sports betting brand
in Nevada, the only large-scale legalised
state for betting. Should the federal ban

—~ PASPA — be overturned by the Supreme
Court, we will look to leverage the strengths
we have built so far, including our casino
relaticnships and our proven track record,
and will invest to move quickly in this

new market.

Should the US take longer to corme through,
we are exploring opportunities in markets
elsewhere in the world, particularly in the
Armericas and Asia, to exploit our strengths
in sports betting.

HUBLIAOT yodaldmens
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CEQ’s review continued

Deliver key projects: technology

and transformation

There are two projects that underpin our
strategy: the transformation programme,
refarred to as restructuring costs in note 3
to the financial statements, and evolving
our technology platform.

The transformation programme is
delivering both accelerated revenue growth
and in excess of £40m of annualised cost
savings, which we are reinvesting in the
business. It is a wide-ranging programme
addressing areas such as marketing
efficiency, IT efficiency, customer service
optirnisation, third-party spend, location
strategy, the ormni-channel strategy and
back-office functions. The three-year
programme will be completed in 2015.

The global technology programme is
designed to address our long-term strategic
needs. Currently, the Group has three
separate platforms that support our UK/
European cperations, Australia and the US,
much of it now developed and run in-house,
Given the scale and cost of the technology
infrastructure, our goal is to leverage a core
platfarm across as much of the business

as possible.

In addition to these three strategic
priorities, we are changing how we build
a sustainable business.

We recognise that it's not enough to

grow: we have 1o grow the right way.
Considerable cancern is being expressed
about the gambling industry and it needs

to be addressed. Some of that is about
helping people better understand what

we already do. But we also need to change,
to rebalance our commercial goals and

our responsibie gambling aims in order

to build a sustainable business far all our
stakehoclders. it's about how we invest

in delivering our objectives as a licensed
company — to treat customers fairly and
openly, to protect the vulnerable and to
keep crime out of gambling. And it's abaut
how we use William Hill’s unigue strengths —
our community presence, the opportunities
we offer and our relationship with spart —to
make a positive contribution to the world.

Q&A
with Philip

What's behind your
outperformance in 2017?

This business has beenin transition.

We're now regairung strength, focus and
purpase, with a new feadership team in
place, Growth 15 being powered by Online
and the US and we're investing to drive this
faster, supparted by savings we've delivered
from the transformation programme. Retail
has delivered another robust performance
and we've managed our Australia business
carefully given regulatory headwinds.

So it's reaily the sum of the parts.

@ How sustainable

is that into 20187

we're competitive again in the UK — both
in Online and with our omni-channel
customers who cross over between Retail
and Online - and we're starting to regain
market share. The Warld Cup will bring in
more competition but we're well placed to
compete ‘We've also positioned ourselves
to be an early mover in the US, which
potentially could open up sports betting.
we're looking for clarity for Retail with

a decision ¢n the Triennial Review and a
strategic review in Australia is taking place.
Immportantly, we're also changing our stance
on sustainability, recognising wider social
cancerns and wanting to strike the right
halance between our commercial and
responsible gambling goals. This is about
building a long-term sustainable business,
not just what we can deliver in 2018.

What excites you
most? And what's
your biggest risk?

Regulatory change is the answer to both

of those. On the up side, it's about the US
potential. There's been a federal ban on
state-spansored sports betting since 1992,
but with a carve-out for four states. It's

an anomaly that Nevada casines can take
bets but Atlantic City casinos can't. [t was

a surprise when the Supreme Court decided
to take the case, but the legal arguments
are strong.

This could be the most significant shift

in the gambling sector in the fast decade
And we're excited to go at it. This was
exactly why William Hill US was created
six years ago — to give us a presence

in Nevada and have a strong platform
should sports betting regulation change.
We are an established entity with a brand
presence, local management and an
outstanding track record.

On the risk side, we're waiting 1o hear
from the UK Government on the Triennial
Review. It's clear gaming machine play
will be further restricted, but how far

has yet to be confirmed. That clarity

1s key to understanding what capital

we have available to invest across our
businesses. We've come a lang way in
encouraging responsible gambling among
our customers. But we fully recognise
people remain concerned and want to
see us do more. It's part of the reason
why sustainability has become a greater
pricrity for the business.

@ How can you offset
the impact of the
Triennial Review?

Retailis a well-run business so there isn'™t
the scope to offset significant revenue
reductions with cost-saving measures.
Once we know what the Government sets
as the new maximum stake, we'll know
how much revenue is at risk and be able

to estimate how much might be recycled
or substituted intc other preducts. That
will give us a shop-by-shop view of revenues
and profitability. Shop closures are sadly
inevitable — the question is how many and
over what timeframe, We have modelled
different scenarios but we're dealing with
an unprecedented set of circumstances

so we can only guess at what the custorner
response will be. We'll need to see how that
plays out before we can reascnably make
decisions on the future of some of the
shops. We will of course consult with our
colleagues ahead of any closures.
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What's behind
Online’s rejuvenation?

This is about a thousand different
improvements that add up to making
Online a highly competitive business

again. Making the wider Group fitter and
more focused. From overhauling the

user experience (UX) and major praduct
innovations o tiny tweaks to user journeys.
From redesigning our geographic footprint
and rationalising our data centres to buying
pay-per-click words more effectively. t's
been a huge task and the success we're
now seeing is testament t¢ the passion,
commitment and sheer hard graft of so
many people in the business.

Some say you're behind

the curve on the omni-
channel strategy in the UK,
What's your view?
This is about doing it right, not doing it fast.
Others have focused on plundering retait
far new online customers. We're about
bringing the experience to the customer.
So it started with using SSBTs o bring great
new products into the shops. And when the
third-party solution didn't cut it, we built
our own. That's also given us a seamless,
integrated platform for everything else we
wanted to give customers: the "William Hill
Plus’ service — the app and the card - to
extend the experience outside the shop,
and the single wallet 1o give existing
Online customers an easy way to deposit,
withdraw or play with their account funds
in the shop. We're very proud of what we're
giving customers now.

We increased our online
marketing spend by

14%

wodasBaens

Our strategic priorities

Grow UK market share

Image removed

BB
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In Online, we continue to evolve our product
range and user experience (UX) to deliver
a fast, efficient and engaging service.

We have, in our view, materiafly
increased our competitiveness
over the last 18 months

with persanalised products
such as #YourQdds and Bet
Boast. Gaming benefited

from the compounding effect
of improved UX, new content
releases, better customer
acquisition and higher cross-
sell rates as a result of the
changes we have been making
since mid-2016. The migration
to the new desktop site began
in Q420717 New customers are
now directed to the new site,
with favourable performance
against a control group.

In addition to enhancing

the efficiency of our digital
marketing and implementing
programmatic marketing

since August, we increased

our Online marketing spend

by 14% to £138 7m, and will
increase that again in 2018,

a World Cup year. Cost of
customer acquisition increased
10% as the increase in new
customers lags the increasein
marketing spend. We continue
to enhance our data systems,
combining 12 legacy systems
on 34 different servers into ane
single customer-centric view
of Online data.

Find out more
Page 18
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CEO’s review continued

Qur strategic priorities

Grow international

revenues

Our strategic priorities

Technology and
transformation

Image removed

Image removed

Leveraging our scale and expertise

outside of the UK.

Having built a highly competitive
digital offering in the UK, one

of the most advanced and
innovative markets globally,

we can compete strongly in
internaticnal markets and
thereby diversify our business.

us

We established William Hill

US in 2012 and have built

a strong track record and key
relationships since then. We
are keen to be in a position to
take advantage of the evolving
opportunity in the US.

The Supreme Court surprised
everyone in June by annauncing
that it would hear the New
Jersey case to repeal the
Professional and Amateur
Sports Protection Act 1992
(PASPA). After 25 years of a
federal ban, the US could be on
the verge of regulating sports
betting with a number of states
already drafting legislation.
With a decision expected

in 2018, we are investing

to prepare for potential
expansion opporturities.

Australia

While Australia has scme
attractive characteristics,
regulatory change has made
this a difficult market and cur
business has underperformed.
These and potential future tax
changes mean that greater
scaleis likely to be necessary
for aur Australian business

10 be sustainable. We are,
therefore, currently undertaking
a strategic review, considering
organic and inorganic opticns.
We expect tc conclude the
review by mid-2018.

Rest of World

Qver the last year the UK

has been the Group's prionty.
However, we have continued
toinvestin Italty and Spain

to maintain a leading position.
Online also takes revenues from
anumber of other regulating
markets. These present
interesting opportunities

for future expansion.

Find oyt more
Page20

Enabling our business through technology

and transformation.

Setting up for success

The transformation programme
is enabling William Hill to get fit
far the future. The focus is on
improving the core capabilities
essential for delivering a
successful and sustainable
business for the long term.
Mare than 250 initiatives

are being addressed by the
programme, covering both
cost efficiencies and revenue
generation with savings
reinvested in the business

to drive faster growth.

Reinvestment has been
focused on enhancing our
competitiveness around
digital marketing, product
development and technalogy
capabilities, supporting faster
revenue growth through

a range of initiatives focused
on acquisition, conversion and
player lifetime value. These
include innovative product
launches such as Bet Boost,
hiring 100 new product
developers to create improved
product and UX offerings, and
reallocating resources to invest
in a scalable, efficient and
ncreasingly targeted digital
marketing platform.

Technology at the heart

of our business

By building out our internal
technology capability, we
enhance the speed at which we
bring new products to market,
aur responsiveness to market
opportunities and our ability

to understand and adapt to
customer preferences in real
time, all of which are important
to improving our digital offering
and for any new markets we
may choose to enterin the
future. The co-location of
technology and other functions
and the rationalisation of sites,
which are corming down from
atotal of 11 down to eight as
part of the transformation
programme, is already
encouraging more efficient
ways of working within the IT
team and better co-ordination
between technology and

other functicns

Find out more
Page 91
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‘We are focused on improving our approach to responsible
gambling to build a long-term, sustainable business for all
our stakeholders, and especially for any of our customers
who are at risk from problem gambling.’

What makes you think
William Hill can compete
internationally?

The digital world for gambling is still quite
small — only about 9% of global gambling
revenues. Within this, the UK is the single
largest regulated market, five times bigger
than the next. It's a sophisticated market
where farge-scale, sophisticated digital
businesses have grown up in response

to the competitive intensity. That stands
usin good stead in other markets. The UK

is also recognised by partners, governmants
and regulators as a well-run industry and,
as one of the most trusted brands in the UK
market, that opens doors for Williarm Hill.

Why do you think you
can compete in the US?

When William Hill started locking at the

US six or seven years ago, it was always
with a view to this kind of opportunity
developing. At that time, it was difficult to
assess where the US is going — as a market
it could be massive or it could have been
nothing, so putting a lot of capital at risk
would have been a difficult decision. But,
equally, the point at which change comes,

it can come quickly and you don't want to
be sitting in London, scratching your head
for ideas on how to break into the market.
Which is why William Hill moved into sports
betting in Nevada in 2012. Now, we have

a business with a strong track record, a
respected and recognised management
team, established relationships with casino
operators and the wider industry, and the
early foundations of brand recognition.

If the Supreme Court overturns PASPA, this
is a major new market with bath enormaous
customer appetite for betting and no large-
scale legal incumbent. It's a greenfiald site.
it's not going to be easy —it'll take time,
management focus and capital — but we've
given ourselves a real headstart

@ You talk about changing
your approach to
sustainability? Is this just

‘lip service'?

Far from it. This is 'bone deep’ change
within William Hill. And it resonates strongly
internally. There's such pride among
William Hill people. We love what we do, we
love our customers and we're proud of our
heritage. But it's hard to be proud when
you're being vilified by media and politicians
alike. Across society, there's clearly a wider
mistrust of gambling companies. While
some attitudes may not be balanced, they
can't be ignored. How we go about this will
define us as a company for years to come.
It’s about dcing the right things for the

right reasons. That starts and ends with
our customers - treating them as we would
want tc be treated. We're at the very start
of this journey. it will take time. And it's
going to challenge all of us. But it's the nght
thing for us to do.

Can you describe the
changes you plan to
make regarding sustainability?

This touches every part of our business.
We'll rebalance our commercial and
sustainability goals. We'llensure our
‘assurance’ functions are well invested

and robust enough to chailenge us and
keep us honest. We'll make it part of

every colleague’s role. We'll revisit how

we market and advertise to customers.
We'll take ownership of problem gambling
- understanding it and actively contributing
to the wider engagement on research,
education and treatment. We'll do mare
to help ‘at risk’ customers to stop problems
developing. We'll build collaborative
relaticnships to become a true partner

to regulators and government. And

we'll rebuild our relationships with other
industries where the naturally symbiotic
relationships have, to some degree, broken
down — with horseracing and greyhound
racing, for instance.

How do you think about
M&A in the context of
your strategy?

Consolidation is an obvious route for this
sector. There are almost 800 remote
gambling licences issued in the UK

alone. And there's meaningful value to

be generated from cost synergies as
demonstrated by the three big deals in the
last two years, which generated synergies
in excess of £100m each. But, ideally, I'd
want M&A to take us forward strategically
as well, to diversify our revenue streams,
whether geographically or through other
products or channels, so we can reduce our
reliance on the UK.

Right now, we're in a great place. We've got,
in cur view, a premium standalone sports
betting brand We're cornpeting hard in

the UK. We've got the potential of the US
opening up. And we've got a robust balance
sheet. What we need is clarity — from the
Supreme Court on PASPA and from the

UK Government on the Triennial Review.
Only then can we know what's right for the
future of this business.

Do you plan to make
any further changes
to the team?

We're in really good shape now having
expanded the skillset of the Group
Executive and with a new CEC, CFO

and Chairman Designate, and three new
Non-execs on the Board. The husiness

will always change as we respond to
opportunities and challenges, but I'm really
happy with where we are now.

Modu iagens
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Key trends in the market

Key trends in our industry

Regulation

Sustainability

Image Removed

Image Removed

Today, gambling legislation exists in
practically every country, but most of
it was written for land-based entities.
Very few governments — just 16 at the
last count — have so far updated their

As governments regulate, consumer
protection is front of mind. And

in a regulated market, striking the
right balance between commerdal
and regulatory goals is becoming

legislation to take account of cnline
gambling. As a result, online only
accounts for 9% of global gambling

revenues.

The UK was among the first
to regulate online gambling
and it is by far the largest
regulated digital market,

five times bigger in revenue
terms than the next nearest
country. To date, 15 Eurcpean
countries have followed and
Europe has become the most
advanced region, with 21% of
garmbling revenues coming
from digital sources'. In the
UK, online is 43% of revenues,
which indicates its potential in
a well-regulated, cornmercially
open market’.

1. H2GC

More governrments are
maoving towards legalising
onling, recognising its appeal
for customers, the importance
of consumer protection and
the potential to generate tax
revenues. Whilst many early
movers are relatively smali
markets, more significant
ones arein the pipelfine,
incjuding countries such as
Germany, Brazil, Russia and
India. This couid open up
meaningful new opportunities
for companies such as
William Hill, so having well-
developed digital and land-
hased capabilities, experience
in regulated markets and the
scale to invest internationally
can give significant
competitive advantages.

Find out more
Page 18

increasingly important.

Inthe UK, forinstance,
regulation of gambling is
facused on treating customers
fairly and openly, protecting
the vulnerable — whether
problem gamblers or under
18s — and keeping crime out

of gambling.

In markets where gambiing
has grown rapidly — such

as the UK and Australia —
concerns have been raised
that gambling companies

are putting customers at risk.
Media coverage and palitical
commentary on problem
gambling and TV advertising is
intense, and society is looking
to the companies to act

This is about our licence to
operate. And it is vital that the
largest operators — including
William Hill — lead the way
towards a more sustainable
approach to gambling.

We want relationships with
our custornerstoiasta
lifetime, which is already what
happens in many of our shops.
it'sin ourinterest, as well as
customers' and governments’,
tc enable customers to
gamble responsibly. Some
positive steps have already
been taken, such as giving
customers more ways to
restrict or even block their
gambling, and training
colleagues to interact with
customers that they are
concerned about

But this is just the start of
along journey. And we are
continuously learning and
improving what we do. Both
as a company and as a strong
voice in our industry.

Find out more
Page 32
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Personalisation

Consolidation
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Gambling is a fun experience for
millions of people and over the last
decade the industry has delivered
ever more exciting and engaging ways
to bet, from in-play to ‘cash in" and

tailored odds.

With more extensive product
ranges, the need to make the
customer experience quick
and easy became paramount,
and we've focused on
optimising customer journeys,
including learning from other
consumer-facing businesses.

The personal experience
already exists in the shops and
has been enhanced further

in 2017 Now, technology is
opening up the potential for
increasing personalisation.
Taking it online is all about
data: managing and
translating vast volumes of
data into ways of anticipating
what customers want to do
and then detfivering it to them.
And it's about managing

that acress channels tog, for
customers gambling both
online and in the shops.

We're already delivering
personalised bets through
#YourQdds, our social
media-based route for
customers to ask for odds

on a bet they've designed for
themselves. We're alsc giving
them the choice of enhanced
odds on a bet every day
through Bet Boost. And cur
communications are becoming
more personal through
programmatic marketing.

But with the likes of

Netflix and Amazon using
recommendation engines to
anticipate customers’ needs,
expectations are getting
higher by the day. 5o there's
much more to come.

Find qut mare
Page 18

In the UK, a large and sophisticated
digital gambling industry has become
established over the last decade.

But with almost 800 licensees, it is
also fragmented in a way that is not
typical of — or sustainable in — a highly
regulated digital market.

Consolidation is a natural
trend for this industry and
has already been evident

in places. The cost of

building and maintaining

a highly competitive digital
business is substantial and
increasing — to keep pace

with technological change,

to invest in both digital and
above-the-line marketing,

and to pay gambling duties

in regulated markets. And the
cost of regulation is increasing
as we move towards achieving
a more sustainable balance
for customers, governments
and operators.

The benefits to be gained
from consclidation are
meaningful. It creates scale
for operators, spreading

their substantial cost base
across wider revenue sources.
it generates cost synergies
that deliver meaningful
near-term shareholder value.
And it diversifies a company’s
revenue streams, reducing the
regulatory, macro-economic
and competitive risks that
cormne from being over
exposed to a single market.

In ten years' time, no one
would be surprised to see

a much more cansolidated
sector with a smaller
number of much larger scale
companies leading the way.
It's not a matter of 'if* but
when and how.

Find cut move
Page 18
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Our business model

The resources
we need

Non-financial
People and knowledge

Qur people are passionate about
William Hill. Qur team’s expertise allows
us to innovate and bring new and
improved products to our customers,

Find cut more: Page 38

Brand and reputation

Our 82-year-old brand is both highly
reccgnised and trusted. Qur high
street presence and marketing
investments both build brand
awareness. This, together with cur
reputation for delivering a great but
responsible experience, helps us
differentiate ourselves.

Find out more: Page 05

Relationships

We work closely with customers, sports
bodies and supgliers to help improve
the business we operate in.

Find out more: Page 32

Proprietary technology

A key differentiator, driven by customer
insight. We are investing to ensure cur
technology platform delivers the best
customer experience. It also underpins
other key business requirements.

Find out more: Page 10

Regulatory licensing

We operate in highly regulated
markets where we need to be licensed.
‘We work closely with governing
bodies to lead the way in delivering

a responsible gambling experience.

Find out more: Page 18

Financial

Access to capital

In order to run the business and
continue to invest in improving our
operations, we need funds which we
generate from profits or sesk from
our shareholders or debt providers.

Find aut more: Page 28

How we create value

What
we offer

We provide exciting products
across a range of betting
and gaming opportunities.

Betting

Qur customers primarily come

to us for sports betting. Customers
are offered a price for various
outcomes which have a margin
built in. Qur Trading team sets the
pricing (odds). Customers can bet
on the outcome of key sporting
events — including in-play and pre-
match sports betting — or anything
from political events to reality TV.

Gaming

Qur customers can alsc enjoy

a wide range of gaming products,
which extend the opportunity for
customers to enjoy our products
between betting events. Gaming
outcomes are randomly generated
and more frequent, operating at
lower but more stable margins than
sports betting.

How customers
bet with us

Irmage Removed

Our customers can bet with
us wherever and whenever
they want, enhancing the
fun of watching a match and
enjoying the thrill of gaming.

Retail

We have 2,342 of the c8,500 shops

in the UK market. In qur shops
customers can enjoy sports betting
on football, horseracing and other
sports as well as gaming on machines.

Online

QOur customers have access to more
than a millicn betting opportunities
available online every week.
Customers can gamble with us
wherever and whenever they want,
including via mobile, tablet or PC.
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Why customers
bet with us

image Rermnavad

Omni-channel delivery

By providing customers the choice
of betting shops environments,
SSBTs, mobile apps or traditicnal
online access, we can leverage all
channels to maximize our revenues.

Customer experience

We aim to give customers an
unrivalled choice of products and the
best experience. We are focused on
giving customers what they want,
ensuring our product is fast and easy
to use, and creating personalised
rewarding experiences. While at the
same time, encouraging and helping
customers to gamble responsibly.

How the
financials work

Customer bets
I on sports or other events
or spends on gaming

L L

Customer Customer

wins loses
Bets/plays w'i(r?:iﬂsgs Company
again pays cost

{recycling) (f:‘f;c',':;t of sales
Contribution

to Group

profit

The results
of what we do

Operating profit

Profits enable reinvestment into the
business and returns to shareholders
and debt praviders.

Find out more: Page 28

Shareholder returns

The financial returns we generate for
investors can be redistributed in the
forem of dividends or share buy backs.

Find out more: Page 28

Encouraging responsible
gambling

Cur approach to responsible gambling
is core 10 how we operate as a business
and aims to protect our customers,
our colleagues and the communities

in which we operate.

Find out more: Page 34

Taxes to the Government

We are a key contributor to the UK
econcmy, paying £3473min 2017 to
Treasury through direct, indirect and
employee taxes. Betting shops also
contribute to local services paying more
than £21.9m in business rates each year.

Find out more: Page 17

Employment

We employ around 16,000 people
across our business. Our UK betting
shops provide full- and part-time jobs
for 11,726 people.

Find out more: Page 40

Social and community

Through our community commitment
- Close to Home — our colleagues
volunteer their time and skills to
support good causes in local areas.
We also partner with a number of
charities, support community youth
programmes, mental health initiatives
and support sport.

Find aut more: Page 42
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Key performance indicators

Driving our performance

Indicators of strategic progress

We have been focused on three strategic priorities

to drive UK growth and internationai diversification.

On page 07 we summarise the progress we made
against these priorities under the leadership of

Philip Bowcock, CEO.

From 2014 to 2016

Since 2014, senior management's
Long Term Incentive Plans have been
linked to our diversification strategy,
with 25% of awards assessed against
mobile growthin Online and digitat
growth in Australia. Between 2014
and 2077, the proportion of revenues
from digital and international markets
has rernained relatively stable at 43%
and 18%, respectively. This is because
different divisions have experienced
volatitity at different times, effectively
offsetting weakness in one part of
the Group with growth in ancther,
However, across the same period, we
have seen mabile continue toincrease
as a percentage of Sportshook and
Gaming net revenues in Cnling,

and digital has increased to 88%

of Australia’s revenues.

2017 onwards

In 2017, reflecting the need to focus
on the transfaormation of the business,
the approach to management

reward was changed so that 33.3%

of the 2017 awards would be based on
pregress against our revenue growth
and cost reduction transformation
goals — see page 07 for further
information. We have made good
progress and continue to investin

our transfarmation programme,
which we expect to deliverimproved
revenues, greater cost efficiency and
better arganisational effectiveness.

Read more
Page 77

Diversification

Internaticnal: reducing reliance
on UK-derived revenue
(%)

Graph Removed

Digital and international: digital as
a percentage of Australia revenues
(%)

Graph Removed

Digital: increasing mobie
as a percentage of Online
Sportsbook revenues
(Em)

Graph Removed

Digital: increasing mobile
as a percentage of Online
gaming revenues

(Em)

Graph Removed

Priar year numbers have been re-presented
toinclude Telephone.
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Group KPis

Net revenue’
{Em)

+/%

Graph Removed

Net revenue' is the key indicator of the Group's
top ine growth it 1s the revenue retained from
the amounts staked after paying out customer
winnings and deducting free bets. In 2017,
Groug net reveriue’ was 7% higher, Within this,
Crline revenue grew by 13%, reflecting growth
in both sports betting and gaming. Retail revenue
grew 2% with a gross win rmargin of 18% and
revenue growth from gaming machines of 3%.
Net revenue in Austrakia and the US increased
by 5% and 29%, respectively

Corporate responsibility KPls

Adjusted operating profit’
(Em)

+119%

Graph Removed

Adjusted operating profit2, which gives a picture
of underlying performance, is a key indicator of
the Group's success in delivering top line growth
while controlling costs In 2017 it increased by N%
This is faster than the Group's revenue growth
rate as costs were well controlled, in sprte of
addrtional marketing investment in our Online
business.

Basic, adjusted EPS®
(pence)

+249

Graph Removed

Basic, adjusted earnings per share (EPS)1s a key
indicator of the Group's growth after allowing

for all costs, including interest and tax, but
excluding exceptional itemns and adjustments

The increase in EPS reflects the adjusted operating
profit2 growth, lower finance costs and the full
year impact of the share buy-back programme
throughout 2016.

Employee engagement participation
(%}

89

Graph Removed

This KPI reflects the proportion of our
colleagues whao participate in our annual
emplayee survey “Your Say', which measures
of our colleagues’ satisfaction in working for
williarn Hill and highlights areas we can address
toimprove. In 2017, almest 13,000 colleagues
participated in the survey, which increased

the participation rate to an all-time high of
89%. The results highlighted an improvernent
in colleagues’ understanding of Williarn Hill's
strategy and in working collaboratively across
divisions and functions. Career progression at
William Hill was highlighted as the biggest area
to be addressed.

Retait net promoter score (NPS)
{%)

/6%

Graph Removed

This KPi addresses the overall satisfaction

of our Retail customers with their experience
of our shops, reflecting the quality of our
customer service, product range and in-shop
experience. The NPS is based on customers’
likelihood of recommending cur shops. in
20717, the NPS increased to 76% following the
Retail restructure we implemented in January
2017, Customer service 1s central to our vision
for Retail and we are using customer service
experts from our shop teams to work with
underperforming shops through shop visits,
and coaching

1 Netrevenue is an industry term equivabent to revenue as defined in the notes to the financial statements.

2 Adjusted operating profit is defined as profit befare interest and tax, exciuding exceptional iterns and other defined adjustments. Further detail on adjusted
measures is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.

Community contributions

£306m

Graph Removed

This KPI reflects our financial contribution

to responsible gambling and cur support for
other related organisations and industries,
some of which are heavily reliznt on the success
of our industry. It includes: our annual donations
1o the Senet Group and to GamblteAware to
fund research, education and treatment of
probiemn gambling; levies on our UK horseracing
and greyhound racing revenues, sponsorships;
and charitable donations, including matched
donations for colleagues’ fundraising efforts.

In 2017 charitable donations amounted to F19m,
ncluding £1m to GambleAware and £56,219 in
matched funding.

3 Adjusted EPS is catculated using adjusted profit after tax and is used for remuneration purposes (see page 77 onwards) and in evaluating performance for
dividend policy purposes Further detail on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial statements The calculation of EPS measures is shown in

note 11 to the financial statements.
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Our marketplace

Our markets

William Hill's core strategy is

to invest in regulated markets
where we can take a licence and
operate sustainably.

Approximately 96% of the Group's revenues
were generated from such markets in 2017,

We also take revenues from regulating markets
where we have formed a risk-assessed legal

view on each market.

Market overview

Gambling takes many forms and
varies from country to country.

The industry consists of
government-run operations,
licensed monapolies or open
commercial markets. In some
countries there is an outright
ban on gambling. A wide range
of products are available, from
lotteries to sperts betting, casino
garnes, poker and bingo. And
they're accessed in many different
formats, from land-based clubs,
pubs, casinas, betting shops and
race tracks to online gambling.

1. H2GC.

Land-based activities remain
the format of choice for most
gambling customers, generating
89% of the €395bn gross
gambling yield'. Online gambling
first started in earnest in 1998
while mobile gambling became
mere praminent from 2010
onwards. In many countries,
gambling regulations were
originally designed with land-
based operations in mind. With
digital gambling overcoming
physical borders, governments
are gradually meving to update
their regulations to take account
of online and mobile gambling.

This is creating opportunities for
companies — such as wWilliam Hill -
whio have built a substantial digital
business. Technology has become
a key enabler of differentiation
and innovation, opening up both
new praducts such as in-play
betting and new channels such
as mobile gambling.

The UK

The UK is William Hill's
primary market, generating
82% of Group net revenue
in 2017 We have 28%

of the betting shops and
around 1% of the digital
betting and gaming
revenues.

Around 48% of the UK adult population
participates in gambling a month, including
the National Lottery.

The UK generated £13.7bn of gross
gambling yield (GGY) in the last year'.
Within this, digital has become the largest
part of the UK market, accounting for 34%
of GGY and growing 10% in the last year
Betting revenues (licensed betting offices
(LBOs) and on-course bookmakers) remam
resifient in spite of the rapid digital growth,
up 1% in the same period.

UK market share by number
of LBOs
(%)

Graph removed

Ladbrokes Coral 40%
‘Williarn Hill 28%
Betfred 20%
Other 12%
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UK retail

LBOs were first legalised in 1961 when the
Government recognised that significant
levels of garnbling were happening illegally.
The number of betting shops reached

a peak of c16,000 in the 1970s and then
has declined to the current level of ¢8,500.
Over the last five years, the number of
LBOs has declined 7%.

The LBO market has consclidated over the
decades and three major operators now
account for 88% of shops? Witliam Hill is
the second largest operator, but the leading
brand by number of shops.

LBO GGY in the last year was £3.20n7?,

43% from betting and 57% from gaming.
Qver the last five years, GGY from the LBOs
has increased at Y% CAGR In spite of the
rapid growth of digital gambling. Customer
experience is a key reason for the LBOs'
continumng poepularity with customers.

The regulatory environment for LBOs last
changed significantly with the Gambling
Act 2005 and the regulation of gaming
machines. We pay 15% for General Betting
Duty and 25% for Machine Garnes Duty.

1. H2GC

The UK LBO industry is a key contributor
te the UK economy. We support around
43,000 full-time equivalent jobs and

our total economic contribution is around
£3.2bn towards GDP including around
£1bn a year to Treasury through direct,
indirect and employee taxes’,

As a well-regulated industry, we also
provide a safe environment for gambling
activities, with colleagues regularly trained
to identify potentially harmful gambling
behaviour and to engage with customers
to encourage responsible gambling.

UK online

Online, including mobile, is the
fastest growing segment of the UK
gambling industry

First established in 1998, in the early
years the market was led by the major
tand-based brands — nctably Williarn Hili
and Ladbrokes — as the most recognised
and trusted operators. The entrance

of more technology-led, specialist orline

operators eroded the leaders’ market share.

However, the established brands fought
back, addressing their technology gaps
and investing in marketing to re-establish
competitive positions.

2, Gambiing Commission Industry Statistics, April 2016 ta March 2017, published November 2017

3 Association of British Bookmakers,

Online was regulated by the Gambling
Commission on a ‘point of transaction’
basis from 2007. In November 2014,

the regulations changed to a ‘point of
consumption’ basis and from December
2014 all licensed operators have been
taxed on that same basis, paying 15%
General Betting Duty and 15% Remacte
Gaming Duty.

Cnline GGY in the last year was £4.7bn,
4% from betting and 53% from gaming,
up 10% year-on-year As the market
matures, this is expected to slow to

7% CAGR between 2017 and 2022.

Years of low barriers to entry encouraged
the praliferation of gambhng companies.
Although the barriers are now higher

—and increasing - the market remains
fragmented, with the Gambling Commission
reporting 788 remote gambling activities
licensed by them?.

Sports betting is a key product for driving
customer acquisition, benefiting from a
relatively lower cost per acquisition, fonger
customer lifespans and goad cross-selling
potential. It also offers the greatest
opportunity for competitive differentiation
and controiling sports betting technology

is key to both driving innovation and rapidly
responding 1o changes in the market.

wodas yEaens
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Our marketplace continued

Our markets

International markets

Changing regulations are
opening up opportunities
in international markets,
primarily in digital but
also —inthe US —in land-
based sports betting.
This enables us to diversify
our sources of revenue.

In addition to the UK

and Gibraltar, William Hill
is currently licensed in
other territories including
Nevada, Australia, ltaly,
Spain and the Republic
of Ireland.

William Hill US has a

57%

market share by
number of outlets

Image removed

us

The US market is dominated by land-
based casinos and lotteries. Online

gaming is largely illegal with only Delaware,
New Jersey and Nevada having licensed
operators to provide certain gaming
products. Online sports betting is illegal
under the Interstate Wire Act 1961. State-
sponscred sports betting — land-based and
online —is banned under the Professional
and Amateur Sports Protection Act 1992
(PASPA) in all but four states — Nevada,
Delaware, Montana and Oregon.

In Nevada, sports books have to be sited
within casinos and are typically either

run by the casino operator themselves

or outsourced o a specialist end-to-end
operator. William Hill US is the largest such
operator, having been created through the
acquisition and consolidation of three small
operatars. Nevada also permits mobile
betting for customers who create their
accounts through the casina sports books.

The Nevada sports betting market
gererated $5.2bn of amounts wagered
and $293m of revenues'. William Hili US
has 57% market share by number of
outlets, operating 108 of the 190 sports
books in the state.

In Delaware, sports betting is run by the
Delaware State Lottery and Wiliam Hill US
is the exclusive bookmaker for that service,
in partnership with Scientific Games.

A nurnber of states have been exploring
ways to challenge PASPA and enable
land-based or intra-state mobile sports
petting. The most advanced legal challenge
has been progressed by New Jersey, which
sought to decriminalise sports betting in
the state within casinos and race tracks.

In Decernber 2017, the Supreme Court
heard arguments in the state of New
Jersey's challenge.

To date, 13 states have progressed or
passed legislation that would enable sports
betting in those states should PASPA

be overturned by the Supreme Court.

A decision s expected in 2018,

1. H2GC,




Williarn Hill PLC
Annual Report and Accaunts 2017

21

Australia

Australia has the highest per capita spend
among the ten largest gambling countries,
and is seeing double-digit growth in anline
gambling. It has a narrow regulatory regime
with only pre-match betting allowed online.
No in-play and no gaming.

Sports betting — or wagering as it is known
localty — accounts for 17% of the Australian
gambling market at A$3.1bn of GGY a year.
Between 2012 and 2016, tota betting grew
at around 9% CAGR, within which online
grew at 21%. Online betting is projected to
grow at 12% CAGR between 2017 and 2022

Under the Interactive Gambling Act 2007,
pre-match betting is permitted online but
in-play betting and gaming are prohibited.
Australia’s online betting marketis more
consolidated than in the UK and a number
of European operators have moved into
the market in recent years, including
William Hill, Paddy Power, Ladbrokes

and Bet365.

While the revenue potential is attractive,
regulatory ¢hanges and increasing costs
are making this a challenging market. in July
2017, South Australia introduced a Point of
Consumption Tax. In February 2018, a ban
on credit betting came into effect. Now
anumber of states are also implementing
or considering a Point of Consumption

Tax. Should this be introduced across all
states as an increment to existing gamkbling
duties and levies, the cast of sale will be
unsustainably high at mare than 40%

of revenue.

Therefore, further consalidation is expected
in the market.

1. H2GC
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italy and Spain

A number of Eurcpean countries have
followed the UK in amending or estabiishing
licensing regimes for online gambling.

Italy generated €1.2bn of GGY from

online gambling'. It is still dominated by
gaming, which accounts for almost two
thirds of revenue. However, sports betting
is becoming more established as the
regulatory framework has been gradually
widened and new developments have
heen permitted, such as Cash In. The online
market is expected to grow at 7% CAGR
aver the next four years'.

Spain generated €0.6bn of GGY from
online gambling' Sports betting features
more strongly in Spain and is the largest
single product, representing just under
half of revenue. Gaming revenues are
growing rapidly following the regulation
aof slots games in 2015 With no prominent
land-based sports betting incumbent,
the market is led by the major European
cperatoars. The online market is expected
to grow at 18% CAGR over the next

four years'.

Rest of World

William Hull akso generates revenues in
other countries via williamhill.com. These
markets make up c4% of Group revenue.
These markets are often described as
‘Brey’ or 'regulating’. This is because the
governments have not yet updated or are
in the process of updating their gambling
legisiation to take account of anline or

to create online-specific regulations.
Companies rely on legal interpretaticns
of the existing law to determine whether
they can operate in that country.

We have taken legal assessments of the
countries from which we accept customers
and have processes in place to monitor and
respond to regulatory change.

There are a number of countries from

which we will not accept customers. This
varies from countries such as the US and
Turkey where we believe online gambling

is explicitly illegal, to France where online
gambling is regulated, but we have chosen
not to take a licence because the tax regime
is prohibitive.
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Divisional overview

Online

Image removed

Online generated 36% of Group net revenue in 201/

and employed around 1,700 people in Gibraltar, UK, Italy,
Spain, Bulgaria, Poland, Israel and the Philippines.

Key Performance Indicators

Sportshook margin
(%)

+0.4 ppts

Graph removed

This KPi gives an indication of how sporting
results have affected our performance during
the year. Our normalised range for Onlineis
7-B% for gross win. In 2077, the gross win margin
was 04 percentage ponts higher year-on-year
at 76%, reflecting a reasonable year in terms
of sporting results, This comprised anin-play
margin of 5.8% (2016: 5.8%) and a pre-match
rmargin of 20% (2016: 8.4%). This KPlis an
industry terrn and is described in the glossary
wnder ‘gross win margin’ on page 163.

Revenue per unique active player
(£)

+0%

Graph removed

This KPI reflects the average revenue
generated from customers who have used our
products during the year. It demonstrates our

effectiveness in growing the value of customers,

Tetal Online net revenue was 13% higherin 2077,
with Sportsbook up 14% and gaming up 12%
Within this, revenue per unique active player
was stronger at +6%, reflecting the benefit

of wide-ranging improverments to our product
and user experience

Unique active players
{'000)

+06%

Graph removed

This KPi reflects the numbser of individual
customers wha have used Online’s products
during the year. This demanstrates how
successful we have been inrecruiting and
retaining Online custemers. In 2017 the number
of unigue active players was up 6% on the back
of aur facus on player retention and improved
ACQUISTLICN.
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Growing UK market share

The UK has been a key focus forus in

2017 given the continued growth of digital,
which has become the single largest part
of the UK gambling market. Following

a period of underperformance, our Online
business is now competing strongly again
and gained momentum through the
course of the year. We have continued to
improve the product and user experience
for Online customers. For Sportsbook,

we launched #YourQdds, a social media-
based personalised cdds service, which

is proving extramely popular. For gaming,
we completed the redesign of the five
casina verticals for mobile and desktop.
We also launched a 'single wallet’, removing
a key friction point for customers and, as
aresult, increased levels of cross-sell. We
also increased our investment in marketing
in the second half of 2017 having optimised
our marketing spend and increased
efficiency to attract and retain customers.

Giving customers what
they want

We are focused on giving customers
what they want. We're making our
product ‘fast and easy’ making it quick
and simple to use when placing bets

or enjoying gaming. We're creating
personalised experiences Dy tailoring
what we do for each customer. We're
giving customers rewarding experiences,
relevant to them. And we're building a safe
environment that encourages customers
to gamble responsibly.

Expanding internationally

As new markets open up, we'll step in. By
operating in more places, we reduce the
impact of regulatory changes in a particular
market. We're investing in markets that
have a strong gambling culture and a
competitive regulatory and tax framewark.
We want to be able to offer customers a
broad range of sperts betting and gaming
products, like in the UK —and being a
market leader in the UK gives us some key
advantages when we invest elsewbere.

In 2017 approximately 77% of Online’s net
revenues' carme from the UK (2016: 76%).
And 1% came from Spain and Italy

(2016: 11%). The remainder were spread
acrass a large number of other countries,
with none accounting for more than 2%
of Online’s total revenues (2016: 2%).

Performance review

Sportshook amounts wagered was up

10% following improvements to our

makbile Sportsbeok, cur desktop site and
marketing over the {ast 18 months. This

is a particularly strong performance in a
year without a major international foctball
tournament. Within this, core markets grew
12% with the UK up 12% and Italy and Spain
up 15%. These markets accounted for 86%
of wagering in the period. Wagering in other
markets was flat.

The gross win margin increased from 7.2%
to 7.6%. Free bets over the year accounted
for 1.1% of amounts wagered (2016: 0.9%).
As a result, Sportsbook net revenue rose
14% to £308 3m. Standout results came
from pre-match football in Q4, which were
strong in their own right and benefited from
their comparison with a weak result in the
same period in 2016.

Gaming net revenue was up 2% to
£308.6m, with core markets up 13% and
non-core markets up 10%. There were
benefits from the launch of the single
wallet in Q1, enabling a seamless movement
of funds between William Hill and Playtech
praducts, significant work on cross-sel!
product features and the introduction of
daily ‘'must drop’ jackpots with content from
a new third-party provider.

Growth in active users was 6% for the year.
New accounts grew by 3% and revenue
per active user grew by 6% over the year
with the focus of marketing activities

being on both acquisition and retention

of customers.

Qur mabile user experience improvements
resulted in revenues from maobile devices
increasing to 82% of Sportshock net
revenue (2016: 70%) and 63% of gaming
net revenue (2016: 53%;.

wadasianens (

Online net revenue — split by product

(%)
Graph removed
Sportsbook 50%
Vegas N%
Casing 15%
Bingo 3%
Poker %

Italy and Spain continue to perform well
with Spartsbook net revenue up 4% and
gaming net revenue up 9% in local currency
terms. We launched new desktop and
rmobile casine sites in both countries and
increased the number of regulated games
to over 200 new titles.

Total Online cost of sales increased faster
than net revenue because of the higher
proportion of growth coming from the UK,
the introduction of the horseracing levy for
Online from April and the application of the
Remote Gaming Duty Tax to gaming free
bets from October.

Operating costs were 5% higher with

a 14% increase in marketing investment
and an 1% increase in staff costs offset
by savings in a number of external
spend areas.

As a result, adjusted operating profit?
increased 32%.

Read abouyt the UK online market
Page 19

1 MNet revenue is an industry term equivalent to revenue as defined in the nates to the financial statements.

2 Adjusted operating profitis defined as profit before interest and tax, excluding exceptional tems and other
defined adjustments, Further detail on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Divisional overview continued

Retail

Image removed

Retail is our largest division, generating 54% of Group
net revenue in 2017 Retail employs around 12,300

people in the UK.

Key Performance Indicators

Sportsbook margin
(%)

+0.4 ppts

Graph removed

This KPI gives anindication of how sporting
results have affected our performance during
the year. At18.0%, the gross win margin was
0.4 percentage points higher than the prior
year and at the top of our normalised range of
17-18%, reflecting positive sparting results. This
KPlis anindustry term and is described in the
glossary under 'gross win margin’ on page 161.

1 Net revenue is an industry term equivalent to revenue as defined in the notes to the financial statements

2 Adjusted operating profit is defined as profit befere interest and tax, excluding exceptional items and other
defined adiustments. Further detail on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial statements

Average profit per LBO

(f)
-O%

Graph removed

This KPi reflects the average profitability of
the shops. Retail net revenue' increased with
Sportsbook net revenue up 1% and gaming
machine net revenue up 3% Cost of sales and
operating casts both increased by 3%. Overal,
adjusted operating profit? was 1% lower at.
E160.9m. Average profit per LBO remained
flat at £68,120. The average numnber of shops
was slightly down at 2,362 (2016:2,372), with
eight new licences opened and 41 shops dosed
in the period.

Average gross win per machine
per week (£)

+3%

Graph removed

This KPI reflects the trends in the underlying
growth in gaming machine net revenue!. Based
on an average of 9,313 machines, the average
gross win per machine per week (net of free
bets} was 3% higher at £1,028. Amaxrmum

of four machines are allowed per shop. Gaming
machme net revenue increased 3%, benefiting
from the regular release of new slots and casino
games content.
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Alive and kicking

Retailis a powerful asset. Customers
continue to want to be in betting shops
—they love the convenience and also the
social experience. And you can bet in cash
{approximately 90% of Retail’s transactions
areincashy). Itis aiso a great partner to
Online as customers increasingly want

to be in the shops as well as to bet an
their mobile. We focus on the quality of
our customer service, strong respansible
gambling measures and the fundarnentals
that matter most to our customers.

This includes the shop environment, our
product range and technology innovations
to bring customers an attractive and
differentiated offering.

The best of William Hill —
joining up the customer
experience

We continue to extend our omni-channel
offering, targeting UK customers wha use
both betting shops and digital services.

We estimate around 30% of our regular
customers bet in shops and online.
Through our proprietary self-service
betting terminals {SSBTS), we are now
bringing much more of our extensive
online product range to shop customers.
Having successfully completed the SSBT
roll-out in 2017, we now have at least one in
every shop and have replaced all terminais
previously provided by a third party. We're
also bringing more of the digital experience
to our customers with the William Sill Plus
card and app. This gives shop customers
access to engaging products that have
already proven popular with Online’s
customers. By the end of the year, we had
launched the first phase of an ‘omni-wallet’,
making it even easier for existing Online
customers 1o use their account funds in
shop. Further innovations are planned.

Qur Retail restructure, implemented on
1January 2017, is encouraging even greater
colleague suppert for our customers. We
madernised the organisational structure
by creating 359 Business Performance
Managers wha now focus on enhancing
the customer experience. This is bringing
management support closer tg the shop
teams and has reduced the number of
middle management roles.

Our estate

Around 90% of the shops in our estate are
leased. The average remaining lease length,
including break clauses, is just over three
years. The average lease cost per LBO is
c£22,000 per annum.

We have 2,342 shops as at the end of 2017,
Our average number of shops during 2017
was 2,362.

We expect that the implementation of
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ in 2019 will substantially
alter the way that we record and present
property costs in the Retail business.

We will finalise our assessment of the likely
impactin 2018 and communicate that in
due course. This new accounting standard
is explained in more detad in the notes to
the financial staterments.

Performance review

Sportsbook wagdering was down 1% with no
benefit from a major international football
tournament but supported by the roll-out

of SSBTs to all shops and the increase in
products offered on them. SSBT Sportsbook
wagering increased to over 12% of total
Retail wagering by the end of the year. We
have expanded the SSBT product range with
the addition of popular football coupons and
horseracing. Further products wili be added
in20n8. Total Sportsbook gross win margin
was up 0.4 percentage points t0 18.0%,
benefiting fromn strong football results in Q4.

in gaming, our regular programme of
product launches saw B3 content increase
10 36.5% of revenues (2016: 34.0%) We are
currently trialling a new gaming machine
cabinet from Inspired Gaming Group in

50 shops.

woda zBanens

Retail net revenue — split by product

(%)
Graph removed
Horseracing 19%
Football 2%
Greyhounds T%
Other 8%
Gaming machines 54%

Retail net revenue grew 2%, with Sportsbock
up 1% and gaming up 3%.

Operating costs were 3% higher, with
increases in the major cost areas of
staff, property and content all in line
with expectations. As a result, adjusted
operating profit? fell by 1%.

The average numiber of shops fell slightly

t0 2,362 (2016: 2,372) with eight new licences
opened and 41 shops closed in the period,
including 25 as part of the transformation
programme. The number of shops at the
year-end was 2,342,

Read about the Retail market
Page 19
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William Hill Plus The Retail app

Image removed

The William Hill Plus card links a
customer's SSBTs transactions to their
account, which is identified by their mobile
phone number. The app aliows them to
track those bets and Cash In any time,
anywhere. As their account is linked to

a mobile phone number, we can also send
offers to shop customers through push
notifications for the first time. Mere than
80,000 customers registered for a Plus
account within the first six weeks of it
being available in just over half of the
estate. Customer sign ups reached over
137000 by the year-end.
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Divisional overview continued

US

Image removed

William Hill US generated
3% of Group net revenue
in 2017 and employs
around 400 people,
mainly in casino-based
sports books in Nevada.

Building the leading Nevada
business

Nevada is one of only four states allowed

to license land-based sports betting in

the US and is the only one that currently
operates an open commercial market.
Sports books can only be operated inside
casinos. While the major casinos operating
anthe Las Vegas Strip tend to manage their
own sports books, the majority of the other
casinos outsource this specialist capability.
William Hill is now the preferred cutsource
supplier, operating 108 of the 190 sports
books in Nevada.

We have successfully grown William Hill US
by winning more sports book contracts and
expanding the product range. This includes
in-play betting, developing the mobile

app and redeveloping the existing sports
books, which are branded as William Hill.
Custamers who have signed up to mobile
accounts in the sports books can now
deposit via kiosks provided in casino and
bar locations, and via Sightiine, a pre-
paidcard.

We are also the exclusive risk manager
for the State of Delaware’s sports lottery.

Potential opening up of the
US sports betting market

There has been a lot of discussion inthe
US about the patential for overturning the
federal ban on land-based sports betting.
Now, all eyes are focused on the Supreme
Court, who in Decernber 2017 heard
arguments in the state of New Jersey’s
challenge to the Professional and Amateur
Sports Protection Act 1992 (PASPA), which
bans state-sponsored sports betting.

A decision is expected in 2018. A number

of states, most recently Pennsylvania, have
taken steps to prepare for legalised sports
betting should the Supreme Court overturn
the federal ban.

We are well positioned to take advantage
of these emerging opportunities. Through
our Nevada operations, we have built

a strong track record, refationships with
casinos, recognition of aur strengths

in sports betting and awareness of the
William Hill brand. The Company and
individual licences awarded by the Nevada
Garmning Commission bring increased trust,
given the high leve! of probity checks
required to achieve those licences.

We have already invested inrelevant
opportunities, such as the agreement with
Monrouth Park racetrack in New Jersey
where we have created a William Hitl sports
bar that could be converted into a sports
book should the law permit it.

Performance review

Numbers referenced in the following
narrative are presented on a iocal
currency basis.

Strong growth in amounts wagered
continued from H1into H2, to deliver 22%
growth overall in the year. In particular,
growth in mobile was 36% and the
parcentage of amounts wagered via
mobile devices is now 58% (2016: 52%).
The gross win margin increased slightly
tc 6.3% and net revenue was up 24%.
Operating costs rose 29% because of
additional headcount and property costs
to support growth. As a result, adjusted
operating profit' was up 18%.

During the year, we extended into two

new territories, cpening a race book for
Caesars Entertainment in lowa and sports
book at the new Baha Mar casinoin The
Bahamas. We opened two new sports
books in Nevada and closed two, ending the
year with 108 Nevada sports books in total,
equivalent to 57% of the sports books in
the state.

Read about the US market
Page 20
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Australia

Image removed

William Hill Australia
generated 7% of Group
net revenue in 201/ and
employs around 300
people based in Sydney,
Darwin and Manila.

Product-led offering

Only online sports betting is legal in
Australia. While there is not enough sport
far endless content for cur customers

to bet on, there are 80 races every day.

So we focused in 2017 cn enhancing our
core racing product. We're competing

for customers' attention by bringing

out exciting new products. Product
development is our principal competitive
advantage in this market. \We own our
technology platform, and we focus on this
to compete against companies of greater
scale with larger marketing budgets. In
2017, we launched Price Pump, which gives
customers daily perscnalised enhanced
odds, and William Hill Rewards, redeemable
as bonus bets and Velocity frequent

flyer points.

The core business —
the home of racing

As in-play products were curtailed by
changes to Northern Territory licensing
conditions in October 2016, we are
focusing on enhancing our core racing
product to generate growth. Racing is
still the most popular product amongst
Australian betters, accounting for 80%
of the business.

To drive growth, we are focused on:

1) providing the best customer experience
in the market, delivering on our ‘fast and
easy’ promise by resolving pain points and
introducing personalisation that simplifies
product usage; 2) delivering a competitive
‘value’ proposition to customers to

ensure we are competitive in the market
as customers can mave from brand to
brand very easily; and 3) rewarding loyalty
through products like William Hill Rewards
or Price Pump.

Revenue diversification

While betting is our core product, there is
a strong gaming culture in Austrafia and
garming products account for 79% of that
country's gambling revenues. In a market
that is facing some serious regulatory
challenges, we are diversifying our product
range by experimenting with some new
betting products, such as virtual racing,

Performance review

Numbers referenced in the following
narrative are presented on a local
currency basis.

Arnounts wagered was up 6%, with growth
of 28% in H1 but a decline of 15% in H2 as
we prepared for implementation of the
credit betting ban in Febrouary 2018, Gross
win margin improved from 8.0% in H1to
9.3% in the full year (2016 99%) as some
of the fower margin credit-related turnover
was removed in H2.

We are continuing to bring through product
innovations to attract and retain customers
and to diversify our sources of revenue.

The launch of OddsBoost helped grow core
horseracing turnover and over half of all
active customers used aur Price Pump offer
during 2017.

Staff costs rose 11% whilke marketing costs
fell 37% resulting in total expenses declining
4%. Marketing investment was reduced

in H2 in response to the strategic review

of our options for the Australian business.
In this market, a significant proporticn of
marketing is invested in areas with a return
period of 24 months or longer, therefore,
we are focusing on near-term returns.

As a result, profits have been protected
and adjusted operating profit! rose by 11%.

Read about the Australia market
Page 21

1 Adjusted operating profit is defined as profit before interest and tax, excluding exceptional items and other
defined adjustments. Further detail on adjusted measures 1s provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Financial review

Q&A
with Ruth Prior

Chief Financial Officer

Image removed

This is yaur first set
of resuits as CFQO. What
are the headlines for you?

It's great 1o see the business deliver a strong
set of results — we're more confident, more
focused and building momentum again.
We've worked very hard to return Cnline

to growth and to strengthen our long-term
competitiveness. There's more we're doing
but we've made massive strides. Retail

has had a good year. As the market-leading
brand in a declining market, to deliver a
consistent result is a good outcome. The US
continues to do well and we're addrassing
Australia’s challenges. We're much stranger
than we were a year age and looking ahead
towards our next opportunities.

What's behind the
difference between your
reported and adjusted numbers?

There are some meaty exceptional iterms
that fall into two main areas: addressing
historical issues and building the future

of our business. The first area includes, for
nstance, impairing the value of our Australia
business, which has bath underperformed
and been meaningfully impacted by
regulatory change. The second includes the
transformation programme, referred to as
restructuring costs in note 3 to the financial
statements, which is underpinning both
revenue growth and cost savings that are
being reinvested in the business.

What savings has the
transformation programme
delivered? And at what cost?

We expect to save in excess of £40m a year,
which we're reinvesting, and the operating
cost of the programme will be two times
that amount. But the programme has
delivered so many improvementsin the
business that its benefits are as much about
growth and our long-term competitiveness
as they are cost savings.

What do you expect
from the strategic
review of Australia?

I wan't pre-empt the decision. We're lcoking
at organic opportunities — both inside and
outside Australia — and we're considering the
potential to merge or sell the business. With
tax headwinds likely in 2019, this business
needs more scaie, one way or another.




Wiliiam Hitl PLC

29

Apnual Report and Accounts 2017
(7]
&
»
F{
"
g
3
How do you prioritise Consolidated income statement g
capﬂ;al allocation for Statutory results Adjosted resolts 2
the Group? 201 206 2017 2016 B
Investing in the business is our first priority. £m £m % £m £m %
Planning for the long term, the biggest Revenue 1,711 1,603.8 +7 1,711 16038 +7
question to be an;wered is whether the Cost of cales 432.0) 382.2) 3 (514.9) (382.2) +0
Supreme Court will overturn PASPA. If -
the US opens up, that will be a priority for Gross profit 12791 12216 *5 12962 1216 6
us and could require a significant amount
of capital. And we're investing in the UK, Net operating expenses  {1,322.8)  (996.0) 33 (1,004.9) (9601} +5 -
competing hard for digital growth. We need Lossprofit befo z
clarity, too, on the Triennial Review to know ¢ tss |:r0 Idta e @37) 2956 2013 2615 o 2
what cash flows we can expect from Retail | Mereot andtax - : : g
and establish investment levels needed. Net finance costs (30.9) (@43] -30 (36.4) (75) 23 g
And we will consider M&A opportunities Tax (8.6) (16.8) -49 {18.0) (19.8) -9 &
that can Qversn‘y the business into other (Loss)/profit after tax {832 1645 2369 194.2 +22
geographies, channels or products. Beyond
that, we pay a dividend and we pay down
our debt. (Loss)fearnings per
share O 189p 27.6p 223p +24

Any changes to your

dividend and balance
sheet policies?
No, bath seemed very sensible to me
when | joined. We pay dividends that are
50% of adjusted earnings, and have been
able to sustain the dividend through some
challenging times recently. The target
balance sheet is currently 1-2x net debt
to EBITDAZ While this is lower than in
the past, it's appropriate while we are
dealing with the risk of regulatory change,
particularly the Triennial Review.

@ What were your
expectations of William Hill
before joining? And what was

your experience when you
arrived?

| like to join organisations that have
headwinds, tut with high quality underlying
assets and brands that enable them

to regain momenturn, When | joined
Williarmn Hill | was very pleased to see

the transformation programme was not
the usual cost-cutting exercise, but had
focused attention on revenue generation,
particularly in the online space. | also found a
team who understood the need for change
and the desire to carry it cut. The results

of this are beginning to come through.

And, last but not least, at William Hill there
is a team who know we need to change the
canversation we have with our regulator,
customers and the general public tc build

a sustainable, balanced business.

In 2017, the Group grew revenues by 7%

to £1,711.1m. With cost of sales increases of
13% or £49.8m and net operating expenses
up 33% or £326.8m, primarily reflecting
exceptional charges and adjustments of
£335 0Om, the Group made a loss before
interest and tax of £43.7m. On an adjusted
basis, cost of sales increases of 9% and
net operating expenses growth of 5% led
to 11% growth in adjusted operating profit’
to £291.3m.

Net finance costs decreased by 30%,
primarily due to a period of overlap through
the refinancing of one of gur bonds in the
prior year. The tax charge decreased by
49% due to the loss in the year, partially
offset by exceptional items that were

non-deductible. Loss after tax was £83.2m
leading to a foss per share of 9.7p, although
on an adjusted basis there was a 24%
increase in earnings per share to 27.6p.

Net operating cash flows remained strong
with a 9% increase to £290.7m, broadly in
line with the increase in adjusted operating
profit'. The strong operational cash fiow
led ta a reduction in net debt for covenant
purposes to £515.2m from £618.1m,
decreasing the ratio of net debt to EBITDA?
for covenant purposes to 14x (2016: 1.8x),
comfortabiy within the target ratio of one
to two times.

1 Adjusted operating profit 15 defined as profit before interest and tax, excluding exceptional items and other
defined adjustments Further detail on adjusted measures is pravided in note 3 to the financial statements,

2 Net debt for covenant purposes and EBITDA for covenant purposes are non-statutory measures
used to assess compliance with cur debt covenants These are explained further in note 23 to the

financial statements.
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Financial review continued

income Statement by division

Revenue Adjusted operating profit
2017 2016 2017 206

£m £m % £m £m %
Online 6169 544.8 +13 1325 1005 +32
Retail 9131 8939 +2 160.9 1620 1
Australia 197 138 +5 17.5 154 +14
us 56.5 437 +29 77 143 +24
Other 49 76 36 0.2 (s})] +100
Corporate - - - {371 (30.6) +21
Group 1,711 1,602.8 +7 2913 2615 +1

The commentary below on divisional
performance reflects adjusted results,
since that is the basis on which they are
reported internally and in our segmental
analysis. An explanation of aur adjusted
results, including a reconciliation to the
statutory results, is provided in note 3to
the financial statements.

Ravenue was £1,7111m, an increase of

7% an 2016 Cnline revenyes increased

by £72.im or 13%, with Sportsbook net
revenue growth of 14%, driven by growth
in amounts wagered of 10%, and gaming
net revenue growth of 12% due to a 26%
increase in actives in the period. Retail
revenues grew £19.2m or 2%. Within

this, Retail Sportsbook saw a £6.1m {1%)
increase, griven predominantly by stronger
margins, while revenue from gaming
machines increased by £13.1m (3%, due to
INcreases in gross win per machine from
increased play on slots games, benefiting
from new content releases. Australian
revenues increased by 5% to £19.7m,
although this comparison is fiattered by
cyrrency movements in the period with
adecling 0f 2% in local currency terms.
US revenues grew 29% to £56.5m, although
in LS dollars this was a rise of 24%.

Cast of sales grew 9% or £32.7m, which
was 2% higher than the growth seen in net
revenue, This is driven by the extension

of the horseracing levy to Oniine, which
commenced in April 2017, and Remote
Gaming Duty on free bets in Online which
commenced in October.
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Adjusted expenses (net of other operating
income) increased 5% or £44.8m to
£1,004.9m. Retail expenses grew 3% tc
£518.6m, driven primarily by content and
staff costincreases. Costs in Online grew
£15.6m or 5% to £339.8m, due to a 14%
increase in marketing investment. Net,
expenses in Australia grew £2.7m, ar 4%,

to £70.8m, although in local currency terms
these fell by 4%. US expenses grew 33%

to £33 .9m, due mainly to increased staff
costs. Elsewhere, the Group's corporate and
other costs grew by £4.3m to reflect higher
staff costs, in particular from staff incentive
accruals, partly offset by a reduction in cost
from the disposal of the greyhound stadia
part way through the year.

Exceptional items and
adjustments

Operating exceptional items and
adjustments amounted to £335.0m.
Within this, exceptional iterns amounted
to £337¥m, predominantly relating to an
impairment of goodwill in our Australia
business of £238 3m following point of
consumption tax and regulatory changes
and the strategic review we are currently
undertaking and restructuring costs
related to our transformation programme
of £61.7m, including £73m related to a
shop dosure programme. The remaining
exceptional items comprised retrospective
indirect taxation recognised in cost of sales
(E171m); an onercus contract (E10.0m);
compliance fines (£6.2m); the disposal of
the greyhound stadia (£2.5m); and legal
fees (£1.3m).

Adjustments included fair value movement
of a gain of £72m and finance income

of £5.5m from our NY X investments in

the period. In 2017 we agreed to dispose

of these investments for £97.5m, with

the disposal completing in January 2018.
These gains are partially offset by a charge
of £5.1m (2016: £6.4m) for amortisation of
intangibles recognised in acquisitions.

Taxation

The Group's tax charge was £8.6m on
losses of £74.6m, giving an effective tax
rate of minus 11.5% (2016: 9.3%). The rate

is adversely impacted due to the non-
deductibility of certain exceptional costs
(orincipally the impairment of Australia
goodwill) and benefits from a net release of
provisions of £14.0m in respect of prior year
specific uncertain tax positions and a lower
rate of tax on overseas profits. The forecast
effective tax rate for 2018 is around 14%.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS declined to a foss per share of
97p, reflecting the loss after tax made of
£83.2m compared to a profit after tax in
2016 of £164.5m. Adjusted EPS? increased
by 24% to 276p, due to a 22% increase in
adjusted profits after tax and the full-year
impact of the share buyback programme
throughout 2016.

Cash flows and net debt

2017 2016
£m Em

Cash flows from
operations 2901 2659
Acquisitions and loans - {1040)
Disposals 2.8 -
Net capital expenditure (92.3) (892
Purchases of own shares - [B44)
Dividends (1o8n (090)
Increase in bonds in issue/
{repayment of debt) - 500
Other 4.2 70
Net cash flows 103.7 (737)
Net debt (for covenant
purposes) 515.2 6181

Operating cash flows of £290.1m

were £24.2m (9%;) higher than in 2016,
reflecting the similar increase in adjusted
operating profit.

Weinvested £92.3m in net capital
expenditure, including £78.7m in developing
software intangible assets to deliver our
long-term technology strategy.

We disposed of our greybound stadia
operations in July 2017 which generated
net proceeds of £8.8m. We also agreed
the disposal of our investments in NY X

in December 2017 with proceeds of £1.0m
in the period

The Group returned £108.Im to
shareholders through dividends leading
to a cash inflow in the period of £103.7m.
This drove a reduction in net debt of
£102.9m and cur net debt to EBITDA? for
covenant purposes to a multiple of 1.4x
{2016:1.8x).

In considering the Group's capital structure,
the Board continues to take into account
the ability to deliver cash generation,

its organic investment strategy and

the ability to accelerate that through
strategic acquisitions, as well as the

wider competitive envircnment and the
potential for disruptive regulatory changes.
Specifically, the Board has considered

the potential impact of an unfavourable
ruling from the Triennial Review of staking
limits and gaming, and is developing
alternative strategies depending on a range
of outcomes and will continue to apply its
existing dividend policy of a payout ratio

of around 50% of adjusted earnings, which
could lead to reducticns in the dividend

per share.

1 Adiusted operating profit 15 defined as profit befare interest and tax, excluding exceptional iterns and other defined adjustments. Further detal on adjusted measures

is provided in note 3 to the financial staterments,

2 Net debt for covenant purposes and EBITOA for covenant purposes are non-statutory measures used 10 assess compliance with our debt covenants Theseare
explained further in note 23 to the financial staterments.

3 Adjusted EPS is caloulated using adiusted profit after tax and is used for remuneration purposes (see page 77 onwards) and in evalvating performance for dividend policy

purposes Further detad on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial staterments. The calculation of EPS measures is shown innote 11 to the financial

statements.
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Corporate responsibility

Embedding responsible gambling

Responsibie gambling

is an integral part of

both our daily operations
and our commitment

1o a sustainable business
model. We have three
key areas of focus: our
customers, our colleagues
and our communities.

In 2017 we have continued tc promaote
responsible gambling to cur customers
through enhanced tools and increased
information. We evolved our ground
breaking Muiti Operator Self Exclusion
Scheme, enabling customers to self-
exclude from multiple betting shops at
any given time. We have also enhanced
cur player behaviour algorithm to help us
wnprove aur tracking and prevention of
problem gambling in hoth our Retail and
QOnline divisions

We have applied significant focus

to safeguarding cur colleagues

through our security pracesses, which
have, for the third time, received
recognition at the Qutstanding Security
Performance Awards.

Additionally, we have extended our
approach to supporting local communities
as part of our Close to HOME commitment,
to increase our positive impact on society.
This includes volunteering work, our
charitable partnerships, including with

the Bobby Moore Fund and CUIC Sargent,
and aur innovative work with the Scottish
Football Association in tackling mental
health in sport.

Customers

Colleagues

Community

Image Removed

Image Removed

Image Removed

20%

of shop window advertising
is committed to responsible
gambling messages

1,700

nominations were made
by colleagues for our
Excellence Awards

0,918

hours of colleagues’ time
have been given in the last year
to support good causes
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Customers %‘
Performance 2017 2016 Comrnents g
Customer Number of self-exclusions — 9,881 9,687 We have continued to improve responsible gambling ®
protection Retail interactions, supported by traning for colleagues to identify
) patterns of potentially harmful behaviour. Since Octcber
gulmber cijf_sre:fe;g;r:ons - 23191 23886 2015 we have provided automatic and short-term self-
nine and 1elep exclusion systems for Online customers.
RIDDOR reportable 3 2 RIDDOR requires all accidents to be reported.
accidents - custorners .
Customer Retail Net 76% 68% Mystery shopper scares in Retail have improved significantly, 5
satisfaction  Promcter Score supperted by our customer service training programimes. ?,
Disputes referred 10 IBAS 315 719 Our customers have access to an independent arbitrator %
IBAS disputes found in 1.0% 1.0% 1o resolve customer disputes. In around 99% of cases, our &
customer’s favour original decisions are upheld.
Colleagues
Performance 207 2010 Commenits
Protection RIDDOR reportable 7 n RIDDOR requires accidents to be reported when they result
accidents — colleagues in absence from wark for over seven days.
Incidents of violence 340 344 The number of physical attacks on shop colleagues
in the workplace decreased slightly. During the year, we held 75 anti-social
behaviour workshops to address viclence in the workplace,
involving 156 shops and attended by 465 employees.
Number of robberies 97 89 The number of actual robberies rerains stable at 48
(excluding 49 failed attempts).
Numbser of burglaries 53 56 The proportion of burglaries classed as failed attempts
reduced slightly, supported by our Counter Plan training and
cash control procedures.
Numnber of cash-intransit 15 9 The nurnber of cash in transit incidents increased, but still
incidents remains very low.
Average cash lass from 233 405 Average cash loss was significantly reduced this year by 43%.
OTC robberies (£} .
Trainingand  Total number of training days 25,062 24,559 Our husinass is made more sustainable by attracting
development Value of training investment 1,344.9 10194 and retaining engaged employees. We encourage this by
(£'000} investing in our people.
Engagement Employee Engagement 89% - The participation rate of 89% in our engagement survey,
Index — participation Your Say' is the highest we've ever recorded. We did not
conduct a full survey in 2016
Support William Hill Foundation grants {£) 28,004 48,645 The William Hill Foundation’s hardship fund supported
coileagues across the Company, making 25 grants in 2017
Community
Performance 2017 2016 Comrments
Environment  Total CO; equivalent (tonnes) 41,275 48,584 Qur tonnes of COze decreased further this year by 15%.
industry UK horseracing levy {Em) 191 14.6 We continue to support sports through sponsarship,
relationships  Sports sponsorship (Em) N4 88 Racing media rights and the horseracing and greyhound
racing levies.
Community  Emplayee charity matching 56.2 743 Qur colleagues participated in 108 charity events far which
engagement scheme (£'000) we matched their fundraising in 2017
Research, education and 1350 1300 Donations shown relate to GambleAware and the Senet

treatment contributions (£'0C0)

Group. We also fund other services via the ABB.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Customers

We are focused on
improving our approach
to responsible gambling
to build a long-term,
sustainable business for
all our stakeholders, and
especially for any of our
customers who are at risk
from problem gambling.

Responsible gambling

We are committed to conducting our
operations in a manner that is consistent
with the three licensing chjectives set by
the UK Gambling Commissian:

— Preventing garnbling from being a source
of crirme or disorder, being associated
with crime or disorder, or being used to
support crime;

— Ensuring that gambling is conducted
in a fair and open way; and

— Protecting chiidren and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited
by gambling.

We don't just want to take necessary steps
to protect our customers, we want to
develop innovative measyres to increase
understanding of gambling-related harm
and how to prevent it.

‘We want to take ownership of problem
gambling, understanding it and actively
contributing to the wider engagement on
research, education and treatment. We
want do more to help ‘at risk’ customers
1o stop problems developing.

I 2017 we undertook a number of new trials
and initiatives, both on a cross-industry
basis working ctosely with other operators
and also by curselves.

Image Removed

Onea example is the pilot programme we
completed and evaluated in 2077 with
Betknowmore, an innavative problem
gambling support service based in North
London. The pilot in our Islington betting
shops, which started in October 2016,
was carried out in conjunction with

the Association of British Bookmakers
and saw shops trial a new referral

system for problem gamblers, direct to
Betknowmore, who were able to provide
rapid response assistance within 24 hours.
The Betknowmaore service provides
holistic support for gamblers, seeking

to address not only their problerns with
gambling but also the underlying issues
and other impacts from problern gambling
such as debt, relationship breakdown or
housing problems.

"We are delighted that the pilot phase
progressed well and yielded
promising results. William Hill staff
have fully supported the project and

their engagement has been really positive.

The collaboration is helping to reduce
theimpact of gambling-related harm.’

Frankie Graham
Founder and CEO of BetKnowMore

Almost 100 customers were helped by
the service; many required only brief
intervention support but, for those
with more serious problems, the vast
majority considerabty improved their
ability to successfully manage their
gambling behaviaur

Gaming machines in betting shops are
among the most advanced in the world

in terms of player protection measures.
At William Hill we have had our own player
protection algorithm in place since 2015.

it has been developed in partnership with
data scientists and experts in behaviour
change decision technology, and we
continue to seek ways to improve this.
Further development and research over
the course of 2017 has allowed us to focus
the algeorithm on problem gambling player
characteristics and improve the accuracy
of the model, allowing us ta carry out more
interventions with customers.
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The ability to set time and spend limits on
machines before starting to play, combined
with mandatory reminders and breaks

in play for every £150 or 20 minutes on

the machine, is unigue to betting shop
machines. Analysis of the changes in player
behawviour in response to the alerts has
allowed us to identify ways to improve

how the alerts work and when they occur,
50 they can have the maximum impact

for the player, and these have been trialled
during 2017. New pop-ups were trialled

in three areas across all ABB member
shops, in response to player behaviour
identified as problematic by independent
research, such as chasing losses and
chaotic behaviour. Independent evaluation
of these measures has shown that they are
of value and updates to gaming machines
across our estate are planned onice further
refinerments recommended in the report
have been made.

Protecting vulnerable persons

Faor the vast majority, gambling is an
enjoyable leisure activity. However,

we recognise that, for a small number,
gambling can become a prablem. We
are therefore dedicated to implementing
preventative and supportive measures
10 ensure all our customers gamble i

a responsible way.

We acknowledge that some of our former
policies were insufficient to ensure full
regulatory compliance, particularly in
relation to the identification of the possible
proceads of crime. An independent process
review is underway and we will work to
implement any recommendations that
emerge from that review. We are fully
committed to operating a sustainable
business that properly identifies risk and
better protects customers.

Image Removed

Self-exclusion is an important tool for our
customers when they feel their gambting
is causing them harm and who want tc
take back control. The Multi Operator Self
Exclusion Scheme, in cperation since April
2016, continues to offer customers a quick
and easy way to self-exclude from one or
several operators at once. An independent
evaluation published in 2017 has shown that
83% of customers believe the scheme has
helped them control their gambling.

At William Hill we are committed to working
closely with other operators, using the
scheme to help make sure customers
continue to get the most out of the scheme.
Improvermnents are planned for 2018 to allow
the service to operate longer out of hours
and at weekends.

We also continue to invest in improving
self-exclusion for our customers in shop.
This includes a pilot in 2017 of a tablet-
based self-exclusion form, making for a
clearer and easier process for the customer.
The pilot was successful in demonstrating
the potential of the technology and we
hope to roll out a similar salution across our
estate in 2018. importantly, this improved
technology witl also help shop colleagues
access the images of self-excluded
customers in shop and better support
them by identifying customers who may
attempt to breach their agreement.

We acknowledge that young peaple are
amangst the mast vulnerable to gambling-
related harm. That is why we have such
strong controls in place across our estate
to prevent underage gambling. All cur shops
operate a ‘'Think 21" policy, and as well as
receiving regular training, shcp teams

are assessed using independent testers
aged below 21to make sure ID is being
requested. These test results show that ID
is requested 85% of the time, and we want
to keep improving that record. In 2017 we
signed a Primary Partnership agreement
with Reading Council to help review and
improve our policies and procedures, and
worked with Westminster Council to carry
out under 18s test purchase visits ta leamn
where improvements could be made.

Treating customers fairly

and openly

William Hill has actively engaged with

the Competition and Markets Authority
{CMA) enquiry inte unfair terms and
conditions, which involved a number of
operators. Its outcomes will apply to the
whole gambling industry. Making sure that
our promotional offers are clear and easy
to understand, with customers able to
make informed decisions, is of the utmost
importance tous.

Image Removed
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The lessons learnt from the CMA enquiry
process have enabled us to strengthen our
appreach and include: a full review of all
terms and conditicns by external lawyers;
technical updates to our website making it
easier for customers to access information;
and new processes for internal review and
sign-cff of marketing proposals, making
sure we always put the custormer first.

We have a clear process for customers

to make and escalate complaints. Where
compiaints are not rescived to the
customer’s satisfaction in the first instance,
matters can be referred to the Independent
Betting Adjudication Service {IBAS). Every
effort is made 1 resclve complaints at the
earliest opportunity. In total 315 complaints
were referred 1o IBAS in 2017 with 99%
judged inour favour.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Customers

GambleAware week

Fellowing the successful launch of
Respensible Gambling Week across
betting shop operators in 2015 and 2016,
Williarm Hill took part in the first cross-
industry Responsibie Gambling Week in
2017 to promote responsible gambling with
other members of the Industry Group.

The campaign involved full shop window
take-overs for the week, with key messages
focused on letting customers know where
te get help and support, and the tools
availabte in shop to help stay in control.

At William Hill we were also pleased to have
the support of Robbie Savage, our brand
ambassador, who helped promaote the
campaign and the role of the William Hill
Foundaticn. Custemer feedback gathered
after the event highlighted how much
customers value this type of activity, and
we are committed to further promoting
responsible gambling in 2018.

Image Removed
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Keeping crime out of gambling

Retail security

We take the safety and welfare of our
colleagues, cur customers and the people
who live and work in the communities

in which we are located very seriously.
With a dedicated Security function and
considerable investment in training,
systems and products, we have developed
a security-conscious culture that has
reaped benefits over a number of years.

We have a number of security systems that
have been installed in every LBO to protect
the safety of our colleagues. These include
StaffSafe, a security safety monitoring
system that supports colleagues in dealing
with anti-social behaviour, provides
protection for colleagues during pericds

of lone working and offers immediate
response in the event of a serious incident.
‘We also have safe havens in 85% of shops
and CCTV installed in every LBO.

Training for shop colleagues includes:
dealing with serious incidents; conflict
rmanagement; and, where appropriate,
anti-sacial behaviour (ASB) workshops,
runin conjunction with local police and
Safer Neighbourhood teams. These
provide greater understanding of ASB
and practical advice on relevant issues,
as well as enhancing relationships with
external agencies.

Qur Security team is the three-times
winner of national security industry awards,
the latest of these being Security Team

of the Year at the Qutstanding Security
Performance Awards in February 2017,

Good Neighbour scheme

‘We launched the Good Neighbour scheme
in 2016 to better support colieagues and
local communities in dealing with anti-
secial issues in and around our shops. The
scheme introduced early warning systems
to identify areas of risk, improved colleague
awareness and delivered clear processes
to report and help deal with any issues.
Where issues are identified, we wark with
colleagues, line management, support
teams and the relevant authaorities to
develop a remedial action plan. The scheme
is aligned to our licensing cbjectives and
has consistently received positive feedback
from local authorities and colleagues.

Money laundering

We have a Money Laundering Officer in
place to coordinate our nitiatives in this
area. Money Laundering is defined as

the method by which criminals attempt

to legitimise monies derived from the
proceeds of crime. As a regulated company
we rmust have in place certain controls to
prevent the business from being used for
meney laundering.

Examples of these include:

— Assessing the risk of the business being
used by criminals to launder money; and

- Monitoring customers' activity and
reporting anything suspicious to the
National Crime Agency (NCA).

William Hill has played a pivotal part in the
industry Gambling Anti-Money Lacndering
Group, which has successfully delivered

an industry standard risk assessment,
highlighting the risk of each product

with the aim of promoting a better
understanding of associated threats and
risks. In January 2018, the industry group
implemented an industry standard for
operator thresholds. This will achieve an
industry standard where operators will

be required tc implement Know Your
Customer (KYC) checks.

A Suspicious Activity Report (SAR) is
submitted either when we have knowledge
of or suspicion that a money laundering
offence has taken place or under our legal
obligation to report potential criminai spend
under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002,

In 2017 we submitted 686 SARs to either
the National Crime Agency or the Gibraltar
Financial Inteiligence Unit (2016: 614).

We received 366 law enforcement

or financial institution enquires that
required investigation (2016: 435). By
submitting a SAR to the NCA, we provide
law enforcement agencies with valuable
information of potential criminal activity.

Keeping crime out of gambling

Qur continuing low levels of burglaries and
robberies is a testament to the rigorous
cash management measures we have

in place.

There were 53 burglaries in 2017, a 5%
decrease on 2016. 92% of incidents resulted
in zero cash loss, S percentage points
better than the previous year, Costs arising
from this form of crime, at £41,500, were
the lowest recorded and an improvement
of 38% on 2016,
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We had 97 robbery incidents in 2017, an
increase of 9% an 2015, However, this

still represents a significant reduction on
2015 and the level of incidents compares
favourably to figures from the Office of
National Statistics, indicating robberies
increased by 23% in the 12 months ending
June 2017. The average cash loss of £233

is our lowest annual figure recorded and
the proportion of attempts compared to
substantive robberies of 51% demonstrates
highly effective appiication of our

Counter Plan training, cash controls and
comprehensive deployment of safe havens.

Protecting our customers’ data

information Security, or Cyher Security,
continues to be classed as one of the key
risks facing companies, particularly digital
companies, who hold sensitive custormer
data or perform transactions and business
online. At Williarm Hill we take the security
of our custormers’ data very sericusly
throughout the Group and continue to
Invest in an ongoing programme of security
enhancements aligned with the ever-
changing nature of the threat. We have

a dedicated Chief Infarmation Security
Cfficer to coordinate security across

our business.

Bath our Retail and Cnline operations are
certified compliant with the Payment Card
Industry’s data security standards. We
undertake annual security audits for our
regulators and continue to monitor our
key third-party suppliers.

During 2017 we continued to mature

our programmes arcund intelligence, risk
management, vulnerability management
and incident response.

More specifically, we opened cur new
24171365 Enterprise Operations Centre in
Krakow, which brings together our Network
and Security Operations, and are currently
engaged in delivery of a new strategy to
mitigate the threat from the recent large-
scale, high-profile Distributed Denial of
Service attacks against businesses giobally.
We have embedded secure development
and security testing practices into our
internal development teams and are

also embarking on a new company-wide
security awareness campaign to ensure alf
our colleagues are briefed and aware of the
risks associated with information security.

Finally, we have been actively engaged on
a programme of compliance around the

new EL General Data Protection Regulation

(EL)-GDPRY), using specialist support to
ensure that we are good shape to achieve
compliance in May 2018.

Annual Repart and Accounts 2017
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Leading sports betting o

integrity &

Integrity in sports betting is essential %

to the industry in ensuring we address

arange of potential gambling-related

issues. We have robust systems in place

that help us efficiently identify and act

upan unusual or suspicious activities.

Image Removed We are a member of ESSA, the sports

betting integrity body, launched by leading -

regulated sports betting operators to %

monitor suspicious betting patterns. In the ;%

case of potentially fraudulent activity taking 2

place, identified by our internal menitoring g

mechanisms, notably in our Trading teams,
ESSA is able to report this activity to the
relevant sport's governing body.

We have a number of memoranda

of understanding in place with sports
governing bodies such as the British
Horseracing Authority, the Scottish
Football Association, the English Football
Assaciation, Rugby Football Union and the
Tennis Integrity Unit. We woark closely with
these sports bodies in sharing best practice
in identifying and reporting suspicious
betting patterns. We also have company
representation at ESSA’s board level.

We are also a member of the Sports
Betting Integrity Forum, established in
2012 to develop Britain's approach to
protecting sports and sports betting from
being corrupted and have contributed to
the associated Sports and Sports Betting
Integrity Action Plan, a national approach
designed to address risks to the integrity
of sport and sports betting.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Colleagues

2017 has been about
transforming our ways of
working and building our
capability to go one better
by making William Hilt

a great place to work.

Transforming the way we work

Our transformation includes changing our
culture and ways of working. We have said
that we want to become an organisation
set up for continuous improvement.

As our culture is shaped and underpinned
by qur values, we announced at the end
of last year that we would be replacing our
HOME values with a new set of values.

These values are designed to protect what
is already great about our culture while
providing the aspiration we need to drive
change. They are provocative, simple and
direct, and define what is éxpected of all
our colleagues, every day. The roll-out and
embedding of the values in all our people
processes will take place throughout 2018.

In parallel we have revised our leadership
expectations. We know that cuiture change
starts at the top and have therefore
created new leadership Vitals which are
the over and above things expected of ail
our leaders.

New ways of working initiatives

‘We have intraduced bite-size learning,
managing virtual teams and cross
Border working development sessions.
These are vital for success in a digital
waorld and are helping our Online teams
waork together, on the same side, across
different locations using virtual technology.
We started updating our working
environments to create ppen spaces

to improve collaboration.
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Setting up smart

Introducing the Standard Bearers

We have a vision to be ‘the brand in everyone’s hand’ We alsa
have goals and a strategy, which we call Setting the Standard.

Qur colleagues hear about these from
their leaders. But for any message

to stick, it needs to be heard rmultiple
times and from multiple sources. So we
introduced a new way for colleagues

to find out more by introducing our
Standard Bearers.

William Hill values and leadership vitals

They are colleagues who put up

their hands to get involved in our
transformation programme — Setting up
Smart. They are our change champions
and represent every division, function
and location.

Change can be challenging and the
Standard Bearers are there to help and
answer colleagues’ questions. The other
impartant role they have is to give the
leadership team honest feedback on the
mood of the organisation.

Image Removed
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Engagement

In 2017, B9% of colleagues completed our
employee engagement survey, Your Say,
our highest ever participation rate. We
asked our colleagues to let us know how
they feel about working at William Hill.

And they have given us a clear steer on the
areas that they think we do well and those
that they want to see improve.

There were improvements in 26 cut of the
31 questions with historically comparable
scaores. The highest scoring questions
related to our commitment to customer
experience and pride in our products and
services. Two of the priority focus areas for
the Executive team in 2017 — understanding
of the William Hill vision and strategy

and communication by leaders — saw the
greatest positive improvement.

Every leadership team is responsible for
creating action plans to address priority
improvement areas and drive our employee
Net Promater Score. This starts with the
Executive team which will be focusing

on recognition, strategic direction and
action taking.

Recognising our people

Qur colieagues are pivotal to our succassful
performance, and we recognise the
importance of rewarding and championing
our colleagues’ success. We want them

to be excited and motivated to be part of
Williarm Hill.

We hosted Excellence Awards events
across Retail, Group and Onlinein 2017,
celebrating the efforts of our people around
the world.

From over 15,000 colleagues, we received

a record 1,700 nominations, from 2,439
locations across a range of categories,
including a Community Contribution Award
recognising colleagues’ efforts in supporting
local communities through our Close to
HOME commitment.

The Excellence Awards for Retail and Group
were held at Ayr Racecourse an Gold Cup
day, with ambassadors Robbie Savage and
Freddie Flintoff hosting our 200 finalists.
On the night 16 finalists were crowned

the winners.

Our Online and Krakow Excellence Awards
took place over a five-week recognition
roadshow in four events held in Manila,
Sofia, Krakéw and Gibraltar. Across these
events over 360 finalists were recognised
far their effarts and 25 were crowned

4s winners.
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We aiso hosted Home Awards in Australia
and All Star Recognition events in US.

Developing our people

We continue to place a strong emphasis

on developing our pecple. We want to give
our people meaningful career development
opportunities, attracting talent and building
leadership develocpment programmes to
enable strong succession pipelines which
will leave a positive legacy. Qur focus

far 2018 is building better career paths

and programmes for all employees and
becoming a great place to work.

William Hill Retail Academy

The William Hill Retail Academy provides
the framework to support our colleagues
in developing the skills, knowledge and
behavicurs they need tc be effec tive

in their roles, whilst also providing a
structured career development pathway
from Customer Experience Assistant right
through to Regional Manager.

The Retail Academy was updated in 2017
and now has five programmes. Aligned with
core Retail roles, there 1s a development
programme available for all colleagues.
This is supported by regular mandatory
training to ensure colleagues maintain
their knowledge and skills in subjects such
as Health & Safety, Security, Responsible
Gambling and Compliance.

Leadership programmes

We made za significant investment in two
new leadership programmes, ‘Strategic
Leader' and 'L eading Edge’, designed to
build essential leadership skills in our Area
Manager and Regionat Manager teams.
Cver 60 colleagues were invalved in this
training and were supported by action
learning sets and one-to-one coaching, and
also took part in collaborative work-based
prajects to embed their new skills.

We also implemented a new ‘Managing

for Success’ programme, aimed at new and
aspiring Business Performance Managers
{BPMs). Over 350 BPMs went through the
development programme in 2017, along
with a talent bank of around 55 aspiring
BPMs (with over 50% of these promoted
during the year). Development for BPMs will
continue in 2018 with the new talent tank
intake of over 70 aspiring BPMs.

Building on this success we have started
to rall out similar leadership programmes
in Cnline, Technology and Group functions.

Senior C Suite talent programmes

In Septernber 2017, we launched our C Suite
Executive Developrment Programme.

We delivered two high-quality learning
experiences facilitated by werld-class
prafessors, for which feedback has been
positive, We are working in partnership with
London Business School to maintain levels
of learner satisfaction.

yodaufnens

IBUBACD

SJUALIES PDVEL Y




4

Willkam Hill PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Corporate responsibility continued

Colleagues

Qur ambition is to imprave our leadership
bench strength within the senior talent
succession pipeline and create creditle
Candidates ready for the next C Suite
vacancy. We want to grow confidence
and vistility of our internal talent white
reducing reliance on recruiting from the
external market.

Technology graduate scheme

In March 2017 we launched a Technology
Graduate Scheme. Eleven graduates
Joined vus in September 2017 for a two-year
structured programme where they will go
on retations throughout our technelogy
business. We provided a structured
induction, taking our graduates through
the ins and outs of life at Williarn Hill. They
are also studying for a qualification over
the twe years. And each graduate has

a performance coach and a buddy so they
know who to turn to when it comes to any
Questions. We are growing our own stars
of the future and making our mark as

an ernployer of choice in Leeds, especially
when it comes 1o the technelogy we

are using.

Image Remaoved

Gender diversity

At William Hill, we are committed to
creating a diverse and inclusive workplace
far everyone. Not only is this the right thing
to do, but we also believe that a diverse
team means a stronger business, which
benefits our customers and makes us

a rmore attractive employer. The gender
diversity within the Board, management
and the Group as a whole 1s shown below.

Gender diversity
{as at 26 December 2017)
(number)

Graph Removed

Fernales

Males

we welcome the requirement for more
transparency cn pay and are committed to
impraving our gender pay gap as evidenced
by cur membership of the '30% Club’. We
take our responsibility to our colleagues
very sericusly and have a number of
initiatives in place which we believe will
increase the number of women in senior
management positions and in other roles
acraoss the business.

We have released our gender pay statistics,
details of which can be found on our
website (www.williamhiliplc com} along with
page 09 of the Directors’ Remuneration
Repert. The Company is committed

to gender pay equality and our gender

pay disclosure outlines the steps we are
taking to eliminate any disparity n pay

and opportunity.

Legislation requires that we define

'senicr managers’ as the directors of our
subsidiary companies. However, the Board
believes this information does not provide
a meaningful analysis of how the Group
operates so the data shown reflect the
proportion of senior managers by our own
internal grading system.

For reporting purposes, there are
58 directors of subsidiary companies
in 2077 comprising 47 men and 11women.

Human rights

The Board considers that it is not necessary
for the Group to operate a specific human
rights policy at present. Our policies already
aperate within a framework to comply

with relevant laws, to behave in an ethical
manner and to respect the human rights

of our employees and other stakeholders

in the business.

The Corporate Responsibility Committee,
cn behalf of the Board, is satisfied that
William Hill's polices operate in a way that
is consistent, with the UN's Global Compact,
covering areas of human rights, labaour, the
envircnment and anti-corruption.

The Group's approach to the
implementation of the Modern Slavery Act
2015, which involved a Group-wide supply
chain risk assessment, has been updated
and is available via the Group website
(www.williamhiliplc.com).
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Community

With around 16,000 of our colleagues living and working
in nearly 2,500 communities across four continents,

we recognise that we have a real opportunity as an
organisation to make a significant impact in the areas

in which we cperate.

Close to HOME

Close to HOME is William Hill's community
commitment launched in 2015. It includes
supporting our calleagues in giving

their time and skills to make a positive
contribution to the communities where
we live and work.

Close to HOME focuses on three areas to
support our local communities:

— Creating opportunities through sport;
— Promaoting skills and opportunity; and
— Improving the lacal environment.

From working with homeless shelters

to arranging sports sessions for local
children’s charities, our colleagues have
made considerable efforts to support
their communities in 2017 in total this year,
colleagues have cermmitted 6,918 hours to
volunteering for good causes in their local
areas that they have chosen to support,
anincrease on last year (2016: 6,393).

International Community Week

We are committed to providing volunteering
opportunities for colieagues across the
organisation and countries where we

are based.

Foliowing on from the launch of Close to
HOME's International Community Day’ in
2016, we expandead the event to a full week
in 2017

Haringey Box Cup

We are the main official supporter of the
Haringey Box Cup, the largest international
amateur boxing competiticn. We help
provide an cpportunity to young boxers
from across the world to compete in the
three-day annual event at Alexandra Palace
in London.

We also have a presence at the event,
inviting boxing cubs and members of the
public to win a volunteering project for
their community on behalf of William Hill,
As a result, our team in Liverpool spent
two days supporting their local boxing club,
the 'Solly Boxing Academy’, by carrying
out renovation on the area surrounding
the club’s gym, which was cvergrown

with vegetation.

podu yinens
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Close to HOME charitable
partnerships

fmage Removed

As well as providing volunteering
opportunities to colleagues, we also
partner with a number of charities
as part of Close to HOME.

Employability programmes
Providing skills and opportunities for
employrment is a key focus for the organisation.

Since Close to Home started, through
our partnerships, including with social
enterprise Qur Club and the Tottenham
Hotspur Foundation, we have provided
employment tc 106 individuals from
our employability programmes. Many
of these people were previously long-
term unemployed.

Logo Removed

Qur International Community Week took
place in March and saw projects take

place on every day of the week across the
world, starting in Sydney and Manila on
Monday and finishing in Bulgaria on Sunday.
Over 300 colleagues directly participated

in the event, arranged multiple projects
that they had chosen throughout the

week, supporting different charities and
community-based initiatives.

— Our US team organised two projects
for the week, helping to sort through
donated books at ‘Spread the Word'
Nevada, a charity distributing books
to local schools in the area. They also
packed 700 bags of feod for families
in need in the local community.

— Colleagues in Australia arranged
a variety of projects across the week,
supporting three charities and involving
over 50 colleagues. The team cooked
meals at charity Oz Harvest, preparing
restaurant-quality meals to distribute to
disadvantaged families in Sydney, and also
helped out at The Habitat, a woodland
regeneration project. Colleagues in
Darwin and Sydney collected clothes for
The Smith Family, providing support for
disadvantaged people in the community,
and groups of colleagues from our London
office spent a day painting at two local
charities, Mind in Haringey and Bikes for
Good Causes. Forty colieagues in Blackpool
also spent the week clearing fand for a
community park anc garden for Mereside
M.AFLA, a iocal charity redeveloping
recreational areas far the community.

‘William Hill have provided outstanding
support far this cornpetition over the
years, As a major player in the Haringey
Borough, they enable us to host the Box
Cup each year and also take an active
approach in engaging with visitors to the
event. We look forward to continuing aur
partnership over the next two years.

Gerry Willmott MBE
Haringey Box Cup founder

Everton in the community
youth zone programme

We have a partnership with Everton in the
Community to create a Youth Zone evening
programme to engage young peaple in the
Merseyside area in sport. The Youth Zone
works with young pecple aged 5-19 years
old who are living in poverty, at risk of being
criminally exploited, in care or at risk of
entering the care system.

The programme gives them the
cpportunity to experience fun activities,
improve physical well-being and alsc to
explore famity and personal difficulties to
help enhance their emotional well-geing.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Community

In 2017, the programme has seen a total of
118 sessions in football, dance, fitness and
karate, engaging 161 different individuals,
128 of whom are now attending sessions
each week, increasing their physical activity
by at least 150 haurs per week. Through
follow-up research with the Children’s
Society, they have reported that the
young people on the programme had
demonstrated impraved self-esteem and
confidence following the programme, on

a level they had never seen before from

a consultation.

Chelsea Foundation

In 2017 we ran two joint Small Business
Accountancy Courses in partnership with
the Chelsea Foundation. The courses,
delivered by an AAT accountancy qualified
trainer at Stamford Bridge, provides aduits
who are looking to start up their own
business with basic accountancy skills to
help them maintain solvency in the medium
to long term of their business cycle.

"Working with William Hill enables the
Chelsea Foundation to have a greater
impact within our lacal community
and to help create a new and innovative
approach to employment and small
business development — we believe
this initiative can have a real impact.’

Louise Marriott
Chelsea Foundation further
education manager

Members of the William Hill finance and
estates teams delivered workshops over
the course to provide finandial skills tc help
the group manage their businesses whilst
they are starting out.

Scottish Football Association
(SFA) mental health initiative

We have continued to support the SFA's
‘Support Within Sport” initiative, now in
its second year. [t aims to provide medicai
intervention for professional footballers,
coaches and managers suffering from
depression and mental liness.

impact data from the first year of the
programme has shown that to date

108 people have made contact with the
service, including five coaches and one
referee. Following 3—& months of specialist
clinical support, individuals demanstrated
significantly reduced symptoms of anxiety
and depressive illness.

Bobby Moare Fund & CLIC Sargent

Image Removed

For the second year running, we sponsored and took
part in Football Shirt Friday, a national campaign run by
the Bobby Moore Fund aiming to promote bowel cancer
awareness and raise funds. On Foctball Shirt Friday,
colleagues and customers donated £2 to wear their

football shirt for the day.

The event tock place in Aprit as
part of bowel cancer awareness
month. As part of cur commitment
to helping the Fund increase
awareness of bowel cancer across
the UK, we distributed 120,000
leaflets to our sheps and offices.
We also had the suppart of
William Hill ambassadors Robbie
Savage and Hayley McQueen to
help promote the campaign on
social media.

In total we raised just over
£24,000 as acompany, making

it £44,000 we have donated ta
the Fund in the last two years.
This will help fund a project run
by a leading psychologist to help
understand peopie's motivations
and fears around bowel cancer
screening with the aim of producing
a nationwide bowel cancer
screening programme.

CLIC Sargent, the UK's largest
children’s cancer charity, was our
Retail Charity of the Year for 2017
Through our shop colleagues’
fundraising efforts we have raised
over £60,000 for the charity this
year This will fund clinical and non-
climical care for hundreds of children
with cancer to maximise the time
they can safely spend at home.

Image Removed
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Support for sport

We make substantial contributions to sport.
through levy and media rights payments
intc horseracing and greyhound racing, as
well as through sponsorship opportunities.

This year we made an overall horseracing
levy payment of over £19m. We also have
sponsorship deals as Official Betting
Partners far Chelsea, Tottenham Hotspur
and Everton, and sponsor the William Hilf
World Darts Championship and, in
horseracing, the William Hill St Leger. We
also have a partnership with Matchroom
Boxing which has seen us sponsor
Heavyweight Champion Anthony Joshua's
bouts this year, including his world title
unifying defeat of Wiadimir Klitschko at
Wembley Stadium in April.

Environmental impact

We continue to focus on reducing our
carbon footprint, principally through the
reduction of our CO; ernissions. We report
an emissions figure based on tonnes

of CO; equivalent (tCOse). This includes
Scope 1and Scope 2 emissions, including
natural gas consumption, electricity
consumption, refrigerant emissions and
tuel from Company cars. in 2017, we saw a
15% decrease to 41,275 tCOze (2016: 48,584
tC0O,e). Within this, Scope 1emissions
were 2,696 tCO,e (2016: 3,015 tC0Oze) and
Scope 2 emissions were 38,579 tC0.e
(2016: 45,569 tCOz0).

Since 2013, we have used an intensity
measure — tonnes of CO; equivalent

per £1m of net revenue — 1o track our
performance. In 2017 we saw a year-on-
year decrease of 20% t0 2412 (2016: 30.29).
These data points were caiculated using
DEFRA guidelines and conversion rates.

Qur internal Energy Management Forum
will continue to meet throughout 2018 with
an aim of managing energy more efficiently
and introducing positive environmental
practices throughout our gicbal operations.

F
g
3
The William Hill Foundation g
Our work through the William Hill Foundation has g
focused on twe main areas: supporting our colleagues
in times of difficulty through the hardship fund; and
also Project Africa, helping the remote village of
O! Maisor in Kenya.
é’!
3
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Project Africa

Qur five-year commitment to Project Africa came

to a close this year. Through the outstanding efforts
of our colleagues and the support of the William Hill
Foundaticn, we have raised £220,000 and helped
the remote community of Ol Maisor in Kenya become
more self-sufficient.

Over 80 colleagues have been out to Kenya in that time to help build
and renovate the local Island Schoot and its surrounding facilities.

Over the last five years, we have helped provide the community of
Ol Maisor with:

— Fresh drinking water and electricity;

- Afully stocked and staffed library;

— A health clinic with an AIDS nurse,

- New teachers” accommodation and classrooms, supporting an increase

in the number of students from 180 tc 500; and
— Further education scholarships for high performing students

Although our commitment has come to an end, we cantinue to work

with the tribespeople, teachers and the governing health and educaticn

ministries as part of a careful handover process.

Hardship fund and matched donations
The William Hill Feundation also cantinues to support cur colleagues

through times of difficulty through our hardship fund, and runs a match
funding schere to encourage colleagues’ fundraising efforts for charities

and community initiatives
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Corporate responsibility continued

Non-Financial Reporting

Directive

The EU Non-Financial Reporting Directive applies to the Group for the first time this year and the following chart summarises
where you can find further information in this Annual Report on each of the key areas of disclosure that the directive requires.

— We operate corporate policies spanning
each of these areas, which comply
with or exceed legal and regulatory
requirements in our markets.

— Good employee relations are a
vital part of our business, and we
prioritise these through cur policies
and engagement, development and
recognition programmes.

— We further discuss each of these
areas in the Customer, Colleague and
Community sections of this report on

Environmental,

Business

- The Group has already integrated non-
financial inputs and outputs into its
business model and strategic planning,
which is reflected in the strategic priority
given 1o building a sustainable business.
This is discussed further in the business
model on page 14.

~ Similarly, nan-financial risks are
routinely considered by the Audit &
Risk Management Committee, and are
disclosed where deemed material in the
managing our risks section on page 45.

its businesses are focused on UK
Retail and Online markets in mature
economies, on page 40.

— The Group operates specific ant-bribery
policies and training programmes which
support, full compliance with the UK
Bribery Act These are discussed further
on page 64.

matters

pages 321043. sacial and model, policies,
employee related principal risks,
matiers KPIs
- Wespacifically discuss our approach Human Diversity ~ We discuss the Board's approach to
to Human Rights, which is not deemead rights and anti- policy & diversity in detail on pages 60, 40 and In
amaterial issue for the Group as bribery related approach particular on page 76 of the Nomination

Committee report.

— The Beard places great importance on
the positive benefits that diversity of
experience, background and viewpoints
can bring and is supportive of the
objectives of Lord Cavies and Sir John
Parker's reviews into gender and ethnic
diversity respectively.

- Related policies are cperated by the
Board and the Executive team, and
these will be monitcred in line with
emerging market practice.
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Managing our risks

As we drive towards the delivery of our strategy, incurring
change and investing to support our growth, it is important
we understand the risks we face and take proactive action
to manage our exposure to that risk.

Our targets cannat be met without
taking an element of risk, but focusing
an the potential implications allows us to
take action to mitigate where necessary,
or potentially to knowingly take balanced
risks to capitalise on opportunities.

The extent to which we seek to accept
risk, after mitigations, must be balanced
with safeguarding our operations and
stakeholder needs.

QOur Board are the ultmate owners of our
Risk Management process, with day-to-
day management of risk delegated to the
Group Executive, guided by an agreed-
upch risk appetite. Redular operaticnal
reporting from the Executive and
Internal Audit team to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee ensure that the
Board is regularly apprised of how risks are
being managed. Particular focus is given
to those risks which may threaten our

strategic priorities or regulatory compliance.

Key

High Medium Low

Our approach

The Board is responsible for oversight

and approval of appropriate responses to
potentially significant risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives. During the
year the Board re-affirmed the existing
risk appetite as being appropriate. The
Board confirms that its assessment of the
principal risks facing the Company, including
those that would threaten its business
modei, future performance, solvency

or liquidity, and which are set out in this
‘Managing our risks’ section, was robust.

Each defined business unit has fully
considered their own risk profile which has
been appraised, challenged and approved
by the Executive, with a consclidated

view presented to the Board. The Group
Executive are charged with managing

risk, and undertake these duties through
specific review of the risk assessment in the
Committee, as well as formally considering
risk as part of the investment appraisal
process, Group and regional capital
axpenditure and project appraisals, review
of key changes and through discussion with
the Board as part of Group strategy days.

Stable Increasing Decreasing

Throughout 2017 we have undertaken
detailed bottom-up risk assessmentsin
business units and support functions,
highlighting key risks, their current
mitigations and areas which require
further action This was presented to the
Group Executive to support a consolidated
assessment and to prioritise areas for
action and assurance. This process is
ongoing throughout the year and continues
to evolve alongside our risk profile.

Set out on the following pages is the
Board's view of key risks currently facing
the Group, along with commentary on how
this directly affects cur strategic goals.
Setting these risks qut in priority order,

we provide a view on the likelihood of these
risks crystallising in the coming year anc the
patential impacts, along with an indicator
of the change in risk compared to the prior
year assessment.

An explanation of how the Group manages
its various financial risks is provided in note
23 to the financial statements.

New risk

uodayinens
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Managing our risks continued

R

gulatory compliance and change

Likehhood Impact Change
High High Stable

impact on strategy

William Hill remains committed to
upholding the standards required in all

of our licensed territories. In our primary
market, the UK, the impact of the Triennial
Review is still to be finalised, but our
continuing diafogue with the UK regulator
zllows us to focus on the need to monitor
and evolve our ways of warking to ensure
that we remain a business with complance
embedded into its key operaticns.

Halding licences in key markets is an
essential part of our growth strategy

and therefore a breach of local licensing
regulations is a clear risk. Further, the
complexities of regulation in multiple
Jjurisdictions must be carefully managed.
This multi-territory licensing drives a
need to continually update processes and
controls which seek to ensure compliance,
and te review the ongoing changes to

our business to assess the impact on our
licensing position. Changes to regulations
in each of our licensed markets may have
a negative impact on Group results.

What are we doing to address the issue?
Given the breadth and scope of cur
business, and the multipie territories

and regulated markets we operate within,
itis an ongoing challenge to maintain a
fully compliant position, but this remains

a cornerstone of our strategy. We support
sustained investment in our compliance
and other assurance functions to identify,
understand and address changing
regulatory requirements in an efficient and
effective manner. We actively engage with
the UK Government and significant cther
parties to discuss the measures by which
we fulfil our obligations under the licensing
ohjectives in the UK.

We provide ongoing support and continued
adherence to the voluntary ABB Code, and
remain a committed member of the Senet
Group, which aims to promote responsibie
gambling standards and to hold its
members to account,

We maintain a dialogue with regulators
and ather key stakeholders in our licensed
territories internationally, continually
maniter the changing legal landscape

and adapt our strategy on a country-by-
country basis tc changes in regulation.

A high propaortion of Online’s revenues are
derived from licensed territories, which
mitigates risks associated with operating
onanon-locally licensed basis.

We have well-resourced in-house
compliance functions and have
compliance officers in all of our strategic
business units who are a core part of
thelocal management teams, ensuring
compliance has a voice at the top table
in each location.

Qur Compliance processes and

controls across the Group are well
established and the compliance

functions operate independently of
operational management to both support
management’s compliance abligations
and to provide ongoing assurance over
the adherence to local requirements. A
bi-monthly Group Compliance Committee
provides all compliance officars with direct
access to senior Group leadership including
the Group CEQ, and ensures compliance
issues are shared across the Group to
aliow for the identification of trends and
COmMMmon issues.

We also engage with governments and
regulatars on a pro-active basis when
changes to regulation are proposed

ang we actively contribute 1o public
consultations. This is designed to promaote
the consideration of the interests of the
Group and the industry before reguiation
is finalised. The Group Risk and Audit
function also considers regulatory
compliance as a core part of audit
delivery, reporting directly to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee, as

an independent third line of defence.

The Board has considered the potential
impact of an unfavourable ruling from
the Triennial Review of staking limits
and gaming, is developing alternative
strategies depending on a range of
outcomes and will continue tc apply its
existing dividend palicy of a payout ratio
around 50% of adjusted earnings, which
could lead to reductions in the dividend
per share.
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Cyber crime and IT security High High noesng | 4
m
Impact on strategy Furthermare, this threat landscape has As well as working with a range of
The ahility ta provide a leading offering evolved particularly rapidly over the specialist security firms to enhance, review
ta retain and attract customers, and course of the last year, as evidenced and test our defences against these
the assaciated complex back-office by the volume of high-profile incidents threats, we continue to invest significantly
functionality we require, is underpinned throughout 2077, and continues to do so. in our in-hcuse capabilities. We have
by sigrificant investment in proprietary The sports betting and online gamng also undertaken changes to our network
technology and carefully selected third- industries, and the increasing digital structures, with further changes planned, n
party offerings. In the course of aperating footprint of our global operations, means to reduce our exposure to external threats. ﬁ
these technologies and delivering services that this risk is a material threat facing Cyber threats have had consistently %
to customers, we also need to store and the Group. ; o ) #
process a wide range of data, including high levels of air-time at Executive %
' What are we doing to address the issue? meetings and Board or Committees z

customer and employee data. Increasing
threats to these technologies, and the
privacy of assoclated data, from cyber
crime or malicious activities requires
sophisticated protection techniques

and growing investment to mitigate
against thern.

2iea af sk

Programme optimisation

As a large multi-national technology-
based business we remain a target for
attacks such as sustained DDoS activity
or account enumeration attacks. We
continue to work with leading prevention
and mitigation partners globally to prevent
and react to such attacks The level of
threat activity continues to be high across
the Group, but steps taken to prevent or
to swiftly and successfully address rapidly
emerging threats continue to support the
value of investrments made in this area.

meetings throughout the year. The
threat continues to change and it is clear
that no company or sector is immune.
We believe our exposure is being well
managed and continue to be vigilant and
not complacent.

Likelibood trmpact, Change

Medium Medium Stable

Impact on strategy

In the prior year we specifically noted
arisk in relation to our transformation
programme. That programme has
progressed significantly and involves

a considerable number of initiatives which
have delivered, or are due to deliver,
material change across the business.

The mechanisms for managing this
change and ensuring the cumulative effect
is well understood are now embedded

in our ways of working and wil! likely
continue Yeyond the formal period of
transformation itself However this level
of change is both time and resource heavy
and must be delivered alongside other
day-to-day activity, business change

and externally imposed compliance
initiatives such as the GDPR programme.
Delivering such widespread change has
the potential to impact core business
processes, disrupt staffing models and
adversely affect existing development
roadmaps or business-as-usual activity

if not properly managed. For this reason
we have widened the definition of the risk
to include the need to effectively direct
resources in order that programmes are
delivered in an optimal way.

What are we doing to address the issue?
We continue to work with a leading global
consultancy firm who bring significant
experience in delivering wide-reaching
programmes of this type, which is now
aligned to their in-depth understanding

of William Hill's ways of working. The
cadence of oversight and operational
meetings across the transformationis
now embedded in our business and the
information needs of each management
group is well understood. A fully resourced
programme office is in place to manage
the delivery timelines, dependencies

and resourcing requirements in order

to minimise deiivery risk and the impact
on existing plans.

Where other significant programmes

or business needs are likaly to clash with
the transformation roadmap, they are
discussed with the Group Executive and,
if necessary, brought under the same
governance model to ensure that all
conflicting needs are understood and
can be managed.

Eachinitiative is sponsored by a member
of the Group Executive and led by a
member of the senior management team
within the relevant business unit to ensure
full visibility of the impacts of change.

Pragrammes with significant business
impact are also prioritised under the
Internal Audit plan with multiple reviews
scheduled throughout 2018, as well

as considering the need for external
specialist support.
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Managing our risks continued

Competitive landscape

Likelihood Impact

High

Change

Medium Increasing

Impact on strategy

The challenge to acquire, retain and service
customers remains a significant challenge
across the industry. Competitor mergers
have transitioned from praposed deals
into the process of merging and refining
their offerings throughout a period of
transition. Meanwhile, new apportunities
continue to arise, such as the prospect

of international growth should the US
Supreme Court opinion lead to the repeal
of PASPA and open up new territories

for licensed sports betting on a state-by-
state basis.

Failure to differentiate and meet the
needs of our customers may lead to a
‘race to the bottom’ on pricing, this being
a natural outcomne for those who serve
commeditised offerings. Meanwhile,
selecting the right business model and
maximising the oppartunities, should
states openup in the US, will go a long
way to determining success.

IERCLI S

International footprint

What are we doing to address the issue?
We continue to offer qur customers an
increasingly personalised experience,
without resting on our laurels. Investment
in product development is continuing

and our commitment to strengthening

the Krakow {Grand Parade) developrment
capabilities is a clear indicaticn of this. We
continue to leverage the significant efforis
put in place to develop our UNC database
and during the year introduced our

William Hill Plus Card as a demonstration
of the strategic strength of aligning our
Retail and Cnline offerings.

The industry experience of the Board
and key management positions aligned
to operational excellence and insights
brought in from other industries is driving
a continuous improvement culture at
William Hill, and this leaves us well placed
to continue to evolve in established
markets. Qur long-term investments in
the LS, through our Nevada licence and
contribution to the Delaware Sparts
Lottery leaves us in a position of strength
to capitalise on inthe US.

Likelihood Impact Change

Medium High New risk

impact on strategy

Qur Group operates across multiple
locations, servicing custormers in a large
number of markets across the globe,
regulated in multiple markets and
partnering with third parties worldwide.
These operations bring with them
significant apportunities for growth or
efficient and effective ways of working,
however, as is well understood, globally
diverse operations carry risk.

Although well established in key locations,
the risk continually evolves. Far example
the ongoing negotiations which will
determine the UK's relationship with
our European neighbours. Key services
throughout Europe, internaily or with
key business partners, requires the
employment and movement of staff in
EU iocations; intellectual and physical
properties are created and owned
across the EU.

The nature of the Brexit arrangements
are not yet known and may yet

affect our ability to operate under
current arrangements.

What are we doing to address the issue?
Our governance model ensures that

local CEOs and functional leads have a
clear voice in the Executive Management
meetings to raise issues specificto a
location or region. This model is supported
by clear reporting lines from local legal
and compliance teams which provide

a dual voice tolocal management

and Group functional leads. Other
governance meetings such as the Group
Compliance meetings provide a platform
for consideration of the impact of local
changes on the Group with the direct
involverment of the Group CEC.

Specificaily we have assessed Brexit risk,
and at this stage there is no clear material
impact on our ability to service customer
needs, although this remains under review.

This global diversification also presents
significant oppeortunities, such as the
potential repeal of PASPA in the US and
the opportunities which would be available
to us given our significant presence in
Nevada already.

We also utilise the geographic spread of
our business as an asset in our business
continuity planning. Local sites have
specific business continuity plans to alkow
forimpacts to a specific location, whilst cn
a strategic level we consider the ability to
switch work across locations and countries
should there be wider issues which prevent
us operating in any key locations.
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Delivery of IT strategy

Impact on strategy

To succeed we must develop our services
from commodity-driven offerings.

It will be vital to enhance customer
experience through our time to market,
front-end flexibility, customer analytics
and personalisation.

QOur global technaclogy footprint comprises
a sophisticated combination of core
central services and capabilities and
more targeted, more localised and
business-specific capabilities, delivered
from muitiple locations, to meet specific
Jocal business needs. The complexity

of this technology foctprint and our
changing business needs means that
the execution within IT is a key area of
management focus.

"

Sorey af tie

IT disaster recovery

What are we doing to address the issue?
We continue 1o evolve our technology
infrastructure and throughout the year
have made significant investment in
ensuring we are fit to meet our custormner
needs. Our support for the change in
ownership of NYX ensures we retain
access to a critical supplier whilst also
delivering a sound financial result for the
Group. The prior year acquisition of Grand
Parade continues to drive strong benefits
o our technology strategy, specifically to
increasing our development capabilities.
The roll-out of our proprietary SSBTs
across the Retail estate provides us with
a market differentiator an the UK high
street and has been supplemented by the
successful recent launch of our Plus card
Omni-channel product.

Liketihood Impact Change
Medium High Stable
Likelincod Impact Change
Low High Stable

Impact on strategy

As a global business sharing elerrents

of our trading platforms across different
time zones, and with a global sporting
calendar generating round-the-clock
activity, any disruption to core platforms
or online services is likely to have a
significant impact on our ability to service
customer needs regardless of its timing. It
is therefore important that we establish
robust disaster recovery mechanisms for
such services, to ensure that any customer
visible downtime is minimised in the event
of disruption.

What are we doing to address the issue?
Minimising the impact of any platform

ar online service interruption to aur
customers, and the ability to serve their
needs is essential. We therefore continue
to work on refreshing our [T Disaster
Recovery solution for the Online business,
as well as leveraging next-generation
technciogies to continuausly improve the
underlying resilience of core services. In
addition, as we look to drive efficiencies
across the Group, we continue to consider
whather our current data centre strategy
is fully aligned to our needs, including
whether opportunities exist to benefit our
IT Disaster Recovery posture.

For our US and Australian businesses,
separate iocatT Disaster Recovery
facilities, plans and processes are also
in place.

We continue to monitor the status of our
IT Disaster Recovery capabilities across
the Group to ensure that our protective
solutions are in line with business
requirements, and that remedial action is
taken where necessary. The status of our
IT Disaster Recovery sclutions have been
regularly monitored by the Group Audit
and Risk Management Committee.
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Managing our risks continued

Viability statement

The following statement is made in
accordance with Code provision C2.2.

After considerng the current position of
the Company, the directors have assessed
the prospects and viability of the Company
over a three-year period to Decermnber
2020, in making this statement, the Board
has performed a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the Company,
including those risks that would threaten
William Hill’s business medel, future
performance, solvency or liguidity. The
principal risks facing William Hill and how
the Company addresses such risks are
described in this Strategic Report and the
key risks are summarised in this section
‘Managing our risks”

Although longer-term forecasts are
prepared to support the strategic

planning process, the nature of the risks
and opportunities faced by the Group (in
particular, the possible impact of future
fiscal and regulatory changes and the pace
of technological change) limits the directors’
ability to reliably predict the longer term.

Accordingly, a three-year horizon is used
to allow for a greater degree of certainty
in our assumptions.

The directors’ assessment includes a
financia! review, which is derived from the
Group's annual medium-term strategic
forecasts and identifies the expected cash
flows, net debt headroom and funding
covenant compliance throughout the three
years under review. These forecasts also
incorporate severe but plausible downside
case scenarios, illustrating the potential
impact upon viability of one or more of
the Group's principai risks crystallising
during the pericd, both individually and

in combination. These forecasts also
incorporate severe but plausible downside
case scenarios, modelling the potential
impact on viahility of one or more of

the Group’s principal risks crystallising
during the period, both individually and

in cornbination. As a result a number

of different scenarios were considered,
including assessments of different
outcormes of the DCMS's current Triennial
Review. The forecasts also specificaily
maodelied the impact of a potential
maximum stake on gaming machines of £2.

A number of reasonable assumptions
are included within these assessments,
including:

- that funding facilities will continue to
be available or renewed on the same
or similar basis throughout the period
under review;

— that, following a material risk event,
the Group would adjust strategic
capital management to preserve
cash, but would not curtail normal
capital investment or adjust dividend
policies; and
— that the Group wilt be able to effectively
mitigate risks through enacted or
available actions, as described in this
section 'Managing our risks”.
The sensitivity analysis considers all of our
principal risks, although our assumption
that we will be able to effectively mitigate
some of our risks leads to a greater
emphasis on those nsks that are beyond
our contral (such as regulatory changes).

Through this analysis, the directors have
concluded that we do not face arisk to
our viability except in the event of highly
improbable combinations of material
events within the three-year window.

Based an this conclusion, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that

the Company will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the pericd of the assessment.
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Introduction to Governance
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Gareth Davis
Chairrnan

'In what will now be my last
governance report as Chairman,

| am delighted to report excellent
progress in refreshing the
composition of the Board.

During the year, the Board’s
good governance has supported
solid strategic progress and the
Board is well placed to lead the
Company in its considerable
challenges and opportunities’

introduction

The Board commenced
the 2017 financial year
with renewed optimism,
which | feel on balance
proved to be fully justified
over the course of the
last 12 months.

While yncertainties remain for the industry
in which the Group operates, we can be
confident that the action we have taken
ourselves to transform the business in
2017 the custamer focused improvements
made by our Online business, and our
robust governance processes supported
by new Board appointments in the year,
each position us well ta take on the
challenges and take advantage of potential
opportunities in 2018 and beyond.

As Chairman, during the year | have worked
with the Board o secure a more optimal
composition, with three Non-executive
Directors joining, the appointment of Philip
Bowcock as CEQ being made permanent
and the appointment of Ruth Prior as CFO.
t consider that the changes have made

the Board mere effective, as explained
further below.

The Board made good progress in 2017
with succession planning for my planned
retirerment in 2018. We were delighted to
announce that Roger Devlin will succeed
me and | will provide further details tn this
governance report.

Governance and Board
composition

Having taken steps to address the

Board's composition, the Board benefited
considerably frorm the additional expertise
of the newly appointed independent
directors Mark Brooker, John O'Reilly and
Robin Terrell. This has helped by improving
the blend of experience and new thinking
and by alsc adding more industry and
digital experience.

vodasxinens

a ‘ ‘

SIURALENEIS jeDuRUL




52

William Hifll PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Introduction to Governance continued

We also fermally appointed Philip Bowcack
as CEQ in March, having appointed Philip
as Interim CEO in July 2016, and welcomed
Ruth Prior as CFO in October to complete
the executive element of the Board. The
Board carefully considered both executive
appointments, and having been delighted
with Philip’s centribution and leadesship
as Interim CEQ, unanimously supperted
his permanent appaintment. Ruth Pricr
Joined Wifliam Hill from Worldpay Group,

where she held the positions of Deputy CFO

and latterly Chief Operating Officer, and is
already applying her considerable digital,
financial and technclogy expertise. Ruth's
experience of transformation projectsis
now helping to drive the business forward.

As previously highlighted to shareholders,
Ashley Highfield stepped down from

the Board having completed nine years
of service as an independent director in
Novermber. | would like to thank Ashley
for his considerabie contribution and
independent counsel, particularly for his
chairing of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee. Mark Summerfield also
stepped down as Interim CFO (atthough
he was not appointed to the Board) on
Ruth Prior joining the business. On behalf
of the Board | would like to thank Mark
for his valuable contribution.

Imelda Walsh, Non-executive Director
and Remuneration Committee Chair, had
informed the Board in 2017 that after six
years as a Nan-executive Director, she
was considering whether to take on new

opportunities. She subsequently confirmed

that she will not seek re-election at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) in May
2018. As a result, she will step down from
the Board at the conclusion of the AGM.
Imeida will alsc step down as Chair of the
Remuneration Cornmittee with effect
from 23 February 2018 and following
review by the Nomination Committee,
Georgina Harvey will succeed her as
Remuneration Committee Chair from the
same date. Georgina has been a member
of the Remuneration Committee since
her appointment in 20111 thank Imelda
for her sterling efforts, as she leaves

our remuneration arrangements in good
shape. Imelda is afready cc-ordinating

a comprehensive handover to Georgina.

wWith such change in the Beard's
composition, | am very pleased with

the contribution of all Board members
throughout the year, and | thank each of
them for their continuing cornmitment.

The good progress within the Board
during the year has also provided a firm
foundation for my succession planning
as Chairman. As | disclosed in last year's
governance report, | shall step down from
my position, and the Board, before this
year's AGMin May.

| am pleased therefore to report that
significant progress was made during 2017
with regard to identifying and appointing
my successor, with the Normination
Committee baving appointed Sir Roy
Gardner, Seniar Independent Directar,

to lead the formal planning process, in
conjunction with executive search firm
KornFerry. A structured search precess
was followed, with regular reparting to
the Board.

in December 2017 we announced the
appointment of Roger Devlin as Chairman
Designate with effect from 1 February 2018.
Roger will be appointed Chairman on 2 April
2018, when { will step down from the Board.
The Board and the Group Executive have
already spent time working with Roger and
| am confident that he will be a very good fit
for William Hill as Charman, with the Board
benefiting from his sector and corporate
knowledge. | will continue to contribute to
Roger’s induction and handover before
stapping down in April,

Transformation programme

Towards the end of 2016 the Board
approved a comprehensive transformation
programme which igentified a potential
£40m of annualised savings to be delivered
by the Executive team. The programme

is discussed in maore detail in the Strategic
Report on page 10. To ensure effective
Board oversight for such a critical

strategic initiative, the Board established

a Transformation Oversight Committes

in May 2017 with a remit to provide
independent oversight on behalf of the
Board of executive prograrmme delivery,
and to act as a sounding board by which
advice, input and guidance could be shared
by Non-executives with the executive
project team.

John O'Reilly agreed tc chair the
Committee, and | can repart that under
Johin's stewardship the Committee is
meeting its objectives and supporting
the governance of the transformaticn
programme. In addition to being kept
regularly updated as to progress against
identified transformation milestones, the

Committee reviewed in detait a wide variety
of transformation-related workstreams and

plans during the year, with presentations
from various Group Executive members.

The Committee ratified certain aspects of
the transformation programme on behalf
of the Board. Further information regarding
the Committee’s role and focus can be
found on page 56.

Industry and regulatory
developments

The Board has kept close to the various
industry and regulatory developments
during the year, with management
providing regular updates to the Board

As part of the Board's good governance,
we have made sure that sufficient time has
been devoted to consider the imphcations
of such developments. This has helped

to inform and guide the Board's strategic
planning, which will remain flexible in order
1o address the challenges, uncertainties and
opportunities which may face the business.

As discussed elsewhere in the Strategic
Report, we await the outcome of the
Triennial Review following a period of
further consultation. The Board discussed
with management our approach and

the submissions made by the Company
to the Government's DCMS which

set out our key positions in respact of
Retail gaming. Clearly, the Board will be
warking with management to address the
impacts arising from the outcome of the
Triennial Review.

The Board has also discussed and

reviewed the circumstances which led to
the recent regulatory settlement with the
Garnbling Commission. This followed the
identification of a number of cases where
former policies were insufficient to ensure
full regulatory compliance, particularly

in relation to the identification of the
possibie proceeds of crime. The Board is
fully committed to operating a sustainable
business and will be kept updated onan
independent process review which is due to
commence. The Board will retain oversight
to ensure the Company waorks to implement
any recornmendations emerging from

the review.

In the Group's other key markets, regulatory
changes present both challenges and
opportunities which the Board has regularly
reviewed throughout the year. In respect

of Australia, the Board has been kept
apprised and has discussed on several
occasions the likely impact of increasing
regulatory headwinds.
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In November 2017 the Board confirmed
that it was in very preliminary discussions
regarding a possible combination of

William Hill Australia, but that there was no
certainty that these prelminary discussions
will lead to any transaction.

In respect of the US, the Board continued
to monitor the developments with regard
to the US Supreme Court's review of
PASPA. It was prudent for the Board to
consider the likely outcomes and to ensure
that management havein place plans to
take advantage of any repeal, as part of
our operational strategy. The Board also
reviewed and authorised the steps taken
in November which led to the agreement
with Scientific Games Corperation and
NYX Gaming Group, under which we agreed
to dispose of the Group's interests in NY X
and enter into commercial agreerments
with Scientific Games 10 protect the
Group's US proprietary technology.

Industry consolidation

It is pleasing that following the corporate
events of 2018, the Group has been able
to focus in 2017 on the Board's strategy
and operational delivery through the
transformation programme, as described
variously throughout the Strategic

Report. However, sector consolidation has
continued to be a trend. This was evidenced
by the announcement in December of the
recommended offer for our ciosest direct
oeer L adbrokes Coral Group from GvC
Haldings, the impact of which of course
the Board is reviewing. Consolidation and
significant transactions such as these

also inevitably generate additional media
speculation which can be distracting for
afocused Executive team.

Whilst consolidation continues to be

a market feature, the Board's goad
governance processes will ensure we

keep a focus on our strategy and our

duty to deliver long-term value for our
shareholders. The Board will of course be
prepared to consider strategic alternatives
where it is appropriate to do so.

William Hill people

On behalf of the Board | extend my
thanks te our colleagues in a challenging
year. The Board, in particular through the
Transfarmation Oversight Committee, has
discussed how our colleagues are rising

to the challenge of the transformation
prograrmme and we have seen encouraging
results. Colleague engagement was

also a point of focus and the Board,
through the Corperate Responsibility
Committee, was kept well apprised of how
management plan to further improve
colleague engagement. The Board fully
supports those initiatives as well as

the Company's events which recognise
colleague excellence

During the course of the year, the Board
met many managers across the business
and we were impressed by their expertise,
strong alignment to our strategy and high
levels of energy and enthusiasm.

Governance

The Board remains aware that the
governance landscape inthe UK continues
to evolve, in particular with the Financial
Reporting Council's {FRC) announcement in
December of significant proposed revisions
to the UK Corporate Governance Code

{the Code) As a Board, we have reviewed
the changes currently proposed to the
Code and will continue 1o do so until the
final version of the Code is published

in the 2016 governance report, | indicated
that the Board's gender diversity ratio had
temporarity reduced to 20%. Following
compasition changes in 2077, the gender
diversity ratio has increased to 30% as

at 31 Decemnber 2017, already in line with
the ratio expected by the Davies Report
by 2020. The Board also continues 1o
rmonitor the market response to Sir John
Parker's review regarding the ethnic
diversity of boards, and has considered the
review's recommendations on nomination
committee procedures.

The Board took time to review the findings
of the external performance evaluation
conducted in 2016. | consider that the

Board has made good progress against

the cutcomes and that the Board continues
to consider how it can further improve its
performance going forward. This year's
evaluation was completed internally,

and further details are provided in the
governance report.

The Board has been well informed of other
significant new disclosure obligaticns. This
includes Payment Practices reporting and
Gender Pay reporting. The Board will review
or approve the disclosures as needed and
we will make the necessary information
publicly available via appropriate channels
and our Group webtsite.

The key work of the Board and its
Committees is discussed further in the
foliowing reports. A compliance statement
against the 2016 version of the Code,
applicable to the Group for the first time
this year, can be found on page 66.

Our next AGM will be held on 8 May 2018
and lwould like to thank all the sharehcolders
who have attended past AGMs whilst | have
been Chairman. The AGM in 2018 witl be the
first for Roger Devlin and | am sure he locks
farward to welcoming all shareholders who
can attend in person.

Gareth Davis
Chairman
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Board of Directors: A strong, cohesive Board providing strategic direction,
industry expertise and broad based commercial experience.
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Gareth Davis
Chairman
Responsibilities:

Chairman of the Board
Responsibility for good practice
corporate governance

Year of appointment: 2010

Key skills:

Leadership; experience; strategic oversight,
stakehclder lizison and external representation;
network

Focus in 2017:

Board integration and composition, strategic
oversight and stakeholder liaison

Current directorships:

Fergusan ple (Chairman)

DS Smith PLC (Charrman)

Former roles:

Chief Executive, Imperial Tobacca Group PLC

Roger Devlin

Chairman Designate

Responsibilities:

Will be appointed as Chairman of the Board
on 2 April 2018; responsibility for good practice
corporate governance

Year of appointment: 2018

(with effect 1 Fehruary, and Chairman

from 2 April}

Key skills:

Leadership; sector experience; strategic and
transactional background, industry liaison and
external representation; network

Focus in 2017:

N/A

Current directorships:

Marston's plc (Chairman)

Football Association (Senior Independent
Director)

Former roles:

Non-executive Director, National Express Groug
plc; Senior Independent Director, RPS Group

plg; Chairman, Sports Information Systems
(Holdings) Ltd; Chairman, Gamesys Limited;
Group Corporate Development Director, Hilton
Group ple

Philip Bowcock
Chief Executive Officer
Responsibilities:

Group strategy, operational managemant,
leadership of the Executive team

Year of appointment: 2017

(with effect 10 March, previously Interim CEO
since July 2016. Appointed as CFQ in 2015)
Relevant qualifications:

Chartered Management Accountant

Key skills:
Experienced executive; financial background;
strategic formulation; leadership; network

Focus in 2017:

Appointment as permanent CEQ; strategic
farmulation and operational delivery;
composition and integration of the Group
Executive; industry and stakeholder
representation; executive leadership of the
transfermation programme

Former roles:

CFQ, Cineworld Group Pi¢;

Finance Director, Luminar Group Holdings Plc,
Financial Controlier & Head of Corperate
Development, Barratt Develapments PLC;
Property Finance Director, Tesco PLC,

Vice President Finance, Hitton Group ple
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Ruth Prior
Chief Financial Officer

Responsibilities:

All aspects of the Group's financing, financial
performance, and stakeholder reporting;
beard accountability for internal audit, tax and
strategic developmeant; leading the executive
relationship with the externat auditor; and
leadership of the Group Finance and ather
corporate functions.

Year of appeintment: 2017
(wrth effect 2 October)

Relevant qualifications:
Chartered Management Accountant

Key skills:

Experienced executive, financial and strategic
focus, financial services and digital background,
driving corporate transformation programmes

Focus in 2017:

Induction and building familiarity with

business and operations, assuming executive
rasponsibility for the Group's Finance and
certain other corporate functions; executive
contribution to the transformation programme

Farmer roles:

Chief Operating Officer, Worldpay Group pic
Deputy CFO, Worldpay Group plc

Group CFQ, EMI Group

Finance Director, Portfolic Business, Terra Firma
Capital Partners

Sir Roy Gardner Mark Brooker

Senior independent Independent
Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
Year of appointment: 2014 Year of appointment: 2017
Key skills: Key skills:

Breadth of corporate expenence; leadership,
network

Fotus in 2017:

Leading the Chairman’s succession planning,
liaison with other NEDs, independent challenge
and scrutiny, providing continuity

Current directorships:
Serca Groug Pic (Chairman)
Mainstrearm Renewable Power Ltd. (Chairman)

Other organisations:

Senior Adviser, Credit Suisse Group; Fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants;
Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts; Fellow of

the City & Guilds Institute; Board of Governors
St Albans School

Former roles:

Chairman, Compass Group plc; Chairman,
Piymouth Argyle Football Cluky; Chawrrnan,
Manchester United plc; Chief Executive, Centrica
pl¢, Growp Finance Director, British Gas plc;
axecutive director, General Electric Company
ple; Chief Operating Officer, Northern Telecorm;
Charman, EnServe Group Ltd.; Non-executive
Cirector, Willis Group Holdings plc; Visiting
Fellow, Oxford University Chairman; Advisory
Board of the Energy Futures Lab at lmperial
College London; Chairman, Apprenticeship
Ambassadors Network

Sector and markets experience; digital marketing
and product experience, leadership, breadth of
corporate experience, including financial markets
background; network

Facus in 2017:

Deepening familiarisation with business,
independent oversight of the transformation
programme through committee membership;
assuming respansibility for chairing the
Corporate Responsibility Committee from
Novemnber; breadth of contribution to Group
across Board operations and all formal Board
Committees; industry and technology specific
advice, experience, challenge and scrutiny

Current directorships:
Chief Operating QOfficer and executive director,
Trainline

Former roles:

Various roles including executive director
and Chief Operating Officer, Betfair Group;
Variaus senior investment banking roles at
Morgan Stanley and Merrill Lynch
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Audit and Risk Management Comrittee
Caorporate Responsibility Committee
Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee
Char
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Georgina Harvey
Independent

Non-executive Director
Year of appointment: 2011

Key skilis:

Performance leadership; significant
experience across consumer-facing markets;
delivery of transformational change and
Dusiness re-engineering projects, netwark
Focus in 2017:

Independent advice, challenge and scrutiny,
providing continuity

Current directorships:

Big Yellow Graup PLC (Non-executive Director)
McCail's Retail Group ple (Senior Independent
Birector}

Former roles:

Managing Director of Regicnals, Trinity Mirror
plc, Managing Director of Wallpaper Group, IPC
Media; Managing Director of IPC Advertising,
IPC Media; Szales Director, IPC Magazines,
Various sales and advertisement roles, Express
Newspapers

David Lowden
Independent
Non-executive Director
Year of appointment: 2011

Relevant qualifications:
Chartered Accountant

Key skills:
Financial expertise; breadth of corporate and
international experience; leadership; netwoerk

Focus in 2017:

Leadershig of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, in particular oversight of risk
management and controls across the business,
independent oversight of the transformation
programme through committee membership;
ndependent challenge and scrutiny, providing
continuity

Current directorships:

PageGroup plc {Non-executive Chairman)
Former roles:

Non-executive Director, Berendsen pic; Non-
executive Director, Cable & Wireless Warldwide
plc; Chief Executive, Taylor Nelson Sofres PLC;
Chief Operating Officer, Taylor Nelson Sofres
PLC, Group Finance Director, Taylor Nelsan
Sofres PLC; Group Finance Director, Asprey Plc,
Chief Financial Officer, A C. Nielsen Corporation,
Various senior finance rales in Norcras Pig;
Federal Express Corparation and KPMG

John O'Reiily
Independent

Non-executive Director
Year of appointment: 2017

Key skills:

Sector and market experience; leadership;
breadth of cerporate experience; industry
network

Focus in 2017:

Deepening famitiarisation with business, chairing
the Transformation Oversight Committee,
breadth of contribution to Group across Board
operations and alf formal Board Cammittees;
industry specific advice, experience, challenge
and scrutiny

Current directorships:
New Bridge Foundation (Trustes)
Weatherbys (Non-executive Director)

Former roles:

Non-executive Director, Telecity Group;
Non-executive Chairman, Grand Parade Limited;
Managing Director, Online, Coral Interactive
(Gibraltar) Limited; Various roles including
executive director, Ladbrokes plc
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Robin Terreil Imeida Walsh
Independent Independent
Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
Year of appointment: 2017 Year of appointment: 2011
Key skills: Key skifls:

Multi-channel strategy and digital
transformation; customer proposition and
experience; leadership; breadth of commercial
experiance; netwark

Focus in 2017:

Deepening familiarisation with business;
breadth of contribution to Group across Boargd
operations and all formal Board Committees;
technolegy and online specific advice,
experience, challenge and scrutiny

former roles:

Various roles including Chief Customer Officer,
interim Managing Directar UK; Group Multi-
channel Director, Tesco plc

People teadership; broad corporate experience;
remuneration focus, netwark

Focus in 2017

Chairing the Remuneration Cormnmittee; appraoval
of the Rernuneration Policy (2017 AGM),

approval of the remuneration arrangements

for the permanent. CEQ, CFO and Chairman
appointments; consultations with significant
investors regarding executive remuneration
Independent challenge and scrutiny,

providing continuity

Current directorships:
First Group plc (Nen-executive Director)
Mitchells & Butlers plc {Non-executive Director)

Former roles:

Non-executive Director, Mathercare pic; Board
memper, Institute of Employment Studies;
Human Resources Director, ] Sainsbury Plc;
Hurmnan Resource Director, Barclays Bank

Plc; Commercial Hurnan Resources Directar,
Coca-Cola & Schweppes Beverages Ltd; Human
Resources rales at Diageo Plc; Commissioner,
Workplace Retirement Incorme Cammission;
Comic Relief (Trustee), Now Pensions Ltd
(Trustee); Mentoring Foundation (Non-executive
Director)

Luke Thomas
Company Secretary
Responsibilities:

- Board support

- Company secretariat

- Corporate governance

Year of appointment: 2013
Relevant qualifications:

Fallow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (ICSA)

Key skills:

Corparate gavernance, listed company
compliance; support for the Board; netwaork
Focus in 2017:

Induction programmes for new Board members;
supporting Chairman’s succession planning;
advising on external governance developments

Former roles:

Head of Governance, Centrica pic; Group Deputy
Secretary, RSA Insurance Group plg; Ceputy
Secretary, Spirent Communications plc
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Report on Corporate Governance

Overview of the Board

Board role and structure

William Hill has an effective Board
whose role is to take collective
responsibility for both leadership and
driving the long-term and sustainable
success of the Company. In order to
support the Board in the discharge of
its duties, there is a forma! framewcrk

Board Committee, the Transformation
QOversight Committee, to provide additional
independent oversight during the Group’s
transformation programme.

This section sets out a summary of the key
roles and responsibilities of each Committee
and how that committee supports the
Board. Further details on the roles and
responsibilities of each standing Committee

The Beard of William Hill remains
committed to high standards of corporate
governance, which we consider to be vital to
the effective management of the business
and to maintaining the confidence of
investors. We have a defined framework

of roles and responsibilities in place to
support the Board's operaticn, which are
further discussed in the remainder of this
governance report.

of Committees of the Board. This year
the Board established an additional

Board structure

Board

and the work they have undertaken in
2017 is provided in the reports from each
Committee commencing on page 67

Role:

Responsible far the overall long-term success of William Hill,
its strategic direction and setting the Group's culture and values.

Key focus in 2017

Review of strategy; oversight of strategic and operatiana! delivery;
monitoring and responding to reguiatory environment; review and
approval of a transformation programme; review of opportunities
and challenges in the Group's key international markets.
See calendar of Board activities to the right of this page.

Brooker as Chair.

Audit and Risk Remuneration Corporate Nornination Transformation
Management Committee Responsibility Committee Oversight
Committee {CR) Committee Committee
Role: Role: Role: Role: Role:
Advises the Board on Sets the remuneration Sets the Group’s CR Advises on Provides independent
financial statements, policy far the policies and direction. appointrents to the scrutiny and review
policies, internal Cormpany's most Reviews how the Board and on Board of execution of the
controls and risk senior executives and Group achieves composition and Board's approved
management. the Charrman. Agrees responsible behaviour succession planning transformation
Cversees the awards and ather on social, ethical and programme, actsas
relationship with both terms of remuneration industry matters. aconduit to provide
theinternal and the far senior executives. further input into the
external avditor. programme
Key focus in 2017: Key focus in 2017: Key focus in 2017: Key focus in 2017 Key focus in 2017:
Financial Reparting; Revised Remuneration Reviewing regulatory Search and Establishment of
Online controls; Policy (2017 AGM), environment and appointment of Committee and
technelogy secunity,; approving developments; permanent CEC, governance; progress
agreeing revised remuneration oversight of liaison CFC and Chairman; review against overall
arrangements for the arrangements with regulators; executive talent and programme objectives;
external audit tender. for CEC, CFO and review of community succession planning; project specific reviews

Company Chairman relations and colieague Board and Committee against key project

appointments; engagement; review composition. deiiverables.

agreeing long-term of health & safety

incentive performance performance;

rmetrics following retirernent of Ashley

consultation with key Highfield and

investors, appointment of Mark
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2017 calendar of Board
activity and key dates

January
Transformation programme

February

2016 Full-Year resuits and dividend,
Action Plan arising from external 2016
performance evaluation, authorisation
of sale of greyhound stadia

March

Appointment of Philip Bowcock as
permanent CEQ, and Ruth Priar as CFO,
establishment of the Transforration
Qversight Committee

April
Review and approval of a
transformation programme

May

AGM;, presentation by UK Gambling
Commission executives, Global
Technology Platform update; review
of US market

July

2017 Ha¥f Year resuits and
interim dividend, transformation
programme update

September
Board Strategy Conference

October

Follow-up from Board Strategy
Conference; review of strategy regarding
defined benefit pension deficit

November
Board visit to Leeds offices: Retall,
Trading and Technology operations

Novemnber

Arrangements for the sate of
William Hill's interests in NYX
Gaming Group

December

Strategic review of William Hill Australia;
Approval of 2018 Budget and five-

year forecast

At every meeting the Board receives and
discusses updates frem the CEQ, CFO,
the General Counset and the Company
Secretary in respect of progress against
strategy, operational matters, financial
performance (including a comparison
against internal plans), compliance

and regulation, fegal matters and
corporate governance. The Board

of William Hill also receives monthly
management accounts which provide
regular and up-to-date assessments of
Company performance.

Matters reserved to the Board

In order to support the Board's primary role
to promete the long-term success of the
Company and to promote a strong control
environment, the Board continues to
aperate within a formal Schedule of Matters
Reserved to it and this forms part of an
overarching Group Delegation of Autherity.

Only the Board may exercise any of

the powers in the Schedule of Matters
Reserved. Other powers are delegated 1o
the various Board Committees and senior
management via formal Committee terms
of reference or via the Group Detegation
of Authority. The Group Delegation

of Authority and Schedule of Matters
Reserved ta the Board are reviewed and
updated on a regular basis, and were
reviewed and updated in August 2017,

The Group Detegation of Authority and
Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board
are circulated by the Deputy Company
Secretary to all members of the Group
Executive tearn and certain other senior
managers to ensure the authorities

which have been agreed by the Board are
understood across the entire business.

Matters reserved to the Board include:

- setting the overall direction, long-term
objectives and strategy of the Graup and
delegating day-to-day management to
the CEQ;

- reviewing Group performance;

reviewing the arrangements in place
relating to regulatory and industry issues,

approving the appointment and
removal of any Board member and the
Company Secretary;

- reviewing and approving the terms

of reference of the various Board
Committees and receiving reports from
Committee Chairs on a regular basis;

— approving changes to the Group’s capital
structure, any significant acguisitions and
disposals, capital investment projects
and material contracts;

— approval of the Group's annual plan,
five year strategic plan, Annual Report
and Accounts, Half-Year Statement and
setting the Group’s dividend policy;

approvai of the Group's charitable
donations and Group-wide corporate
responsibility policies;

~ undertaking reviews of Board, Committee
and individual director performance;

— succession planning for senior
management and the Board {on the
recommendation of the Nominaticn
Committee), and

— approving the governance arrangements
and strategic plan for the Group's
transformation programme.

The authority delegated to senior
management provides a practical
framework to executive management,
which seeks to achieve the dual objectives
of maintaining effective financial and
operational contrals whilst providing
sufficient flexibility to manage the business.
Examples of areas of such delegated
authority include: the release of capital
expenditure against approved budgets;
treasury activity within approved limits;
payroll processing; property transactions;
LBO activities; the setting of bet acceptance
limits; and routine transaction processing,.

Board operation
How the Board operates

The Chairman, along with the executive
directors and the Company Secretary,

has established Board processes designed
to maximise its performance. At the

heart of this is the flow of high-quality
information on a regular basis which allows
the Board to monitor the performance of
the Group across a wide range of issues and
to make decisions and approvals affecting
the strategy and operation of the Group.
The Board also receives timely information
on current and potential future matters
affecting the business and the environment
in which it operates sc that the longerterm
prospects of the Group can be considered
in a strategic manner.

in addition to the information provided on
a standing basis at Boarg meetings, the
Board holds annual or ad hoc events which
provide an opportunity tc focus specifically
on certain issues or areas of the business.

DURLIAADY ‘ Joca) MERens
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The SID is also required to lead the process
for evaluating the Chairman'’s performance
and to chair the Nomination Committee

information flows to the Board

Material policy decisions and Updates from across the when it is consklering succession to the
matters reserved to the Board: business include: role of Chairman. During 201/, the SID
Corporate reporting Company performance took responsibility for initiating succession

planning for the Chairman in anticipation
of his retirement in 2018 (see the report

Board Strategy Conference
Board operational reviews

Potential market opportunities
Market, regulatory, legal and corporate

Annual operating plan and five-year governance updates from the Nomination Cornmittee for
strategic plan Investor Relations and other more details).
stakeholders reports
\L \L The role of the SID also includes, if needed,

a process under which he/she might
ntervene to maintain Board and Company
stability. Alt of Williarm Hill's Non-executive

| I Directors, including the Chairman and SID,
are required by their role to perform certain
functions to improve the effectiveness of
the Board. In particular they:

Annualfad hoc iterns discussed by
the Board

Standing/regular items discussed by
the Board

Board oversight, decision-making, approval, strategic planning

- constructively challenge and contribute
to the development of strategy;

In particular: — each year the annual operating plan for

the following financial year is discussed — scrutinise the performance of

— an annual Board Strategy Conference

(BSC) is held with the Board and
sefected senior management to review
and develop the strategy and direction
of the Company. The BSC in 2017
reviewed each part of the business

and the context of the transformation
programime, Ongoing regulatory reviews,
as well as wider strategic issues such as
industry consoligation. A comprehensive
process is in place to track and follow

up on actions arising from each BSC.
The Board continues to also approve

a medium-term five-year strategic plan
which reflects over the longer term the
Company’s strategy and the environment
in which the business operates;

regular visits are held where the Board
can see ane of the Group's business
locations away from the head office.
This gives the Board an opportunity to
gain far greater insight on the particular
husiness and aise provides an excellent
opportunity for extended meetings and
discussions with a broader range of the
management team. In 2017 the Board
visit was held at the Group's Leeds offices
and included detailed reviews of the
Group’s Retail, Trading and Technology
operations. In addition, individual
directors also visit other business
locations of the Company and when this
is done the director provides a report
back to the Board; and

ang approved by the Board. This sets the
targets and agrees the key operational
matters for each part of the business

for the subsequent year. Performance
against plan is reviewed regularly during
the year.

The organisation and management af

the Board is designed to support focused,
healthy debate and constructive challenge,
and to allow specialist advice and strategic
guidance to be shared.

The Board of william Hilt acts as a collective
unit. However, in order to further optimise
the performance and the governance of
the Board, there are distinct and clear roles,
which are each explained further below.

Role of Chairman, CEO,
Senior Independent Director
and Non-executive Directors

No one individua! on the Board has
unfettered powers of decision-making.
Throughout 2017, the Chairman, Gareth
Dawis, was respansible for leadership of
the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all
aspects of its role and setting its agenda.
Philip Bowcack, as the CEQ from March
2017 and Interim CEO prior to that, is the
executive respansible for the running of
the business. Sir Roy Gardner is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director (SID)
and his main role is to satisfy the function
outlined in the Code of being available to
shareholders if there are concerns which
normal contact has failed to resolve.

management in meeting agreed goals
and objectives;

- through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, satisfy themselves that
financial information is accurate and
that internal controls and systems of risk
management are robust;

- through the Remuneration Cormmittee,
take responsibility for determining
appropriate levels of remuneration for
Senior executives;

— through the Nomination Committee,
undertake the role of recommending
the appointment, and where necessary
removal, of positions on the Board; and

— through the Transformation Oversight
Comrittee, monitar executive
delivery during the Board’s agreed
transformation programme.

Role specifications of the Chairman,

the CEQ, SID and other Non-executive
Directors are defined in writing so that their
role requirements are clearly understood.
The role specifications are either included in
the terms of appointment or are otherwise
approved by the Board, and each of the
specifications was reviewed against the
Code during the financial year.
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designed to be clear, accurate and
analyticai, whilst avoiding excessive and
unnecessary information. Papers are
distributed and retained in an electronic
system which is managed by the
Company Secretary and this provides
directors with instant access to current
and prior papers at any time;

a summary of the actions ansing at
each Board and Committee meeting
is circulated by the Company Secretary
following each meeting. The Company
Secretary then ensures progress is
made in respect of each action and

a progress report against previcusly
agreecd actionsis dealt withas a
standing item to provide feedback

to the entire Board that actions have
teen progressed appropriately;

- the annual calendar of scheduled Board

meetings is also structured to allow
the Board to review cyclical and ad hoc
agenda items, which are scheduled by
the Company Secretary to coincide
with relevant key dates and events, or
the culmination of retevant projects.
Exampies of each can be found in the

annual calendar of Board activities 2017;
- where a director is unable to attend, he

or she is stili provided with the papersin

order to comment ahead of the meeting

on the matters to be discussed,

- financial updates with commentary
are distributed to the Board ¢n a regular

basis. The Board regularly reviews
risk management and challenges this
where appropriate;

Annual Report and Accounts 2017
£
g
§
Key aspects of the organisation of the — reporting packs are normally prepared — Board discussions are held ina
Board include: by the executive directors and other collaborative atmosphere of mutual
— Board meetings are scheduled ta senior managers and then distributed respect allowing far questions, scrutiny
ensure consideration of issues refevant by the Company Secretary to the Board and constructive chaltenge, where
t0 the Board and to provide adequate at least four working days in advance appropriate. Where applicable, the
time for discussion of each agenda of Board meetings. This enables the minutes are also prepared in such a -
item. Agendas are set to provide the reparting packs to be as up-to-date manner as to record directors’ opinions §
directors with a longerterm outlook as possible whilst allowing sufficient or concerns regarding the operation g
ofthe business the Board needs to time for their review and consideration of the Board or the management of 2
consider, but it also provides a regular in advance of the meeting. Verbal the Company;
and systematic opportunity for each updates at Board meetings cover any in addition to formal Board meetings,
director to add additional items which material developments subsequent during the year the Board held a series
they consider to be important; tothe distribution of reporting packs. of informal dinners which grovided
the significant corporate actwity that Eresentatuor_ws and discussions during an excellent opportunity for further
involved the Group in 2016 was not oard meetings are provided by either discussion between the Board and
repeated in 2017 and other than the the executive dfliECtOr concerned or by for the Board to engage further with -
establishment of the Transformation therelevant senior manager of external various members of the management g
Oversight Comanittee during the year, ?desor who has been |lr1v1ted toattend tearn in discussions over various matters g
non-executive Board members were not or that particular ftem; in @ more informat setting, &
required to regularly make themselves - each scheduled Board meeting reviews fuli debates allow decisions to be taken g,
available to the Group outside of the individual reports received from the by consensus (although any dissenting "
usual calendar of scheduled meetings, CEQ, the CFO, the General Counsel and views would be minuted accordingly};
. . the Company Secretary as standing .
comprehensive reporting packs are agenda items, the development of strategy is led by
provided to the Board, which are ) the executives with input, challenge,

examination and ongoing testing from
the Non-executive Directors;

good working relationships exist
between Non-executive Directors

and non-Board members of the

senior management team, which is
encouraged by the executive directors;
and

members of the senicr management
team draw on the collective experience
of the Board, including its Non-executive
Directors and the industry expertise of
the Non-executive Directors who joined
the Board in the year.
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Board composition

The Board currently comprises seven
independent Nor-executive Directors,
the Chairman, the Chairman Designate
and two executive directors.

In Decemper 2017 Roger Devlin was
appointed as Chairman Designate with
effect from 1 February 2018, and is
expected to be appointed Charrman on
2 April 2018 when Gareth Davis will step
down from the Board.

Philip Bowcock was appointed as Interim
CEG with effect from 21 July 2016, and
was Confirrmed as CEO with effect from
10 March 2017

Ruth Prior jeined the Group as CFO on

2 Gctober 2017 and joined the Board on
that date Mark Summerfield had been
acting as interim CFO {(although he was
not a member of the Board) and he
stepped down from that position upon
Ruth's appointment, whilst ensuring an
effective handover of responsibilities and
completing certain projects.

Sir Roy Gardner continues to act as
Senicr independent Director, having been
appointed to the position in 2014.

Board balance

Throughout 2017, and up ta the date of this
report, the Company satisfied the Code
requirements that at least half the Board,
excluding the Chairman, should comprise
Non-executive Directors determined by the
Board to be independent.

The proportion of women members of

the Board as 31 December 2017 stood at
30%. The Board continues to monitor
composition of the Board, and is committed
to ensuring that all appointments are made
on the grounds of merit against specific
rote criteria. The Board is monitoring the
various initiatives to further increase the
diversity of boards and remains mindful of
the considerable benefits graater diversity
offers. The Board commits to review its
approach to diversity regularly in the
context of an evolving market approach
and good practice

The Company continues to regard

each of Sir Roy Gardner, Mark Brooker,
Georgina Harvey, David Lowden, John
C'Reilly, Robin Terrell and Imelda Waish

as independent Non-executive Directars,
Theindependence of each directer is
reviewed annually. Ashley Highfield stepped
down as a directar in November, on his
campleting nine years as an independeant
Non-executive Qirector. His re-appointment
prior to retirement, at the 2017 AGM,

alsc continued to be subject to rigorous
review by the Board, in accordance with
provision B.2 3. of the Cade, which requires
this of any term beyond six years for

a Non-executive Director.

Also, Georgina Harvey, David Lewden and
Imelda Walsh were all appointed in 207

and the Nomination Committee and the
Board reviewed their independance against
provision B.2.3. The Board continues

to regard each of Georgina Harvey, David
Lawden and Imelda Walsh as independent
in accardance with provision 811 of

the Code.

Gareth Davis satisfied the independence
criteria detailed in provision A 3.1 of the
Code upon his appaintment as Chairman
on 15eptember 2010. Roger Devlin similarty
satisfied the same ¢riteria upon his
appointment as Chairman Designate with
effect from 1 February 2018.

The Board comprises individuals with

wicle business experience gained in

various sectars of industry and in the

public sector. The directors’ aimis to ensure
that the balance of the Board reflects

the needs of the Group’s business and

to ensure a thorough consideration of the
impartant issues facing Wiliam Hilt and

its performance.
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Philip Bowcock
Leisure, constructicn
and finance

Gareth Davis
International regulated
business

Roger Devlin
Leisure, betting and
gaming ndustries,
iMernational business

Ruth Prior
Digital, regulated
financial services,
finance
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Mark Brooker
Betting and gaming
industry, international
regulated business

Sir Roy Gardner

International business

Georgina Harvey
Media and publishing

Image Removed

Image Removed

Image Removed

John O'Reilly
Betting and gaming
industry, international
regulated business

Robin Terrell
Online, retail and
technology

Imetda Walsh
Retait and human
resources

David Lowden
International business
and finance
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Board composition Composition of the Board Length of service of Board members
and approach (%) (%)
Composition of the Board as at
31 December 2017
Graph Removed Graph Removed §
o
Male non-executive 60% 0-3vyears S0%
Fernale non-executive 20% 3-6years 10%
Male Executive 10% 6-9years 40%
Female Executive 10%

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings

Details of Board and Committee attendance during 2017 are set aut in the table below. All directors are expected to attend all Board and
relevant Committee meetings.

SIBLLBTE)S [EUBLY)

Ad hoc/defined Audit and Risk Corporate
scope Board Management Responsibyility Nomination Remuneration
Scheduled Board Committees’ Committee? Committee Committee - Comimittee
Number of meetings held B N 5 4 n 9
Meetings attended
Philip Bowcock a8 9 n/a 4 n/a n/a
Mark Brooker* 6 2 4 E} 6 4
Gareth Davis 8 n n/a 4 0 9
Roger Deviin n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Sir Roy Gardner 7 1 4 4 8 5
Georgina Harvey a 2 4 4 1C 8
Ashley Highfield® B 3 4 3 8 &
David Lowden 8 5 5 4 10 9
John O'Reilly 8 3 5 4 9 7
Ruth Prior® 3 1 n/a nfa nfa n/a
Raobin Terrell 7] 2 3 2 9 6
Imelda Walsh 8 4 4 4 10 g

In the few instances where a director was not in attendance, this was due to other unavoidable commitiments, or because a director

was unable to attend an ad hoc meeting which was convened at short notice. Directors who were unable to attend a Board or Committee
meeting received the relevant papers and provided their comments to the Charrman of the Board or Committee, as appropriate, (n
addition, any director who missed a meeting received the minutes of that meeting for future reference.

in addition to attending Board and Committee reetings, each of the Non-executive Directors devotes sufficient time to the Company
to ensure that their responsibilities are met effectively. This includes preparation ahead of each meeting and, for the Chairman and
Committee Chairs, holding planning meetings and discussions with the relevant executives or senior management ahead of 2 meeting
to ensure that each meeting has been well-prepared. The Chairman maintains frequent contact with all members of the Board between
meetings and has regular meetings with the CEQ and Company Secretary to keep apprised of material developments in the business.

1 During the year there were 11 additional ad hoc or defined scope meetings of the Board or Committees established by the Board for specific purposes, for example to

give final approval to the release of the Company's trading results. The defined scope Committees comprised any two of the Chairman, the Chairman of the Audit & Risk
Managernent Committee, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the CEC, and there was full attendance at each convened meeting.

2 Following a periodic review by the Nomination Cammittee in Novernber, compaosition of the Audit and Risk Management Committee was changed such that David
Lowden (Chair), Mark Brooker, John O'Reilly and Robin Terrell were the only continuing members with immediate effect. The members who stepped down from the
Committee each attended all of the meetings held prior to the changes in the composition of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

3 The Board established the Transformation Oversight Committee in May 2017, which will operate for the duration of the transformation programme. The Committee 1s
chaired by John O'Reilly, with Philip Bowcock, David Lowden and Mark Brooker appointed as rmembers. The Chairman Gareth Davis attends meetings by invitation but is
not formally appointed to the Committee The Transformation Oversight Cornmittee has not been included in the table due to its project specific remit

4 Mark Srooker was appointed with effect from 3 April 2017 and attended all meetings ta which he was invited following his appeirtment.
5 Ashley Highfielt stepped down from the Board with effect from 16 November 2017 and attended all meetings to which he was invited prior to stepping down,
6 Ruth Prior was appointed with effect fram 2 October 2017 and attended all meetings to which she was invited following her appointment
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Approach to governance
at William Hill

Conflicts of interest

The compaosition of the Board means that
many of the directors have considerable
experience, and board level, industry and
other roles outside of William Hill. Whilst
this brings benefits to the stewardship of
William Hill, controls are in place to ensure
that suitable arrangements are made when
adirector's external role could come into
conflict with their duties as a director of
William Hill.

In accordance with the Companies

Act 2006, the Company's Articles of
Association include provisions reflecting
recomrmended practice concerning
conflicts of interest. The Board has in
place procedures for directors to report
any potential or actual conflicts to the
other members of the Board for their
authorisation where appropriate.

In deciding whether to authorise a conflict
or potential confiict of interest only non-
interested directors (i.e, those who have no
interest in the matter under consideration}
will be able to take the relevant decision.

In taking the decision the directors must
act in a way they consider, in good faith, wil
be most likely to promote the Company's
success. In addition, the directors may
impose conditions or limitations when
giving authorisation if they think this is
appropriate. The Board s confident that
the appropriate checks and balances are
in place te identify and minimise potential
conflicts of interest.

Information and professional
development

The Chairman, supported by the Company
Secretary, takes responsibifity for ensuring
that the directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information across a wide range
of matters relevant for the Board to
operate effectively. The Board continues
to operate an etectronic portal, by which
papers, information and guidance are
prormptiy and efficiently disserminated.

in addition to receiving presentations
and briefings from internal management,
the Board also on occasion requests that
external advisers provide briefings. This
supports a wider awareness of issues and
facilitates decision-making.

The Chairman is also responsible for taking
the lead on issues of director development
and encouraging all Board members to
engage in Board and Committee meetings
by drawing on their skills, experience

and knowledge.

Each newly appointed director recefves an
induction and each induction programme is
tailored specifically to suit the needs of the
new directer. During the year John O'Reilly,
Robin Terrell, Mark Brooker and Ruth

Prior completed personalised inductions
providing a range of in-depth general,
industry and Group-specific information.
Roger Devlin has fargely completed a
bespoke induction as Chairman Designate.
The induction process also includes
meeting members of the Board and of
the Group Exacutive and visits to various
business locations.

Each director has access to all required
information relating to the Group and to
the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board also obtains advice
from professional advisers as and when
reguired and directors may, as required,
obtain external advice at the expense of
the Group.

Performance evaluation

The Board continues to recognise the
benefits of an effective evaluation

of its performance. The UK Corporate
Governance Code recommends that
the evaluation of the Board should

be externally facilitated at least every
three years. The Board followed this
recommendation and the process was
conducted externally by Independent
Audit Limited {(AL) in 2016. IAL also
provides the Company with software to
support Board performance evaluations
but otherwise AL does not have any
other connecticn with the Company.

The external evaluation report comprised
a number of main recommendations
which have been reviewed by the

Board and addressed during the year

An internal performance evaluation was
also completed in 2017, which focused,

in addition to the usual parameters, on
the progress made from the external
evaluation and key isstes for the Board to
address fooking forward. Key points to note
from the 2017 evaluation include:

— the areas identified in the previous
evaluation had been largely addressed.
In particular, the composition and
dynamics of the Board had improved
following the permanent appointment
of the CEO and CFO and addition of new
Non-executive Directors with sectorand
digital experience

— strengthening of the interaction between
the Board and the Group Executive;

- acknowledgement of strategic areas
which may become more of a priority
and will require additicnal Board
discussion. In particular, longer-term
strategy following the transformation
programme, cngoing industry
consclidation and market opportunities,
the regulatory environment and the
Company’s sustainability agenda
were highlighted;

- certain other areas for further
improvement were also identified by
the evaluaticn. This included further
longer term succession planning, further
refining and improving the content and
timeliness of reporting to the Board,
and additional interaction with senior
managers in the business. The Board
also identified additional topic areas for
further discussion and review.

The above areas which require further
Board attention or improvement wilt
be addressed in an action plan to be
progressed and monitored in 2018

Shareholder engagement

Each year, the Director of Strategy, Brand
and Investor Relations (IR} prepares a
scheduled programme of contact between
the Company and its largest institutional
investors. This supports aregular

dialogue with the Company’s institutionat
sharehaolders, where the CEQ and CFO
meet with investors to discuss the business
further. Great care is exercised, however,
during such meetings to ensure that any
price sensitive information is not disclosed,
as such information is anly released at

the same time to all shareholders, in
accordance with the requirements of the
Financial Conduct Authority.

Presentations are also provided to
institutional shareholders and analysts
foliowing the publication of the Group's
financial results or for other selected
topics in respect of the business. Copies

of such presentations are made available
on the Group's corporate website,
www.williamhillplc.com, for a period
folowing the event. The Chairman

is available to discuss strategy and
governance issues with shareholders and
Sir Roy Gardner, as the Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, is available to
shareholders if they have concerns that
have not been, ar cannot be, addressed
through the Chairman, CEC or CFO
Meetings between the Chairman, CEQ
and/cr the CFO and shareholders can be
held on request to discuss governance and
corporate responsibility issues generally.
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The Chairman and Chair of the
Rernuneration Committee facilitated

a number of meetings with key investors
during 2017 as part of the ongoing
contact programme to discuss proposed
arrangements for executive long-term
incentives to be granted in year. This is
discussed furtherin the Directors’ Report
on Remuneration.

The Group alse liaised with certain key
investors during the year to discuss an
approach for the share capital authority
resolutions which received in excess of 20%
opposition at the 2017 AGM.

The Group alsc obtains feedback from its
carporate brokers and its investor relations
adviser on the views of institutional
investors an a ngn-attributable basis

and the CEC and/or CFO, supported

by the Director of Strategy, Brand

and IR, communicate the issues and
concerns of majar shareholders to

the Board. As a matter of routine, the
Board receives regular reports from the
Director of Strategy, Brand and IR and
from the Company’s external advisers

on issues refating to recent share price
performance, trading activity and general
institutional investor sentiment. The
Board also receives copies of relevant
analysts' reports on an ad hoc basis via
the Company's Investor Relations team
and other matters of interest in the media
via the Corporate Affairs and External
Communications teams.

Dividend Policy and
Distributions

The Board closely manitors the
appropriateness of its stated policy on
dividend payments, dividend cover, and its
capital structure and allocation pricrities
as cyclical agenda items. Each proposed
dividend paymaent is also specifically
reviewed in the context of the Company’s
distributable reserves, prior to payment to
sharehclders following the Group's half and
full year resuits.

Both dividend payments in the year were
approved in line with the Board's policy
and reflect the Group’s continued strang
cash flow and confidence in delivery of

the Board’s strategic priorities. That policy
is subject to periodic review by the Board.
Further information regarding the strategic
rationale for decisions taken with respect
to both dividend payments in 2G17 can be
found in the Strategic Report on page 2.

The Board did not elect to extend the
share repurchase programme completed
in December 2016, under which £95m was
returned to shareholders, pending further
clarification of the regulatory outiock

for the business, and given a significant
pipeline of oppertunities to invest savings
generated by the approved transformation
programme. As a result, an aggregated
total of £108.)1m was distrbuted to
shareholders during the financial year,
under the 2016 final and 2017 interim
dividend payments.

The Board will continue to review
application of its policy to both dividend
payments and dividend cover, but does
not anticipate that any policy changes
will be necessary to stated policy in the
forthcoming 2018 financial year in the
context of the Group's projected financiai
performance and current outlock for

its prirary markets, or indeed for the
foreseeable future.

The Board has specifically considered

and madelied the potential impact of an
unfavourable ruling from the Government's
Triennial Review of staking limits and
gaming on its dividend policy, and has
alternative strategies depending on a
range of outcames. The Board remains
comfortable that the existing dividend
policy of around 50% of adjusted earnings
will rermain appropriate and sustainable.

Al future reviews will encompass periodic
assessments of the future profitability

of the business, principal risks and asset
valuations, as necessary, in accordance with
best practice.

The Annual General Meeting

The Board continues to consider the

AGM as an important opportunity to
communicate directly with all shareholders.
At the AGM in 2017 the Chairman

and the CEO took the opportunity to
summarise William Hill's performance

and achievermnents in the prior year and to
provide a business update.

Board members, including the chairs of the
Remuneration, Nomination, Audit and Risk
Management, and Corporate Responsibility
Committees, attended the 2017 AGM

and intend to attend the 2018 AGM ta be
available to answer questions.

At the conclusion of the AGM, shareholders
are provided with an cpportunity to discuss
business matters informally with the
directors and ¢ther senior managers in the
business. This provides the Company with
a further opportunity to understand and
respand to the views of the shareholders.

in order that shareholders are aware of
the other shareholders’ voting intentions,
the details of proxy votes for the AGM held
in 2017 were made available at the general
meeting and were published following the
meeting on both the Company's website
and to the London Stock Exchange.

Each of the resolutions at the AGM held in
2017 were passed with the requisite level

of approval, however the Board noted
opposition in excess of 20% to the standard
allotment authority and non-pre-emptive
share issue resolutions. Both resofutions
were presented to shareholders in ling

with established UK market practice

and are fully in line with the guidelines

of Pre-Empticn Group. In line with the
recommendations of the Code, the Board
released a statement acknowiedging this
significant oppesition within the results of
the AGM poll, and also conducted a further
exercise to gauge the root causes for the
level of opposition. Cne significant US
investor opposed the resolutions on the
basis that their global voting policy has a
lower allotment avthority than contained in
the AGM resolutions. Following consultation
with that shareholder, and after having
taken into acccunt the voting policies of
another shareholder who subsequent

to the 2017 AGM has become a material
shareholder in the Company, the Board has
agreed to reduce the level of both proposed
authorities at the 2018 AGM. The Beard
acknowledges that the opposition to both
2017 AGM resclutions has been recarded

by the Investment Association in its newly
published public register of companies
encountering sharehclder cpposition votes
in excess of 20%, aleng with the Board's
explanatory statement.

it is intended to continue with the Board's
current practices that a separate resolution
be proposed on each substantially separate
issue. [t is planned to post the Notice of

the 2018 AGM to shareholders with the
2017 Annval Report and Accounts at least
20 working days prior to the date of the
meeting. The website also contains the
Notice of General Meeting and supporting
explanatory notes.

The Articles of Association of the Company
require that any newly appcinted director
will be subject to election at the following
AGM. In accordance with the provisions

of the Code, the Board has agreed that

all directors wili be subject to annual
re-election by shareholders. Directors

will accordingly be elected or re-elected by
shareholders passing an ordinary resolution
at a general meeting.
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Beard and corporate culture

The Board continues to prioritise a focus
on culture, recognising its importance in
any organisation. Whilst a clear "tone from
the top’ remains a critical accountability for
the Board, workstreams within the Group’s
transformation programme have scught
to refocus the Group’s core values this year
and also identify improved ways of warking
to strengthen culture across the Group.

The outputs and recommendations of
those workstreams were approved by the
Transformation Oversight Committee, with
executive sponsorship from the CEQ. The
workstreams are further supported by

the Group's new location strategy, under
which staff will be concentrated in fewer
Furopean hubs in London, Leeds, Gipraltar,
Krakdw and Scfia. it is expected that the
location strategy will drive improved shared
warking practices between different areas
of the business, support the emphasis
omni-channel is now being given across
the business, and also encourage a more
flexible, solutions-arientated culture with
customer service at the centre.

The Board delivers its respensibilities

with regard to culture with the assistance
of standing Committees and senior
managenent as needed. From the paint
of recruitment, all staff are made aware
of existing Company palicies and codes
which are designed to encourage and
suppoert good conduct, and these have
been reviewed and refreshed in the year.
Reward mechanisms are also designed

to incentivise good behaviours and good
performance and not to encourage
excessive risk-taking. In particular, malus
and clawback provisions exist in the
bonrus and incentive arrangements for the
executive directors and far other executive
rmanagement. This is more fully explained
in the Rernuneration Report. Other levels
of managerment have reward mechanisms
which are designed to promcte cur
corporate behaviours and strong
personal performance.

A formal whistle blowing policy and
procedure for staff, suppliers and
stakeholders to raise issues regarding
possible improgrieties is already in

place. During 2077, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee continued to
monitor the use of the Group's whistle-
blowing arrangements and was satisfied
that appropriate actions were being taken.

The Company also continues to operate
and refine its policies and procedures to
prevent, detect and to report suspected
fraud and money taundering, all under

the supervision of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. The Company
also has a robust palicy in place regarding
anti-brihery and corruption which is
communicated to employees. The policy
and its effectiveness is reviewed periodically
by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and it requires strict adherence
te good corporate behaviours.

it is vital that William Hill maintains the

right cufture to perform effectively in the
regulated gambling markets in which the
business operates. The Group Compliance
Committee focused on its core remit to
oversee regulatory compliance across

the Group, under the responsibility of the
Director of Regulatory Affairs. Meetings of
the Committee continue to be attended

by the CEQ and CFQ, which ensures

that Board-level views on the culture of
compliance within the organisation are
communicated directly ta thase responsible
for compliance within the business.
Committee meetings are also attended

by the Director of Risk & Audit and this
helps to support a more holistic view

of regulatory compliance as part of the
business’ framewocrk of operational controls
and risk management. Further information
regarding the specific areas of focus for the
Group Compliance Committee can be found
in the Corporate Responsibility Report on
page72.

Looking farward, our culture will also
evolve as we progress our sustainability
strategy, which will take greater account of
key stakeholders.

Approach to risk management

The section 'Managing our Risks’ outlines
the Beard's approach to the management
of risks within the business and summarises
the principal risks facing the business.

The sections below provide further

detail on the Board's actions to menitor
the Company's risk management and
internal control. The work of the Board

in this regard is supported by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee and
further details of the activities undertaken
by the Committee to support the risk
managerment framework is provided in the
repart which appears on pages 67 to 71.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the
Group's internal contral systems and for
monitoring their effectiveness. Executive
directors and senior management are
responsible for making sure that risks are
understood and they are also responsible
for the implementation, monitcring

and maintenance of the internal cantrol
systems, which are subject to regular
review. The Board menitors the ongeing
process by which critical risks to the
business are identified, evaluated and
managed. This process is consistent with
the FRC's ‘Guidance on Risk Management,
Internai Control and Related Financial
and Business Reporting’ published in
September 2014,

The Board continues to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s system

of internal controis {including financial,
cperational and compliance controls

and risk management systems). This is
conducted through ongoing processes
designed to oversee provision of effective
internal controls and risk management
systerns, which include:

— regular scheduled meetings of the
Board and its Committees, the Group
Executive and Business Reviews for
each business unit. This provides regular
opportunities to assess performance and
potential risks;

established structures and delegations of
authorities which set out respensibilities
and levels of authaority;

- ongoing pracedures, inciuding those
already described, which are in place to
manage perceived risks;

- regular reports to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee which inform
the Committee on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems
and significant control issues,

— the continuous Group-wide process
for formally identifying, evaluating and
managing the principal risks ta the
achievement of the Group's chjectives;
and

- reports ta the Audit and Risk
Management Committee on the
results of internal audit reviews, wark
undertaken by ather departments and
where needed reviews undertaken
by external third parties on behalf
of management.
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The Group's internal control systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and can only provide reasonable,
and not absclute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss. In assessing
what constitutes reasonable assurance, the
Board considers the materiality of financial
and non-financial risks and the relationship
between the cost of and benefit from,
internal cantrol systems. The Board
regularly reviews the actual and forecast
performance of the business compared
with the annual plan, as well as other key
performance indicatars {both financial and
non-financial). Forecast performance s
revised during the year as necessary, taking
into account performance for the year-to-
date and performance going forward, and
any potential macro-econamic or material
industry factors.

Lines of respansibility and delegated
authorities are clearly defined. The Group’s
policies and procedures are regularly
updated and distributed throughout

the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management
Committee receives reports on a regular
basis on compliance with the Group's
nolicies and procedures as part of the
ongoing work of the Risk & Audit team.

As with many large, complex and multi-
jurisdictional organisations, it was
necessary for the Group to introduce
additionai controls and further strengthen
existing controls during the year to support
cperational initiatives, as a result of review
findings, and also to keep pace with good
practice. Specifically, we continue to review
our internal regulatary and compliance
controls to meet the changing regulatory
requirements, but also to align with advice
and requests from our regulators.

The Audit and Risk Management
Committee were made aware of relevant
controd issues arising throughout the

period and thereis a robust process to
capture, track and approve actions taken to
remediate issues identified. The directors
noted historic control weaknesses relating
to sources of funds checks in the Online
business and a remediation plan is in fiight.
Qther than this, no significant failings or
weaknesses were identified as a result of
the review that may significantly impact the
financial statements.

Assessment of risk

A corporate risk register is maintained and
is regularly updated followng detailed
review by the Group Risk and Audit function
and senior management during the year.
The register was discussed with the Group
Executive and has been approved by the

Audit and Risk Management Committee
and the Board.

The register records the key risks facing the
business, the assessment of the likelihocd
of the risks crystallising and their potential
materiality, and the Group's response to
eachrisk. Responsibility for management
of therisks is attributed to senior
management and management rermain
aware of the risks facing the business and
operate in a risk aware manner.

The Board uses the controt and risk
management processes to identify and
manage any significant risks arising from
social, environmental and ethical issues.

Further details of the Group's corporate
responsibility practices are described on
pages32to44.

Risks and opportunities are also embedded
for consideration where key decisions and
appravals are required by the Board. In
particular, part of the annual operating plan
considers key risks and opportunities which
may impact upon the business over the
near term.

Additicnally, each year the Board considers
and approves a five-year strategic plan
which reflects the Company’s strategy

and the environment in which the business
aperates. Risks are included as part of

the consideration of the five-year plan to
provide a longer-term assessment on issues
which may impact the business.

A key tool to ensure effective ongoing risk
management throughout the business is
to ensure that the executive directors are
sufficiently involved and have oversight of
the material aspects of the operation of
each business unit. This is accomplished
through regular interactions between each
business unit with the executive directors,
including regular scheduted Business
Reviews which are heid with the respective
business unit managing director and other
senior business unit managers throughout
the year. The Business Review meetings
review all materiat operational aspects of
the business unit, including risks.

Internal Audit

The Greup Risk and Audit function reviews
the extent to which systems of internal
control are effective, are adequate

to manage the Group’s significant risks,
safeguard the Group's assets and, in
conjunction with the Company Secretary,
aimn to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. It provides
ongoing independent and ohjective
assurance on risks and controls to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee,
the Board and to senior management.

The Group’s financial and operational
contrals and associated procedures are
subject to a schedule of risk-based reviews
to pravide assurance that they remain
robust and fit for purpose. The Group

Risk and Audit function's work is focused
on areas of greatest risk to the Group, as
determined by:

— astructured risk assessment process
involving executive directors and senior
management; and

— ongoing reviews to take into account
new areas of focus due to any material
emerging issues which may arise
during the year. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee reviewed
an assessment of the coverage of
corporate level risks through the
internal audits undertaken for the year.
The assessment helped to support
the Board's determination that an
appropriate review had been undertaken
of the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of risk management and internal
controls, including principal risks and
key controls.

The Group Risk and Audit function
also prepares an annual plan for the
forthcoming financial year which

is approved by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and is then
reviewed in greater detail on a quarter-
by-guarter basis during the financial
year, altowing far further refinement
as necessary.

The Risk and Audit teamn also conduct a
number of ad hoc reviews during the year
at the reguest of management orthe
Audit and Risk Management Committee
to provide live assurance over key projects
or critical business areas.

The Director of Risk and Audit reports
regularly to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee an work undertaken, the results
of audit reviews, the adeguacy of the
Internal Audit function's resources and on
progress against the annual audit plan.

The Director of Risk and Audit also
reports regularty on the actions taken
by management in response to audit
reviews and this process provided the
Audit and Risk Management Commitiee
with additionai assurance that timely
actions were being taken in response to
audit reviews.

The role of the Group Risk and Audit
department and the scope of its work
continue to evolve, to take account of
changes within the business and emerging
best practice.
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Report on Corporate Governance continued

Going concern

A full description of the Group’s business
activities, financial position, cash flows,
liquidity positicn, committed facilities
and borrowing position, together with
the factors likely to affect its future
development and performance, is set
out in the Strategic Report, including the
Financial Review and in notes 22 and 23
to the financial statements.

As highlighted in notes 22 and 23 to the
financial statements, the Group meets its
day-to-day working capital requirements
from the positive cash flows generated by
its trading activities and its avallabie cash
resources. These are supplemented when
required by additional drawings under the
Group’s revalving credit bank loan facilities,
which are committed untii May 2019

Whilst there are a number of risks

to the Group’s trading performance, as
summarised in the ‘Managing our risks’
sectionon pages 45 to 50, the Group is
confident of its ability to access scurces
of funding in the medium term

The Group's strategic forecasts, based cn
reasonable assumptions, indicate that the
Group should be able to operate within the
level of its currently available and expected
future facilities and its banking covenants
for the period of the strategic forecast.

After making enquiries and after
consideration of the Group’s existing
operations, cash flow forecasts and
assessment of business, regulatory

and financing risks, the directars have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate resourcas
to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
directors confirm that they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts

Board Committees

The Audit and Risk Management
Committee, the Carporate Responsibility
Committee, the Nominaticn Committee,
and the Remuneration Committee are
standing Committees of the Board.

During the year, the Board also established
the Transformation Oversight Committee,
to provide independent review and
challenge on the delivery of the Board"s
approved transformation programme.
The Committee is chaired by John O’'Reilly,
with Mark Brooker, David Lowden and
Philip Bowcock the other appointed
members. Gareth Davis attended the
majority of meetings by invitation in his
capacity as Chairman, as did Jim Marsh,
Chief Transformation Officer. The Deputy
Company Secretary acts as secretary to
the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit,
Neminaticn, Corporate Responsibility and
Remuneration Cornmittees, are available
upon request from the Company Secretary
or via the Group's corporate wehsite

(www williamhilplc.com). Each are regularly
reviewed by the relevant Committee and
the Board and the terms of reference were
reviewed and refreshed as appropriate in
July 2017,

All Committees have access to independent
expert advice as necessary. Appointments
to Board Committees are for three-year
terms extendable by no more than two
additional three-year terms.

Group Executive

Philip Bawcock also chairs the Group
Executive, which meets monthly (apart
from August} and indudes the Company's
key senior managers who report to the
CEQ. In addition to the monthiy meetings,
weekly conference calls are held by the
Group Executive to ensure each member

is up-to-date on recent performance and
other major operational matters. The
Group Executive retains aversight on issues
affecting the day-to-day management of
the Group's operations, and a/so reviews
certain matters prior to Board or Board
Committee consideration. Members and
regular attendees at the Group Executive
meetings are: Philip Bowcock, Chief
Exacutive Officer; Ruth Prior, Chief Financial
Officer; Joe Asher, CEC William Hill US; Paul
Durkan, Chief Infarmation Officer; Nicola
Frampton, Director, UK Retail; Karen Myers,
Group Human Resources Director; Crispin
Nieboer, Managing Director, Online; Terry
Pattinson, Group Trading Director; David
Steele, Director of Corporate Affairs; Luke
Thomas, Company Secretary; and Tom
Waterhouse, CEO William Hill Australia.
Harry Willits was appeinted as a member
of the Group Executive on joining the Group
as General Counsel in January 2018.

In April 2018, Ulrik Bengtsson will join
Willizam Hill in the new Group rale of Chief
Digital Officer. Crispin Nieboer will move
to become Group Corporate Development
Director. Both Ulrik and Crispin will sit on
the Group Executive,

Remuneration

The Directors’ Remuneration Report is set
outon pages 77to 97

Statement of Compliance

The Board supports the ‘comply or explain’
approach set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which forms part of the
Board's governance processes. The Code

is issued by the Financial Reporting Council
and is avaiable on the FRC's website at
www.frc org.uk. This report has been
prepared against the version of the Code
published in 2016, which is applicable for
William Hill's 2017 financial year for the first
time. Under the Code’s ‘comply or explain’
approach, this permits listed companies
some flexibility and the opportunity to
adopt governance arrangements otherwise
than in accordance with the provisions

of the Code, where the Board feels this

is appropriate for the geod running of

the business.

The Board can report full comptiance with
the Code during the 2017 financial year.

The Board has also reviewed the FRC's
announcernent of proposed revisions to

the Code, expected to apply for financiai
years commencing after 1January 2019.
The preposals are currently under public
consultation. Based on the FRC’s current
proposed changes, the Board is satisfied
that its effective governance procedures
and policies mean that no further material
changes should be necessary to the Board's
governance framework. However, the
Board acknowiedges the proposed revisions
which call for better alignment of board
culture with company values and enhanced
staff engagement and is committed to
reviewing any further improvements

which may be made in these areas as

best practice market practices emerge.

Luke Thomas

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board
Willizm Hill PLC
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Report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

Image removed

David Lowden
Chairman, Audit and Risk
Management Committee

‘In 2017 the Committee
continued to prioritise on
effective risk management and
controls, which was impaortant
in the context of the angoing
transformation programme
and executive focus on
operational performance.

Membership and meetings

Set out Delow is the current membership of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

During the year, all the members of the
Committee were independent Non-
executive Directors.

Director

David Lowden, Chairman

Mark Brooker (from 3 April 2017}

John O'Reilly (from 2 January 2017)

Robin Terrel! {fram 2 January 2017}

The Board approved changes to the
composition of the Committee in November
2017 during a periodic review to optimise
the Committee’s cormpasition. Pricr to

16 Novemnber 2017, each of the other Non-
executive Directors of the Board (excluding
the Chairman), namely Sir Roy Gardner,
Georgina Harvey and Imelda Walsh, also
served on the Committee.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the Committee. Cther individuals

attend at the request of the Committee
Chairman and during the year this included:
representatives of the external auditor, the
Chairman, the CEQ, the CFO, the Group
Director of Legal Services, the Director

of Risk and Audit, the Head of Internal
Audit and the Director of Group Finance.

In addition, members of the management
tearn, including the Group Chief Information
Officer, attend by invitation to report tc
the Committee on key matters raised and
to provide clarification and explanations
where appropriate.

tn view of the regulated nature of the
Company’s business, the Group Money
Laundering Reporting Officer also attends
two meetings each year in order to provide
a formal report on anti-money laundering
to the Committee.

In addition, the Committee also meets with
the external auditor and the director of Risk
and Audit without executive management
present on a regular basis. The Committee
met on five occasions during 2017 and
details of attendance at Committee
meetings are set out on page 68.

The Chairman of the Committee, David
Lowden, has recent and relevant financial
experience, He is a chartered accountant
and has previously held senior financial
positions within other international
companies. Mark Brooker, John O'Reilly

and Robin Terrell are all financially literate
and have significant general business
experience of executive rales in both private
and public organisations. Robin Terrelf is
alsc a chartered accountant. Mark Brooker
and John O'Reilly provide the Board

with considerable sector experience, in
accordance with the Code provision C.3.1.
Details of each director’s significant current
and prior appointments are set cut on
pages 54 and 55.

Committee remit

A full copy of the terms of reference for the
Committee can be obtained via the website
www.wiliamhillplc.com or by request to the
Company Secretary.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities
are to:

— review and advise the Board on the
Group's half yearly and annual financial
statements and its accounting policies,
and monitor the integrity of the financial
statements and announcements relating
to financial performance;

— assist the Board as necessary in
ensuring that the Company’s Annual
Report and Accounts is fair, balanced
and understandable in accordance
with applicable legislation and
governance recommendations;

— review the major risks affecting the
Group and assist the Board with
reviewing the effectiveness of the
controls operating over the Group's
financial and non-financial risks;

— review the nature and scope of the
work 1o be performed by the external
and internal auditors, the result of that
work, management’s respense, and
their effectiveness;
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Report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee continued

— oversee the relationship with the
external auditor including making
recommendations to the Board
regarding their appointment cr remaoval
and developing a policy regarding the
provision of non-audit services to the
Group. The Committee is also responsible
for overseeing the rotation or tender of
external audit services in accordance with
applicable legislation or good governance;

— meet with the executive directors and
management, as welf as privately with
both the external and internal auditors;
and

— report to shareholders annually on its
role and responsibilities

A formalised whistle blowing pclicy

and procedure for staff to raise issues
regarding possible improprieties in matters
of financial reporting or other matters

isin place and operated during the year.

It is the responsibility of the Committee

to menitor its effectiveness and any
notifications made. No material issues
arose as a result of whistle blowing during
the year, and further information can be
found on page 64. The Committee has
access to the services of the Group Risk and
Audit function and Company Secretarial
departments and is authoerised to obtain
independent professional advice if it
considers it necessary

Main activities during 2017

The calendar of Committee activities below
provides an overview of the key areas of
focus for the Committee in 2017,

2017 calendar of Audit and Risk Management

Committee activity

February

— Review of 2016 full year resuits, Annual
Report and Accounts, and external
audit report

— Annual review of the Group control
environment and principal risks

— Annual controls, effectiveness and risk
management self-assessment pracess

— Review and approval of Non-Audit fees
incurred in 2016

— Discussion of the Anti-Money
Laundering Officer’s Report (also
QOctaober meeting)

— Private meetings of the Committee
with the Group Risk and Audit team and
the external auditor Deloitte {without
management present)

May

— Qverview of requirements regarding
the EU General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR)

— Review of strategy regarding Data
Centre and Disaster Recovery plans

— Technology Security Update

— Business Continuity Planning Update

— Corporate Governance updates {(also
QOctcber meeting)

July
—~ Review of 2017 half-year results and
half-year external auditor report

— External Audit review and strategy
for tender

— Annual update on Tax
— Approval of updated terms of reference

October
— Update on Online gaming contrals

— Update on GOPR preparations

— Technology Security update

- Update on plans regarding Data Centre
and Disaster Recovery

— Approval of Group Tax Strategy and
Public Statement

— Approval of the external audit plan
for the 2017 financial year

December

— Update on plans regarding Data Centre
and Disaster Recovery

— Review and discussion of progress
on GDPR

— Appraval of 2018 internal audit plan

— Initial chseussion of key financiat
judgements and accounting policies
for the 2017 Annual Report

Standing items at each

Committee meeting

- Review of reports from Group Risk
and Audit function, including: key
operational controls, internal audits
undertaken since the fast Committee
meeting, key open internal audit
actions, whistle blowing reports and
status of business continuity planning

— Review and approval of external avaitor
non-audit fees

— Review and update of a 12-month relling
plan for the Committee

— Approval of previous Committee
meeting minutes and follow-up on
outstanding actions
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Approach to core remit

Financial statements

During the year, the Committee

reviewed and discussed the financial
disclosures made in the full-year results
announcement, the Annual Report

and Accounts, and the half-year results
together with any related management
letters, letters of representation and
detailed reports from the external auditer.
Significant financial reporting issues and
judgements were discussed and reviewed.

There were no material changes to
significant accounting policies during the
year, however, the Group complied with
FRS101, which provides a reduced disclosure
framework for reporting groups, for the
first time across the Group’s subsidiary
financial statements.

The UK Corporate Governance Code
requires the Board to also confirm that they
consider the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, 1o be fair, balanced and
understandable (FBU) and that it provides
the infarmation necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy.
A robust process, which was reviewed

and undertaken during the financial year,

is operated wherelly the Committee assists
the Board in the discharge of this duty.

The Committee provided assistance to
the Board by overseeing the pracess by
which the Annual Report and Accounts
is prepared. In particular the Committee
noted that:

— guidance is initially issued to the project
team regarding FBL) ooligations;

— all content is subject to rigorous review
by both the contributors and by the
Senicr Executive Team;

— the CFQ, the Company Secretary and the
Director of Strategy, Brand and Investor
Relations perform a review 1o ensure that
the Report promates consistency and
balance between the narrative front half
and the financial notes;

- aclear and cohesive framework
facilitates integrated key messaging,
rmarket and segment reviews,
performance averviews, and principal
risks to the business. Sufficient forward
locking information is also provided and
a balance is sought between describing
potential challenges and cpportunities;

— the Committee had receved briefings
during the year on the material reporting
changes which would be required to
be observed or which would represent
good practice;

- management also reported to the
Committee regarding steps taken in the
year to ensure that the Annual Report
and Accounts remans FBU for users of
the presented financial information;

— the Annual Report and Accounts was
subject to final approval by the Board,
following review and comment by both
the Committee and individual Board
members; and

- improvements have been made to
the Annual Report to improve the
explanation and presentation of
adjusted results.

Internal control and risk
management

The Committee closely monitored

the Group's internal control and risk
management systems and received regular
reports and presentations from senior
management covering the major risks

and events faced by the Group, and the
procedures established to identify, assess,
manage, monitor and mitigate these risks.
The calendar of Committee activities on the
previous page provides further information
regarding the specific areas covered by

the Committee, with a continuing focus on
technology security generally, the controls
environment in the Online gaming business,
and preparations for GDPR compliance.

The Committes, in conjunction with

the Group Risk and Audit function, took
responsibility for reviewing and approving
the statements on internal controls on
pages 64 and 65 ¢n behalf of the Board.
The statements applied any developments
in practice regarding internal central and
risk management to the disclasures within
the Report.

Oversight of the external
auditor

The Committee has responsibility for
overseeing the relationship with the
external auditor, Deloitte LLP, and

it continues to review and maonitor

the external auditor's independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process. The policy to safeguard
the independence of the external auditor,
in line with the Statutory Auditors and
Third Country Auditors Regulations 2016
{the 2016 Regulaticns), was maintained
by the Committee.

The policy covers the appointment,
tendering and rotation of the auditor;
restrictions on the employment of former
staff of the auditor; ongoing independence
criteria; and the supply of non-audit
services. The pclicy explicitly prohibits a
range of non-audit services in accordance
with relevant legislation. Examples of

prohjbited services include projects with
contingent fee structures; accounting and
payroll services; legal services and provision
of internal audit services.

The policy continues to be applied across
the Group, to ensure close monitoring of
any material consultancy projects proposed
to be delivered by either the current
external auditor, or any potential tender
participants. This ensures the continuing
independence of all potential participating
firms given the onerous pre-gualification
reguirements of the regulations in respect
of the external auditor.

The 2016 Regulations provide for a cap cn
non-audit services of a maximum of 70%
of the average of the audit fees paid on

a rolling three year basis. The first three-
year measurement period, covering the
2017, 2018 and 2019 financial years, will end
and be subject to reporting in 2020, and
the Committee is well prepared to comply
with related disclosure requirements at
that time.

The Committee approved the external
auditor's engagement letter, audit fee and
the annual audit plan {including the planned
levels of materiality) as usual during the
year. Letters of representation were
reviewed during the year, prior to signature
by executive management.

The external auditor regularly attended
Committee meetings in 2017 and receives
all reading papers and minutes in respect
of the meetings of the Committee. The
external auditaor met at least once during
2017 with the Committee without executive
management present. The Chairman of the
Committee has alsc met privately with the
external auditor.

In 2017 the Committee reviewed both the
Audit Quality Inspecticn Report published
by the FRC in respect of Deloitte, and their
published response. The report showed
no rnatters of material concern for the
Committee, in which the FRC identitied

a small number of recommendations for
Deloitte to address

The external audit engagement

Deloitte are the Company’s current external
auditor and the Committee monitors

the ethical guidance regarding rotation

of the external audit partner Paul Franek

is the current audit partner, having been
appointed in 2014,
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During 2017, the Committee received regular
reports from the external auditor, including
a formal written report dealing with the
audit objectives, the auditors’ gualifications,
expertise and resources, procedures and
policies for maintaining independence and
compliance with the ethical standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Bcard.

The Cornmittee also assessed the
effectiveness of the audit process during
the financial year. In addition, the external
auditor’'s management letter was reviewed,
as was management's response to

issues raised

In accordance with the policy on the
Independence of the external auditor,

the Committee regularly considers the
relaticnship with the external auditor.

In line with the policy, at each meeting the
Committee considered and approved as
appropriate any non-audit work undertaken
by the external auditor involving feesin
excess of £25,000. Where no Committee
meeting was scheduled within an
appropriate time frame, approval was
sought from the Committee Chairman and
subsequently ratified at the next meeting.,

All non-audit services provided by the
external auditor are reported to the
Committee at its next scheduled meeting
and a record is kept and reviewed by

the Committees on a cumuiative basis so
that the total aggregate costs regarding
non-avdit work during a financial year is
monitored carefully. Audit and non-audit
fees paid to the external auditor are set out
in note 5 to the financial statements.

During 2017 the Audit Commiittee
approved the provision of certain non-
audit assurance services by the Deloitte
The majority of the services, for which
fees totalled £40,000, related to specific
projects spanning IT consultancy in
Australia, reviews of the Horseracing

and Greyhound Ltevy and reviews of
commission structures for an Australian
National Rugby League agreement.
Cther non-audit services provided by the
external auditor during the year related

to non-audit assurance engagements
required to be provided by our auditor,
and were also approved by the Committee
for fees totalfing £35,000. The Committee
is satisfied in each case that the external
auditor was best placed to undertake the
relevant preject, and noindividual project
was deemed sufficiently material to require
detailed Committee review.

Deloitte has been the external auditor of
the Group for more than 20 years, having
been originally appointed to the Company
in December 2001 just prior the Group
listing on the London Stock Exchange.
Deloitte provided audit services to other
Group entities prior to their appointment,
in 2001, their relaticnship with the Group
commencing on 22 January 1991. A tender
in respect of the external audit has not
been sought since William Hill was listed on
the London Stock Exchange in 2002, There
are no contractual obligations restricting
the Group's choice of external auditor.

The Committee confirms that it continues
1o be satisfied with the performance of
the external auditor and with the policies
and procedures in place to maintain their
objectivity and independence.

The Committee recommended that Deloitte
be re-appeinted at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and the Board accepted
and endorsed this recommendation.

The Committee nctes and confirms
compliance with the other provisions of the
Competition & Markets Authority Order
204 in respect of statutory audit services
far large comparnies.

In the Company's 2016 corporate
governance report, it was noted that

the Committee had agreed to complete

a formal tender of the external audit by

no later than 2019, with the intention to
appeint a different external auditor. Whilst
the decision to appoint a different external
auditer is still unchanged, during 2017 the
Committee reconsidered the optimal timing
of the process. In particular, the decision
on the timing to change the auditor pre-
dates the transformation pregramme.
However, the success of the transformation
programme is critical to the Company and
a tender could impact on the programme,
particularly as other potential candidate
firms who may succeed Deloitte are
undertaking work which would conflict
them were those projects to continue into
2019. The Committee therefore concluded,
on balance, it was in order to re-consider
its decision to change auditor in 2019 and
arecommendation was made to review
the situation following the completion

of the transformation programme.

The CFO and Audit Committee will discuss
later in 20718 the timing of the tender,
which will be completed in line with the
transitional arrangements permitted by
the 2016 Regulations.

Internal audit

William Hiil has a Group Risk and Audit
function which includes an Internal Audit
team The Group Risk and Audit function
has unrestricted access to all Group
documentation, premises, functions and
employees as required to enable it to
performits functicns.

The appointment and removal of the
Director of Risk and Audit and Head

of Internal Audit is the responsibility

of the Committee The Director of Risk
and Audit and Head of Internai Audit
have direct access to the Board and
Committee Chairman. During 2017 the
Director of Risk and Audit and Head of
internal Audit continued to meet regularly
with the Committee Chairman without
executive management.

During the year the Committee approved
the annual internal avdit plan and it
monitored progress against the plan.

The annual audit plan is amended during
the year if needed to ensure it addresses
emerging key areas cf control identified
by management or by the Group Risk and
Audit function and any maternal changes
to the plan are reported 1o and discussed
with the Cornmittee. Summaries of audit
reports are circulated to the Committee
members after each audit and full reports
are available upan request. The Committee
rmonitored progress against actions
identified in those reports.

During the year (and in particular regarding
the approval of the internal audit plan

for the forthcoming year) the Committee
enquired as 1o the adequacy of the
resources of the Group Risk and Audit
function and received assurances that
appropriate resources were available.
Where necessary, the work required 1o be
undertaken by the Internal Audit function
is supported by external professionals to
ensure that the planned work is completed.
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Disclosure of significant issues
considered by the Committee

Animportant part of the Committee’s
responsibilities is to assess key issues in
respect of published financial statements.
This process is primarily focused on the

key issues identified by management for
consideration. However, each Committee
member as a member of the Board receives
regular updates on the performance of

the business and in particular on material
issues which may affect the finances of

the business. This gives the Committee
additional perspective to consider and to be
familiar with significant issues which need
to be considered.

In respect of the 2017 financial year,

the Committee reviewed and discussed
with management the key issues which
had been identified, both at the half year
results stage and again in respect of the
annual resutts.

During the year, the Group was also
informed by the Financial Reporting Council
(FRC) that certain disclosures within its
2016 Annual Report and Accounts wauld

be included in a sample thematic review

of companies reporting Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs).

In Gctober the Group responded to
subseguent requests from the FRC to
clarify specific aspects of those disclosures,
and the Group's use of APMs. The FRC
confirmed in December that those
clarifications meant their review had
satisfactorily concluded, the Group having
given certain limited undertakings regarding
the consistency and linkage of related
disclosures in this year’s Annual Report.

The FRC's review was timited in scope

to the specific disclosures relating to their
thematic review and the Committee is
confident that the Group continues ta meet
good practice standards with regard to the
reporting of APMs.

In addition, each year the external auditor
prepares a comprehensive forward plan in
respect of their audit. Towards the end of
2017 the Committee reviewed the plan and
discussed it with Deloitte.

The plan explained:

- the scope and approach of the
audit, including consideration of
materiality thresheids;

— any key areas of change in the focus
of the audit; and

- areas of significant audit risk which would
be subject to particular audit focus and
the year-on-year movement in risk

The Committee endorsed Deloitte’s plan
in respect of 2017

The Committee pays particular attention
to the matters which it considers may
affect the integrity of the Group’s
financial statements, with a2 view to
satisfying itself that each matter has
been treated appropriately.

The Committee found that there was a
good level of alignment between the key
areas identified by managerment and the
areas highlighted for review by Deloitte.

The Committee assessed each matter,
which included reviews of:

— the carrying value of goodwill and
intangibles across the Group. This review
included an assessment of the goodwilt
valyation of the Australian business,
which necessitated an impairment
charge agreed with the external auditor
through a process which commenced
in December;

- items which had been categorised as
exceptional items for 2017, it was agreed
with the Executive team that certain
iterns, including those related to the
transformation programme, should be
treated as exceptional itemns and further
information is provided in note 3 to the
financial statements;

— matters relating to taxation. In particular
the Committee assessed the recognition,
derecognition and valuation of tax
provisions. The Committee concluded
that appropriate treatments had been
applied in each case;

- the Group's continuing compliance
with guidelines on the disclosure and
explanation of APMs which appear in
the Annual Report, including a review of
the financial statements in line with the
recent FRC thematic reviews;

- aspecific review of critical accounting
judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty;

- the existence and disclosure of actual
and contingent liakilities The Committee
was satisfied, following review of
managernent disclosures, that such
liabilties had been treated appropriately
within the financiai statements;

— the disclosures and supporting analysis
In respect of the viability statement.
The Cormmmittee reaffirmed the
reasonableness of the assumptions and
considered whether a viability period
of three financial years rernained most
appropriate, and unanimously confirmed
that it was as part of a recommendation
to the Board;

— an annual assessment by the directors
that it is appropriate to prepare
the financial statements on a going
concern basis;

- the steps taken by management to
ensure that the Annual Report was fair,
balanced and understandable;

— the accounting basis applied to the
Group's pension schemes, in particular
in respect of the valuation of assets
and labitities;

— the accounting treatment and disciosures
n respect of the disposal of the Group's
investrnent in NYX Gaming Group
Lim#ed to Scientific Games Corporation;
and

— the effectiveness of key controls within
the business, which appears on page 64.

Part of the Committee's role is to provide
constructive challenge to management

on the above issues and on other matters
related to financial reporting. This is
particularly important where underlying
assumptions need to be made by
management as part of their assessments.
In respect of this, the Committee continued
to question management as necessary

on the treatment of the items and the
Committee received appropriate respanses
from management. The significant issues
were also the subject of review by the
external auditor and the Committee noted
that, where needed, the external auditor
had confirmed management's treatment
was appropriate and that management
had made reasonable assumptions.

As noted above, the Committee was
satisfied that the judgernents made by
management were reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures had been included
in the accounts. The Committee also noted
that Deloitte have issued an audit opinion,
which can be found on pages 102 tc 107

of this Annual Report and Accounts, in
respect of the annual financial staterments.
Further details in respect of accounting
treatments and assumptions are also
provided as appropriate in the notes tc
the financial statements.

Other activities

Surmmaries of key agenda items can also
be found in the calendar of Committee
activities on page 68.

David Lowden
Chairman, Audit and Risk
Managerment Committee
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Report of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

Image remeved

Mark Brooker
Chair of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee

‘Having assumed responsibility
for the Corporate Responsibility
{CR) Committee in November,
it is important to acknowledge
Ashley Highfield's contribution

to the Committee’s work.

introduction

During the year the CR Committee
increased its focus in the UK on compliance
against the Gambling Commission’s

key licensing objectives, applying similar
standards across the Group:

— to prevent gambling from being a source
of crime or disorder, being associated
with crime or disorder, or being used to
support crime;

— toensure that gambling is conducted
in a fair and open way; and

— to protect children and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited
by garmbling.

The Committee alse provided constructive
challenge and oversight across the Group's
corporate responsibility programme.
Further infarmation can be found in this
Committee report and in the Corporate
Responsibility Review on pages 32 to 44.

Membership and meetings

The following is the current membership of
the CR Committee:

Director

Mark Brooker, Chairman
{mermber fram 3 April 2017)

Gareth Davis

Sir Roy Gardner

Philip Bowcock

Georgina Harvey

David Lowden

John O'Reilly (fromm 2 January 2017)

Robin Terrell (from 2 January 2017)

Imelda Walsh

Philipc Bowcock, CEQ, is the executive
director responsible for CR. He is supported
by various members of senior managerment
throughout the business on different
aspects of the Group’s CR agenda.

The Graup Director of Corparate Affairs,
David Steele, continues to provide effective
co-~ordination of CR activities at Group
Executive level and throughout the

Group, which helps to ensure effective

and consistent consideration of CRissues
and reporting. This approach also enables
a flow of high-quality information to the
CR Committee.

The Company Secretary acts assecretary
to the Committee. The CR Committee
meetings are regularly attended by relevant
members of the Group Executive and

by various managers, so that informed
presentations are made by individuals
responsible for key areas such as human
resources, health and safety, security,
regulation and cormmunity relations.

During the year the Committee reviewed
the process to appoint a new external
health and safety consultant. The remit
Is being refined, but will continue to
include a briefing, at least annually, for
the Committee regarding health and
safety arrangements, performance and
legislative and best practice changes,
primarily focused on the Retail operations
in the UK, but also across major
administrative buildings.

The Committee met on four occasions
during 2017 and details of attendance at
Committee meetings can be found on
page 61,

CR Committee remit

A full copy of the terms of reference for the
Committee can be obtained via the website
at www.williamhitiplc.com or by request to
the Company Secretary.

The Committee’s principat responsibilities
are to:

— review CR policies and practices for
the Group and set new CR policies
as appropriate;

— review CR performance across a range
of performance metrics;

— ensure the business operates ina
sustainable way,

— advise the Board on environmental,
social and ethical matters;

— monitor CR risks as part of the Group’s
averall risk management framework; and

— review and approve the annual CR report.
within this document.

Main activities during 2017

The calendar of Committee activities on this
page provides an overview of the key areas
of focus for the Cormmittee in 2017, and
further information regarding key industry
issues, and how William Hill is respending,
are included in the review of CR matters

on pages 32 to 44 of the Strategic Report.

During the year, both the Board and the
Committee received frequent updates
and regularty discussed the Government's
Triennial Review and the Company’s
response to the Review.,
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The Committee also discussed with
management the cases which led to
William Hill entering into a regulatory
settlement with the Gambling Commission
in February 2018, The settlement was
reached in respect of certain former
policies which were insufficient to ensure
full regulatory compliance, and specifically
in relation to the identification of the
possible use of the proceeds of crime.

The Committee will maintain appropriate
oversight as an independent review process
gets underway. The Committee will also
provide support as needed to ensure

the Company works to implerment any
recommendations from the review.

Group approach to CR

The CR Comrmittee measures progress
made on all the Group's compliance
objectives against an annual tracker which
is reviewed at every meeting.

During the year the CR Committee
reviewed an outline of a refreshed strategy
to ensure the Group delivers future growth
in a sustainable and respensible manner.

In 2018 the Committee will work with
managemenit to oversee and support

the planned shift in approach and focus

to sustainability. Further information is
available in the Corporate Responsibility
Report on pages 32 to 44.

Committee agendas include ongoing
reviews to ensure goed oversight in key
areas and to measure progress on areas
within the Committee’s remit, including:

— health and safety;

— community activity, charitable donations
and related activity;

— is5ues in relation to employees, including
employee recognition, engagement
and wellbeing;

— security;

- compliance and interactions with
regulatery authorities;

— an overview cn key CR performance
and trends. These are primarily captured
and reflected in a CR 'dashboard’,
which s updated regularly;

- progress being made in relation to the
use of behavicural analytics to help
reduce at risk and problerm gambling; and

— corporate reputation amongst
key stakeholders, and improving
the effectiveness of the Company's
engagement with all stakeholders

2017 caiendar of CR Committee activity

January
— Health & Safety update

— Apprenticeship levy review
- Colleague Engagement survey rasults
— Update regarding industry's
Competition and Markets
Authority review

— Review of Gambling Commission
Annual Assurance Statement

— Review of corporate responsibility
key performance indicators {via a
CR dashboard)

— Fourth ELi Money Laundering Directive
update and review

— Security and Community
Annual Reviews

— Discussion regarding Online compliance
and controls

— Key regulatory themes for 2017

July
— Health & Safety and Security updates

— Compliance review including overseas
regulatory updates

— Review of corporate responsibility
key performance indicators
(via a CR dashboard)

— Heaith & Safety review
- Retail audit

— Good Neighbour Scheme and Close
to Home community updates

— Retail Lone Warking update
— Stakeholder reputation audit

— Review of gaming machine damage
in the Retail estate

— Political and regulatory updates,

including review of future arrangements

for the Senet Group

October
- Security update

- Colleague Engagement update

— Compliance review

— Political and regulatory presentation
and discussion (with external adviser)

— Update on gaming controls and
player protection

— Review of Gambling Commission
Annual Assurance Statemant

December
— Triennial Review status update

— Annual Health & Safety year-
end review

- Modern Slavery Act annual review
— Retail Lone Working update
- Community year-end update

The Committee also has standing
agenda items covering Health and Safety
performance and arrangements, Retail
and cyber security, staffing updates, and
regulatory compliance, Previous actions
arising are foliowed up at each meeting
toensure that they are completed.
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Management continued tc refine the
Group’s approach to CR matters, and
uodated related policies and procedures
within the business to ensure they
remain relevant. Performance metrics
are used where appropriate to measure
performance on an ongoing basis. For
example, during 2017 the Committes
reviewed performance metrics in respect
of health and safety, security, Retail lone
working, charitable giving and the Group's
responses to ongeing regulatory reviews.

The Committee regularly reviews the
relationship with its Primary Authority for
health and safety across the Retail estate
of LBOs. The Committee also formally
endorses the objectives which are set,
annually across key areas of health and
safety and staff welfare. The business met
the abjectives agreed with the Primary
Authority for the 2017 financial year and
isin the process of agreeing objectives
with relevant regulators and stakehoiders
for 2018.

The Comnmittee also discussed
developments in several other areas and in
particular the Cormmittee:

— reviewed a draft of the Annual Assurance
Statement prior to submission to the
Gambling Commission; and

— considered and approved the Group's
first annual review of its procedures
introduced in response to the
implementation of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015, and approved a refreshed and
updated transparency statement which
is now available on the Group website
(wwwwilliamhillpic.com).

Group Compliance Committee

The Company has further strengthened
the Group Compliance Committee, which

is attended by the CEO and provides an
effective means by which the Executive
tearm can co-ordinate compiiance initiatives
and identify material complance issues
across the Group.

The Director of Regulatory Affairs chairs
the meetings and the Committee comprises
the Director of Corporate Affairs, the
Company Secretary, the Group Director

of Legal Services, the Director of Risk &
Audit and senior managers responsible

for compliance in each of the Company’s
relevant business divisions. The Deputy
Company Secretary acts as Secretary.

During the year, the Group Compliance
Committee met a total of four times, and
considered the following key agenda items:

January

— Compliance reporting from the Online,
Retail, US and Australian businesses

— Focus on Online Reality Checks;
Online Self-Exclusion and Timeouts;
Player Protection Model and Cnline
Gambling Controls

— Group's GDPR Response Planning

July
— Compliance reporting from the Online,
Retail, US and Australian businesses

— Anti-Money Laundering Review
— Advertising and Marketing Review
— GDPR Update

— Cornpetition and Markets Authority
Industry Enquiry

October
— Compliance reporting fram the Online,
Retail, US and Australian businesses

—~ Customer Due Diligence
procedures review

— Anti-Money Laundering Review
— GDPR Update

- Competition and Markets Authority
Industry Enquiry Update

December
- Compliance reporting from the Onling,
Retalil, US and Australian businesses
— Customer Due Diligence
procedures review

- GDPR Update

- Competition and Markets Authority
Industry Enquiry Update

In addition, the Committee regularly
considers iterns including key regulatory
and legislative updates, key performance
indicator dashboard repaorting, surmmmary
reports regarding interactions with
regulators, and compliance reports from
across the Group.

Chair of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee




Wilkiarm Hill PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

~J
LN

Report of the Nomination Committee

Image removed

Gareth Davis
Chairman, Nomination Committee

'Following the significant
changes to Board composition
agreed in 2016, the key areas
of focus for the Nomination
Committee this year have
been the appointment of Philip
Bowcock as CEQ in March, the
appointment of Ruth Prior as
CFQ with effect from Cctober
and the succession planning
process ahead of my planned
retirement as Chairman

in 2018’

Membership and meetings

Set out below 15 the membership of the
Nomination Committee:

Director

Gareth Davis, Chairman

Sir Roy Gardner

Mark Brooker (from 3 April 2017}

Georgina Harvey

David Lowden

John O'Reilly (from 2 January 2017)

Rekin Terrell (from 2 January 2017)

Imelda Walsh

The Campany Secratary acts as secretary
to the Committee. All members of the
Committee are ndependent Non-executive
Directors and the Committee is chaired

by the Board Chairman. In order to ensure
there are fully informed discussions, the
CEQ and/or the Group Human Resources
Director are invited 10 attend meetings

as appropriate. The Committee meton

N occasions during 2017,

Nomination Committee remit

A full copy of the terms of reference for the
Committee can be obtained via the website
at wwwwilliamhiliplc.com or by request te
the Company Secretary.

The Committee's principal responsibilities
are to:

— make appointment recommendations
to the Board for the appointment, re-
appointment or replacement of directors;

- devise and consider succession planning
arrangements for directors and, as
appropriate, other senior executives; and

- regularly review the structure, skills, size,
compasition and balance of the Board
and recommend any proposed changes.

Matters within the remit of the Committee
are also cn occasion undertaken by

the Board, for example, discussions on
succession planning and more infarmal
meetings with managers in the Company’s
talent pipeline.

Non-executive Directors are currently
appoirted for an initial three-year term,
extendable by a further two additional
three-year terms. The terms and conditions
of appeintment of non-executive and
service contracts of executive directors are
available to shareholders for inspection

at the Company's registered office during
ncrmal business hours and at the AGM.

In respect of the recruitment of a new
director, the Committee prepares a
description of the role required. An external
firm is appointed, taking into account the
firm's ability to find suitable candidates.
The Committee ensures that the relevant
firm subscribes to the relevant industry
codes on executive searches (including
diversity). On joining the Board, Non-
executive Directors receive a formal
appointment letter, which identifies the
time commitment expected of them. Once
appointad, the new director undergoes

a tailored induction and familiarisation
procgramme implemented by the Company
Secretary with input from the Chairman
and CEQ.

Any potential director is required to disclose
alt significant outside commitments prior to
appeintment and the Board has approved
a policy requiring disclosure and approval
by the Board of all additional appointments
for executive or Non-executive Directors.
Alhough there were changes in the outside
ccmmitments of some directors during
2077, none of these were material to the
extent that it would impact on the time
required to commit to the Campany. Roger
Devtin, who joined the Group as Chairman
Designate on 1 February 2018, complied
with these disclosure requirements prior

tc appointment, and has stepped down as
Chairman of Sports Information Services
(Holdings) Ltd and will stepdown as a
Non-executive Director of the Football
Association in June 2018,

Main activities during 2017

The calendar of Committee activities below
provides an overview of the key areas of
specific focus for the Committee in 2017,
and further explanation regarding the key
events for the Committee during the year
can be found in the Chairman’s introduction
on page 46.

During 2017, the Committee played an
important part in recommending changes
to the composition of the Board, thereby
ensuring the Company's leadership and

the Board’s succession planning is welt-
positioned and better placed tc support
the Group's strategic objectives. The Board
formally endorsed all the recommendations
of the Committee during the year.

Philip Bowcock was appointed as CECQ

in March 2017, having been appointed as
Interim CEQ in July 2016. The decisicn to
appoint Philip to the permanent position
represented the successful conclusion of
an extensive search for potential external
candidates in conjunction with external
recruitment firm Heidrick & Struggles
(Heidrick & Struggles otherwise have no
connection with William Hill).
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It also reflected the Board's strong
canfidence in Philip’s ability to lead the
business and in particular oversee the
transformation programme to refocus
operational performance in the medium
to long term.

The Committee also commenced a

search process for the CFQ position that
Philip vacated on appointment. A similar
process was followed, with further input
again from Heidrick & Struggles. The

initial search censidered both internal

and external candidates. Shortlists were
then prepared and reviewed by the
Committee which agreed the most suitable
candidates who should proceed to a series
of interviews with the Chairman, various
Non-executive Directors, and the CEQ
That process culminated in the unanimous
recommendation that Ruth Prior, who was
at that time Chief Operating Officer at
Werldpay Group plc, be appointed as CFO.

During the year the Committee further
considered the balance of skills and
experience on the Board and alsc changes
to support timely succession planning.
With this in mind, fallowing reviews by the
Committee it was unanimously agreed
that the appointments of David Lawden,
Georgina Harvey, Imelda Walsh and Sir Roy
Gardner each be extended for a further
three-year term from their respective
anniversary. The Board also welcomed
each recommendation, which were each
unanimously approved.

In December the Committee recommended
the appomntment of Roger Devlin as
Chairman Designate with effect from

1 February 2078, to complete the succession
planning following Gareth Davis’ decision

to step down fram the Board before the
2018 AGM. Karn Ferry had been appointed
to conduct an extensive search and a
sub-committee led by Sir Roy Gardner as
Senior Independent Director evaluated
many of the initial candidates and
undertock additional wark in between
Committee meetings. The sub-committee
regularly reported to the Committee,

which subsequently agreed a shortlist

of candidates. Korn Ferry has no other
connection with William Hill.

During 2017 and up 1o the date of this
report, the Committee also:

— centinued to monitor the reports
and progress updates issued by the
Lord Davies review team in respect of
women on boards and by Sir John Parker
concerning the ethnic diversity of boards,
and

- considered and recommended to the

Board that each director be proposed for
re-appointment at the 2017 AGM.

Board diversity and
compasition

The Board has a diverse range of
exparience by way of expertise, business
sector background and by length of
tenure on the Board, and the Committes
is well aware of its responsibilities in
respect of diversity. We recognise the
benefits that diverse viewpoints and
backgrounds can contribute to degision-
making and also for the infusion of

frash thinking and perspectives from
newly appointed directers. The Board is
delighted with the contributions made
by newly appcinted directors during the
vear, which have complemented the
experienced ongoing contribution of the
longerstanding directors.

1t is also the intention of the Board to
continue to keep the benefits that derive
from a diverse Board in mind when making
future appointments. As at 31 December
2017 30% of the Board was comprised

of women, and this gender diversity ratio
is line with the updated voluntary target
of the Davies Review for female board
representation well ahead of the review's
2020 timetable.

Reflecting its commitment to gender
diversity, during the year the Board became
amember of and is proud to support ‘The
30% Club’, the global organisation that
collaborates with businesses, governments
and other campaigns to improve gender
diversity and accelerate the pace of change
from schoolroom to boardroom. The
current target of The 30% Club, following
an extension of scope, is now a minimum of
30% wamen on FTSE 350 boards by 2020,
which stood at 24.8% in January 2018

At Wilkam Hill we pursue diversity, including
gdender diversity, throughout the business
and will continue to fallow a policy of
appointing talented people at every level

to deliver outstanding performance. The
Board does not believe that setting a

quota is the most appropriate methad for
achieving a balanced Board aor for any other
positions in the Company and the primary
criteria for all of our appointments is that
they are made on merit. However, the
Board is also supportive of the objectives of
the reviews by Lord Davies and by Sir John
Parker’s on diversity and the benefits that
broader diversity brings to any business.

In future, the Committee will continue to
monitor the longer-term cormposition of the
Board, the levels of senior management
immediately beneath the executive Board
positions, and also how these support the
strategic priorities and leadership needs of
the business.

2017 calendar of Nomination
Committee activity

February
- CEO and CFQ searches

— Group Executive compaesition
- Recommendation that all eligible
directors be re-elected at the 2017

AGM, and extension of the term of
appointment of David Lowden

March
- CEQ and CFQ search
and appointments

May
— Initial discussion on the process for
succession of Chairman

July

- Discussion regarding succession
of Ashley Highfield as Chair of the
Corporate Responsibility Committee

— Recommendation to extend the term
of appointment of Roy Gardner

— Discussion on the process for
succession of Chairman

- Review and recommendation to
refresh the Committee's terms
of reference

September

— Recommendation for Mark
Brooker to succeed Ashley
Highfield as Chair of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee

~ Chairman succession

October

— Reccmmendation to extend the
terms of appointment of imelda
Walsh and Georgina Harvey

- Chairman succession

November
~ Group Executive composition

~ Chairman succession

— Review of Board
Committee compaosition

December
— Chairman succession
and appointment

The Cornmittee is regularly kept informed
of changes in governance induding the
changes proposed to the UK Corporate
Govarnance Code. The Committee witl
consider further the implications on
diversity cnce a final version of the Code
has been published, expectedin 2018,

Gareth Davis
Chairman, Nomination Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Image removed

Imelda Walsh
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

‘In 2017, the Remuneration
Committee was conscious
of the wider debate around
executive pay and the
impartance of remuneration
aligning with the objectives
of the transformation
programme’

Dear shareholder,

| am pleased t¢ present the Directors’
Remuneration Report (ORR) for

the financial period which ended on
26 December 201/,

Annual statement

Background and business
context

As the Chairman said in his statement,
william Hill delivered a strong performance
in 2017 with the Group having regained
strength, focus and purpose. This positive
perfermance was centred on rejuvenating
Cnling, building an attractive cmni-channel
proposition and growing the US. Adjusted
operating profit of £291.3m was 11% ahead
of 2016 and ahead of the target set at the
beginning of the year (£281.0m). Group net
revenue grew 7% to £1.7on.

Looking at the individual business areas:

— Online built further positive momentum
aided by early benefits from the
transformation programme,

~ Retail delivered a resilient performance
in a year without a major international
football tournament;

— in the US, double-digit growth was driven
by mobile betting; and

— Austraiia grew net revenue and profits
but performance is being impacted
by regulatory and fiscal headwinds,
therefore we are undertaking a strategic
review of the business.

A key focus in 2017 was delivering the
transformation programme. Good
progress is already evident and over the
long term this will support improved
revenues, greater cost efficiency and better
organisational effectiveness.

As described by both Gareth and Philip,
there were a number of exceptional costs
in 2017, principally relating to Australia,

a £238.3m impairment to the value of the
business and £61.7m relating 1o the costs
of of the transfermation programme.

The Committee considered carefully

the impact of the transformation

and restructuring costs in making its
remuneration decisions and believes that
these were critical investments which will
create long-term value.

This will be my last report as Chair as

| will be stepping down from the Board

at the AGM on 8 May 2018. My colleague,
Georgina Harvey, who has been a member
of the Committee since December 201,
will replace me.

2077 remuneration

Towards the end of 2016 we announced
a number of appointments to the Board
for 2017 (John O'Reilly, Robin Terrell,
Mark Brooker) and in 2017 a further
three appointments were made after
an extensive and thorough review of
internal and external candidates. The
Committee foltowed good practice in
respect of the remuneration agreed which
was also disclosed at the time of their
respective annguncements.

Firstly, Philip Bowcock was appointed as
permanent CEQ in March. The Committes
raviewed the salary, noting the CEQ salary
level had been unchanged since 2014 and
also salaries in comparable organisations
and concluded that Philip should receive

a base salary of £600,000 per annuim with
effect from 10 March 2017,

Ruth Prior joined as CFQO from Worldpay

in October and her remuneration package
was set to be breadly in line with that of
her predecessor, with a salary of £425,000.
Remaining terms are as set out inour
remuneration policy.

I addition, as a condition of her
appointment, the Committee agreed to
make an award in replacement for that
forfeited under the Worldpay Transitiona!
Award Plan. This award does not have

any associated performance conditions

or post-vesting holding requirements,
mirroring the Worldpay award it replaced,
and will be released on the onginal

vesting date of 16 October 2018. The
Committee determined, at the time of
Ruth's appointment, that the Worldpay
share price used in catculating the value of
the award should be the 30-day average
immediately prior to the announcement of
Ruth’s appointrent or the 30-day average
immediately prior to joining William Hill,
whichever was the lower. Accordingly, an
award over 348,345 restricted shares was
granted to Ruth on 2 October 2017,

Ruth will also receive a pro-rated bonus

in recognition of the estimated value of the
Worldpay 2017 annual bonus forfeited on
resignation and covering the relevant period
of the financial year prior to her date of
appointment at Williarn Hill.

Given how recently Philip and Ruth were
appointed to their roles, the Committee
agreed that their salaries would not be
reviewed in 2018.

Finaily, in December we announced that
Roger Devlin weuld join the Board as
Chairman Designate on 1 February 2018,
before beingd appointed Chairman cn

2 April 2018 when Gareth Davis will stand
down. Roger will receive a fee of £295,000
per annum.

ypodas ygaens
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Performance Share Plan (PSP} Award 2017
Inlast year's report we confirmed that

the 2017 PSP award would be made

after the Campany's interim results in
August. This delay was for two reasons.
the appointment of the permanent CEQ
(Philip Bowcock at the time of pubilication
was still the Interim CEQ) and to ensure
that the PSP award measures reflected
key strategic priorities and in particular, the
goals of the transformaticn programme
then under development.

The structure of the PSP award was in

the form of nil-cost options and three,
equally weighted, performance conditicns
— Relative Total Shareholder Return {TSR),
EPS growth and Business Performance
Measures (BPMs), which covered cost
reduction and revenue generation targets
included in the transformaticn programme.

We commenced consultation in May 2017
on the proposed design and received a
good level of engagement, In some cases
there were differing views, for example

on the use and weighting of TSR. However,
we were pleased that a majerity of major
shareholders, who responded to the
consultation, were supportive of the
proposed approach and the degree of
alignment with our strategic pricrities,
particularly the focus on the goals of the
transformation programme which made
up the BPMs. Thisinduded circa 250

cost and revenue initiatives, which were
commercially sensitive and therefore the
target range could not be disclosed for this
portion of the PSP award. However, we
did commit to providing a comprehensive
annual update cn progress and this can

be found on pages 91tc 92

Further details of the award can be found
ch pages 88to 89.

Pay and performance outcomes

The Committee determines executive
directors’ rermuneration against the
strategic objectives and priorities of
the Company. Executive performance
is therefore closely aligned to business
performance with a high preportion of
total remuneration delivered through
variable pay.

The 2017 annual bonus plan had three
elements: adjusted operating profit, net
revenue and personal performance

In setting the financiai targets, the
Committee took into account the Company's
annual plan and the risks and cpportunities
around its delivery; it also looked at external
analyst expectations of perfaormance

The 2017 adjusted operating profit target
was set at £2810m reffecting the planned
investrent during the year, a tougher
regulatory environment and that this

was a year without a major international
football tournament.

Adjusted operating profit of £291.3m, was
above the threshold level of £252.9m for
bonus to begin to accrue under this element
and, as a resuit, 35.2% of bonus potential
(out of 2 maximum of 60%!} was earned.

Net revenue of £1,711.1m was above the
threshaold level of £1,658 5m and 6.6% of
bonus potential {out of a maximum of 20%)
under this element was earned.

Individual objectives made up the
remaining 20% of bonus potential. The
Committee considered that Philip had
performed strongly against the majority
of his objectives but determined that this
element should be imited to 13% out of

a possitle 20% in light of the severity of the
regulatory fine received by the Company.
The Committee noted that Philip was not
employed for the maority of the period
to which the fine relates and has made
progress in rectifying the identified issues,
but nonetheless considered that it would
ve inappropriate for this event not 1o be
reflected in the CEQ's pay cutcome.

Qver the past two years a number of senior
management changes have been made,
which have included individuals employed
in key roles over the period to which the
finerelates.

Ruth has made an encouraging start since
joining and performed well against her

objectives and as a resuft earned 10% (out
of a maximum of 20%) under this element.

Having considered each element of the
bonus plan separately, the Committee also
looked at the overail performance delivered
during 2017 to forrm a rounded assessment
of the achievemenits of the executive
directors. The Committee considered the
performance of each business area as

well as the Group and how the Company
performed in relation to its responsibilities
towards customers, colleagues and
regulators. The Committee concluded that
significant progress had been achieved
during 2017 and that the awards under the
bonus plan reflected the achievements
delivered. Therefore Philip will receive a
bonus of 54.8% of maximum, which based
an his bonus opportunity of 175% of salary
equates to £575,400, and Ruth will receive
a bonus of 50.6% of maximum which
based on her bonus opportunity of 150%
of salary equates to £80,644 (based on her
pro-rated salary from the date she joined
the Board).

No Performance Share Flan (PSP} awards
for current executive directors were due

to vestin 2017 Grants under the PSP, made
to other members of senior management in
2014 were eligible to vest at the end of 2017,
Although part of the Business Performance
Measures (BPM) portion met the targets
set, the Committee judged that overall
performance during the period, including
the factors leading to the regulatory fine,
did not meet expectations and therefore
exercised its discretion to lapse the award
in full,

Application of policy for 2018

We will not be seeking approval for any
changes to the policy this year and are not
required to submit a new policy until the
2020 AGM. We will therefore operate in
accordance with our existing remuneration
policy in 2018. A copy of our current
remuneration policy can be found on page
72 of our 2016 Annual Report. We highlight
below some minor remuneration changes
we are making in 2018.
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Each year the Committee reviews bonus
plan and PSP metrics used to ensure

the measures and performance targets
remain aligned with the Company’s current
business strategy. The Committee believes
that the performance metrics used for the
2017 bonus plan continue to be appropriate
SO the overall structure will remain the
same, with operating profit at 60%, net
revenue at 20% and individual objectives
at 20%.

As in 2017, the individual objectives element
will continue to have a portion linked to

the delivery of the ongoing transformation
programme, which will represent up to 5%
of the award (2017 10%;}. A new element,
of up to 5%, will be linked to colleague
advocacy measured by our Employee Net
Promoter Score (eNPS). The rernaining 10%
will be based on personal objectives, which
are set by the Chairman and agreed by

the Committee.

The grant of awards under the PSP will
be deferred untif after the AGM in May.
Given the appointment of the Chairman,
the Committee wanted to ensure that
Roger has an opportunity to complete
his initial induction and participate in the
final recommendation on targets. The
Committee Chair will consutt with eading
shareholders prior to making the award

The Committee has agreed the size of

the awards, which will remain unchanged
at 200% for CEQ and 175% for CFO. 80%
of the award will be based on financial
measures with TSR and EPS both
remaining. The use of revenue, included in
previous PSP awards via specific business
performance measures with retrospective
target disclosure, will be measured by
reference to William Hilt Online net revenue
growth but with full prospective disclosure
of the target range.

Given the current public debate on
gambling, we recognise that financial
delivery tells only part of the story.

Having listened to both our regulators

and customers, it is vital we further embed
a culture that creates the right legacy

and recagnises our responsibilities to
stakeholders in a wider sense. As a result
we are proposing to introduce a new
sustainability metric with measurement
based on progress aganst robust and
measurable objectives that have been
agreed by the Corporate Responsibility
Committee (CRC), under Mark Brooker's
chairmanship. For this coming year,
objectives will have a regulatory focus with
an expectation that in future years these
will evolve to reflect objectives around
colleague and customer advocacy too.

The Committee will take into account

the averall regulatory performance of

the business when determining vesting
outcomes and, in doing so, may withhold or
reduce part of the award if the Committee
feels such actions are justified.

Details of these awards will be made
at the time of grant and in next year’s
Annual Repcrt cn Remuneration.

Listening to feedback and
wider colleague pay

The Committee and | remain conscicus of
the onggoing and vocal debate on executive
pay and particularty the Government's
intention to introduce mandatory pay

ratio reporting. Aithough this is likely to

take effect from the 2079 financial year,
William Hill is committed to reporting earlier
in next year's Report once the specific
methodology and disclosure requirements
have been finalised.

In the application of rermuneration policy

at William Hill, there has been a track record
of the Committee taking into account

the overall performance of the business
along with the wider colleague context
when making remuneration decisions for
executives. Examples of recent decisions
the Committee has taken include no
incentive payouts in 2015 and 2016 due to
performance threshoids not being achieved
and the decision to lapse the 2014 PSP,

as described above.

To ensure we understand colleague
concerns, in December 2017 the Committee
had a detailed session on the outcome of
the recent YourSay colieague engagement
survey and, during 218, the Committee
Chair will meet with the Nationai

Colleague Farum.

We have also reported on William Hill's
gender pay gap statistics. Whilst we
recognise that, on balance, cur reported
statistics are broadly in line with national
and industry averages and the data
around bonus receivers is positive, more
waork is required to ensure there are
sufficient opportunities for females (both
externally and internally) at senicr levels
of the organisaticn. This will be a focus for
management and the Board during 2018.

William Hill is committed to offering an
attractive reward package for colleagues at
all levels and in addition to competitive base
salaries, we offer a wide range of benefits.
Further information is included in this
report on page 96.

The Committee welcomes input on our
remuneration policies and if you have
any comments or questions on any
element of the report, please email us
care of Ed Airey, Group Reward Director,
at eairey@williamhifl co.uk.

Finally, | would fike to thank our
sharehoiders and | hope we can continue to
rety on their support at our AGM on 8 May
2018. | wouid also like to express my thanks
to my colleagues on the Committee and
the William Hill managerment team for their
suppert and work during 2017 but also over
the past five years since | took over as Chair.

Imeida Walsh
Chair, Rermuneration Committee

UELRADD ‘ wuodar xEmens
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

At a glance

In this section we summarise the key principles that underpin our remuneration policy, the remuneration outcemes for the year ending
26 December 2017, and how we will apply cur policy in 2018.

Remuneration principles
Competitive — be able to attract and retain senior leaders of a high calibre

Alignment — align the interests of executive directors and senior management with our shareholders
Performence link — variable remuneration should be linked to the delivery of the Group's strategic objectives

Flexible — sufficiently flexible to take account of changes in the Group's business environment and in remuneratian practice

Ruth Prior
(Since 2
Strategic priority Performance measure Waighting  Actual performance Philip Bowecock Cctober 2017}
Adjusted
Profitabie Growth operating profit 60% Perfor manale 352% 342%
Growing Market Share  Net revenue 20% targets, resy ts 6.6% 6.4%
and narrative on

Transforming the pages 85t0 87
business Perscnal ojectives 20% 130% 100%
Total (% of max) 100% 54.8% 50.6%

PSP awards vesting

No awards granted to current executive directors were eligible to vestin 2017 Grants under the PSP, made to other members of senior
management in 2014 were efigible to vest at the end of 2017

Measyre Performance Range Qutcome (% of max)

Relative Total Shareholder Return (50%;) Threshold vesting (25% of maximum) at median ranking, with maximum 0%
vesting at upper quartile ranking from a peer group of 16 companies

Earnings Per Share (25%) Threshold vesting (25% of maximum) at 4% CAGR, with maximum 0%
vesting at 8%

Business Performance Measures (25%) Three equally-weighted net revenue growth measures with threshold 16.7%
vesting (25% of maximum) and maximum vesting at the following of salary
performance ranges:

— Moabile Sportsbook (15% 10 25% CAGR}
- Mobile gaming (30% to 50% CAGR)
- Australia digital (10% to 20% CAGR)

Total 16.7%
Vested amount 0%

In ¢onsidering whether the averall vesting outrome is consistent with the Group’s performance over the 4 year period, the Committes
considered it appropriate to exercise its discretion to lapse the award in full, despite part of the BPM portion being eligible to vest. In
particular, the Committee noted that two measures, covering 75% of the award, had not achieved threshold vesting, by some margin.
In taking this decision, it aiso took into account that the regulatory fine recently incurred resulted from actions during the performance
petiod, which reinforced the Committee’s view that performance, overall, was insufficient to allow vesting of any part of the award.

2017 single figure remuneration for current Executive Directors

BIK arising
Benefits from 2017
nkind perforrmance Annual total 2016
Basic salary {BIK) of duties bonus Pension PSP (pre buynuts) QOther 2017 total total
Narne of director £ f £ £ £ £ f E 3
Philip Bowcock! 591,667 347 3,268 575400 Ng 333 0 133379 — 1323379 606,323
Ruth Prior
(since 2 October
20171 106,250 1,860 - 80,644 21,250 Q 210,004 1231353 1,441,357 -

1 Includes Philip remuneration as Interim CEQ and CEO — see footnote 3 to the single figure table on page B4 for further detail

2 Includes the estimated value of Ruth Prior's 2017 annual Worldpay bonus forfeited on resignation, pius share award to replace forfeited shares. See footnote 510 the
single figure table on page 84 for further detail.
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Approach for 2018

Salary

The CEQ's salary was set at £600,000 on his appaintment to the role on a permanent basis in March 2017 The CFQ's
salary was set at £425,000 ¢n her appointment in October 2077
Given their recent appointmerits, neither executive director will receive a base salary increase for 2078.

Benefits and pensicn

No change proposed. Both executive directors receive an allowance of 20% of salary.

Annual bonus

No change proposed to potential guantum.

Adjusted operating profit and net revenue will remain 60% and 20% respectively, along with individual cbjectives

at 20%. Of this, 5% will continue to be linked to the transformation programme and a further 5% will be linked to
colleague advocacy, recognising the importance of our colleagues tc creating a sustainable business. The remmainder will
be focused on persanal objectives

Further details can be found on page 82 The choice of short- term metrics is designed to support the delivery of cur
key strategic priorities in 2017 and are aligned with our stated KPls —see page 17

The level of payout for threshold performance will remain at 10% of the maximum.

Half of any bonus will be deferred into shares for two years.

Long-term incentives

Consultation with major shareholders on the design of the 2018 PSP award is intended to commence in March, with the
intention of granting following the AGM in May. The PSP will be made within the parameters of our existing policy with
award levels unchanged from previous years (CEQ: 200%, CFG:175%).

Although the final structure may change based on the feedback received, the proposed design is an evalution from

tha 2017 PSP with the following key features. Financial measures {with full prospective disclosure} will make up 80%

of the award.

1. EPS and TSR will remain.

2. Grawing market share is a key pricrity, particularly in William Hill Online, so Onfine net revenue will be included as
a third financial measure.

3. Ensuring actions are being taken that reflect responsibilities to aur stakeholders (such as our regulators, colleagues
and customers) is also a priority. It is proposed to include a new sustainability measure with a weighting of 20%, with
objectives set and measurement assessed by the Corporate Responsibility Committee (CRC). For 2018, objectives will
have a regutatory focus but in future years objectives will evolve to reflect colleague advocacy and the needs of our
customers.

vodas3iBajens,

AUCLLIIADN)

SJUALBIELS RIUBULY

Share Ownership

Executive directors are required to build up a sharehclding in the Company within five years of their appointment,
equivalent to the following value:

— CEQ: 200% of salary

— CF0:150% of salary

Remuneration scenarios for executive directors

The Company's remuneration policy resul{s in a significant proportion of the remuneration received by executive directars being
dependent an Company performance. The chart below shows how total pay for the executive directors varies under three different
performance scenarios: Minimum, Target and Maximum.

Minimum

Remuneration

Comprised of the fixed elements of pay being base salary, benefits (E'000s)

and pension. Base salary and pension is effective as at 1 January
2078 and the benefits value is the PTID values for 2017 {pro-rated

for a full year).

Target

Comprised ot fixed pay and the target value of bonus (CEO 85%
of salary; CFO 70% of salary) and normai policy PSP awards at
threshold vesting (25% of the maximum award).

Maximum

Comprised of fixed pay and the maximum value of bonus (CEO
175% of salary; CFO 150% of salary) and normal policy PSP awards
(CEQ 200% of salary; CFO 175% of salary).

Graph removed

Fixed Pay Annual Bonus Long-term incentives
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

NO account has been taken of share price growth, or of dividend shares awarded in respect of the deferred element of bonus and PSP

awards over the deferral/performance periods.

A breakdown of the elements included in the remuneration scenario charts is shown in the table below.

Fixed Annuai Borws PSP
Base Salary Beriefits' Pensian Total Fixed Target Maximum Target Maximum
CEO 500000 347 120000 752,000 510,000 1050000 300000 1,200,000
CFG 425000 22,324 85,000 510000 318,750 637500 185538 743750

1 These are the value of henefits for 2017 which exclude nan-recurring iters such as relocation expenses and expenses for attendance at certain sporting events.

Remuneration Policy Report

We are not seeking to make any
amendments ta our Remuneration
Policy Report {Policy Report), which was
approved by sharehglders at the Annual
General Meeting on 9 May 2017. Details
can be found inon page 72 of the 2016
Annual Repart.

Annual Report on
Remuneration

This section details the remuneration of
the executive and non-executive directors
(including the Chairman) for the financial
year ended 26 December 2017, This report
and the Chair's annual statement will be
subject to a single agvisary vote at the AGM
on 8th May 2018.

implementation of
Remuneration Policy in 2018

Base salaries

Base salaries for executive directors

are nermally reviewed annually by the
Committee. The Committee takes nto
account a number of facters including

the increase across the workforce, the
market value of the role and the individual's
experience, competency and performance.

Philip Bowcock's salary was set at his
appointment as permanent CEQ in March
2017 (see page 93), while Ruth Prior's was
set at her appointment in October 2017 and

announced in March 2017 (see pages 93-94).

The Committes determined that salaries
wauid not be increased in 2018,

Current base salaries for the executive
directors as at 1 January 2018 are;

2017 206 Increase
Philip
Bowcock £600,000 f£550000" 9%
Ruth
Prior £425,000 - -

i 2017 salary of £550,000 represents the salary paid
to Philip as Interimn CEQ

During 2017, the Interim CFOQ (who was
provided on secondment} was not a
member of the Board and therefore his
remuneration is not included in this section
nar in the table of payments received

in 2017,

Chairman and Non-executive

directors’ fees

Gareth Davis's fee will remain unchanged

at £300,000, until he steps down on 2 April
2018. Roger Devlin, who joined the Board as
Chairman Designate on 1 February 2018 and
will take aver as Chairman on 2 April 2018,
will receive a fee of £295,000.

Non-executive directors’ fees, which were
last increased an 1 October 2014, were
reviewed in 2017 and will rernain unchanged
in 2018. The base fee is £55,000, with
additional fees payable for those directors
undertaking additional responsibilities:

— Senior Independent Director — £15,000
— Audit Committee Chair - £18,000

— Remuneration Committee Charr -
£18,000

~ Corporate Responsitulity Committee
Chair — £18,000

— Transformation Oversight Committee
Chair — £18,00C

Benefits and pension

Benefits and pension will be provided in
line with the information in the Pglicy Table.
Both executive directors currently receive a
pension allowance of 20% of salary.

Any expenses relating to the performance
of adirector's duties in carrying out
business-related activities such as travel
to and from company meetings, related
accommaodation, attendance at comgpany
award ceremonies and attendance at
sporting events will be settled by the
Company. In cases where such expenses
have been classified as taxable benefits
by HMRC, any related personal tax due wili
aksc be settled by the Company to ensure
that the director is not out of pocket.

Annual bonus

The annual bonus threshold, target and
maximum for 2018, as a percentage of base
salary, are unchanged from 2017:

Executive

director Threshald Target  Maximum
Philip

Bowcock 175% 85% 175%
Ruth Prior 15% 70% 150%

In selecting the bonus measures, the
Committee locked at the Company's
strategic and financial priorities and
concluded that the performance metrics
and weightings used for the 2017 bonus
plan rermain appropriate:

— Adjusted operating profit remains the
largest measure with a weighting of 60%
However, the target range has been
changed, with threshold vesting made
more demanding at 92.5% (previously
90%) and maximum amended tc 107 5%
{previously 110%; in recognition of the
challenging nature of the target.

— Group net revenue also remains
unchanged at 20% as does the range at
95% to 105% of target.

- The individual objectives element (s also
unchanged at 20%.

As in 20717 the individual cbjectives element
will continue to have a portion linked to

the delivery of the ongoing transformation
programme, albeit reduced from 10% in
2017, to 5% of the award.

A new element, of up to a further 5%, will be
linked to colleague advocacy as measured
by our employee net promoter scare
(eNPS). Celleagues play a vital role in aur
success andg therefore how they feel about
working at William Hill and how this drives
their day-to-day actions and behaviours
wrth customers is very important for the
future sustainability of our Retail and
Online businesses.

The final 10% of the award wili be based
on personal ohjectives forthe CEQ, as
set by the Chairrnan and agreed by

the Committee.
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The adjusted operating profit’, net revenue?
targets, eNPS target*and individual
objectives* are commmercially sensitive and
will be disclosed in next year's repart.

In setting the performance range for the
financial measures, the Committee took
into account a number of data paints.

This included the plan for 2078, market
expectations and known regulatory
changes {this is particularly the case for our
business in Australia and also excludes any
impact from the Triennial Review which is
still unknown at this time) and that 2018

15 a World Cup year. The Committee also
noted the continuing investment reguired
to suppeort transfarmation in technology,
processes and people.

The Committee is satisfied that the
annual bonus plan remains stretching for
management, and supparts our business
priorities and strategic objectives.

Deferral of bonus into shares will apply in
accordance with the palicy

Long-term incentives

The grant of awards under the
Performance Share Plan (PSP) will be
deferred until after the AGM. Given the
appointrment of the new Chairman, Roger
Devlin, the Committee wanted to ensure
that he has an opportunity to complete
his initial induction and participate in the
final recommendaticns on targets. The
Committee Chair will cansult with leading
shareholders prior to making the award.

Award ievels will be unchanged from last
year at 200% for the CEQ and 175% for
the CFO.

We anticipate that 80% of the award

will be based on financial measures with
TSR and EPS both remaining. in setting
earnings targets, the Committee will take
account of the hardening of the regulatory
environment in a number of our markets as
well as the long-term opportunities, which
may arise in the event of the repeal of
betting restrictions in the US.

Growing market share, particularly inour
Online business, remains a key priority.

As such, William Hill Online net revenue
growth will be proposed as a third
financial measure with full prospective
disclosure, reflecting an amended
approach from previous years where
revenue has been included within our
business performance measures and only
disclosed retrospectively.

The remaining 20% of the award is likely

to be based on a new sustainability
measure, which reflects the importance of
taking actions that demonstrate that we
recognise our role with stakeholders in a
wider sense and that responsible gambling
and harm minimisation are objectives

we share. We want responsible decision-
making to be fully embedded in our culture.
For this coming year, objectives will bave

a regulatory focus with an expectation
that in future years these wilt evolve to
reflect the needs of other stakeholder
groups including colieague and customer
advocacy. Measurement will be based on
progress against robust and measurable
objectives which are set and whose
assessment is overseen by the Corporate
Responsibility Committee (CRC) under Mark
Brooker's chairmanship.

The Remuneration Cemmittee will take into
account the overall regulatory performance
of the business when determining vesting
outcomes and in doing 5c, may withhold or
reduce part of the award if the Committee
feels that such an action is justified.

1 Adjusted operating profit is defined as adjusted profit before interest and tax Further detail on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the finandial statements.
2 Netrevenue is the revenue retained from the amounts staked, after paying out customer wmnings and deducting free bets.

3 Employee net pramoter scoreis calculated by asking all colleagues 'On a scale of zero to ten, how likely is it that you would recommend William Hill as a place to work?
Promoters (those who answered 9-10) are the mast loyal segment wha will enthusiastically recommend us, passives (those who answered 7-8) are neutral and
detractors (those who answered 0-8) are those that are not likely to recormmend William Hill as a place to work Our eNPS score is calculated by subtracting the number

of detractors from the number of premoters.

4 Individual obpectives wiltinclude employee advocacy goals specific to each executive director, as well as customer, coleague, leadership and complance goals.

Hodas ngnRag
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration in 2017
Audited information

Single total figure of remuneration for each director

BIK arising
from Total
Fees/basic  Benefisin  performance Annoal {exd Other
salary kind (BIK)' of duties? boruses Pension FSP buyouts) payments Total

Name of director Year £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive directors
Philip Bowcock? 2017 591,667 347F 3,268 575400 18,333 0 1323379 - 132337

2016 477655 28,242 3487 0 96,840 0 606323 - 806323
Ruth Prior (since 2017 106,250 1,860 ~ B0,644 21,250 0 210004 123,353 1441357
2 October 2077) 2016 - - - - - - - - -
Non-executive Directors
Gareth Davis 2007 300,000 - - - - - 300,000

2016 300000 - 1743 - - - - 30743
Mark Brooker 2017 43,883 - - - - - - 43,883
(since 3 April 2017) 2006 _ — — _ _ - _ _
Roy Gardner 2017 70,000 - 2996 - — - - 7299

2016 70000 - 3196 - - — - 73196
Georgina Harvey 2017 55,000 - - - - - - 55,000

2016 55,000 - 3196 - - - - 58196
Ashley Highfield 2017 64,191 - - - - - - 641N
(uptc 16
November 2017} 2016 73000 - 3196 - — - - 76]96
David Lowden 2017 73,000 - - - - - - 73,000

2016 73000 - 3420 - - - - 76420
John O'Reilly 2017 70,000 - 2,247 - - - - 72247
(since 2 January
20178 2016 — - - - - - - -
Rohin Terrell {since 2017 55,000 - 2,247 - - - - 57,247
2January 2017) 2016 _ - - - - - - -
Imelda Walsh 2017 73,000 - 2,996 - - - - 75996

2016 73000 - 2793 - - - - 75793
Former directors
James Henderson 2017 - - - - - - - -
(to 21 July 2016 2016 307638 19109 7636 0 61548 0 — 395831

1 Contractual benefits for Philip Bowcock, Ruth Prior, and prior to his departure from the Company, James Henderson, include private healthcare, life assurance, income
protection and a Company car allowance,

2 Following a review by HMRC in 2014, certain expenses relating to the performance of a director's duties (net included in the Benefits in Kind column above) in carrying
out activities such as travel to and from Company meetings, related accommodation, attendance at Company award ceremonies and attendance at sporting events
have now been ctassified as taxable benefits, In such cases, the Company will ensure that the director is not out of packet by settling the related tax via a PAYE
Settlernent Agreement (PSA) with HMRC. In line with current regulations, these taxable benefits have been disclosed and are shown in the benefits arising from
performance of duties colurmn, The figures shown include the cost of the taxable benefit plus the related tax and National Insurance charge.

3 Philip's 2017 remuneration reflects his salary of ES50,000 in his role as Interirm CEQ until 10 March 2017, and a salary of £600,000 in his role of permanent CEQ thereafter.
Remuneration in 2016 reflects his salary of £420,000 in his role as CFQ up to and including 20 July 2016, and his salary of £550,000 as Interim CEQ thereafter.

4 Contractual benefits for Philp Bowcock induded private healthcare, life assurance, ncome protection and cornpany car allowance

S Representing:

a. aWorldpay bonus forfeited on cessation of the (F('s previous employment, with an estimated value of £356,544. It remains an estimate untilits finally confirmed
in March 2018 and a final figure will be stated in next year's DRR,

b. ashare award of 348,345 shares granted on 2 October 2017 and made in replacement of that forfeited under the Worldpay Transitional Award Pian, and based on
a 30 day average share price of £2 51 on the day of grant This award of does not have any associated performance conditions or past-vesting holding requirernents,
mirroring the Worldpay award it replaced, and will be released on the ariginal vesting date of 16 Octaber 2018

See page 93 for further detail,
6 John's appointrment as Chair of the Transfarmation Oversight Committee, and the fee he receives for doing s, tock effect from 1March 2017,

7 James's remuneration in 2016 reflects the period until 21 July 2016, the date he stepped down from the board with immediate effect. Contractual benefits for James
included private healthcare, life assurance, income pratection and company car.
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2017 Annual Bonus
Threshoid Target Maximurm
Executive director
Philip Bowcock 175% 85% 175%
Ruth Prior 15% 70% 150%
[
Stretching, relevant and measurable financial and non-financial annual bonus targets were set at the start of the performance period by §
the Committee. 2
Threshold performance was set at a level requiring a substantial year-on-year performance improvement, after taking account of the
known regulatory changes and in excess of consensus at the time the performance range was set. Threshoid vesting in 2017 uniocked 10%
of maximum, with target c. 50% of maxirmum. The table above shows the percentages payabie.
in setting targets, the Committee took into consideration a number of factors, including:
- the Board-approved business plan, in what was a year of transformation where a significant investment in IT, pecple, processes, location
and change management, was required; 5
- that 2017 was a year in which there was no major international foctball tournament; 2
— consensus view amongst investment analysts; and é
— known regulatory changes including, in Onlfing, the application of the Horserace levy and Paint of Consumption Tax on gaming free bets. §

Threshold performance was set at a level requiring a substantial year-on-year performance innprovement and in excess of consensus at
the time the performance range was set Threshold vesting in 2017 uniocked 10% of maximum, with target . 50% of maximum. The table
below shows the percentages payable.

Each of the elements of performance was assessed against the targets set. In addition, the Committee formed a rounded assessment of
performance of each executive director including responsibiiities to our regulators, customers and colleagues.

The Committee noted the encouraging financial performance This included growth in adjusted operating profit of 11%, with year-on-year
profitability growth in evidence across all divisions except for Retail, which was still stightly ahead of plan and achieved year-on-year net
ravenue growth of 2%. This performance was achieved in a year where there was significant investrnent in colleagues, technology and
marketing, which will continue into 2018, uplifts in our NPS scores {see page 17) and encouraging progress against the transformation goals,
which has, as an example, directly supported the increased revenue growth in Online and significant cost efficiencies across the Group.

As aresult, the Committee determined that overali performance justified the following bonus ocutcomes for the financiat elements of the
2077 bonus plan.

2077 adjusted cperating profit targets
=a Group KPY, which measures success
in defivering top-line growth while 2017 actual adjusted Percentage of element
Performance controlling costs operating Profit payable (of 100%)
Threshold £252.9m
CEO: 35.2%
Target £281.0m £291.3m CFO: 34.2%
Maximum £309Im

Since 2016, the payment curve for adjusted operating profit has
been made flatter arcund target {as shown in the graph) so that
relatvely small positive or negative movements from target
result in relativety small adjustments to payout. in 2017 this

had the effect of reducing payout for adjusted operating profit
performance by . 5% versus what would have been paid using Graph removed
the previous straight-line method.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Net revenue performance was measured on a straight-line basis.

2077 Net Revenue Targets —
a Group KP{ 10 assess Percentage of element
Performance top-ine growth 2017 Actual Net Revenue payable (of 1003}
Threshold £1,658.5m
CEQ: 6.6%
Target £1,745.8m £1,71NIm CFO: 6.4%
Maximum £1,8331Im
The remaining 20% weighting was based on individual objectives. For Philip these were as follows:
Performance
T Percentage of
; maximum bornus
Objective Commentary Threshold i Maparnum payable (of 20%)
Delivering the 2078 plan, Adjusted operating profit ahead }
including achieving market of plan, and positive growthin !
levels of growth in UK Online Online ahead of the market plus |
and growing market share net revenue growth in Retail E
in Retail, and delivery of the Sportsbook. :
transformation programme Significant progress on '
transformation — see page 91. 1
Impraving custormer experience  Significant progress macde with
through launch of omni-channel, sign-ups and active customers
greater personalisation of tc Plus, plus launch of Omini-
product and improved Net wallet on 30 November. Retall
Promater Scores and Online NPS both improved
from 2016.
Supporting the Board in Progress made but adjusted to
pramoting a responsible zero [see below). 13%,

gambling culture, ensuring
William Hill develops and
grows in a sustainable fashicn,
and improving relationships
with our external stakeholders

Improving leadership

bench strength and creating
a mativated and engaged
workforce who believe in the
direction of William Hill

Significant changes to Group
Executive structure and senior
leadership team tocimprove
bench-strength.

Improved engagement with
89% of colleagues participating
in YourSay survey which showed
understanding of strategy as ane
of the areas with most pasitive
improvement.

Current indicative outcome

The Committee considered that Philip had performed well against his objectives but determined that the personal element of his bonus
should be limited to 13% out of a pessible 20% in light of the severity of the regulatory fine received by the Campany. The Committee
noted that Philip was not employed for the majority of the period to which the fine related and has made progress in rectifying the
identified issues, but nonetheless considered that it would be inappropriate for this event not to be reflected in the CEQ's pay cutcome




William Hil

I PLC

Annual Report and Accounts 2017

87

Despite limited time in her role since joining on 2 October 2017, Ruth has made an encouraging start against her objectives, which were
focused on:

Performance
H Percentage of
' maximurm Donus
Objective Comrnentary Threshold ] Maximum payable (of 20%)
Finalising the 2018 business plan  Complete |
Taking a fead and supporting Ongoing !
on key strategic priorities !
Preparation of the 2017 financial  Complete :
year accounts 1
Reviewing the finance team Ongoing : 10%
structure and improving the !
strength of the function !
Maintaining an effective risk Ongoing '
culture and control environment !
with a high level of regulatory !
compliance h

Current indicative outcome
Fherefore the final bonuses payable are:
— Philip will receive a bonus of 54.8% of maximum, which based on his bonus opportunity of up to 175% of salary equates to
£575,400; and

— Ruth will receive a bonus of 50.6% of maximum which based on her bonus opportunity of 150% of salary equates to £80,644
{based on her pro-rated salary from the date she joined the Board).

Ruth will also receive a payment in respect of her bonus forfeited at the point of her resignation from Worldpay. This likely payment

was fully disclosed at the time of Ruth Prior's appointment and based on information provided by Weorldpay, Ruth is entitled to a bonus

payment for the period to 31 August 2017 of £356,544. This is based on Worldpay's assessment against three performance measures:

underlying EBITDA, cash and perscnal performance.

In line with the Company's approved remuneration policy, 50% of all bonus payments will be deferred inta shares for two years.

Long-term incentives vesting in relation to performance ending in 2077

No awards granted to executive directors were gligible to vest in 2017, Grants under the PSP, rnade to other members of senior
management in 2014 when a four-year performance period was introduced, were eligible to vast at the end of 2017

podaidiaens
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Measure Threshold vesting Maximum vesting Qutcome Vesting (% of max}
Refative TSR (50%) Median TSR of peer group”  Upper quartile TSR of -18.3% 0%
314% peer group: 821%
(25% of maximum)} (100% of maximum)
EPS Growth (25%) 2013 4% EPS CAGR 8% EPS CAGR 372% 0%
Base: 28.8p (25% of maximum} (100% of maximum)
Business Performance Measures (25%) 167%
Mobile Sportsbook 2013 15% net revenue CAGR 25% net revenue CAGR 313% 83%
Base: £959m
Mobile gaming 2013 Base:  30% net revenue CAGR 50% net revenue CAGR 524% 83%
£400m
Australia digital 2013 Base:  10% net revenue CAGR 20% net revenue CAGR 06% 0%
$156Im
Potential Total 16.7%

1 888, Betfar, Betsson, Bwin, Enterprise Inns, Greene King, JO Wetherspoon, Ladbrokes, Lottomattica, Marston's, Mitchells & Butlers, OPAP, Paddy Power, Playtech, Rank,

The Restaurant Group and Unibet
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Remuneration Committee Review of Vesting

In assessing EPS performance over the period and in line with our approved remuneraticn policy, the Cormmittee took into account the
impact of industry specific taxes and new ragulations. The regulatory impacts over the pericd included the increase in Machine Games
Duty from 20% 1o 25%, which was implemented from April 2015, the application of Paint of Consumption Tax to Online on gaming free
bets in 2017 and also the extension of the horseracing levy ta Online. The impact of these and other smaller changes would have had the
effect of increasing EPS CAGR by just under 2%. However, these adjustments had nc effect on the outcome as EPS growth still did not
achieve the threshold level of performance set.

The Committee is also required under its remuneration pelicy to consider whether the overall vesting outcome is consistent with the
Group's performance over the four-year period. In arriving at its decision, the Committee noted that two measures, covering 75% of the
award, had not achieved threshold vesting, by some margin. The moderate vesting achieved related to mobile Sportsbook and mobile
gaming in Online. The Committes alse considered the regulatory fine recently incurred which resulted from actions during the period,
including in Online, and determined that taking all of the above factors into consideration, the performance achieved was insufficient to
allow vesting of any part of the award.

PSP and EBMS awards granted in 2017

Percentage vesting
Basis of award Shares Face value of Maximum for threshold
Scheme granted awarded award' vesting performance Vesting period
Philip Bowcock PSP 2017 200% of 452,096 £1,200000 100% 25% Perfarmance measured
salary over the three financial
Ruth Prior PSP 2017 175% 280,205 £744,000 100% 25% years ending
of salary 31 December 2079. Awards
will vest to participants on
the third anniversary of
grant subject to continued
employment

1 Awards have been valued using the 3 day average share price as at the date of grant far Philip Bowcack, i.e. 7 August 2017

in last year's report we confirmed that the 2017 PSP award would be made after the Cormpany's interim results in August. This delay

was for twa reasons: the appointrment of the permanent CEQ (Philip Bowcock at the time of publication was still the Interim CEQ) and to
ensure that the PSP award measures reflected key strategic priorities and, in particular, tihe goals of the transformation programme then
under development (its achievements over 2017 are described in more detail on pages 91 to 92). We also committed to consult with leading
shareholders before we made the award.

The structure of the PSP award was in the farrm of nil-cost options and three, equally weighted, performance conditions — Relative TSR,
EPS growth and BPMs. We commenced consultation in May 2017 on the proposed design and received a good level of engagement.

In some cases there were differing views, for example cn the use and weighting of TSR, However, we were pleased that a majority of
major shareheclders who responded to the consultation were supportive of the proposed approach and the degree of alignment with our
strategic pricrities.

During these discussions, we acknowledged the impertance of transparency, particularly as the Cormmittee had proposed that one third of
the award should be based on efficiency and revenue improvements, which were directly linked to the transformation programme. These
were commercially sensitive and therefore the specific targets could not be disclosed at the time of the award. The Committee recognised
that shareholders would want annual assurance of progress and also full disclosure of the targets when vesting was determined.

We also emphasised the importance the Committee placed on an averall assessment of performance and not just a ‘formulaic’ review of
each performance condition.
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The specific terms of the PSP award are as follows:

Measure Link to strategy Details of performance condstion

Relative TSR (333%) This supparts our objective The Company’s TSR is measured over the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020
to create superior value for against the returns of a group of 16 trave! and leisure companies’.
shareholders. ifTSRis:

— below median, none of this element will vest;

— at median, 25% vests;

— at upper qguartile or better, 100% vests.

For performance between median and upper quartile, vesting ison a
straight-line basis.

The chosen measurement period reflects Philip Bowcock's appointment as the
permanent CEQ in March 2017 as weil as the announcement that Ruth Prior
would join as CFO, later in 2017 which was alsc announced in March 2017,

Adjusted EPS (333%) A Group KPl-the key indicator  Based on compound annual growth in EPS over the three-year performance
of the Group's growth after pericd commencing on 28 December 2016 to 31 December 2019.
allowing for all costs incfuding  If EPS growth is:

interast and tax. Reflects — Less than 6% p.a., none of this element will vest;

the importance of profitable — 6% p.a., 25% vests;

growth in the Group's long- — 13% p.a. or above, 100% vests.

term strategy. For performance between 6% and 13%, vesting is on a straight-line basis.

The Committee believes that these targets are appropriately challenging in light
of the Group's earnings projections over the three-year pencd: earnings will have
to significantty exceed analyst consensus forecasts for full vesting to occur. This is
based on the information available, including tax and regulation, at the time the

Lodasxfaens
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targets were set.
Business Performance As part of the Company’s Two equally-weighted BPMs:
Measures (33.3%) strategic review, anumberof  Revenue growth
efficiency initiatives have been - Delivery of omni-channel strategy;
identified, which will have a — Above-market revenue growth: and
direct impact on the Group's — Enhancing digital marketing.
profitability. Cost reduction

— Optimising third-party spend;

— Rationalising IT and back-office functions; and

- Driving efficiency through customer-facing functions.

Afinanciai target has been defined for circa 250 individual initiatives, which

make up the broad categories of revenue growth and cost reduction described
above. The threshold level of performance is 80% of the aggregate financial
target for each BPM, for which 25% of the award will vest. Full vesting will occur
for outperformance of the target by 10% None of the award relating to each
measure will vest if performance is below threshold. Awards vest on a straight-line
basis between threshold and maximum.

1 2017 TSR group B88, Betsson, El Group, Greene King, GVC, Internaticnal Game Technology, 10 Wetherspoon, Ladbrokes Coral, Marston's, Mitchells & Butlers, OPAR,
Paddy Power Betfair, Playtech, Rank, The Restaurant Group, Kindred Group.

When determining the vesting cutcome, the Committee wili ensure that it is consistant with the Group’s overall parformance taking
account of any factors it considers relevant, in line with our approved remuneration policy. This will apply particularly in relation to its
assessment of the degree of vasting achieved for the BPM element.

EBMS awaords

in 2016, no bonus was payable as the threshold level of agjusted operating profit target was not met. As a consequence no EBMS awards
were made in 2017,
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Outstanding PSP, EBMS and SAYE share awards
The table below sets out details of the executive directars’ outstanding awards under the PSP, EBMS and SAYE plans:

Number of Number of
shares at shares at Date
27December  Granted during Lapseddunng Exercised during 26 Decermber from which
Name of director Scheme 2016 the period the period the period 2017 exercisable Expiry date
Philip Bowcock PSP 2015 231788 - - - 231788 Nov 2019 Nov 2025
PSP 2018 243701 - - - 243701 May 2020 May 2026
PSP 2017 - 452,096 452,096 Aug 2020 Aug 2027
SAYE 2016 6,818 - - - 6,818 Aug 2019 Feb 2020
Total 482,307 452,096 - - 934,403
Ruth Prior PSP 2017 - 280205 - - 280,205 Aug 2020 Aug 2027
Replacemenit
Award - 348,345 - - 348345 Oct 2018 Oct 20128
Total - 628,550 - - 628,550

Notes:

2015 PSP awards are based half on 3 relative TSR measure; one quarter on compound annual EPS growth as measured on a paint-to-point basis (with a threshold
growth rate of 2% p.a., and maximum vesting occurrnng for growth of 6% p a or better); and the remaining quarter 1s based on BPMs. Performance for all metrics is
measured over four financial years,

2016 PSP awards are based half on a relative TSR measure; one quarter is based on aggregate EPS over the performance period, and the remaining quarter is based
on BPMs, Performance for all metrics is measured over four financial years.

2017 PSP awards are based half on a relative TSR measure; one quarter is based on aggregate EPS over the performance period, and the remaining quarter is based
on BPMs. Performance for all metrics is measured over three financial years.

The Committee has the power, under the approved remuneration policy, to adjust the PSP vesting outcore if it considers that it is inconsistent with the Group's
overall performance (see our Remuneration Policy on page 75 in the 2016 Annual report for more detail).

Update on Business Performance Measures 2015 and 2016 Awards

For the 2015 and 2076 awards, a sliding scale of four-year growth targets was set for the three BPMs {net revenue growth in mobile
Sportsbock, mobile gaming and Australia digital) using the actual resuit for the financial year prior to grant as the base figure (representing
25% of the total award). The following table shows serformance on all three areas since 2014

Mohile Mobile Australia
Net Revenues Sportsbook gaming digital
2014 £1419m £86.8m $1691m
2015 E176.5m £118.0m $1500m
2016 £1902m £1448m 41750m
2017 £252.0m £193.3m $1775m

The graphic below provides an indication of vesting perfarmance {based on performance to 26 December 2017) against the target range.

2015 award (based on three years' performance out of four)

Threshold Target Maxirmum
Mobile Sportsbook i i i
(2014 base year — £141.9m) | | 1
Mobile gaming ! i |
(2014 base year—£86.8m;} ) | )

Australia digita! | i i
(204 base year — $1691m) | | !

2016 award {based on two years’ performance out of four)

Threshold Target Maxirmum

Mobile Sportsbook | | 1
(2015 base year— £176.5m) | | i

Mobile gaming i ) :
(2015 base year—£118.0m) ! ) I

Australia digital 1 1 |
(2015 base year -~ $1500m) | h |

Current indicative gutcome
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2017 PSP Awards

We are transforming our business to grow UK market share and improve our ability to grow internationally. The transformation
programme is enabling William Hill to get fit for the future by improving core capabilities essential for delivering a successful and
sustainaple business for the long term. As transformation is essential, we emphasised the importance of the programme by changing
the BPM weighting to represent 33.3% of the total award.

The Board established a new Committee, chaired by John O'Reilly, to cversee progress and benefit realisation. The Remuneration
Committee works closely with this new oversight committee ensuring strong governance is in place to determine the level of perfermance
achieved and vesting potential.

There are 250 initiatives, of varying guantum, in the programme split between cast reduction and revenue generation.

Focusing on twa BPMs covering 250 initiatives

Revenue growth initiatives, covering Cost reduction initiatives, covering

1. Delivery of the omni-channel strategy 1. Optimising third-party spend

2. Delivery of accelerated revenue growth 2. Rationalising IT/back-office functions

3. Enhanced digital marketing 3. Driving efficiencies in customer-facing functions

!

... to drive strategy
Grow UK rnarket share Transformation and technology projects
Near-term priority Transformation programme to increase efficiencies
Our largest market Celiver savings to support investment
World's largest regulated market Celiver a global technology platform

In an ever-evolving digital world, strong management focus on reducing costs 1o reinvest in strategic capabilities is crucial. The
management team in 2017 concentrated on optimising third-party spend, rationalising back office and support functions, digital
marketing spend optimisation and the utilisation of lower-cost development hubs resulting in significant annualised savings. Key cost
initiatives include:

HOoR HBAIENS
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Initiative (not exhaustve} Bescription

Optimisation of external spend base Significant reduction of third-party spend through:

Renegotiation of vendor contracts including rate and policy terms;
Reducing internal demand for services and cost;

— Purchasing centralisation across business; and

Consolidation of major IT contracts.

|

Agile transformation in product development The business is on track to transform product development and
delivery through Agile ways of working and a new operating model.
This will yield productivity benefits and allow the business to deliver

product at greater speed.
Rationabsation of business and support functions and location Significant optimisation is underway in location footprint and support
footprint function design. This is illustrated by our new London hub which

opened at the end of January 2018 and the dosure of the Tel Aviv
location anncunced in 2017 It also extends to significant systems
upgrades and crganisation re-design.

Efficiency in marketing spend Reduced spend in lower ROl campaigns particulary in pay-per-click
{PPC) and affiliates. This has been backed up by a full reorganisation
and modernisation of the marketing function.
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All of the savings were reinvested into enhancing William Hill's digital marketing, product development and technology capabilities —
areas, over the last few years, where the Company has struggled to compete. Reinvestment has led to accelerated revenue growth
demanstrated through innovative product launches such as Bet Boost, hiring of 100 new product developers to create much improved
customer service and product offerings and reallocating rescurces to invest in a scalable and efficient digital marketing platform.

Key revenue initiatives include the following:

Initiative (not exhaustive} Description

Omni-channe! Staged programimie over 2017 now delivering revenues for the business,
covering several key delivered milestones including:

— Completed a full estate roll-out of SSBTs during the course of the
year and increased the number of sports available including cricket,
horse racing and greyhounds;

— The successful launch of our PLUS product in April including the
PLUS app and bet tracker; and

— Introduced Omni Wallet functionality to our PLUS product at the
end of Novernber.

Marketing reinvestmenit In 2017 the business built, tested and launched programmatic
marketing capability allowing us to serve potential and existing
customers with personalised content
In 2018 we will scale up the use of this capability across the customer
base enabling the further reinvestment of banked marketing savings
at higher RO
There were significant further marketing reinvestments at higher ROI
and performance including PPC and affiliate marketing.

Holistic improvernents to gaming product Wide-ranging improvernents to the Gaming product (mow being seen
in the top line) including:
— Spexific product and feature developments (g, daily drop and the
redesign of the Vegas app); and
— Cross-sell enhancements between Sportsbook and gaming and the
single-walliet launch. -

New feature development across Online praducts Accelerated product feature development including:
— #Yourodds;
— Launch of BetBoost; and
— Pragressive transition to the new Sportsbock desktop.

Conversion and journey optimisation Rapid improvements to the onboarding journey to convert potential
customers ta playing customers.

By saving to reinvest, the management team are focusing on the health of the business in the long-term.

By the end of 2077, progress against cost reduction initiatives was aver 40% ahead of the plan, all of which all has been reinvested into
capability improvements resutting in good prospects for revenue growth in 2018, Progress against specific revenue improvement initiatives
was c. 37% ahead of the in-year target.

In total, this means c. 40% of the 3-year P&L targets under cast reduction and ¢. 35% under revenue growth were achieved during 2017 and
both elements of this measure are currently tracking above plan.

2017 award (based on one year’s performance out of three)
Threshold Target Maximum

Revenue growth initiatives \ I )

Cost reduction initiatives H | I

Current indicative outcorme

Further details on the BPMs are shown as part of the Key Performance Indicators section of the Annual Report on page 16. Actual vesting
levels will be gependent on performance over the full performance period.
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Table of directors’ share interests

The share interests of each person who was a director of the Company at 26 December 2017 (together with interests held by his or her
connected persons} were as follows:

% of salary
held under
Shareholding
Crwned PSP awards EBMS awards SAYE Totai Guidelinas
Narme of director 281216 261217  Urnwvested  Vested WUnvested  Vested Unvested — Vested 261217 261217
Executive directors
Philip Bowcock 0 30000 927585 - - - 6,818 ~- 964403 137%
Ruth Prior (05 35102 6285507 663,652 226%
Non-executive Birectors
Gareth Davis 146488 146488 - - - - - - 146,488 -
Mark Brooker o 1,500 - - - - - - 1,500 -
Roy Gardner 12,600 22,600 — - - - - - 22,600 -
Georgina
Harvey 2221 12221 - - - - - - 12221 -
David Lowden 12222 12222 - - - - - - 12222 -
John O'Reilly 0 92000 - - - - - - 92,000 -
Robin Terrell o 12,344 — - - - - - 12344 —
Imelda Walsh 12,222 12222 - - — — - - 12,222 -

wodaifaens
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1 Calculated as legally-owned shares held on 26 Decernber 2017 multiplied by the average of the threg-month share price to 26 December 2017 {273.75p) divided by 2018

base salary. The shareholding palicy is summarised on page 81

2 Includes 348,345 restricted shares granted as a Replacernent Award (see page 94 for mare details). These shares will vest on 16 Octeber 2018 and are not subject 1o

performance conditions.
3 Appointed during 2017,

During the period 26 December 2017 to 22 February 2018, there have been no changes in the directors’ share interests.

Recruitment to the Board in 2017

Towards the end of 2016 we announced a number of appointments 1o the Board for 2077 (John O'Reilly, Robin Terrell, Mark Brooker} and in
2017 a further three appointments were made.

Executive appointments

Philip Bowcock was appointed as permanent CEQ with effect from 10 March 2017, having previously held the role of Interim CEC since July
2016. Sinca his appointment as Interim CEQ, Philip had received a base salary of £550,0C0 per annum, in fine with the base salary of the
previous CEC, which had not been increased since his appeintment in July 2014. The Committee requested information on salary levels
within our benchmark group and aiso more direct competitors. It determined that an increase to £600,000 was appropriate. No further
review of salary has taken place in 2018, No additional remuneration or awards have been made 1n connection with Philip's appaintment.

Ruth Prior was appointed CFO with effect from 2 Qctober 2G17. Her remuneration package was set on appointment, broadly in line with
that offered to her predecessor:

~ base salary of £425,000;

— pension allowance of 20% of base salary;

— other benefits provided in line with the Company's remuneration palicy,

1

bonus cpportunity of 150% of salary; and

annual awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan to the value of 175% of salary.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The Committee determined that Ruth would be eligible to participate in the William Hill annual bonus plan for the periad of service at
William Hill from appeintment to 26 December 2017 In addition a pro-rated amount of bonus wouid be paid to Ruth in recagnition of the
annual bonus forfeited on resignation and covering the relevant period of the financial year when she was employed at Worldpay. Both
elerments to be awarded on an aggresate basis by the Committee in 2018 and subject to the usual deferral, malus and clawback provisions
as set out in the remuneration policy.

The Committee also agreed to make an award in replacement for that forfeited under the Worldpay Transitional Award Ptan {the
"Replacement Award"). This award does not have any associated performance conditions or post-vesting holding requirements, mirraring
the Worldpay award it replaced and will be released on the original vesting date of 16 October 2018.

The Committee determined, at the time of Ruth's appaintment, that the Worldpay share price used in calculating the value of the award
should be the 30-day average immediately prior to the announcement of Ruth's appaintment or the 30-day average immediately prior

to joining William Hill, whichever was the lower. Accordingly, an award over 348,345 restricted shares was granted to Ruth on 2 October
2017, using a market value of £2 51 per share, being the average William Hill closing share price in the 30-day period immediately prior to the
announcerment of Ruth's appointment.

Non-executive appointments

On 20 December 2017, we announced the appointment of Roger Davlin as Chairman Designate and a Non-executive Director with

effect from 1 February 2018 and he will take over as Chairman on 2 April 2018, when Gareth Davis steps down. Roger's remuneration was
approved by the Nomination Committee on appointment in December, in line with a recommendation from the Remuneration Committee,
and comprises an annual fee of £295,000. Roger will not receive any additional compensation or benefits in respect of the appointment

Total Shareholder Return chart and Chief Executive earnings history

The chart below shows the Company’s TSR performance compared with that of the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 Indices. As a member of each
in recent times, the Committee believes both indices are appropriate to compare William Hill's performance against.

Graph removed

This graph shows the value, by 26 December 2017 of £100 invested in Wiliam Hill on 30 Decernber 2008, compared with the value of E100 invested in the FTSE 100
and FTSE 250 Indices on the same date.

The other points plotted are the valyes at intervening financial year-ends
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The single total remuneration history of the CEO is shown in the table below. In both 20%4 and 2016, there were twa CEOs and their
remuneration has been shown separately as required by the regulations. In 2014, using a weighted average based on the applicable single
figure for the time period each person was CEQ, the weighted average single figure of remuneration is £3,082,163 and on the same basis
for 2016 it is £702,050.

Financiat Year 2009 RT 2010RT 201 RT 202RT 2013RT 2014RT 2004 3+ 20151H 206 2006PE* 207 PBF
Ralph Topping/James Henderson/Philip Bowcock

Single figure

remuneration

{£'000) £1,055 £1,650 £34035 £1914 £4,673 £2,277 £1,369 £914 £396 £606 £1,324
Annual Borus

Outcome

(% Maximurm) 90% 100% 94% 100% 0% 86% 88% 0% 0% 0% 548%
LTIP Vesting

Qutcome

(% Maximum) 0%’ 0%® £59%° nfa  100%° 95%" 959%" 0%" n/a n/a nfa
1 Payto31July 2014 plus 2012 PSP Award.

2 PayfromT August 2014 plus 2012 PSP Award.

3 Payto21]luly 2016

4 Pay from21July 2016.

5 Pay asInterim CEQ until 10 March 2017 and as permanent CEQ thereafter,

& Includes value of retention bonus at grant An additional 46,649 dividend shares accrued over the vesting period valued at £187,.482 as at 31 December 2013,

7 2007 EBMS Matching Award

8 2008 EBMS Matching Award,

S 2009 EBMS Matching Award.

10 201G and 2011 PSP Awards.
N 2012 PSP Award.
12 2013PSPaward.

Change in remuneration of the CEO

The change in the CEQ's remuneration is compared to the change in remuneration of all full-time salaried colleagues across the Retail,
Oniine and Group areas of the UK business that were employed throughout 2016 and 2017

Base Salary Taxable Benefits? Bonus
201 2016 % Change 2017 2006 % Change 2007 2016 % Change
CEQ £600,000 £55C,000 1% £34M £31,345 10.7% £575,400 f0 n/a
Salaried
Employees £23743 £23080 29% £1,178 £1442 -18.3% £1,368 £680 101.2%

1 2016 CECrs figure calculated as arca seven months’ salary and benefits for James Hendersen phus circa five months’ salary and benefits for Philip Bowcock No bonus
payment was recewed by either in 2016.

2 Increase for CEQ reflects the change in Phifip's salary upon appointrent as permanent CEQ.
3 Taxable benefits excludes relocation costs and taxable expenses
4 Bonus for salaried employees includes the quarterly bonus scheme for our Retail staff.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in profit, dividends and overall spend on pay in 2017 compared to 2016.

poda) yEsiens
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2017 2016 % Change
Adjusted operating profit’ ' £291.3m £2615m 114%
Shareholder distributions, of which: £108.1Im £2040m (470%)
- Dividends £108Im £1090m (08%;
— Share buy-backs - £95.0m n/a
Employee remuneration costs £372.0m £3489m 6.6%

1 Adjusted operating profit is defined as adjusted profit before mterest and tax. Further detail on adjusted measures is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Wider pay environment

William Hill is committed to offering an
attractive reward package for colleagues
and aligning pay and incentives across
the Company.

For 2018, there will be a pay review across
the Group for all colleagues. This will include
the planned increase to the UK National
Living Wage {NLW) and Nationai Minimum
Wage (NMW). When implementing the new
NLW in 2016 the Campany elected to apply
1t to colleagues over 18 and not just to those
coileagues who were 25 and aver.

All colleagues are eligible to participate

in a bonus plan and these are reviewed
an an annual basis 1o ensure they remain
incentivising as well as fair and relevant to
the Growp they apply to. As anexample,
the quarterly bonus plan that applies

to over 10,000 shop cofleagues in the

UK was first introduced in 2017 and is
hased on measures that colleagues have
the greatest influence over. Currently
this scheme is being reviewed to ensure
that it further emphasises customer
engagement and the day-to-day delivery
of regulatory requirements,

All of cur colleagues globally have the
oppertunity to share in the success of
Williarmn Hill through different colleague
share plans.

William Hill offers a wide range of colleague
benefits. UK colleagues who are covered
by pensions auto-enrolment are able

ta benefit from company contributions

in excess of the statutory minimum.

All colleagues, who join the pension plan,
receive a minimum pension contribution

of 4% along with their cwn matching

contribution of 4%. Anyone who has been
with the Company for over a year also
receives access to life insurance in addition
to discounts on shopping, entertainment
and eating out, plus a discounted travelcard
for those calleagues in London. Qur
Employee Assistance programme offers all
colleagues access to free, 24/7 confidential
telephane, online and face-to-face advice
for problems they may be experiencing at
home or wark.

Away from the UK, a large vanety of
benefits are offered, ranging from the
option of vision and dentai care in the US,
bareavement assistance in the Philippines
to development allowances in Poland.

We have also reported on Wiiliam Hill's UK
gender pay gap, which can be found on our
website. On balance, our reported statistics
are largely in line with national and industry
averages and the data arcund bonus
receivers, in particular, is positive. The
analysis has aiso confirmed that men and
women are paid equally for equivalent work
across the organisation with the gender
pay gap arising through proportionately
less women in senior management (15%)
and this is the challenge the Company
must address.

The Company is carmmitted to gender pay
equality and our gender pay disciosure
outlines the steps the Company is

taking to eliminate any disparity in pay
and opportunity.

5.71% 17.19%

‘Mediary Pay Gap ‘Mean’ Pay Gap

Median Male Hourly Pay £8.65 Mean Male Hourly Pay £10.88
Median Fermale Hourly Pay £817 Mean Fernale Hourly Pay £2901
17.68% 55.96%

'Median’ Bonus Gap ‘Mean’ Bonus Gap

Male Median Bonus £202 Male Mean Bonus £827
Female Median Bonus £166 Fernale Mean Bonus £364

Auditable sections of the
Annual Report on Remuneration

The auditable sections cof the Annual
Repaort on Remuneration are shown from
page 84 (starting with the single total
figure of rermuneration for each director)
up to page 94 (including the section titled
Recruitment to the Board in 2017).

Membership of the
Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Committee
are listed in the table below. All members
of the Committee are independent non-
executive directors. No director plays a part
in any discussion directly relating to their
own remuneration.

Name

Imelda Walsh (Chair)

Mark Brocker
Gareth Davis

Sir Roy Gardner
Georgina Harvey

David Lowden
John O'Reilly
Robin Terrell

The Group's Company Secretary,
Luke Thomas, acts as secretary to
the Committee

Pay quartiles

Male Female
) 601% 39.9%
Q2 475% 52.5%
@3 483% 51.7%
Q4 376% 624%
Bonus Receivers

Male Fermale
In-scope 6,788 7663
Receivers 5407 6413
% 80% 84%
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Commiittee activity during
the year

The following table sets out the major
issues covered by the Committee aover
the course of the year:

February 2017
— Bonus outcomes in respect of 2016

- Committee approval of proposed
Remuneration Policy for 2017

— Consideration of propased approach
to salary reviews in 2017 for both
executive directors and all colleagues

~ Approval of 2017 annual bonus design

- Approval of Group Executive
personal objectives

- Approval of 2016 Directors'’
Remuneration Report

— Approval of operation of all colleague
share schemes in 2017

- Committes approval of amendments
to PSP and EBMS rules for 2017

- Consideration of plan for granting the
2017 PSP award and other incentives

— Update on forecast vesting of
live PSPs

March 2017

- Approval of proposed CEO
remuneration package for
Philip Bowcock

— Approval of proposed CFO
rermuneration package for Ruth Prior

May 2017
- Update on 2017 PSP design process

- Review of US senicr management
remuneration and incentives

- Review of Australian senior
management remuneration
and incentives

July 2017
- Update on 2017 reporting season

— Approval of 2017 PSP award

— Incentives update at half year

— Review cf wider colleague
remuneration including overview
of 2017 salary review and gender
pay update

Novernber 2017
— Consideration ¢f potential design
options for 2018 PSP

December 2017

— Update on proposed 2018 PSP design

and process
- Incentive performance update

Advice to the Committee

During 2017 the Committee consulted
the CEQ, the CFO and Group HR Director
about remuneration itens relating

to individuals cther than themselves.
Luke Thomas, Company Secretary, also
provided corporate governance guidance
support to the Committee. Appropriate
Group colleagues and external advisers
may attend Committee Meetings at the
invitation of the Chair.

Colleagues are not specifically consulted on
Executive remuneration but alt colleagues
are invited to take part in our annual Your
Say survey and the Board regularly reviews
engagement data and is particularly aware
of any trends, comments and concerns
around pay. In addition, the Colleague
Forum gives colleagues the opportunity

to ask questions of senicr management,
via elected representatives. The Committee
Chair will meet with the Colleague Forum

in 2018 to answer questions raised by
colleague representatives concerning
executive pay.

External advisers

The Committee 1s advised by New Bridge
Street (NBS), who were appointed foliowing
acompetitive tender in 2012 NBS is a
member of the Remuneration Consultants
Group and is a signatory to its Code

of Conduct. During 2017, NBS's parent
company, Aan, provided other services to
the Company including insurance broking
and pensions advice. Appropriate controls
exist to ensure no conflicts of interast
arise and the Cormnmittee is comfortable
that NBS's advice to the Committee is
independent and objec tive.

During the year, NBS provided advice to
the Committee in respect of: the operation
of the PSP in 2017 and 2018; remuneration
benchmarking for various senior roles;
assistance with shareholder consultation;
and updates on regulatory and corporate
governance developments. NBS also
provided advice on the appointment terms
for Philip Bowcock and Ruth Prior. Fees

for agvice provided in the year amounted
10 £85,000*

* VAT of 20% was paid on the adwiser fees shown
abave which William Hill does not reclaim

Statement of shareholder
voting at 2017 AGM

At the 2017 AGM, a resolution was proposed
for shareholders 1o approve the 2016
Annual Report on Remuneration. The
following votes were received:

2016 Annual Report of Directors’ Remuneration

Total number of % of votes

votes cast
For 531064434 98.28%
Against 9318924 172%
Total 540,383,358 100.0%
Withheld 4,377799 -

Bodaa@sens
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Approval of directars’ Remuneration Policy

Far 532517259 9788%
Against 1557037 212%
Total 544,074,336 1000%
Withheld 686,821 -

A majority (over 50%) of the votes cast
was required for the resolution to be
passed, and the 2016 Annual Report on
Remuneration was duly approved by
shareholders. The Committee considers
that the level of support received

at the 2017 AGM was high, and as a
result it was not necessary to provide
additional disclosure on the reasons for
those votes, which were cast against.
As rmentioned previously in this repert,
the Committee will consult with its
largest shareholders, as appropriate,
on remuneration arrangements.

Approval

This report was approved by the Beard of
directors on 23 February 2018 and signed
onits behalf by

Imelda Walsh
Chair, Remuneration Committee

JMJLL ol
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Directors’ Report

The directors present, their Annual Report
on the affarrs of the Group, together with
the financial statements and auditor's
report, for the pernod ended 26 December
20717 The following alse form part of

this report:

— pages 54 and 55, which show the names
of all persons who were directors of the
Company during the penod. In addrticn,
Ashley Highfield served as a director of
the Company until he retired from the
Board on 16 November 2017;

— the reports on corporate governance
set out on pages S1to §7;

— information relating to financial
instruments, as provided in the notes
to the financial statements;

— related party fransactions as set out in
note 33 1o the financial statements; and

- greenhouse gas ernissians, set out on
pages 33 and 43.

Detaifs of Committee memberships for
each director are set out on pages 54
and 55. Details of the directors’ interests
are set out on page 93 of the directors’
Remuneration Report.

Management report

For the purposes of compliance with DTR
41.5R(2) and DTR 4.1.8R, the required
content of the ‘Management Report’ can
be found in the Strategic Report and this
Directors’ Report, including the sections
of the Annual Report and Accounts
incorporatead by reference.

Annval Report and Accounts

The directors are aware of their
responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Reports and Accounts, The directars
consider that the Annua! Report and
Accounts, taken as a whale, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders

tc assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy.
Further information regarding related
processes can be found in the Audit and
Risk Management Committee Report on
pages 67to 71. The Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities appears on page 101.

Strategic Report

The Board has prepared a Strategic
Report which pravides an overview of the
development and performance of the
Group's business for the period ended

26 December 2017 and which covers likely
future developrments in the Group. The
Chairman's overview, CEQ's statement,
business overviews, the strategic priorities,
key performance indicators, regulation
and marketplace report, divisional and
perfarmance overviews, corporate
responsibility report, financial review and
managing our risks sections together
provide information which the directors
consider to be of strategic impaortance to
the Group.

Results and dividends

The Group's loss on ordinary activities

after taxation for the period was £83.2m
(2016: £164.5m). The directors recommend
a fingl dividend of 8.94p per share to

be paid on 7 June 2018 to ordinary
shareholders on the Register of Members
an 27 April 2018 which, if approved, together
with the interim dividend of 4.26p per share
paid on 30 November 2017, makes a tota! of
13.2p per share for the period.

Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance

Pursuant ta Article 155 of the Articles of
Assaciation and subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006, the directors
and officers of the Company shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the
Company, against liability in defending
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in their favour or
in which they are acquitted or in connection
with any application in which relief is
granted to therm by the court from liability
for negligence, default, breach of duty or
breach of trust in relation to the affairs of
the Company. in addition the Group has
purchased and maintains directors’ and
officers’ insurance cover against certain
legal liabilities and costs for claims incurred
in respect of any act or omissionin the
execution of ther duties.

Share capital

As at 23 February 2018, the Company

had an allotted and fully paid-up share
capital of 887,295,272 ordinary shares of
10p each with an aggregate nominal value
of £88,729,527 which included 28,412,588
ordinary shares in treasury. There were
therefore 858,882,684 ordinary shares
inissue as at 23 February 2018 (excluding
treasury shares).

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between sharehaolders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer
of securities and voting rights There

are na restrictions on the transfer of
ardinary shares in the Company other
than certain restrictions imposed by

laws and regulations. This will include

the Market Abuse Regulaticn, insider
trading laws and general requirermnents
relating to close periads. Also included will
be the requirements of the Company’s
Share Dealing policies, which follow

the requirements of the Market Abuse
Regulation, and whereby directors and
certain employees of the Company require
the necessary approval to deal in the
Company's securities.

Each ordinary share of the Company
carries one vote. Further information on
the rights and obligations attaching to the
Company's ordinary shares, in addition

to those conferred on their holders by

law, are set out in the Company's Articles
of Association, a copy of which can be
obtained from the Company Secretary, and
is also available on the Company's website,
www.williamhillplc.com.

Changes to the Articles of Assaciation
must be approved by special resclution

of the Company. The holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receve the
Company's repert and accounts, to attend
and speak at general meetings of the
Company, to appoint proxies or corporate
representatives and to exercise voting
rights, and to receive a dividend, as and
when declared.

Share Repurchase Programme

The Beard did not decide to extend

the Share Repurchase Programme
which completed in December 2016 in
accordance with a strategy outlined to
investors with the announcement of the
2015 full-year results, and accordingly

no shares were repurchased during the
year (2016: 29,573,675 ordinary shares of
10p each).

726,027 of the acquired shares were
subsequently disposed of dunng the year

to satisfy existing awards under the Group's
share and incentive schemes, and it is the
current intenticn of the directors that the
remaining treasury shareholding will either
continue to be held in treasury, or will be
used to similarly satisfy existing and future
share and incentive scheme awards.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 26 December 2017 the Company had
been notified, in accordance with either the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the
Financial Conduct Authority and the EU
Market Abuse Directive, of the notifiable
interests in the ordinary share capital of the
Company set out in the table below.

Marne of holder Percentage shareholding
Parvus Asset

Management Europe

Limited (I} 154%
Capital Group

Companies, Inc (D} 10.88%
Aberdeen Standard

Life plc () 583%
Schroders plc (D} S5121%
Silchester

International Investeors

LLF{D} 5053%
Morgan Stanley (D) 504%
Naorges Bank (D) 305%

In the period 26 Decermnber 2017 to

23 February 2018, the following changdes
were disclosed to the Company in
accordance with Article 19 of the Market
Abuse Regulation:

Narme of holder Percentage shareholding
Parvus Asset

Management Europe

Limited (1} 999%
Aberdeen Standard

Life pic (D) 4.77% (below 5%)
Morgan Stanley {D) Below 3%

Nature of holding D = Direct | = Indirect

Significant agreements -
change of control

There are no significant agreements to
which the Company is party which take
effect, alter or terminate in the eventofa
change of contral in the Company following
a takeover bid.

Nevada and New Jersey
regulation

Shareholders of Willam Hill are subject
to regulation by the Nevada State Gaming
Control Board and the Nevada Gaming
Commission as a result of the Company’s
ownership of licensed subsidianes in
Nevada and the Company’s registration
as a publicly traded company operating
in Nevada. Information regarding Nevada
gaming regulatory requirements can be
found and assessed by shareholders at
wwwwilliamhillplc.com.

To support the conversion of redeemable
preference shares in NY X Gaming Group
Limited, prior to the disposal of the Group's
interests in NY X Gaming Group to Scientific
Games Corporation, and in furtherance

of the potential for New Jersey sports
betting and online gaming, it was necessary
for the Group to apply for licensure with

the New Jersey State Division of Gaming
enforcement. Further information
regarding the New Jersey regulator’s
requirements can be found on the Division
of Gaming Enforcement’s website at
http:/fwww.nj.gov/oag/gefindex html.

Employee policies

The Group places considerable value

on the involvement of its employees and
has continued to keep them informed

on matters affecting them as employees
and on the various factors affecting

the performance of the Group. This is
achieved through formal and informal
meetings and through ‘Go2 William Hill',
the employee website which replaced the
Group magazine ‘Will2win’ during the year.
An employee engagement survey, which
was enhanced during the year, is also
conducted annually, the results of which
are cornmunicated to employees for review
and to managers for action. Empioyee
representatives are consulted regularly
through colleague forums on a wide range
of matters affecting their current and
future interests.

in the UK, the Company operates an HMRC-
approved UK Sharesave Plan which is open
to all eligible employees. Options under

the scheme are granted with an exercise
price up to 20% below the prevailing share
price. The maximurm perrissible monthly
savings under the schemeis £500 for
savings contracts commenced from 2014
This feilows an increase in saving fimits
from £250 per month, which continues to
be the maximum amount which may be
saved for savings contracts started before
2014, Employees in selected other countries
in which the Company cperates may
participate in local share saving schemes,
which for operational, tax or legislative
reasons may differ in operation compared
tothe UK.

Williarmn Hill is cormnmitted to equal
opportunities in the workplace. In

all aspects of employment including
recruitment, promotion, training and
development and terms and conditions

of employment, all employees and
appficants for employment are given
equal opportunities regardless of gender,
marital or farnily status, race, nationality,
ethnic origin, religion, age, disability and
sexual arientation. William Hill endeavours
to ensure that all employees are made
aware of the provisions of the policy

and of their responsitility to uphold and
prornote it. Williarm Hill will net tolerate
harassment, discrimination ar victimisation
N the workplace in any form. Applications
for employment by disabled persons

are always fully and fairly considered,
bearing in mind the aptitude and ability
of the applicant concerned. In the event
of employees hecoming disabled, every
effort 1s made to ensure that thair
employment within the Group continues
and that appropriate training is arranged.
It continues to be the policy of the Group
that the training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons should

as far as is feasible be identical to that

of other employees.
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Directors’ Report continued

Political donations

There were no political donations made

or political expenditure incurred during

the period in respect of EU palitical

parties, candidates or organisations

(2016 nil). The Board has, however, given
approval for certain subsidiaries in respect
of William Hill's US business to make
donations within specified fimits. in the US,
it is far more common for corpaorations to
participate in the political precess through
a variety of methods, including raising

or donating funds to political candidates.
The approval from the Board will permit
the US business to decide and agree on
modest potitical contributions to candidates
for political office in jurisdictions where the
Company is doing or seeks to do business.
Contributions to political candidates do not
guarantee that elected officials will support
a particular piece of legislation or ctherwise
act in their official capacity to benefit the
Company, rather, they assist in electing
individuals whom the Company believes
are likely to support its business goals

and in establishing productive working
relationships with electecd representatives.

The Board therefore continues to believe
that giving approval for the US business to
make such political contributions is essential
for the Company to fully participate in the
American political process. In respect of

the US, palitical expenditure of $32,000
was incurred in 2017 (2016: $55,200)

and included contributions to both the
American Gaming Association and individual
campaigns exclusively in Nevada state.

Authority to purchase own
shares

An authority for the Company to purchase
its own shares remains valid until the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
when it is intended that a resolution will
be put forward to shareholders to renew
such authority,

Issue of new ordinary shares

During the financial period ended

26 December 2017, no new ordinary shares
of the Company were issued on account

of the Remuneration Committee approving
arevised policy whereby either the treasury
shares acguired by the Company under

the 2016 Share Repurchase Programme,

or where required market purchase shares
would be used via the Company’s Employee
Benefit Trust, to satisfy all existing and
future share and incentive scheme awards.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held at 11.00 a.m. on 8 May
2018 at Radisson Blu Edwardian Hatel, 9-13
Bloornsbury Street, WC1B 3QD. The notice
of the AGM and an explanation of the items
of nan-routine business are set out inthe
explanatory circular that accompanies this
Annual Report.

Auditor and disclosure of
information to auditor

Each of the directors in office at the
date when this report was approved
confirms that:

— sofar as the director is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

— the director has taken all the steps that
they ought tc have taken as a director
in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to
estabiish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of that information.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their
wilingness fo be re-appointed as auditcr
of the Company. A resolution to re-appeint
Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditor will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Other information required to
be incorporated by reference
For the purposes of compliance with Listing
Rule 9.8 .4, the following information is
hereby incorporated by reference within
this Directors’ Repaort:

Listing Rule Location within
Reguirament (LR} the Annual Report
LR 9.8.6R(1) Directors’

Directors’interests Remuneration Report

[Lwe T

By order of the Board

Luke Thomas
Company Secretary, William Hill PLC
23 February 2018

Registered Office: Greenside House,
50 Station Road, Wood Green,
London N22 7TP
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Cormnpany law requires the directors

to prepare financial statements for

each financial year. Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and have elected to prepare the
parent company financial statementsin
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law), including FRS 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framewaork'. Uinder company
law the directors must not approve the
accounts unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the profit
or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial
statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

— make judgments and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

— state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
and

— prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial
statements, International Accounting
Standard 1requires that directors:

- properly select and apply
accounting policies;

— present information, including accounting
poficies, in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

— provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance; and

— make an assessment of the Company’s
abiiity to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that

are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transacticns and disciose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and
enable themn to ensure that the finangial
statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsibie for
safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reascnable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and
atherirregularities.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on

the Company's website. Legislation

in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissernination of finangial
statements may differ from legislatio
other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of
our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole;

— the Strategic Repaort includes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they
face; and

— the Annual Repart and financial
staternents, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
positicn and performance, business
model and strategy.

This responsibility statement is approved
by the Board aof directors and is signed on
its behalf by:

Philip Bowcock Ruth Prior

Chief Executive Chief Financial
Officer Officer

23 Fehbruary 2018 23 February 2018
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of William Hill PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affars as at 26 December 2017 and

of the Group's loss for the 52 weeks then ended;

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB});

— the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclesure Framework”; and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the requirerents of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financiat statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.
We have audited the financial staternents of William Hill plc (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’} which comprise:

~ the Consolidated Income Statement;

~ the Consolidated Statement of Cornprehensive Income;

— the Consglidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity; '
- the Consolidated and Parent Company Statemenits of Financial Posttion;

— the Consalidated Cash Flow Statement;

— the Statement of Group Accounting Policies and the related notes 1to 34; and

— the Parent Company Statement of Accounting Policies and the related notes 1to 12.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as

adapted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial

statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Frarmework” {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 1I5As (UK) and applicable law. Qur responsibifities under
those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requiremenits that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to lsted public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified were:

— Impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets in Australia;

— Completeness and accuracy of revenue recognition in Retail and Online;
— Unrecorded retirements in capitalised software; and

— Valuation of provisions for uncertain tax positions.

In the prior year, one of the key audit matters was impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets; in the current
year, this matter has been pinpointed to Australia. All other key audit matters are consistent to prior year

Materiality The materiality that we usedin the current year for the Group financial staternents was £12.5 million which was
determinad on the basis of 4 9% of adjusted profit before tax of £254.9 million
Scoping We focused our Group audit scope on audit work at three locations: UK, Gibraltar and Australia.

These locations represent the principal business segments and account for over 36% of the Group's revenue, 94% of
aperating profit and 96% of the Group's net assets

Significantchangesin ~ As described above, we have pinpeinted our impairment risk to focus on the Australian segment. In particular, we

our approach focused on management’s judgements with respect to cash flow farecasts for the Australian business and how these
would be impacted by enacted and ongoing regulatory change. There were no other significant changes to our audit
approach in the current year.
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Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement
Going concem
We have reviewed the directors’ staterment on page 66 to the financial staternents about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the

going corcern basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group’s and company's ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements,

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to that statement required by Listing Rule
9.86R(3) and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent with the knowledge we obtained in the course of
the audit, including the knowledge obtained in the evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and the company’s ability to continue as
a gaing concern, we are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

— the disclosures on pages 46—49 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

— thedirectors’ confirmation on page 45 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those
that would threaten its business madel, future performance, solvency or liquidity; or

~ the directors' explanation on page SO as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they have done soand why
they consider that period to be appropriate, and their staternent as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention tc any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We are also reguired to report whether the directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the Group reguired by Listing Rule 9.8 6R(3} is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing material to repart, add or draw attention te in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgernent, were of most significance in our audit of the financial staternents of
the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterment (whether ar not due to fraud) that we identified
These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing
the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
farming our opinicn thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of goodwill and non-current assets

Key audit The Group has goodwill of £9591 million and intangible assets with indefinite lives of £484.3 million which are tested
matter description annually for impairment against the value in use of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUS').

Management has recognised an impairment of £238.3 million in the Australian CGU following its annual impairment
test. This impairment reflects changes in regulation in Australia incluging the ban on credit betting and the introduction
of a Point of Consumption Tax (POCT") by certain states.

The annual impairment test includes significant management judgement concerning regulatory changes in the

market and its impact on the cash flows of the CGU. The impairment test is also based on key assumptions about
future underlying profitability and cash flows, selecting appropriate discount and kang-term growth rates, which are
disclosed in Note 12 and in Key sources of estimation uncertainty in the Statement of Group Accounting Policies, and isa
significant matter considered by the Augit Committes on page 71.
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of William Hill PLC continued

How the scope of our
audit responded ta the
key audit matter

We focused our audit work on challenging key assumptions used by managerment in conducting theirimpairment
review, This wark was principally carmed out by the compeonent audit team in Australia, under the direction and review
of the Group audit team, who also challenged the work performed and conclusions reached. The component auditor
work included:

~ Checking the mathematical accuracy of the impairment model and compliance of the methodology with IAS 36;

- Reviewing and challenging management’s cash flow forecasts, including testing management’s process and
controls for preparing and reviewing the impairment model as well as understanding and critically assessing the key
assumptions underpinning the model with a focus on those which are most sensitive;

— Independently assessing the key regulatory changes, their fikely impact and timing;
— Performing a sensitivity analysis of certain key inputs which drive the value of the business; and
- Caonsidering the ongoing strategic review for the business.

In addition, our component audit team worked with our Australia in-house corparate finance valuation specialists in:

- Independently calculating the WACC rate that should be applied in the impairment model; and

— Assessing the value of the business by performing an independent farr value less costs to sell model, taking into
account market multiples, recent transactions and other evidence indicating fair value.

The Group audit tearm carried out further sensitivity analysis on managerment’s model to challenge key assumptions,
principally the timing, amaount and probability of further POCT enactment, and varying the discount rate assumption.

We noted that the value in use is very sensitive to the impact and timing of the introduction of POCT in Australiaona
state by state basis and we discussed with management the additional disclosures to be made in the current period
with respect to:

— Management’s assessment of the probability of the introduction of POCT in states where it has not yet been enacted
and how that has been reflected in the impairment medel; and

- Thedisclosure of the estimation uncertainty and the reasonably possible further impairment which could arise in the
event that the POCT outcome is adverse to that included in management’s impairment model.

Key abservations

From the results of our procedures, we concurred with the impairment of £238 3 million recorded by management
and the corresponding recoverable amount of the Australian CGU. We were satisfied with the final disclosures that
management made in the financial staterments.

Completeness and accuracy of revenue recognition in Retail and Online

Key audit
matter description

The Group has a number of income streams, the most significant being revenue recognised in the Graup's Retail
(£913 Imillion) and Oniine (E516.9 million) segments. Revenue is derived from high valurme and typically lower vaiye
transactions and is dependent on the outcome of events wagered on.

The Group's accounting palicy for revenue recognition is disdosed in Key accounting policies on page 114

The completeness and accuracy of revenue recognised is dependent on the interfacing of systems in Retail and Online
segments, and is reliant on the IT control environment of third party applications such as Openbet and the mantial
controls around matching revenue to cash movements.

Due to the complexity of this environment there is a risk that revenue errors go undetected or are not detected ona
timely basis. There s also a fraud risk around potential manipulation of the manual cash reconciliations.

How the scope of our
audit responded to
the risk

Together with our IT audit specialists we evaluated the design and implementation and tested the aperating
effectiveness of both automated and manual controls in the revenue cyde incduding cash reconclliations from the
betting operating systemns. General IT controls were tested for key revenue and financial information systerms involved in
the revenue process, as well as the interface between these systers.

We perforrned substantive analytical review procedures over the Group's Retail and Online gaming revenue streams,
and substantively tested the existence and accuracy of a sample of bets placed within the Retail division. For Online
sportsbook revenues we used a data analytics approach to fully recalculate all simple bets, which comprise over 80% of
revenue recognised. For the remainder, which cornprised more complex bets, we recalculated a sample of bets.

Key observations

Cur work was concluded satisfactorily with respect to the Retail segment with no significant findings.

with respect to the Online segment, we identified three IT General Control deficiencies. In response to these control
findings, we performed the following procedures:

— we identified detective contrals, which we tested to evaluate to what extent they would mitigate the impact of the
control deficiencies;

— we placed a sample of bets during the year and traced them through to Openbet transaction reports to test for
campleteness; and

— we tested Openbet transaction reports used in our audit testing for completeness and accuracy.

We concluded that the risk of material revenue misstatement was reduced to an acceptable level. In addition, we

recommended that management continues to work to further strengthen preventative controls in order to reduce

reliance on detective mitigating controls in future.
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Unrecorded retirements in capitalised software

Key audit As disclosed in note 12 to the financial staternents, £807 million of computer software additions were capitalised in 2017
matter description as the Group continues to invest in its technology. The net book value of computer software assets at the balance sheet
date was £126.2 milion.

This continued investment in software development: gives rise 10 a risk that existing assets are made obsolete by new
technology and should be impaired before expiry of their useful economic lives. The Group's accounting policy for
computer software s disclosed in Statement of Group Accounting Policies on page 160.

How the scopeofour  We evaluated the design and implementation and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over
audit responded to impairment and the capitalisation of costs.

therisk o ) ) ) o ) )
: Wae tested a sample of capitalised software additions, assessing the business case, holding discussions with project

managers and reviewing internal audit and capital expenditure reports. This was done to determine whether new assets
created replaced existing assets and therefore indicated either a risk of impairment or a revised useful life for those
existing assets.

In addition, we aiso considered management's paper which documented their own review for impairment and we
discussed the findings of the paper with management.

Key observations We have not identified any urrecorded impairments above our reporting threshold or significant changes required to
the useful economic lives of intangibles.

Valuation of provisions for uncertain tax positions

Risk description The Group operates in different jurisdic tions with complex tax legislation which requires rmanagement to make
judgements and estimates regarding the interpretation of local tax laws and potential tax provisions and exposures.

A description of the critical accounting judgements used in relation to taxation is included on page 15. Thisis aisc a
significant matter considered by the Audit Cormmittee as set cut on page 71.

Howthe scopeofour  Curaudit approach was to use our tax spedalists to evaluate the tax provisions recorded by management and potential

audit responded to tax exposures. We challenged management's judgerments utilising tax specialists in the UK, Australia and Gibraftar

the risk using their experience in country specific tax law and experience in simnilar structures and operations. In assessing those
judgements taken we alsc considered relevant correspondence with tax authorities and had regard to management's
advice obtained from third party professional advisors. We alsa considered whether there were other risk factors that
shiould be considerad in the evaluation of tax risks. We recommended further enhancements to the disciosure of tax
risks in the Annual Report.

Key abservations We are satisfied with management’s conclusions with respect to the recognition and measurement of materiat tax risks
in the financial statermments, We are satisfied with management’s final disclosures in the financial statements.

Qur application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial staternents that makes it probable that the economic decisions of
a reasonably knowledgeable persan would e changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgernent, we determined materiality for the financial staternents as a whole as foliows:

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements
Group materiality £12.5 million 2O16: £10.5 millicn) £11.25 million
Basis for determining  Our Group materiality is below 5% {2016: below 5%j) of We originally used 3% of net assets as the basis of
materiality adjusted profit beforeinterest and tax, disclosed innote 3 materiality but then further capped this at 90% of

to the Group financial statements. Group materiatity.
Rationale for the Adjusted profit before interest and tax has been used The Parent Comgany acts principally as a helding company
benchmark applied as itis the primary measure of perfermance used by and therefore net assets is a key measure. The cap has

the Group. We have used adjusted profit measures been applied in line with our methodology for setting

that exclude volatility of exceptional itemns frorm our materiality for components.

determination, to aid the consistency and comparability
of our materiaiity base each year.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.6 million 2016: £6.5 million) for
the Group as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on gualitative grounds. We alsc report to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's report to the members of William Hill PLC continued

An overview of the scape of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by cbtaining an understanding of the Group and its ervironment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the
risks of material misstatement at the Group level. Based on that assessment, we focused our Group audit scope primarily on the audit work at
three locaticns:

- UK
— Gibraltar; and
— Australia.

These locations represent the principal business units and account for over 96% (2016: over 97%) of the Group's revenue, 94% of aperating
profit (2016: aver 95%) and over 96% (2016 over 96%) of the Group's net assets. They were also selected to provide an appropriate basis for
undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstatement identified above. Qur audit work on each of the three locations was
executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower than Group materiality and ranged from £6.2 million 1o
£9.4 million: (2016: £5.3 million to £79 million). The Group audit team also performed analytical procedures aver the Group's operations in the US,
which were not significant to the Group’s results.

At the Parent entity level we tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm cur conclusion that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining compenents not subject te audit or audit of
specified account balances.

We included all component audit teams in our team briefing and discussed their risk assessment. The audit procedures in the UK were performed
by members of the Group audit team. In the current year the Senior Statutory Auditor visited Gibrattar. For each of the businesses induded within
the programme of planned visits, the Group audit team discussed audit findings with the relevant component audit team throughout the audit
engagerment and reviewed relevant audit working papers.

Other information

Thedirectors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report therean.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing o, cansider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial staternents or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstaterment in the financial statements or a material misstaternent of the other information K, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repart that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstaternents of the other information include
where we conclude that:

— Fair, balanced and understandable — the staterment given by the directars that they consider the annual repart and financsal staterments taken
as awhole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for sharehclders to assess the Group's position and
performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

— Audit cemmittee reporting — the section describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately address matters cormmunicated by
us to the audit committee, or

~ Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code — the parts of the directors’ staternent reguired under the Listing
Rutes relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corparate Governance Code containing provisions specified for review by the auditor
in accordance with Listing Rule 3.810R{2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are respensible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for suchinternal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing as applicable, matters retated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidlate the Group cr the Parent Company or to cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurancea,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists.
Misstaterments can arise from fraud ar error and are considered material if, ndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financal statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at-
wwwircorg uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solety to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
waork has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them inan auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsitiility to anyone other than the
cormpany and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our opinion the part of the directars’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audrt:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Cornpany and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Cormpanies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Cormpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received fromn
branches nat visited by us, or

— the Parent Company financial staterments are not in agreernent with the accounting records and returns.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made
or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other matter

Auditaor tenure

The Parent Company was incorporated in 2001, We were appointed in Decernber 2001 to audit the financial statements for the period ended
1January 2002 and subsequent financial periods; this was just prior to the listing of the Parent Company on the London Stock Exchange.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 17 years, covering the periods ending
1January 2002 t0 26 Cecernber 2017 Also, we were appainted on 22 January 1991 to other Group entities to audit the financtal statements for

the period ending 1January 1991. The period of total uninterrupted engagernent inciuding previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is

28 years, covering the periods ending 1 January 1991 to 26 December 2017

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Qur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee we are required to provide in accordance with [SAs (UK).

Paul Franek FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor 2 !
Landon, United Kingdom

23 February 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

52 weeks ended 27 December 2016

Exceptional Exceptional
items and iterms ang
adjustments Statutory adjustrnents Statutory
Adjusted (note 3) total Adjusted (nated) total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 12 1,711 - 17111 16038 - 16028
Cost of sales 23 414.9) [Lral] (432.0) (382.2) - (3822
Gross profit 2 1206.2 azn 12791 12216 - 12216
EJt_hfar cperating Income 1 130 - 13.0 148 - 148
Other operating expenses 3 (1,018.9) (3179 (1,336.8) (9764 (359) (10123)
Share of results of associates 2.4 1.0 - 1.0 15 - 15
{Loss)/profit before interest and tax 25 2013 (335.0) @437) 2615 (359 2256
Investment incorme 13,7 09 55 6.4 17 32 49
Finance costs 8 {373) - (373) 492 - {492}
(Loss)/profit before tax 2 2549 (329.5) (74.6) 2140 (327 1813
Tax 39 (18.0) 94 (8.6) (19.8) 30 (16.8)
(Loss)/profit for the period {attributable to equity
holders of the parent} 23269 3201) (83.2) 1942 297 1645
(Loss)feamings per share (pence)
Basir n 276 ©.7) 23 189
Diluted n 75 ©n 22 88
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income H
for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017 ’%
E:
+
52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
26 Decernber 27 Decernier
17 2006
Naotes £m £m
(Loss)/profit for the period (832) 164.5
ems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: g‘
Actuarial remeasurements in defined benefit pension scheme 2 330 (178 %
Tax on remeasurements in defined benefit pension scherne 26 (5.6) 23 "
274 (15.5)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Loss on cash fiow hedges - on
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (89) 633
Changes in fair value of availabie-for-sale financial assets 6 40 (44) ?
(4.9) 588 &
-y
Cther comprehensive income for the period 225 433 g
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period (attributable to equity holders of the parent) (6507 2078
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Hedging
Called-up Share Capital Own and
share  premium redemption Merger shares translation Retained Total
capital  account resarve reserve held reserve  gamings equity
£m £m £m fm £m fm fm £m
At 27 December 2016 887 6893 6.8 261} {(985) (63.6) 6288 12255
Loss for the financial period - - - - - - 832 (832)
Actuarial remeasurements in defined benefit pension scheme
(note 32) - - - - - - 330 330
Tax on remeasurements in defined benefit pension scheme
{note 26) - - - - ~ - (5.6) (56)
Exchange differences an translation of foreign operations - - - - - 89) - (859)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(note 16) - - - - - 40 40
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - - - 8.9 (51.8) (607
Purchase and issue of own shares (note 28) - - - - {14 - on (1.5)
Transfer of own shares to recipients (note 28) - - - - 29 - 1.5) 14
Other shares issued during the pernod - i - - - - - Qa1
Credit recognised in respect of share remuneration (note 317) - - - - - - 52 52
Tax credit in respect of share remuneration {note 26) - - - - - - 08 08
Dividends paid (note 10) - - - - - - gogn (08N
At 26 December 2017 887 6894 6.8 261 (97.0) (725) 4734 10627
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
Hedging
Called-up Share Capital Own and
share premium redemption Merger shares tanslation Retained Total
captal  account reserve reserve held reserve  earnings equity
£m fm £fm £m £fm £m f£m £m
At 29 December 2015 884 686.6 6.8 261) @) (268 5910 12158
Profit for the financial period - - - - - - 1645 1645
Actuarial remeasurements in defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - (178) (178)
Tax on remeasurements in defined benefit pensicn scheme - - - - - - 23 23
Loss on cash flow hedges - - - - - on - ©on
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - - 633 - 633
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - @4 (@)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - - 632 W46 2073
Purchase and issue of own shares - - - - (950) - Q4 (954
Transfer of own shares to recipients - - - - 06 — 06) -
Other shares issued during the period 03 27 —- - - - 0.2) 28
Credit recognised in respect of share remuneration - - - - - - 61 61
Tax charge in respect of share remuneration — - - - - - (26) 26)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (108Q) (1020
At Z7 December 2016 887 6893 6.8 (261} {85 (63.6) 6289 12255
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position H
as at 26 December 2017 %
g
26 December 27 December
2007 2016
Notes £m fm
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 15773 18053
Property, plant and equipment 13 1905 2125
Interests in associates 15 286 308 g
Investments 16 94 S4 %
Deferred tax assets 26 127 28
Retirement benefit asset 32 587 155
Loans receivable 16 494 435
Derivative financial instruments 16 420 348
1,968.6 20510
Current assets n
Trade and other receivables 18 729 727 ;
Investment property held for sale 20 35 35 %
Cash and cash equivalents 19 3170 2155 g
3934 2917 [
Total assets 23620 24427
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 (455.5) (3704
Corporation tax liabilities 83) (257)
Derivative financial instruments 25 (141) {14.0)
(477.9) @0
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 (720.5) (718.6)
Deferred tax liabilities 26 (1009) (88.5)
(821.4) (8071}
Total Habilities (1,299.3) 01,2172}
Net assets 1,0627 12255
Equity
Called-up share capital 27 887 887
Share premiurm account 689.4 6893
Capital redemption reserve 68 6.8
Merger reserve (261) (261}
Own shares held 28 (970) (98.5)
Hedging and translation reserves 72.5) (636)
Retained earnings 473.4 6289
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,062.7 12255

The financial statements of William Hill PLC, registered number 4212563, were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on
23 Februaty 2018 and are signed onits behalf by:

P Bowc: R Pri )
Director \p@ Direc‘::;r 2’: C- /l
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 26 Decernber 2017

S2weeksended 52 weeks ended
26 December 27 December
2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Net cash from operating activities 29 2901 2658
Investing activities
Dividends from associates 15 i3 43
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 7 09 17
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.6 12
Proceeds on disposal of investment property - 08
Net cash flows relating to loans receivable - 14
Net proceeds from agreed sale of NY X investments 1.0 -
Net proceeds on disposal of Stadia operations 7 88 -
Acquisition of redeemable convertible preference shares in NYX Gaming Group
Limited (including associated costs) ~- 817)
Acquisition of ordinary shares and warrants in NYX Gaming Group Limited -~ (103)
Acquisition of Grand Parade Limited {net of cash acquired) - (120
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {1.2) (325}
Expenditure on intangible assets 78 (579)
Net cash used in investing activities (78.3) 1850}
Financing activities
Proceeds on issue of shares under share schemes o1 13
Purchase of own shares ©n (944)
Dividends paid 10 (1081 {1020)
Repayment of £300m Guaranteed notes - (3000)
Issue of £350rm Guaranteed notes due 2023 - 3500
Finance fees paid on £350m Guaranteed notes - {25
Net cash used in financing activities (1081} (154.6)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the period 1037 (737)
Changes in foreign exchange rates 2.2) 7
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 2155 2821
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 19 3170 2155
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Statement of Group Accounting Policies

General information

Williarn Hill PLC is a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is
Greenside House, 50 Station Road, London N22 7TP The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set aut in the Strategic
Reporton pages 11050 and note 2.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with cur accounting pelicies.

Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as issued by the
IASB. The Group financial statermnents have also been prepared in accordance with [FRSs adopted by the European Unicn.

The Group financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where certain assets or liabilities are held at amortised
cost or at fair value as described in our accounting policies. The key accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Adoption of new and revised standards

in preparing the Group financial staternents for the current period, the Group has adapted a number of new IFRSs, amendments to IFRSs and
IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC} interpretations, none of which have had a significant effect on the results or net assets of the Group. Alist
is provided in an appendix to the Annual Report.

Standards in issue but not effective
Acomplete list of standards that are in issue but not yet effective s included with our full accounting palicies in an appendix to the Annual Report.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ replaces 1AS 39 and is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group has
performed a high-level impact assessment of the key aspects of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes in the future.

Classification and measurement,

New classification and measurernent criteria require financial instrurments to be classified into one of the three categories being amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income, or fair value through profit or loss. The Group expects there to be nil impact based on our current
profile of financial instruments, excluding those held relating to NYX, which have been disposed of in January 2018.

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires the Group to use an expected credit loss model for its financial assets measured at amortised cost, either on a i2-monthora
lifetirme basis. The Group financial assets at amortised cost currently cansist of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and loans receivable.
None of these financial assets have a significant financing compeonent and the Group expects to apply the simolifieg approach and record
lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables and loans receivable measured at amortised cost. The Group does not expect these changes will
have a significantimpact.

Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting mechanism of IAS 339 has been retained, however greater flexibility has been introduced over the instruments
eligible for hedge accounting and effectiveness testing. The changes relating to hedge accounting are not expected toimpact the Group.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers, with an effective date for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018 Under IFRS 15, an entity
recognises revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 'control’ of the goads or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

The Group's core revenues of sports betting and gaming are not within the scope of IFRS 15. Other operating income mostly represents rents
receivable on properties let by the Group, bookmaking software licensing incame, bookmaking services income and income from software
development. Rents receivable is also not within the scope of IFRS 15

Early assessment of the new standard suggests that the performance obligations of bookmaking software licensing income, bookmaking
services income and income from software development are satisfied over tirme and that the method currently used to measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations will continue to be appropriate under IFRS 15,

The Group expects there to be an immaterial impact on the financial staternenits on adoption of IFRS 15,

IFRS 16 'Leases’ will replace |AS 17 in its entirety and is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It will result in most
leases being recognised on the Statement of Financial Position. The Group continues to assess the full mpact of IFRS 16 but since the impact

is influenced by interest rates in future years, it is not yet possible to reasonably guantify its effects. At this stage, the directors assess that the
implementation of the new standard will likely have a material impact upen the Group’s reported performance, Statement of Financial Position
and operating cash flows.
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Statement of Group Accounting Policies continued

Key accounting policies

Below we st olt our key accounting palicies. A complete ist of our accounting policies is included in the Annual Report as an appendix on
pages 15810162

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from customers and represents amounts receivable for goods
and services that the Greup is in business to provide, net of discounts, marketing inducements and VAT, as set cut below.

In the case of the LBO (including gaming machines}, LIS, Online Sportshook and telebetting, Online casing {including games on the Online arcade
and other numbers bets) and Australian operations, revenue represents gains and losses fraom gambling activity in the period. Open positions are
carried at fair value and gains and losses arising on this valuation are recognised in revenue, as well as gains and losses realised on positions that
have closed. Revenue fram the Online poker business reflects the netincome (rake) earned from poker games completed by the period end.

Other operating income mostly represents rents receivable on properties let by the Group, bookmaking software licensing income, bookmaking
services income and income from software development, which are recognised on an accruals basis.

Going concern

A full description of the Group’s business activities, financial position, cash flows, liquidity position, committed facilities and borrowing position,
together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance, is set out in the Strategic Report, including the Financial Review,
and in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements.

As highlighted in notes 22 and 23 to the Group financial statements, the Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements from the
positive cash flows generated by its trading activities and its availabie cash resources, These are supplemented when required by additional
drawings under the Group's revalving credit bank loan facilities, which are committed until May 2019, Whilst there are a number of risks 1o the
Group's trading performance, as summarised in the ‘Managing our risks’ section on pages 45 to 50, the Group is confident of its ability to continue
to access sources of funding in the medium term. The Group's strategic forecasts, based on reasonable assumptions, indicate that the Group
should be able to operate within the level of its currently available and expected future fadlities and its banking covenants for the period of the
strategic forecast.

After making enquiries and after consideration of the Group's existing operations, cash flow forecasts and assessment of business, regulatory and
financing risks, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operattonal
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adont the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Exceptional items and adjustments
The Group presents adjusted results, as described in note 3, which differ from statutory results due to the exclusion of exceptional items
and adjustmendts.

Exceptional items are those items the directors consider to be ane-off or material in nature that should be brought to the reader’s attention
in understanding the Group's financial performance.

Adjustments are recurring items that are excluded from internal measures of underlying performance and which are nct considered by the
directors to be exceptional. They comprise the following:

— the amortisation of specific intangible assets recognised in acquisitions,

— the recagnition of interest income on redeemabile convertible preference shares (see notes 16 and 24); and

— fair value movernents relating to redeemable corwertible preference shares and warrants over equity instruments (see notes 16 and 24).

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accourtbing policies, which are described in the key accounting policies above and in the Statement of Group
Accounting Policies included on pages 158 to 162, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabiities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and asscciated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements

The fallowing are the critical accounting jJudgements, apart from those involving estimates {which are dealt with separately below) that the
directors have made 1n the process of applying the Group’s accounting pelicies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
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Taxation

Due to the multi-nationaf nature of the Group and the complexity of tax legislation in various jurisdictions in which the Group operates, the
directors must apply judgement in assessing the likely outcome of certain tax matters whose final outcome may not be determined fora
number of years. in forming that judgement, the directors make assumptions regarding the interpretation and application of tax laws to the
circumstances of those specific items.

These judgements are reassessed in each period until the outcorne is finalty determined through resolution with a tax autharity and/or through
alegal process. Differences arising from changes in judgement or from final resolution may be material and will be charged or credited to the
Income Statement in the relevant period.

Within the Group’s net current tax liability of £8.3m (27 Decemnber 2016 £25 7m) are amounts of £11.6m (27 December 2076 £21.4m} that relate to
uncertain tax pasitions (see note 9). The Group evaluates uncertain iters, where the tax treatment is subject to interpretation 2nd remains to be
agreed with the relevant tax authority. Provisions for uncertain items are made using judgement of the most likely tax expected to be paid, based
on a qualitative assessment of all relevant information. In assessing the appropriate provision for uncertain iterms, the Group considers progress
made in discussions with tax authorities, expert advice on the likely outcome and recent developments in case law.

Exceptional itemns and restructuring costs

The Group separately reports exceptional items in order to calculate adjusted results, as it believes these measures provide additional useful
information an underlying performance and trends to shareholders. Specifically the Group has incurred a range of costs relating to the current
Group-wide transformation programme, many of which have been presented as restructuring costs within exceptional iterns.

Judgement is required in deterrmining whether an itern should be classified as an exceptional itern within restructuring costs or included within the
undertying resuits. The Group’s definition of exceptional iterns and restructuring costs are outlined in note 3.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financiat period are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill or intangible assets have been allccated. The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Note 12
provides information on the assumptions usad in these financial statements, as well as the degree of sensitivity to changes in assumptions.

The Triennial Review of Stakes and Prizes is currently ongoing and the timing of recommendations from the UK Government remains undlear.
These will ikely include changes to the regulaticn of the maximum stakes on gaming machines. A severely adverse outcome would significantly
increase the risk of a material impairment of assets in the Retail division. Although the result of the Triennial Review is nat yet known, based on
the impairment review conducted at 26 Decembier 2077 for the Retail CGU, a 20% fall in future cash flows, with all other things heing equal, would
lead to animpairment of £110.9m; a 30% fall in future cash fiows would lead to animpairment of £270.3m; a 40% fall in future cash flows would
lead to an impairment of £429.6m and a 50% fall would lead to an impairment of £588.9m

In Australia, the South Australia State Government introduced a Point of Consurnption Tax (POCT ‘Y on betting at 15% of gross win, The Western
Australia State Government has also announced a POCT of 15% commencing on 1 January 2019. Other states are expected to follow this trend
and the impairment review performed at 26 December 2017 incorporates probability weighted cash flows of POCT being enacted by these other
states (note 12). The actual decisions made by the different states may differ from the estimated probabilities and an adverse outcorme could lead
to further impairments in the Australia CGU.

Retirement benefit costs

The determinaticn of the pensicn cost and defined benefit abligation of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme depends on the selection
of certain assurnptions which include discount rate, inflation rate and mortality assumnptions. Differences arising from actual experience or
future changes in assumptions will be reflected in subsequent periods. Note 32 provides information on the assumptions used in these financial
statements, including a sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities.
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1. Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

S2weels ended 52 weeks ended
26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Rendering of services disclosed as revenue in the Consaldated Income Staternent 1,711 16038
Other aperating income 13.0 148
Interest on cash and cash equivalents {note 7) 09 17
Investrnent income on redeemable convertible preference shares (notes 3 and 7) 5.5 32
Total revenue as defined in IAS 18 1,730.5 16235

Other operating income mostly represents rents recevable on properties iet by the Group, bookmaking software ficensing income, bockmaking
services income and income from software developrment.

2. Segment information

The Board has reviewed and confirmed the Group's reportable segments in line with the guidance provided by IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’
The segments disclosed below are aligned with the reports that the Group’s Chief Executive Officer as Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews
to make strategic decisions.

The Retail segment comprises ali activity undertaken in LBOs including garming machines. The Online segment comprises all online and telephone
activity outside of Australia and the US, including sports betting, casing, poker sites and other gaming products atong with telephone betting
services. The US segment comprises all activity undertaken in the USA. The Australia segment comprises online and telephone sports betting

in Australia. Other activities include on-course betting and greyhound stadia operations. The greyhound stadia operations were disposed of on
31July 2077, see note 17. There are no inter-segmental sales within the Group.

Segment performance is shown on an adjusted basis, with a reconciliation from adjusted operating profit to statutory results for clarity.
Information for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017 is as follows:

Retail Online us Australia Other® Corporate Group
£m £Em £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 913.1 6169 56.5 nez 49 - 1,711
GPT, duty, levies and other costs
of sales (2336) (144.6) “%.9) (314 [(§FA] — 414.9)
Gross profit 6795 4723 516 883 45 - 1,296.2
Depreciation {239) (03} (14} 0.2} {@n 26) (301}
Amaortisation 9 (341} Q2) 90} - - {524}
Other administrative expenses (4856} (304.8) 323 (6086) 4.6) (355) (9234)
Share of results of associates - - - - - 10 10
Adjusted operating
prefit/{loss)’ 1609 1325 177 5 02 G71) 293
Operating exceptional items and
adjustments 73 24.3) 30 (238.6) (25) {592} (3350)
Profit/(loss) before
interest and tax 153.6 108.2 14.6 [rrak}] @n 963) (43.7)
Investment income 64 B4
Finance costs (373) (373
Loss before tax (74.6)

1 Adjusted operating profit is defined as profit before interest and tax, excluding exceptional items and other defined adjustments. Further detail on adjusted measures is
provided in note 3.

2 The Other segment includes the results of the greyhound stadia eperations up to disposal on 31 July 2017, see note (17).
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2. Segment information continued '%
Retaif Onbne us Australia Other Corporate Group

At 26 Decernber 2017 Em £m £m £m £m £m £m

Statement of financial

position information

Total segment assets 14068 4199 646 1328 - 3252 23493

Total segment liabilities 961} (2269) 24.6) (314) - 8nn (17901 g

Inciuded within total assets: 3
Goodwill 6807 1933 24 8627 - - 959]
Other intangibies with
indefinite lives 4843 - - - - - 4843
Interests in associates - - - - — 287 287
Capital additions 316 448 19 93 - a3 975

Net assets/{liabilities) have been allocated by segrment based on the information reviewed by the Graup’s Chief Executive Officer Corporate net 5
assets include net borrowings and the net defined benefit pension asset as well as any assets and liabilities that cannot be aliocated to a E
particular segment other than on an arbitrary basis. The above analysis excludes corporation tax and deferred tax-related balances. g
&
Capital additions in the above table are stated on an accruals basis. g
@
Segment information for the 52 weeks ended 27 December 2016
Retail Online us Austraiia Other Corporate Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 8939 544.8 437 ekl 76 - 1,603.8
GPT, duty, levies and cther costs
of sales (2270) (1201) @0) (30.3) (0.8) - (382.2)
Gross profit 666.9 4247 397 SERS 68 - 1,216
Depreciation {(25.5) 08 12 (09 02 B0 (31.6)
Amaortisation (54) (36.3) on 6.8) - - 48.6)
QOther administrative expenses 474.0) 287 (243} (604) (6.7) (291 (8814)
Share of results of associates - — - - - 15 15
Adjusted operating
profit/(loss) 162.0 1005 43 15.4 on (30.6) 2615
Operating exceptional items and
adjustments 04 02) 21 7 - (323 (359)
Profit/(loss) before
interest and tax 162.4 99.3 122 %7 [(a})] {62.9) 256
Investment income 49 49
Finance costs 492 492)
Profit before tax 1813

1 Adjusted operating profit is defined as profit before interest and tax, exchiding excepticnal itens and other defined agjustments. Further detad on adjusted measures is
provided in note 3.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2. Segment information continued

Retail Online us Australia Other Corporate Group
At 27 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Statement of financial
position information
Total segment assets 13983 4088 £35 3645 15 1933 24399
Total segment liabtlities (902} (1834) 2010 390) ©4) (7699) (11030)
Included within total assets:
Goodwill 6807 1928 244 3045 a - 12085
Other intangibles with
indefinite lives 4843 - - - - - 4843
Interests in associates - — - - - 308 308
Capital addrtions 318 348 24 157 - 26 873

Net assets/(liabilities) have been allocated by segment based on the information reviewed by the Group's Chief Executive Officer. Corporate net
assets include net borrowings and the net defined benefit pension iability as well as any assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated
10 a particular segment other than on an arbitrary basis. The above analysis excludes corporation tax and deferred tax-related balances

Capital additions in the above table are stated on an accruals basis.

Revenues and non-current assets by geographical area are as follows:

Revenues Non-current assets
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 Decermnber 27 December 26 Decemnber 27 Decernber
2017 2016 2017 2016
£m fm £m £m
United Kingdom 1,393.0 1,3172 15722 15154
Rest of the World 3181 2866 396.4 6356
17111 16038 1968.6 21510

Revenue information is based on the location of the customer, Non-current asset information is based on physical location (for property, plant
and equipment) or primary operating location of the Company using the asset (for all ather assets).

3. Exceptional items and adjustments
Adjusted results

The Group reports adjusted results, both internally and externally, that differ from statutory results prepared in accordance with IFRS. These
adjusted results, which include our KPIs of adjusted operating profit and adjusted EPS, are considered by the directors to be a useful reflection
of the underlying performance of the Group and its businesses, since they exclude transactions which impair visibility of the underlying activity
in divisions. Mare specifically, the directors judge that visibility can be impaired in one or both of the following instances.

— atransaction is of such a material or infrequent nature that it would obscure an understanding of underlying cutcomes and trends in revenues,
costs or other compenents of performance {for example, a sigrificant impairment charge); or

— atransaction that results from a corporate ac tivity that has neither a close relationship to our businesses’ operations nor any associated
operational cash flows (for example, the amortisation of intangibles recognised on acquisitions).

Adjusted results are used as the primary measures of business performance within the Group and align with the results shown in managerment
accounts, with the key uses being:

— management and Board reviews of performance against expectations and over time, including assessments of divisional performance (see
note 2 and the Strategic Report);
— Remuneration Committee assessments of targets and performance for management remuneration purposes (see pages 770 97},

— insupport of business decisions by the Board and by management, encompassing both strategic and operational levels of decision-making;
and

— assessments of loan covenant compliance, which refer to adjusted results,

The Group's policies on adjusted measures have been consistently applied over time, but they are not defined by IFRS and, therefore, may differ
from adjusted measures as used by other companies.

The Consolidated Income Statement presents adjusted results alongside statutory measures, with the recondiling items being itermised and
described below. We discriminate between twe types of reconciling iterns; exceptional items and defined other adjustments.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items the directors consider to be one-off or material in nature that should be brought to the reader's attention in
uncerstanding the Group's financial performance.
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3. Exceptional items and adjustments continued
Adjustments

Adjustments are recurring items that are excluded fromintermnat measures of underlying performance and which are not considered by the
directors to be exceptional. They comprise the following:

— the amertisation of specific intangible assets recognised in acquisitions;

— the recognition of interest income on redeemable corvertible preference shares {see notes 16 and 24);, and

— fair value movements relating to redeernable convertible preference shares and warrants aver equity investments {see notes 16 and 24).
These items are defined as adjustments as the directors believe they would impair the visibility of the underiying activities across the divisions
asthey are not closely related to the businesses’ or any associated operational cash flows. These items are recurring, with the amortisation of
specific intangible assets recognised in acquisitions recognised over thair useful fife and for the interest income and fair value movenents on the
redeenable convertible preference shares, these are recognised over the ten-year life of the instrument. Atthough the sale of the redeemabie

convertible preference shares was agreed in the pericd, it was assessed the disposal did not complete until January 2018 (see note 16) and
therefore these iterns have been classified as adjustments as they are considered recurring up to the point of disposal

Exceptional items and adjustments are as follows:

podal yalens

ANRLLBROO

SjuBwaE}s [EpUeL

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
i 26 Decernber Exceptional 27 Cecember
items Adiustments X7 itemns Adjustments 2016
fm £m £m £m £m £m
Operating
Cost of sales
Indirect taxation a7z - {171} - - -
Other operating expenses
Restructuring costs (54.4) - (54.4) (10.2) - 0.2}
Portfolio shop closures {73} - 73 04 - 04
impairment of Austratia goodwill 238.3) - {(238.3) - - -
Onerous contract (10.0) - (10.0) - - -
Compliance fines (6.2) - 6.2) - - -
Disposal of Stadia operations 2.5) - {25) - - -
Legal fees (1.3} - (1.3} - - -
Corporate transaction costs' - - - 98 - @8
Fair value movements on derivative financial
instruments - 72 7.2 - (99} (99)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles - &1 (3] - 64) (64)
(3371) 21 (335.0) {19.6) (1e.3) (359)
Non-operating
Investrment income on redeemable convertible
preference shares - 55 55 - 32 32
- 55 55 - 32 32
Total exceptional itemns and adjustments
before tax 3373 76 (329.5) (19.6) 131 (327
Tax on exceptional items and adjustments 83 11 94 25 05 30
Exceptional tax items - - - - - -
Total exceptional iterns and adjustments (328.8) 8.7 3200) (171 (126) (297

1 During 2016, the Group incurreg material costs relating to M&A activity, reflecting two proposed corporate transactions. These costs were presented as exceptional,
since they were material in size, one-off in nature and would ctherwise have distorted an understanding of our underlying cost base

Indirect taxation

The Group has accrued for certain indirect taxes that it now expects to pay following a clarification on tax interpretations. The retrospective
element has been presented as exceptional within Cost of sales in light of the material scale and one-off nature of the charge.

Restructuring costs

This is a continuation of the substantial corporate restructurings the Group commenced in 2016, referred to as the transformation orogramme in
the Strategic Report, encompassing cost optimisation and business model initiatives. This is part of a Group-wide programme, which is expected
to complete in 2019, This programme, whose costs include fees for external advisers, provisions for onerous property leases and the cost of staff
redundancies, are substanitial in scope and impact and do not form part of recurring operaticnal or management activities that the directors

would consider part of our underlying performance. For these reasans, the directors judge the directly attributable cost impact to be exceptional.
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3. Exceptional items and adjustments continued

Portfolio shop closures

During 2017, as part of the ongoing Group-wide transformation programme, the Group performed a full strategic review of the shop estate.

This review led to the closure of 25 shops with a provision made for onerous leases and other costs of closure. This strategic review was a one-off
exercise leading to a material expense and, therefore, the directors judge the cost to be exceptional. A further 14 shops were closed during the
period in the normal course of business upon expiry of their leases and their costs are not included within this exceptional item.

impairment of Australia goodwill

Given the adverse regulatary changes and the strategic review of the Australian business currently being undertaken, management have
recognised an impairment of goodwill In the Australia CGU (see note 12). This has been presented as an exceptional item due to both its material
scale and one-off nature.

Onerous contract

The Group has recagnised the costs of a specific contract where a change in strategy due to the transformation programme meant that the
contract was considered onerous with no econamic benefits expeacted to be recewved. This has been presented as exceptional given it is material
and related to a specific one-off contract.

Compliance fines

The Group has entered into a regulatory settlernent with the UK Gambling Cornmissicn and, as a result, the Group has agreed to pay a total
package of £6.2m, including a sum of £1.2m to be returned to affected parties. This has been presented as exceptional given the settlement is a
one-off materiat transaction.

Disposal of Stadia operations

On 31 July 2017, the Group sold its Greyhound Stadia operations to Arena Racing Company. The Group recognised a loss on dispasal of £2.5m,
including costs to sell of £0.7m (see note 17). This has been dassified as exceptional as itis a one-off transaction and is material in the context of
the Other segment.

Legal fees

These represent our fees in respect of legal action foliowing the 2012 acquisition of businesses in Nevada, LiSA. These have been dassified as
exceptional given they are material in the context of the US segment and due to the potential of damages and fees being awarded to the Group
which would be treated as an exceptional gain due to their material scale and one-off nature.

4. Share of results of associates

52 weeks 52 weaks

ended ended

26 December 27 December

201 20186

£m £m

Share of results after taxation in associated undertakings 10 15

The above represents the Group's share of the results of Sports Information Services (Holdings) Limited and NeoGames S.arfaswellasa
dividend received from 49's Limited, further details of which are given in note 15.

5. (Loss)/profit before interest and tax
(Lossyprofit before interest and tax has been arrived at after charging/{crediting)

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 December 27 Decermnber

207 2015

£m £m

Net foreign exchange losses 04 12
Loss/{gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 0.4 %7
Staff costs (ncte 6) 3720 3489
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 13) 301 316

Amortisation of intangitle assets (note 12) 575 550
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5. {Loss)/profit before interest and tax continued
Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates are shown below:
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 December
2017 2016
£m £rn g
Audit fees z
Fees payable ta the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 04 03 A
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to iegislation 02 02
0.6 Qs
Non-audit fees
Other assurance services 01 09
01 09
Total fees payable to Deloitte LLP Q7 14 3‘1
Deloitte LLP does not provide services far the Group’s pension schemes g
The audit fees payable to Deloitte LLP are reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee to ensure such fees are competitive. The g
Audit and Risk Management Committee sets the policy for awarding non-audit work to the auditor and reviews the nature and extent of such &
work and related fees in order to ensure that independence is maintained. The fees disclosed above consclidate all payments made to Deloitte
LLP by the Company and its subsidiaries during the period and are presented net of VAT and other sales taxes.

6. Staff costs

The average monthly number of persons employed, including directors, during the period was 16,436 (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016: 16,286),
all of whom are engaged in the administration and provision of betting and gaming services and the operation of stadia up to date of dispasal.
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 3274 3053
Social security costs 252 233
Share-based remuneration (inclusive of provisions for sccial security) 57 54
Other pension net costs (note 32) 137 139
320 3489

Remeasurement {gain)/loss in defined benefit scheme (note 32) (33.0) 178
Total staff costs 339.0 3667

The £33.0m relating to remeasurement gains {52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: £17.8m loss} has been recognised in other comprehensive
income. The remainder of staff costs above were charged to the Income Statement, with certain staff costs relating to restructuring costs
classified as exceptionat items.

7. Investment income

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 December 27 December

01 2016

£m £m

Interest on cash and cash equivalents 09 17
Investment income on redeemable convertible preference shares (note 3) 55 32

6.4 49
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8. Finance costs

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 Decomber 27 Decemmber
2017 2016
£m m
Interest payable and similar charges:
Bank loans, bonds and overdrafts 36.0 476
Amortisation of finance costs 1.8 26
Interest payable E74:] 50.2
Interest on net pension scheme assets or liabilities (nate 32) {0.5) (10)
373 492
9. Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities
Thetax chargef(credit) comprises:
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 December
2017 2016
fm £m
Current tax;
UK corporation tax 163 234
Overseas tax 100 72
Adjustment in respect of prior periods {15.7) (144
Total current tax charge 10.6 26.2
Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 29 (28)
Impact from changes in statutory tax rates - &1
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 09 ©5)
Total deferred tax credit 0 (94)
Total tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities 8.6 68

The effective tax rate in respect of adjusted results was 71% (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016: 9.3%). The effective tax ratein respect of
statutory results was minus 11.5% (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016: 9.3%). The current period's charge was lower than the UK statutory
rate of 19.25% mainly due to adjustments in respect of prior periods’ uncertain tax positions, lower tax rates on overseas profits and timing

differences not recognised in deferred tax, partially offset by non-deductible expenditure.

The difference between the total tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corparation tax to the (lossy

profit befare tax is as follows:

52 weeks ended 26 Decemnber 2017 52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016
Exceptional Exceptionat

iterns and Statutory iterns and Statutory

Adjusted adjustrments total Adjusted  adjustments total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

({Loss)/profit before tax 2549 {329.5) (74.6) 2140 327 1813

Tax on Group {loss)/profit at standard UK corporation tax rate

of 19.25% (2016: 20%) 491 (63.4) (14.3) 428 B5) 363
Impact of changes in statutory tax rates - - - ((SX)] - 61
Different tax rates in overseas territories (16.8) 29 (13.9) (139 — (139)

Accrual of liabilities for uncertain tax positions 3.2 - 32 104 - 104
Timing differences not recognised in deferred tax {6.5) - (6.5) - - -
Tax on share of results of associates ()] - N 02) - 02)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (14.8) - (14.8) (149) - (14.9)

Non-deductible expenditure 39 511 55.0 17 35 52

Total tax charge/(credit) 180 9.4) 8.6 198 20 16.8
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9. Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities continued
Non-deductible expenditure includes exceptional costs that are non-revenue related. The deduction for tax rates in overseas territories reflects
the lower effective tax rate on profits earned in Gibraltar, partially offset by a higher tax rate on US profits.
The tax credit in respect of prior periods reflects the routine closure of prior period tax returns with tax authorities and the net release of
provisions previously held for specific uncertain tax positions of £14.0m.
The effective tax rate in 2018 is expected to be 14% and should remain at around this level whilst the business operates in the same territories g
and at the same scale. g
m
10. Dividends proposed and paid
52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
eruded ended ended ended
26 Decernber 27 December 26 Decemnber 27 Decemnber
2017 2016 2017 206
Per share Per share £m £m
Equity shares: T
~current period interimn dividend paid 43p 41p 365 356 a
&
~prior period final dividend paid 8.4p 84p .6 734 B
27 250 1081 030 | §
A
Proposed final dividend 89p 84p 76.8 721

The proposed final dividend of 8 34p will, subject to shareholder approval, be paid on 7 June 2018 1o all shareholders on the register on 27 April
2018. Inline with the requirerments of IAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period’, this dividend has not been recognised within these results.
The Group estimates that approximately 859 miltion shares will qualify for the final dividend.

Under an agreernent signed in November 2002, The Williarn Hiit Holdings 2001 Employee Benefit Trust agreed to waive all dividends. Shares held
in treasury also do not qualify for dividends. Details of shares held by the wiliam Hill Holdings 2001 Employee Benefit Trust and held in treasury
are giveninnote 28.

. {Loss)/earnings per share
The (lossiearnings per share figures for the respective periods are as follows:

52 weeks ended 26 Decernber 2017 52 weeks ended 27 December 2016

Potentialty Pctentially

dilutive dilutive

share share
Basic options Dihrted Basic options Diluted

(Lossiprofit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent

for the financial period (Em) (83.2) - {83.2) 1645 - 1645
Adusted profit after tax for the financial period (Em) 2369 - 2369 1842 - 194.2
Weighted average number of shares (million} 8569 4.8 8617 8718 30 8748
{Lossyeamnings per share (pence) ©97) - ()] 189 o1 188
Eamings per share — adjusted {pence) 276 [(o}}] 275 223 on 222

An adjusted earnings per share, based on adjusted profits (as described in note 3), has been presented in order to highlight the underlying
performance of the Group. The basic weighted average number of shares excludes shares held by The William Hill Holdings 2001 Employee
Benefit Trust and thaose shares held in treasury as such shares do not qualify for dividends. The effect of this was to reduce the average number
of shares by 30.4 million (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016 14.4 million).

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share as the potentially dilutive share options are considered antidilutive as they would
reduce the loss per share and therefore they are disregarded in the calcutation.
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12. Intangible assets
Brands, trade
names and Acquired
Licence custormer technology Computer
Goodwill value  relationships platforms software Total
£m £m fm £m fm £m
Cost:
At 29 December 2015 11874 4843 1536 B3 2412 20748
Additions via business combination 89 - 28 16 - 133
Additions - - - - 55.6 556
Effect of foreign exchange rates 54.8 - 48 1 56 663
At 27 Decernber 2016 12511 4843 1612 no 3024 22100
Additions - - - - 807 807
Impairment iosses (2383 - - - - (2383
Disposals (note 17) 7 - - - - {7
Effect of foreign exchange rates 50 - (14) - 09} 73
At 26 December 2017 1,0007 4843 159.8 1o 3822 20380
Accumulated amortisation:
At 29 Decemnber 2015 416 - 1404 7 1534 3425
Charge for the period - - 48 28 474 550
Effect of foreign exchange rates - - 27 1 34 72
At 27 Decernber 2016 416 - 1479 no 2042 4047
Charge for the period - - 51 - 524 575
Effect of foreign exchange rates - - 09) - 0B) (1.5)
At 26 December 2017 41.6 - 1521 no 256.0 460.7
Net book value:
At 26 December 2017 2591 4843 77 - 126.2 15773
At 27 December 2016 12095 4843 133 - 882 18053

Licences are judged to have an indefinite life and are accordingly not amortised but are subject to annual impairment reviews. The directors
consider that the Group’s ficences have an indefinite life owing to: the fact that the Group is a significant operator in a well-established market; the
proven and sustained demand for bocokmaking services, and the Group's track record of successfully renewing its betting permits and licences.
Brands, trade names and customer relationships

This category of assets includes brands, trade names and customer relationships recognised in business combinations. These include the
following significant items:

(i} US assets

In 2012, the Group acquired three US businesses. Brands and other assets of £13.1m were recognised and are being amortised over lives

of between three and ten years. Certain assets were fully amortised in the current period.

(ii) Sportingbet assets

In March 2073, the Group acquired businesses and assets from the Sportingbet group, including operations under the Centrebet brand. Brand and
custorner relationship assets were recognised of £1631m and these are being amortised over lives ranging up to 12 years.

(i) Grand Parade assets

In 2016, the Group acquired Grand Parade Limited. Customer relationships and brand assets of £2.8m were recognised on acquisition and are
being amortised over a life of 18 months.

Impairment reviews

The Group performs an annual impairment review for goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives, by comparing the carrying
amount of these assets with their recoverable amount. This is an area where the directors exercise jJudgement and estimation, as noted on
page 115. The most recent test was conducted at 26 Decemnber 2077 Testing is carried out by allecating the carrying value of these assetsto
cash-generating units (CGUs) and determining the recoverabie amounts of those CGUs through value in use calcufations. Where the recoverable
amount exceeds the carrying value of the assets, the assets are considered as not impaired.

Value in use calculations are based upan estimates of future cash flows derived from the Group's long-range adjusted operating profit forecasts
by division. Adjusted cperating profit forecasts are derived from the Group’s annual strategic planmng or similarly scoped exercise.
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These are forecasts, looking four years ahead, with separate extrapolation of net revenue and expenses by division based on a combination of
recently observable trends, management expectations and known future events. Far the purposes of the value in use calculation, the long-range
operating forecast 1s extended to cover a five-year period. Year one of the long-range adjusted operating profit forecast is replaced immediatety
prior to use if an annual budget for that year has been subsequently approved. This is done to ensure that year one of the test reflects the latest
detailed planning for that pericd. The implications, if any, of a materially different adjusted operating profit outcome for annual budget versus the
relevant year of the long range forecast are also considered at that point. Cash flows beyond that five-year period are extrapolated using long-
term growth rates as estimated for each CGU separately. Both the following year's budget and the long-range adiusted operating profit forecasts
are approved by the Board.

Discount rates are applied to each CGLI's cash fiows that reflect both the time vaiue of money and the risks that apply to the cash flows of that
CGU. Discount rates are caiculated using the weighted average cost of capital formula based on the CGU's leveraged beta. The leverage beta is
determinad by management as the median unleveraged beta of Iisted gaming and betting companies, with samples chosen where applicabie
from comparable markets or territories as the CGU, leveraged to the CGUs and Group's capital structure. Furtber risk premia and discounts

are applied, if appropriate, to this rate to reflect the nsk profile of the specific CGU relative to the market in which it operates Qur discount

rates are cakulated on a pre-tax basis and the calculations incorporate estirmates of the tax rates that will apply to the future cash flows of the
applicable CGU

The principal assumptions underlying our cash flow forecasts are as follows:

— we assume that the undertying business model will continue to operate on a comparable basis, as adjusted for key sporting events, known
regulatory or tax changes and planned business initiatives;

— our forecasts anticipate the continuation of recent growth or decline trends in staking, gaming net revenues and expenses, as adjusted for
changes inour business madel ar expected changes in the wider industry or economy;

— we assume that we will achieve our target sports betting gross win margins as set for each territory, which we base upon our expenence of the
outturn of sports results over the long term, given the tendency for sports results to vary in the short term but revert to a narm over a longer
term; and

~ inaur annual budget process, expenses iNcorporate a bottom-up estimation of our cost base. For employee remuneration, this takes intc
account staffing numbers and modeis by division, while other costs are assessed separately by category, with principal assumptions inciuding
an extrapalation of recent cost inflation trends and the expectation that we will incur costs in line with agreed contractual rates.

The other significant assumptions incorporated into our impairment reviews are those relating to discount rates and long-term growth
assumptions, as noted below separately for each CGU.

CGUs
Long-term
Discournt rate growth rate
Cash-genemating unit % %
Retail 9] Q0
Online 83 26
us 122 30
Australia ns 26

Australia CGQU recognised an impairment of £238.3m in Other operating expenses as an exceptional item (note 3). The impairment reflects the
changes in regulation in Australia, both the ban on credit betting and the Point of Consumption Tax (POCT’), as well as the strategic review
being undertaken by management due to the regulation changes. During the year the South Australia State Government introduced a POCT
on betting at 15% of gross win. The Western Australia State Government. have alsc announced a POCT of 15% commencing on 1January 2018
The cash flow forecasts incorporate the impact from these tax changes as they are known. They also include prabability weighted cash flows of
POCT being enacted by other states No impairment was identified in any of the other CGUs tested.

The CGUs are defined as their segment, which we describe in note 2. The carrying value of each CGU's goodwill and indefinite lives intangitle
assets is as below:

Indefinite life
Goodwill intangibles Total
Cash-generating unit £m fm fm
Retail 6807 484.3 1E50
Online 1933 - 1933
us 224 -~ 24
Australia 627 - 627

Sensitivity of impairment reviews
For CGUs reviewed at 26 December 2017, no imparment would occur under any reasonable possible changes in assumptions upon which the
recoverable amount was estimated, other than a 20% decrease in future cash flows would lead to a £110 9m impairment for the Retail CGU.

The recoverable amount of the Retail CGU exceeds the carrying amount by £2077m. A decrease in forecast operating cash flows of 13.0% would
lead to the recoverable armount of the Retall CGU equaliing the carrying amount.

—
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12. Intangible assets continued

The Triennial Review of Stakes and Prizes is currently ongaing and the timing of recommendations from the UK Government rermains ynclear,
These will likety include changes to the regulation of the maximum stakes on gaming machines. A severely adverse outcorme would significantly
increase the risk of a material impairment of assets in the Retail division. Although the result of the Triennial Review is not yet known, based on the
impairment review conducted for the Retal CGU, a 30% fall in future cash flows, with all other things being equal, would lead to an impairment of
£270 3m; a 40% fall in future cash flows would lead to an impairment of £429.6m and a 50% fall weuld lead to animpairment of £588.3m.

In Australia, the impairment review performed incorperates prabability weighted cash flows of POCT being enacted by additional states.
The actual decisions made by the different states may differ from the estimated probabilities and an adverse cutcorne could lead to further

impairments in the Australia CGU.

13. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
Land and fittings and
buildings equipment Total
£m £m fm
Cost:
At 29 December 2015 3901 126.8 5169
Additions via business combination - 02 02
Additions 122 195 317
Disposals 57) ©04) ®1)
Effect of foreign exchange rates 14 25 39
At 27 December 20%6 3980 1486 546.6
Additions 139 29 68
Disposals 210) L)} (220}
Effect of foreign exchange rates 105) (%) 012
At 26 December 2077 3904 1498 540.2
Accumulated depreciation:
At 29 December 2015 2089 974 3063
Charge for the period 242 74 36
Disposals (53) 03 (5.6)
Effect of foreign exchange rates 07 1 18
At 27 Decernber 2016 285 105.6 3341
Charge for the period 221 80 301
Dispasals (133 06) (139)
Effect of foreign exchange rates 02 04 06)
At 26 December 2017 2371 m.6 3497
Net book value:
At 26 December 2017 1533 372 1905
At 27 December 2016 1695 430 2125
The net book value of land and buildings comprises:
26 Decernber 27 Decernber
2017 2016
£m £Em
Freehold 276 337
Long leasehold improvernents 79 86
Short ieasehold improvements s 1272
1533 1695

Of the total net bogk value of land and buikdings, £36m (27 December 2016: £3.8m) relates to administrative buildings and the remainder
represents LBCs in the UK and betting locations in Nevada. The cost of assets on which depreciation is not provided amounts to £4.8m,
representing freehold land (27 December 2016: £4.9m). There are no assets within property, plant and equipment held under finance leases
at 26 Decemnber 2017 or 27 December 2016. At 26 December 2017, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment amounting to £2.5m {27 Decemnber 2016: £0.4m).
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V4. Subsidiaries
In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings as at 26 December 2017 the address of their
registered office and their country of incorporation is shown befow. The entire issued share capital 1s held within the Group except where
ctherwise shown.
Proportion of all classes
of issued share o
capital owned g
by the Company 2
Directly owned: 2
William Hill Holdings Limited ® Great Britain 100%
Heldd through intermediate companies Held through intermediate companies
Country of Country of
Name of subsidiary incorporation % hoiding Name of subsidiary incorporation % holding
Ad-gency Limited (entered dissolution Fred Parkinson Management Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100%
process in 2018) % lsmel  100% 103962 527 Pty Limited @ Austmlia  100% | 3
A JSchofield Limiteg ® Great Britain 100% Gearnet Limited ™ Great Britain 100% f:'.
American Wagering, Inc. * USA  190%  Goodfigure Limited GreatBritan  100% | &
Arena Racing Limited GreatBritain  100%  Grang Parade Limited @ GreatBritan  100% | 3
Arthur Roye (Turf Accountants) Limited @ GreatBritain =~ 100%  5oqd Parade sp.zoo®™ Poland  100% &
Arthur Wilson Limited ® Great Britain 100% Groatbray Limited ® Great Britain 100%
AWIGaming, Inc ® USA  100%  Gus Carter (Cash) Limited GreatBritan _ 100%
AWI Manufacturing, Inc. ® USA 100% Gus Carter Limited ® Great Britain 100%
B.8.0'Connor {Lottery} Limited Jersey  100% vy Lodge Limited @ Guemnsey  100%
B.J.OConnor Limited ® Jersey  100%  James Lane (Bookmaker) Limited © Great Britain ~~ 100%
B.)O'Connor Holdings Limited ® Jersey  100%  JamesLane Group Limited ™ GreatBritain  100%
Baseflane Limited GreatBritain _ 100%  james Lane (TurfAccountants) Limited ®  GreatBritain ~ 100%
142 876 079 Pty Limited & Australia  100% Laystall Limited ® Great Britain 100%
Bill Taylor of Huyton Limited ©® GreatBritain =~ 100% | ac Rosiers Limited @ Guemsey  100%
Bookhost Limited ® GreatBritain ~ 100%  Ztchest Limited ™ Great Britain  100%
Bradlow Limited ™ Great Britain =~ 100%  Matsdom Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
Brandywine Bookmaking, LLC® USA  100%  Matsgood Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100%
Brooke Bockmakers Limited ¥ Great Britain -~ 100%  Nalim Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100%
BW Sub Co. ™ USA  100%  Ogier Employee Benefit Trustee Limited
Camec (Provincial) Limited ™ Great Britain~ 100% (As Trustee of the William Hill Haldings 2001
Camec (Scotiand) Limited @ GreatBritain _ 100%  Cloyee Benefit Trus) ® lersey  100%
Camec (Southern) Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100% Pandashield Limited GreatBritain _ 100%
Camec (Western) Limited ® Great Britain__ 100% Phonethread Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
Camec Limited @ Great Britan _ 100% Premier Bookmakers Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100%
Cellpoint Investments Limited 7 Cyprus  100%  egency Bookmakers (Midlands) Limited ™ Great Britain _ 100%
City Tote Limited © GreatBritan _ 100% Regionmadel Limited ® Great Britain =~ 100%
Cleveley House Limited ® Cuemeey  100% SB Services (NZ) Limited ™ NewZealand  100%
Computerized Bookmaking Systems, Inc. ® UsA  100% SBA Services Pty Ltd ® Australia  100%
Concession Bookmakers Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100% Selwyn Demmy (Racing) Limited ™ GreatBritain_ 100%
Daniel McLaren Limitad ® Great Britan_100% Sherman Racing (Western) Limited ™ Great Britain ~ 100%
Dawear Limitad ® Great Briam 100% Sportingbet Australia Finance LLP ™ Great Britain ~ 100%
Deluxe Cnline Limited ® GreatBritain ~ 100% Eu?:tmelggﬂl?e‘: Australia Holdings Pty Australia  100%
Demmy Investments Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100% 083 513811 Pty Lmited © Austraia  100%
gﬁ:::itcjzfa:;tier:i:ed — Greatf;;;ra;r; :gg:ﬁ: St James Place Limited ® Guernsey  100%
- — T H Jennings (Harlow Poocls) Limited ™ Great Britain ~ 100%
Douglas Tyler Limiteg ™ Great Britain -~ 100% The Sporting CIub and investment
Eclipse Bookmakers Limited @ Great Britain — 100%  cgmpany of Ireland Limiteg @ reland  100%
Evenmedia Limited * GreatBritain_ 100%  Tom waterhouse NT Pty Limited @ Australia  100%
Eventip Limited Great Britan ~ 100% Trackcycle Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
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14. Subsidiaries continued

Held through intermediate companies

Held through intermediate companies

Country of Country of
Name of subsidiary incorporation % holding MName of subsidiary incorporation % halding
Transdawn Limited @ GreatBritain ~ 100%  Wiliam Hill Call Centre Limited @ Ireland  100%
Vickers Bookmakers Limited ™ GreatBritain ~ 100%  Wiliam Hill Credit Limited © GreatBritain ~ 100%
Vynplex Limited " GreatBritain ~ 100%  William Hill Employee Shares
WHG Customer Services Trustee Limited ™ GreatBrtain -~ 100%
Philippines, Inc.® Philippines 100%  William Hill Finance Limited ® Great Britain 100%
WHG P Licensing Limited @ Gibraltar ~ 100%  The Willam Hill Foundation # Great Britain ~ 100%
WHG Italia SRL™ [taly  100%  Wiliam Hill Index (London} Limited @ GreatBritain ~ 100%
WHG Online Marketing Spain 5.A. ™ Spain  100%  William Hill Investments Limited Great Britain ~ 100%
WHG Services {Philippines) Ltd Philippines  100%  William Hill Italia SR.L"™{entered dissolution
WG Services Estonia OU @ Estonia  100%  Processin 2018) ftaly 100%
WHG Services Limiteg ® Great Britain 100% william Hill Leisure Limited ® Great Britain 100%
WHG Trading Limited @ Gibrahar  100%  William Hill Nevada | © UsA  100%
WHG (tnternational) Limited @ Gibraltar _ 100%  William Hill Nevada II® USA  100%
WHG Services (Buigaria) Limited EQQD Bulgara  100%  William Hill Gffshore Limited @ freland _ 100%
WHG Spain PLC™ Spain 100%  William Hill Organization Limited o Great Britain ~ 100%
WHG-IP Partnership @ Gibraltar  100% William Hill Steeplechase Limited @ Gibraltar  100%
Will Hill Lirrited ® Great Britain_ 100%  William Hill Trustee Limited © GreatBritain _ 100%
William Hill (Alba) Limited ® Great Britain | 100%  William Hill US Holdco, Inc. ® USA  100%
William Hill (Caledonian) Limited ® Great Britain_ 100%  Williarn Hill New Jersey, Inc * UsA  100%
William Hill (Course) Limited ® Great Britain 100% william Hill Victona LP Australia 100%
william Hill DFSB Inc. @ USA 100%  Wilstan {1.O.M} Limited ®© isle Of Man 100%
William Hill (Edgeware Road) Limited ® Great Britain | 100%  Willstan Limiteg ® Northern
Willam Hil (Effects) Limited @ GreatBritam  100% _ Ireland __100%
Williarm Hilt (Essex) Limited Great Britain ~ 100% W'rllstan PmF:ertles leltefj m. Great Britain__ 100%
William Hill (Footoall) Limitad ® GreatBrtan  100%  istan Racing (reland) Limited @ lreland__100%
William Hill (Goods) Limited ® CreatBritain  100% - istan Racing Holdings Limited ® Great Bttan __ 100%
Wiliam Hil (Grampian] Lirmited ® GroatBritam | 100%  _ustan Racing Limited @ _ CreatBritain__ 100%
William Hill I0M) No.3 Lirited ® MeofMan  100%  vndsors (Sporting Investments) Limited . Great Britain_ 100%
William Hill (Londar) Lirmited GreatBrtain  100%  vnning Post Racing Limited @ GreatBritain__ 100%
Wiliam Hil (Mala) Lmited Malta  100% 092 408833 Pty Lfm?ted a Australfa 100%
Wiliam Hil (Midlands) Limited ™ GreatBrtan  W00% D08 441067 Pty Limited ™ : Avstralla_ 100%
William Hill (North Eastern) Limited © CreatBrian __100% L ors | mormation Senvices (Holdings) CreatSritan 195%
William Hill (North Western) Limited ® Great Britain 100% NeoGames S arl @ Luxembourg  309%
Williamn Hill (Northerny) Limited GreatBritan  100% g imited @ GreatBritan _ 33%
Willizrm Hill (Products) Limited © GreatBritain  100% [ 0 " rhaice Limited GreatBrtain _ 33%
William Hill (Rescurces) Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
Williarm Hifl (Scottand) Limited ® Great Britain ~ 100%
William Hill (Southern) Limitad ® Great Britain ~ 100%
William Hilt (Stock) Limited ™ Great Britain 100%
Witliam Hill (Strathclyde) Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
William Hill (Supplies) Limited @ Great Britain ~ 100%
Wiliiam Hill (\Wares) Limited @ Great Britain -~ 100%
William Hill (Western) Limited Great Britain ~ 100%
William Hill Austratia Holdings Pty Limited @ Australia  100%
William Hill Australia Pty Limited @ Australia  100%
William Hill Australia Wagering Pty
Limited 2 Australia  100%
william Hill Bookmakers {Ireland)
Limited @ Irefand 100%
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14. Subsidiaries continued
The proportion of voting rights hetd is the same as the proportion of shares held.

The registered addresses of the locations of the Group’s undertakings are as follows:

{1} Great Britain: Greenside House, 50 Station Road, Woeod Green, London, N227TP

(2) Gibraftar: 6/1 Waterport Place, Gibrajtar

{3 Australia: Level 30, 2 Park Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia

{4) USA: 63255, Rainbow Bivd, Suite 100, Las Vegas NV 89718, United States

(5) Jersey: PO Box 384, 6 Hilgrove Street, St Helier, Jersey, Channet kslands

(6) isle of Man: First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas, Isle of Man, IM2 4DF

(7} Ireland: 38/40 Upper Mount Street, Dublin 2, Repubilic of Ireland

(8) Guernsey: Quay House, South Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY14E]

9 Philippines: 11th Fioor, Net Lima Plaza, 5th Avenue, carner 26th St, Crescent Park West, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, Philippines
(10) Israel: Azrielli Square Tower, flocrs 31&32 132 Menachim Begin Road, Tel Aviv, 67011, Israel
(1 Cyprus: Athinicdorous, 2003 Nicosia, Cyprus

(12) Bulgaria: 5-L Tsarigradsilo Shosse Bivd, European Trade Center, Building C, Floor 5
{13) Estonia: Maakri tn 23310145, Talinn Linn, Harju Maakond, Republic of Estonia

{14) Malta: No. 217 Suite 4, 21st September Avenue, Naxxar, Malta

{15) Spain: T/ ALCALA, 551- [ZQUIERDA. 28014, MADRID

(16} Haly: Via San Giovanni, Sul Muro 18 Milano, Milan, italy

(17} Italy: Piazza di Monte Citoria, 115 00186,Rome ltaiy

(18) Potand: Ul Pradnicka 20a 30-002 Krakdw

(19) New Zealand: C/-Staples Rodway, Lvl 11, 45 Queen Street, Auckland, New Zealand
(20} Great Britair: Dudley House, 169 Piccadilly, W11 9EH

(21) Great Britain: Whitehall Avenue, Mifton Keynes, MKI1C QA X

{(22) Luxembourg: 15chuttrange, Luxermnbourg

15. Interests in associates
The Group holds interests in four assodated undertakings at an aggregate value of £28.6m (27 December 2016: £30.8m).

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates. The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's interests
in associates.

£m
At 27 December 2016 308
Share of results befere interest and taxation 16
Share of interest 02
Share of taxation 07
Dividend received 29
At 26 December 2017 28.6

SIS

At 26 December 2017, William Hill Organization Limited, a principal subsidiary of the Company, held an investment of 19.5% (27 December

2076: 19.5%;) of the ordinary share capital of Sports Information Services (Holdings) Limited (SiS), formerly Satellite Information Services (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in Great Britain. The Group is able to exert significant influence aver SIS by way of its 19.5% holding and its seat
on the Board of directors.

The SIS group of companies provides real time, pre-event information and results, as well as live coverage of horseracing, greyhound racing and
other sporting activities and events via satellite. The statutory financial staterments of SIS are prepared to the year ending 31 March. The results
recognised are based on statutory accounts to March 2017 and management accounts thereafter.

The following financial information relates to SIS as at and for the 52 weeks ended 26 Decembier 2017

podax@aens

ANBUIBAOD)

SJUBLIBYEIS [EPUEU)Y

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m Em

Total assets 1404 14556
Total liabilities {60.5) (59.2)
Total revenue 2040 2239

Total profit after tax 10.6 64
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15. Interests in associates continued
NeoGames

On 7 August 2015, William Hill Organization Limited acquired 30.9% of the ordinary share capital of NeoGames S.aurl (NeolGames), a company
incorparated in Luxembaurg, for a total cash consideration of US$25.0m. The Graup is able to exart influence over NeoGames by way of its
equity holding and its two nominated representatives on the Board of directors, who collectively can cast 30.9% of any Board votes. As part

of the acguisition, William Hill Organization Limited has an option to acquire the remaining share capital in either 2019 or 2021 The option 15
exercisable at the full discretion of William Hill and the price payable will be determined at the time of exercise on the basis of NeoGames's
financial performance. Should the option not be exercised, other sharehalders in NeoGames have the option to repurchase our stake under the
same vajuation mechanism. No initial value was recognised in respect of these opticns at acquisition and the fair value of these options was £nil
at 26 Decernber 2017,

NeoGames is a leading iLcttery software and service provider to lotteries worldwide, induding in Europe and the USA.

The following financial information relates to NeoGames as at and for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017:

26 December 27 December

017 206

£m £m

Total assets 126 99
Total liabilities 9.6) (2086}
Total revenue 126 61
Total loss after tax 5.6 7

Lucky Choice Limited and 49's Limited

Williarm Hill Organization Limited also holds directly or indirectly 33% of the entire share capital of Lucky Choice Limited and of 49' Limited.
These companies were formed for the purpose of promoting and publicising certain numbers betting formats. It the opinion of the directors,
the results of these companies are not material to the results of the Group. Conseguently, the investments have been stated at costand have
not been accounted for under the equity method, which would normally be appropriate for an associated undertaking. A dividend of £0.4m was
received from 49's Limited which was recognised within share of results of associates (note 4).

16. Investments

The Group has long-term commercial agreements and investments with NYX Gaming Group Limited (NYX) On 20 September 2017 Scientific
Games Corporation (GGC) and NYX announced SGC's agreed proposal to acquire NYX and all outstanding NYX shares, The agreed price was
$2 40 CAD per share.

On 7 Dacember 2017, the Group reached an agreement with SGC to unconditionally support SGC's proposed acquisition of NYX. In connection
with the proposed acquisition, SGC agreed to acquire the Group’s convertible preference shares for £879m and the ordinary shares at the
acquisition price of $2.40 CAD per share (£9.6m). The transfer of the investrments, and receipt of consideration, was cormnpleted on 5 January 2018.
As such, it was assessed the Group still held the risk and rewards of ownership of these investrments at the period end.

Details of the Group's investments in NYX are shown below.

Convertible Notes

On4 April 2016, in connection with a commercial agreement, the Group invested £80.0m into redeemable convertitle preference shares issued
by NYX_The convertible preference shares were convertible into NYX ordinary shares or redeernable in cash, with an implied interest coupon

of 6% payable in kind at the term of ten years. As the redeemable convertible preference shares were akin to convertible nates they were
therefore accounted for as such (Convertible Notes), The embedded derivative element was bifurcated from the loan elernent and accounted for
separately. The Group has agreed consideration of £879m for the disposal of the convertible preference shares in January 2018.

The loan element was recognised as a loans and receivables financial asset at an initial value of £375m. This was accounted for on an amortised
cost basis at an effective interest rate of 13.6%. Interest of £5.5m was recognised in the period {27 December 2016: £3.2m), which is classified as
investrnent income in the lncome Statement as an adjustment, as defined by note 3.

The convertible element was recognised as a derivative financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, at an initial fair value of £44.7m, with
movements recognised in the Income Statement as an adjustment, as defined by note 3, within other operating expenses. The fair value at
26 Decemnber 2017 was £41.7m. Fair value of the derivative at period end was determined as the agreed convertible preference share disposal
consideration of £879m, less the carrying value of the loan element. A fair value gain of £72m was recognised in the period (27 December
20186: £9.6m loss).
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16. Investments continued
Ordinary Shares

On 20 April 2016, an investrment of CAD $18.8m (£10.3m) was made into ordinary equity of NYX, representing 6.8 milion ordinary shares
{Ordinary Shares), valued at £9.7m, and 1.7 millicn warrants (Warrants), valued at £0.6m.

The ordinary shares were recognised as an available-for-sate financial asset and therefore revalued to fair value at each period end with any
rmovernents recognised in other comprehensive income. At 26 December 2017, the fair value of the shares was £9.3m based on a share price of
CAD $2.40 per share. The fair value gain recognised in the period was £4.0m (27 December 2016: £4.4m loss).

Warrants

The Warrants are a derivative and are therefore categorised as fair value through profit or loss. These are revalued to fair value at each period end
with any moverments recognised in the Income Statement, as an adjustrment as defined by note 3, within operating expenses. At 26 December
2017 the Warrants were valued at £0.3m and heid withm non-current derivative financial instrurments. No fair value changes were recognised in

the period {27 December 2017 £0.3m loss).
Loan

On27 May 2016, the Group agreed to loan £3.2m to NYX. The loan was interest-free and due for repayment in June 2020. As part of the Group's
unconditional support of SGC's proposed acquisition, NYX agreed to pay this loan in fuil earlier than the repayment due date. The loan was repaid

infullon 5 January 2018.

A summary of the carrying value of the financial assets investments relating to NYX and their movements recognised dunng the current pericd is

analysed as follows:

poda. xEANeNS

IRIBUISADD)

SUBLBIEIS [EURLL

Fair value gain
Gainfirterest recognised
recognised in Other
27 Decernber inlhcome  Comprehensive 26 December
2016 Staterment Income 2017
fm £m £m £m
Fair Value through the Income Statement
Derivative financial instruments {Convertibte elernent of Convertible Notes) 345 72 - 417
Cerivative financial instrurnents (Warrants) 03 - - 03
Total derivative financial instruments (note 24) 348 72 - 420
Loans and receivables
Loans receivable (Loan element of Convertible Notes) 407 55 - 46.2
Loans receivable (Loan) 32 - - 32
Total loans receivable (note 24) 4389 55 - 494
Avagiloble-for-safe
Investments (crdinary shares) (note 24) 53 - 40 93
Total financial assets 840 27 40 1007

In addition to the investment in ordinary shares in NYX, the Group also helds other investments in unguoted shares of £0.1m (27 Decernber

2016 £0.1m)
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17. Disposal of Stadia operations

On 37 July 2017, the Group sold its Greyhound Stadia operations to ARC. The funds received were less than the assets sold, and due tothe one-off
nature of the transaction, the loss on disposal was recognised as an exceptional tem (note 3). The net assets disposed, along with the loss on sale
and net cash received are shown below.

At 31 Jaly 2017
£m
Goodwill 1
Property, plant and equipment 49
Trade and other receivables 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents 06
Trade and other payables 0.4}
Corporation tax liabllities (o0
Net assets disposed 127
Costs to sell 07
Proceeds on sale (10.9)
Loss on disppsal 5
Proceeds on sale (10.9)
Working capital adjustment 02
Horserace sponsorship! 13
Cash disposed on sale of Stadia operations 06
Net cash received on sale of Stadia operations (8.8)

1 As part of the agreement with ARC, Willam Hill agreed sponsorship of £1.3m for the St Leger

18. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables comprise:

26 Decernber 27 Decernber

2017 2016

£m £m

Trade receivables 79 204
Other receivables 94 108
Prepayments 45.6 415
729 727

Trade receivables are stated at their gross receivable value as reduced by approprate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. During the
course of the current and previous financiat period, there have been no material bad debt expenses and the Group holds provisions for bad or
doubtful debt of £4 1m as at 26 December 2017 (27 Decernber 2016: £4.2m).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
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19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and short-term bank deposits held by the Group with an original maturity of three months
or less. In total the Group has £3170m in cash and cash equivalents {27 December 2016: £215 5m). The carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents inciude:

26 Decemnber 27 December

2017 2016

£m Em

Cash and cash equivalents total 3170 2155

Less:

Client funds held in Onling’ (&7 722
Client funds held in Australia' {181) (173)
Restricted funds held in US? (15.0) (122)
Restricted deposits in respect of Spanish and Italian regulatory requirements 33 29

Cash (excluding customer balances and restricted cash)? 2135 mo

1 Client funds held are entirely matched by habilities of an equal value,
2 Restricted funds held in the US cannot be withcrawn without approval from the local regulator and match or exceed betting and custorner labilities.
3 Cash (excluding customer balances and restricted cash) represents the cash available to the Group used in the caloulation of net debt for covenant purposes (note 23)

20. Investment property

The Group owns four residential investment properties in Guernsey, all of which are classified as held for sale at 26 December 2017 consistently
with 27 December 2016. These assets are presented within current assets

The properties are held at a fair value of £3.5m (27 Decembier 2016 £3 5m), based upon estimates of current market prices advised by
independent estate agents at 26 Decernber 2017, Fair value movernents during the period of £nil have been charged to the Consolidated Income
Statement (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016 £0.1my}.

During the periad, rental income an these properties amcunted to £0.1m (52 weeks ending 27 December 2016 £0.1m}. The properties and the
income generated by them are included within the Corporate segment as described in note 2.

21. Trade and other payables

‘Trade and other payables comprise:

Hodas udaens

RSO

SjUBLITIE]S [BpURLL|

26 Decernber 27 Decermber

2017 2016

£m £m

Trade payables 1254 1296
QOther payables 75 73
Taxation and social security 1269 982
Accruals and pravisions 1957 1353
4555 3704

The average credit periad taken for trade purchases is 15 days (pericd ended 27 Decemnber 2016:13 days).
The directars consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.

tncluded in trade payables is an amount of £81.5m (27 December 2016: £94.6m) in respect of amounts due to clients, representing deposits
received and customer winnings. This is offset by an equivalent or greater amount of cash held, which is included in cash and cash equivalents.

Included in accruals and provisions are provisions of £111m (27 December 2016: £4.9m). £7.8m (27 December 2076: £4.9m) inrespect of vacant
property, being LBOs that have ceased to trade and £3.3m (27 Decernber 2016: £nil) in respect of a specific onerous contract.
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22. Borrowings

26 December 27 December

2017 2016
£m £m
Borrowings at amortised cost

Bank loans - -
Less: expenses relating to bank loans .2 20
£375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020 3750 3750
Less expenses relating to £375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020 (1.4) 20)
£350m 4.875% Guaranteed Nates due 2023 3500 3500
Less: expenses relating to £350m 4.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023 1.9 23
Total Borrewings as due for settlement after 12 months 7205 7186

The gross borrowings are repayable as follows:
Amounts due for settliement within one year - -
In the second year - -
In the third 1o fifth years inclusive 3750 3750
After more than five years 3500 3500
7250 7250

Bank facilities
At 26 Decemnber 2017, the Group had the following bank facilities:

1. Acommitted revolving credit bank loan facility (RCF) of £540m provided by a syndicate of banks which expires in May 2019. At the period end,
£nil of this facility was drawn down (27 December 2016: £nif).

2. Anoverdraft faclity of £5m, of which £nil was drawn down at the period end (27 Decemnber 2016: £nil).

£540m Revolving Credit Facility
Borrowings under the RCF are unsecured but are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its operating subsidiaries.
Berrowings under the Facility incur interest at LIBOR pius a margin of between 1.25% and 2.50%, determined by the Group's consclidated net

debtto EBITDA ratio as defined in the loan agreement {note 23). A utilisation fee is payable if more than a certain percentage of the loan is drawn.
A commitment fee, equivalent to 40% of the margin, is also payable in respect of available but undrawn borrowings under the RCF

Upfront participation and arrangement fees pius assodiated costs incurred in arranging the RCF have been capitalised in the Statement of
Financial Position and are beng amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the Facility.
Overdraft facility

At 26 December 2017, the Group had an overdraft facility with National Westminster Bank plc of £5m (27 December 2016 £5m). The balance on
this facility at 26 December 2017 was £nil (27 December 216 £nil).

Corporate bonds

(i) £375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020

In June 2013, the Group issued £375m of carporate bonds and used the net proceeds to repay £275m borrowed under a Term Loan Facility used
to part fund the acquisition of Sportingbet plc's Australian business and Playtech’s stake in Online, with the rernainder of the bonds used to
reduce outstanding amounts under the Group’s RCF. The bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its operating subsidiaries,
bear a coupon rate of 4.25% and are due for redemation in June 2020.

{ii) £350m 4.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023

On 27 May 2016, the Company issued £350m of corporate bonds and used the net proceeds to refinance the Company’s existing debt and for
its general corporate purposes. The bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its operating subsidiaries, were issued with a
coupon of 4.875% and are due for redemption in September 2023.

Finance fees and associated costs incurred on the issue of bonds have been capitalised in the Statement of Finandal Position and are being
amortised over the life of the respective bonds using the effective interest rate method.
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22. Borrowings continued
Weighted average interest rates
The weighted average interest rates paid, including cormmitment fees, were as follows:
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 December o
201 w06 | 3
% % |3
2073 bond 4.9% 49% | B
2020 bond 43% 4.3%
2006 bord - N%
Bank loans nfa n/a
Where a bank facility has onfy been used for short periods, we have not calculated a weighted average interest rate as this is not auseful
indication of our cost of debt. -
. . g
Fair value of loans and facilities H
The Company’s £375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020 are listed on the London Stock Exchange and at the period end date their fair value g
was £394.5m (27 December 2016: £389.6m). 3
The Company’s £350m 4 875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023 are listed on the L ondon Stock Exchange and at the period end date therr fair value &
was £365 3m (27 December 2016: £3491m).
23. Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. Financial risk management is primarily carried out by the Group Treasurer under
risk management policies approved by the Board of directors and supervised by the CFO. The Board approves written principtes for risk
rmanagement, as described in the Strategic Report on page 45. The principal financial risks faced by the Group carnprise liquidity risk, financing
risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and pensions risk. These risks are managed as described below.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group has insufficient funds availabte to settle its liabilities as they fall due. The Group's business generates strong
operating cash flows and the Group aims to maintain sufficient cash balances to meet its anticipated working capital requirements based on
regularly updated cash flow forecasts Liquidity requirements that cannot be met from qperational cash flow ar existing cash resources are
satisfied by drawings under the Group's RCF. The Group maintains adequate committed but undrawn facilities to meet such requirements.
Details of the Group's borrawing arrangements are provided in note 22.

The table below details the Group's expected maturity for its derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial instruments including interest that will be receivable or payable on thern. Where applicatle,
interest payments in respect of the floating rate liabilities are estimated based on the one month sterling LIBOR rate at the period end date.

Less than Between Between Muore than
1year Tand 2 years 2and 5 vears Syears Total
£m £m £m Em £m
26 December 2017
2020 bond inciuding interest 159 159 3818 - 413.6
2023 bond including interest m m 51.2 361.8 4472
Bank loans including interest! 27 11 - - 38
Other financial liabilities 2826 - - - 2826
Total 3183 34 4330 3618 1472
27 December 2016
2020 bond including interest 159 159 3978 -~ 4296
2023 bond including interest 11 17 513 3787 4642
Bank lcans including interest! 31 31 13 - 75
Other financial liabilities 278 - - - 2748
Total 3109 361 4504 3/87 11761

1 Bankloan interest includes commitment fees payable on the undrawn partion af the RCF
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23. Financial risk management continued

Capital management and financing risk

The Group seeks to maintain an appropriate capital structure which enables it 1o continue as a going concern, sUpports its business strategy and
takes inta account the wider economic environment. The Group's capital comprises equity and debt finance and these elements are managed
to balance the requirements of the business and the interests of shareholders and debit stakeholders. The Group manages its capital structure
through cash flows from gperations, returns to shareholders in the form of dividends and share buybacks, the raising or repayment of debt and
the raising of equity capital from investars.

Financing risk is the risk that the Group is unable to access sufficient finance to refinance its debt obligations as they fall due. The Group manages
this risk by maintaining a balance between different funding scurces including equity and debt. It seeks to mitigate its debt financing risk by
dversifying its sources of loan finance. The bank loan and corporate bond markets are currently used for this purpose. The Board also seeks to
mitigate the Group’s refinancing risk by having an appropriately balanced debt maturity profile.

Net debt to EBITDA ratio

The Group assesses its debt capital structure primarily through use of the net debt to EBITDA ratio. As one of the financial covenants under its
bank loan facility, the Group must ensure that its net debt to rolling 12-month EBITDA does not exceed 3.5 times. Based on current forecasts, the
Group expects to operate within these covenant limits throughout the lifetime of the facility.

Net debt for covenant purposes and EBITDA for covenant purposes are not statutory measures and may differ from ican covenant measures
as used by other companies.

The net debt to EBITDA ratio was:

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Nominal vaiue cf bank icans - -
Norminat value of corporate bonds 725.0 7250
Counter indemnity obligations under bank guaranteas 37 41
Cash (excluding customer balances and other restricted cash) (note 19) 213.5) mo
Net debt for covenant purposes 5152 6181
EBITDA for covenant purpases (see table below) 3790 3478
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 14 18

EBITDA for covenant purposes is adjusted profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest, tax and share-based payments and is calculated
as follows:

26 December 27 December

2077 2016

£m £m

Adjusted profit before interest and tax 2913 2615
Depreciation 301 316
Amortisation of intangible assets 52.4 486
Share-based payrments 52 6l
EBITDA for covenant purposes 379.0 3478

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk from counterparties defaulting on their obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. It arises in relation to
transactions with commercial counterparties and to transactions with financial institutions with which the Group deposits its surplus funds and
from counterparties with which the Group has entered into dervative financial transactions for hedging purposes. It also arises from customners
who have been granted cradit with which to bet with the Group.

The Group manages its financial counterparty credit risk by limiting or otherwise dosely monitoring the amaount that can be deposited with

any one institution and by restricting the counterparties with which it will deposit funds to institutions with specified minimum credit ratings

or which meet specified criteria. The Group’s policy is to mitigate its credit risk with respect to denvative transactions by using a number of
different counterparties for material transactions. As at 26 December 2017 the Group had no derivative contracts for currency hedging purposes
(27 December 2016 £nil).
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23, Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk arises from the Group’s borrewings. The Group has a palicy which aims te maintain 2 baiance between fixed and floating rate
debit exposures appropriate to the expected performance of the business, the Group’s debt burden and the wider economic environment.

At 26 Decernber 2077 all of the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates.

The Group also earns investment income from deposits held at financial institutions. Based on the current leved of vanable interest bearing
deposits and borrowing facilities, a 100 basis points change in irterest rates would have the following impact on the Group financial statements:

Increase of Decrease of

100 basis 100 basis

paints points

fm fm
Increase/(decrease) in profit 32 (09}
Increase/(decrease) in equity reserves 32 09

Thedirectors have used a 100 basis points change ininterest rates as we assess that this best illustrates the impact of plausible changes in
interest rates on the Group's performance and financial position.

Currency risk

The Group earns revenues in foreign currencies, primarily Australian Dollars, Eurcs and US Dollars, which exposes it to foreign exchange risk.
The Group mitigates this risk Dy incurring costs in currencies matching its revenues. Any remaining transactional foreign currency exposure is
not considered to be material and is not hedged. Material individual foreign currency transaction expesures are considered for hedging on an
ad hoc basis.

The Group s also exposed to foreign currency accounting translation risk on the earnings and net assets of its overseas operations which are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not hedge such transtation risk.

Revenue by currency
Revenue by currency is analysed below.

podarygaens

AL IBACE)

SIDUFELS eRUR

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 December 27 Decermber

2017 2016

% %

Sterling 81.6 823
Australian dollar 72 72
Euro 6.0 57
US dollar 43 38
Other currencies 09 10
Total 1000 1000

Pensions risk

The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes for its employees. Pensions risk arises in respect of

the defined benefit scheme where the cost of funding retirement benefits ultimately falls upon the Group. The last triennial actuarial valuation
as at 30 Septernber 2016 showed a funding surplus on the defined benefit scherme of £1.5m The Group has agreed to pay £8.8m per annum
towards ongoing funding requirements until December 2019, in additicn it contributes £1.5m per anmum towards the cost of insured death
benefits and other administrative expenses of running the scherne.

The Group seeks to manage the cash flow impact arising from pensions risk. Accordingly, the defined benefit scheme was closed to new entrants
in 2002 and was restrictad as ta future accrual from April 2011, The Group attempts to further manage its exposure by agreeing with the Pensicn
Scheme Trustees the assumptions to be used to calcutate the scherne liabilities, the investment strategy to be followed and any cash
contributions to be made by the Group.
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24. Financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group's financial instruments by category, as defined by 1AS 39, (together with nen-financial instruments for reconciling

purposes)is analysed as follows:

26 December 27 Decemnber
2017 2016
£m £m
Fair Value through the income Statement
Non-¢urrent derivative financial instruments (note 16) 420 348
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents (note 19} 3170 2155
Trade and other receivables 273 312
Loans recevable (note 16) 494 439
Available for sale
Investments (note 16) 94 o4
Total financial assets 4451 3308
Non-financial assets 15169 2ms
Total assets 23620 24427
Fair Valve through the Incorne Statement
Held for trading (ante post bets) (%)) n4a0)
Liabilities at amortised cast
Borrowings (note 22) (720.5) {718.6)
Trade and cther payables (268.2) (260.8)
Total financial liabilities (1,002.8) (9934)
Non-financial liabilities {296.5) (2238)
Total liabilities 1,2993) 12172}
Net assets 10627 12255

The directors believe that, owing to the nature of the Group's non-derivative financial instruments, the carrying vatue equates to the fair value,

apart from borrowings where the fair value is disclosed in note 22,

Fair value hierarchy

The hierarchy {as defined in IFRS 13) of the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value was as fatlows:

26 December 2077 27 Decernber 2016
Levell Level2  Level3 Total levell  Level2  Level3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Assets/(liabilities) held at fair value
Ante post bet liabilities - - (L) {41} - - 140) (14.0)
NYX —ordinary shares (note 16} 93 - - 93 53 - - 53
NY X — Convertible element of Canvertible Notes (note 16) - - 4.7 517 - - 345 345
NYX —Warrants (note 16) - - 03 03 - - 03 03
Total 83 - 279 72 53 - 208 261
A reconciliation of moverments on level 3 instruments is provided in the table below.
NYX
corvertible NYX  Ante post bet
element warmants fiabilities
£m £m £m
At 27 December 2016 345 Q3 (140}
Total gains or losses:
in profit or loss 72 - -
Net settlerments - - {0
Disposals - - -
At 26 December 2017 417 03 {140)
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25. Derivative financial instruments
Details of the Group’s derivative financial instruments are given below.

NYX Convertible element of Convertible Notes

The embedded derivative {Convertible elernert of Convertible Notes) was recognised at an initial fair value at acquisition of £44.0m. This has been
valued at fair value of £417m determined as the agreed convertible preference share disposal consideration of £879m, less £46.2m carrying value
of the Loan element of Convertible Notes (note 16).

Ante post bets

Ante post bets are a liabifity arising from an open position at the period end date in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for derivative
financial instruments. Ante post bets at the period end totalled £14.1m (27 Decermber 2076: £14 Om) and are classified as current liabilities.

Ante post bet liablites are valued using methods and inputs that are not based upon observable market data and all fair value movernents
on the balance are recognised in revenue in the Income Statement. There are no reascnably possible changes to assumptions or inputs that
would lead to material changes in the fair value determined, although the final value wilt be determined by future sporting results. The principal
assumptions relate ta anticipated gross win margins on unsettled bets.

26. Deferred tax
The following are the deferred tax assets/{liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current period:
Amount credited
At Amount Amaunt credited/ to Other At
27 December credited to charged)to  Comprehensive 26 Decernber
206 Disposals reserves income Income: 207
£m Em fm £m £m £m
Fixed asset tirming differences 26 03 - ©7n - (3.0
Held over gains 12 — — 1 - {0)
Retirement benefit abligations (v )] - - 17 (5.6) (0.0)
Licences and other intangibles 820} - - 01 - {81.9)
Other timing differences 13 - - 26 - 39
Share remuneration 05 - 08 0s - 2.2
Tax losses 10 — - ©3) - 07
{857) 03 08 20 (5.6) (88.2)

The enacted future rate of UK corporation tax of 17% (52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: 17%), the Gibraltar statutory income tax rate of 10%
(52 weeks ended 27 December 2016: 10%), the Australian corporation tax rate of 30% (52 weeks ended 27 December 2076: 30%;} and the future
US corporate tax rate of 21% have been used to calculate the amount of deferred tax. The 21% future rate of LS corporation tax was enacted in
December 2017

The Group has recognised £12.7m of deferred tax assets, including £0.7m of losses, which have been recognised as the losses are in companies
which are anticipated to make future profits. The Group has no material unrecognised deferred tax assets.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the above analysis. The deferred tax liability for fixed asset timing differences of
£3.0m includes deferred tax liabilities of £8.9m, partially offset by deferred tax assets in other tax jurisdictions of £5.9m. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

—
wodasniEaens LJJ
0

SHBLIBACD

SJUILIBILYS [BPURYY

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Deferred tax liabilities (100.9) (88.5)
Defarred tax assets 127 28

(88.2) (857)
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27. Called-up share capital

26 Decernber 2017 27 December 2016
Number Number
of shares £m of shares £m
Called-up, authorised, allotted and fully paid
—ordinary shares of 10p each:
At start of period 887251,884 887 884,309,807 884
Shares issued 43388 - 2942077 03
At end of period 887,295,272 887 887251884 887
The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income.
28. Own shares
Em
At 77 Decernber 2016 (985)
Purchase and issue of own shares 014
Transfer of own shares to recipients 29
At 26 Decemnber 2017 (970
Own shares held comprise:
26 December 2017 27 December 2016
Nominal Nominal
Number value Cost Number value Cost
of shares £m £m of shares Em fm
William Hill Holdings Employee Benefit Trust 1185,009 01 33 1065915 01 35
Treasury shares 28,913,092 29 937 29573675 30 950
30,098,101 30 70 30,639,590 31 985

The shares held either in treasury or in the William Hill Holdings Employee Benefit Trust (EBT} were purchased at a weighted average price of

£3.22 (27 December 2016 £3.22)

Further to the shareholders’ resolution of the Company passed at the AGM held on 9 May 2017, the Company did not purchase any of its own
shares during the period (27 December 2016 29,573,675). The reason that no shares were purchased was the completion of the Company’s
share repurchase programme in December 2016. The shares previously acquired under the share repurchase programme are all held intreasury
with no shares cancelled in the pericd. The Company has the authority, under the sharehclders' resolution passed on S May 2017, to purchase up
10 a maxirmum of 85,774,500 shares of the Company. The minimum price (exclusive of all expenses} which may be paid for an ordinary share is
10p {being the nominal value of the ordinary share). The maximum price (exclusive of all expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary shareis an

amount equal to the higher of:

- 105% of the average of the middie market quotations far an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days immediately preceding the day on which that ordinary share is purchased, and

— the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest independent current bid on the London Stack Exchange at the time the

purchase is carried out.

The authority conferred, unless varied, revoked or renewed prior ta such time, expires at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM cf the

Company or on 30 June 2018
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29. Notes to the cash flow statement
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 Decernber 27 December
2077 206
£m £m
(Loss)profit before interest and tax 437) 256 o
Adjustments for: g
Share of results of associates 0.0 15 |8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 301 316
Amartisation of intangibles 575 550
Loss/(gain} on disposal of property, plant and equipment 04 a7
Vacant property provisions including (gains)/losses on early settlement of vacant property leases 73 04)
Loss on disposal of Stadia operations 25 -
Cost charged in respect of share remuneration 52 61 E
Defined benefit pension cost less cash contributions (9.6) 93 g
Fair value movements gn investment property - 01 Iy
Fair value movernents on ante post bet Labilities - (1)} g
Fair value movements on other derivative financial instruments 72 99 w
Impairment of Australia CGU goodwill 2383 -
Operating cash flows bafore movements in warking capital 2798 3123
Increase in receivables on (137}
Increase in payahles 751 370
Cash generated by operations 3548 3356
Income taxes paid 284 {24.6)
Interest paid {36.3) 453)
Net cash from operating activities 2901 2659
30. Operating lease arrangements
52 weelks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 December
2017 2016
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the period:
plant and machinery 07 a7
other {inciuding land and buildings} 65.6 640
66.3 647

At the period end date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

26 Decemnber 27 Decembrar

2017 2006

£m £m

Within one year 51.6 556
In the second to fifth years inclusive 163.0 1752
After five years 479 1778
3625 4086

Operating lease payrments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its LBOs and office properties and ameounts payable for the use
of certain office and computer equipment
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31. Share-based payments
The Group bad the following share-based payment schemes in operation during the period, all of which will be settled by equity:

— Performance Share Plan (PSP), Executive Bonus Matching Scheme (EBMS), Restricted Share Plan (RSP) and Retention Awards (RA),
encompassing awards made in the years from 2014 to 2017, and

— Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option schernes encornpassing grants made in the years from 2012 to 2017

Details of these schemes are provided on pages 77 to 97 in the directors’ Rermuneration Report and below.

Costs of schemes

The costs of the schernes during the period, excluding provisions for social security, were:
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 December
2017 2015
Em £rn
PSE EBMS, RSP and RA 39 46
SAYE schemes 13 15
52 6]

PSP, EBMS, RSP and RA

The PSP provides conditional awards of shares dependent on the Group's Adjusted EPS growth, total shareholder return (TSR) performance and
certain business performance measures over a three or four-year period as well as continued employment of the individual at the date of vesting
(awards are usually forfeited if the employee leaves the Group voluntarily before the awards vest). EBMS shares are partly deferred shares
conditional on continued employment of the individual at the date of vesting and partly share awards dependent on the Group's EPS growth as
well as continued employment at the date of vesting. EBMS awards must be exercised within one month from their vesting date, which is three
years after their grant date. If PSP options rermain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant, the opticns lapse.

The RSP and RA are deferred grants of shares contngent upon continued employment.

The PSP, EBMS, RSP and RA are conditional awards of shares and the recipients do not have ta pay an exercise price. The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for share awards exercised during the period was £2 60 (G2 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: £3.72). The awards
outstanding at 26 Decemiber 2017 had a remaining weighted average contractual life of 57 years (27 December 2016: 5.2 years)

Options under these schemes are as follows:

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

Number Number

Qutstanding at beginning of the period 7680711 935,534
Granted during the period 3,765,628 3416021
Forfeited during the period 1,530,260) (3098969)
Exercised during the period (415,548) (1,671,875)
Qutstanding at the end of the period 9504531 768011

Exercisable at the end of the period - —

SAYE schemes

Options under the SAYE schemes, which are open to all eligible employees, are based on a two, three, or five-year monthly savings contract.
Options under the scheme are granted with an exercise price up to 20% below the share price when the savings contract is entered into
The options remain valid for six months beyond the end of the relevant savings contract.

The exercise prices far the 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 SAYE schermes wers £1.65, £312, £273, £3.03, £2.64 and £1.96 respectively

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was £2.89 (52 weeks ended 27 Decermnber
2016: £3.28). The options outstanding at 26 December 2017 had a remaining weighted average contractual life of 2.7 years (27 Decemmber
2076: 21 years).
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31. Share-based payments continued

Options under these schermes are as follows:

26 Decernber 2017 27 Decernber 2006
Walghted Weighted
average average
exercise exarcise

price price §

Number £ Number £ F

Outstanding at beginning of the period 8,491,795 276 7959040 279 m
Granted during the period 6,210902 196 4001813 264
Forfeited during the perod {4,014,404) 279 (2,761,904) 2.86
Exercised during the period (639,254) 231 (7O754) 209
Qutstanding at the end f the periad 10,049,039 228 8491,795 276
Exercisable at the end of the period ’ 1,155,609 267 701,801 302

Fair values of share-based payments
Share-based payments are valued using the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing formula. The inputs are as follows:

FURURELS [RUEw

PSP EBMS,

SAYE RSP RA

26 Decemnber 27 December 26 December 27 December

2017 2016 2017 2016

Weighted average share price at date of grant £2.45 £330 £2.67 £313
Weighted average exercise price £1.96 £2.64 £nil Enit
Expected volatility 7% 25% 2% 25%
Expected life 3-5years 3-5 years 13 years 4 years
Risk free interest rate 0.3% 05% 03% 05%
Expected dividend yield 3.6% 35% 3.6% 35%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's shares over a period matching the option life. The expected
life of the option used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

For PSP the value of the option has also been adjusted to take into account the market conditions applicable to the option (ie, TSR requirements)
by applying a discount to the option value.

This discount is calculated based on an estimate of the probability of achieving the relevant condition and was 25% for the 52 weeks endead
26 December 2017 {52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: 25%).

The weighted average fair value of the awards granted under the PSP, EBMS, RSP and RA schemes at the date of grant was £2.71 per option
(27 Decemnber 2016: £3.13). The weighted average fair value of the options granted under SAYE grants at the date of grant was £0.52 per option
(52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: £0.69).
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32. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes. The UK schemes are operated under a single trust
and the assets of all the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the cantrol of trustees.

The respective costs of these schemes are as follows:

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 December 27 Qecernber

2017 2016

£m £m

Defined contribution schemes {charged to profit before interest and tax) nse ns
Defined benefit scheme harged to profit before interest and tax) 18 20
Defined benefit scheme (credited to finance costs) {0.5) 00
Defined benefit scheme {(credited)/charged to other comprehensive income) {(33.0) 178
(12.8) 307

Defined contribution schemes

The defined contribution schemes, ta which bath the Group and employees contribute to fund the benefits, are available for all eliginle
employees. The only cbligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to income in respect of these schemes represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the respective schemes. At 26 Decermber 2017, contributions of £0.8m (27 Decernber 2016; £11m) due in respect of the current
reporting period had not been paid over to the schermes.

Defined benefit scheme

The Group alsc operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK for eligible employeas which closed to new members in 2002. Under the scheme,
employees are entitled to retirement benefits varying between 1.67% and 3 33% of final pensiorable pay for each year of service on attainment
of a retirement age of 63, With effect from 1 April 207, the defined benefit scheme was closed to future accrual but maintains the link for
benefits accrued up to 31 March 2011 with future salary increases (up to a maximum of 5% per annum). Employed members of this scheme were
automatically transferred into one of the defined contribution schemes. The Group makes a contribution towards the costs of administering
the scheme.

For the purposes of preparing the information disclosed in these accounts, a full actuarial valuation of the scherne was carried out at
30 September 2016 and updated to 26 December 2017 by a qualified independent actuary. The present values of the defined benefit obligation
and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Funding valuation

The generai principles adopted by the Trustees far the purposes of this funding valuation are that the assumpticns used, taken as a whole, will
be sufficiently prudent for pensions already in payment ta continue to be paid and to reflect the commitments which will arise from members’
accrued pension rights. The Group has agreed to pay £8.8m to the scherme towards ongoing funding requirernents during 2018 plus a £19m
contribution towards the cost of life assurance and costs of running the scheme.

The IAS 19 position of the plan, as reflected in our Statement of Financial Position, is generally expected to differ from that of the triennial funding
valuation assessment. The last triennial actuarial valuation as at 30 September 2016 showed a funding surpius on the defined benefit scheme

of £1.5m. The principal reasons for this difference are the requirements for prudence in the funding valuation fwhich contrasts with the IAS 19
best estimate principle) and the application of a prudent estimate of asset returns in the funding valuation (which contrasts with the 1A5 19
requirement to use a discount rate derived from high quality corporate bonds).

We have concluded, following professional advice, that no adjustment is required to our accounting to reflect either the recovery of the current
1AS 19 surplus or a minimum funding requirement; this reflects that the Group has an unconditional right to recover that surpius in the future.

Disclosure of principal assumptions
The financial assumptions used by the actuary in determining the present value of the defined benefit scheme’s liabilities were:

26 Decembaer 27 December

07 2006
Rate of increase of salaries 2.0% 3.3%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 3.0% 3%
Rate of increase for deferred benefits 2.2% 23%
Discount rate 24% 2.7%
Rate of RPl inflaticn 32% 33%

Rate of CPlinflation 2.2% 23%
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32. Retirement benefit schemes continued
In accordance with the relevant accounting standard, the discount rate has been determined by reference to market yields at the period end date
on high-guality fixed income investments at a term consistent with the expected duration of the liabilities. Price inflaticon is determined by the
difference between the yiekds on fixed and indexinked Government bonds with an adjustrment to allow for differences in the demand for these
bonds, which can distort this figure. The Bank of England target inflation rate has alsa been considered in setting this assurmption. The expected
rate of salary growth and pension increases are set with reference to the expected rate of inflation. No change has been made to the basis of
inflation applied to pension increases in the scheme. %‘
The mortality assumption is kept under review and has been updated. The current life expectancies for a member underlying the value of the g
accrued liabilities are:
26 December 27 Decamber
2017 2016
Life expectancy at age 65 years years
Male retiring now N8 25
Male retiring in 25 years'time 241 247
Female retiring now 252 253 %
Female retiring in 25 years' time 26.5 276 E
The assets in the scheme are set out in the table below. Assets with quoted prices in an active market are identified separately. g
26 Decemnber 27 Decernber %
2017 2016
£m £m
£quities ([quoted) 435 375
Corporate bonds (quoted) 104.2 1031
Property (Unqucted} 52 50
Gilts and cash (quoted) 29.0 2805
Gilts and cash (unquoted) 6.8 44
Total market value of assets 4507 4305
Present value of scheme liabilities {3920 4150)
Surplus in scheme 58.7 155
The Group has recognised the scheme surplus as a non-current asset.
Analysis of the amount charged to profit before interest and tax:
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 Decermber 27 Decemnber
2077 2016
£m £m
Current service cost 09 10
Administraticn expenses 09 10
Total operating charge 1.8 20
Analysis of the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:
52 weeks 52 waeks
ended ended
26 December 27 Decernber
2017 2016
£m fm
Actual return less expected return on pensicn scheme assets %2) (567)
Actuarial (gain¥loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (18.8) 745
Actuarial remeasurements (33.0) 78
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32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Mavements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the current period were as follows:

62 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
26 December 27 Decernber
2017 2006
fn £m
At beginning of period 4150 3425
Movement in period:
Service cost 09 10
Interest cost no 128
Remeasurements ~ changes in financial assumptions 6.7 745
Rermeasurements —changes in demographic assumptions (1.8) -
Remeasurements — experience adjustmenits (37 -
Benefits paid {152) (14.8)
Insurance prermium for risk benefits (0.9) 00
At end of period 3920 4150
Maovements in the present value of fair value of scheme assets in the current period were as fallows:
52 weeks. 52 weeks
ended ended
26 Decemnber 27 Decermber
017 206
£m £m
At beginning of pericd 4305 3655
Movement. in period:
Interest income on assets ns 138
Remeasurements —return on plan assets (excluding interest income) .2 567
Contributions from the sponsoring companies ns n3
Administration expenses charged to profit before interest and tax {0.9) 1o
Berefits paid =2 (14.8)
Insurance premium for risk benefits 0.9} 10
At end of period 4507 4305

Sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities

The sensitivity of the present value of the scheme’s liabilities to changes in the principal assumptions used to measure these liabilities is illustrated
in the table that follows. The illustrations consider the single change shown, with the other assumptions assumed tc be unchanged. In practice,
changes in one assumption may be accompanied by offsetting changes in another assumption {afthough this is not always the case). In addition,
changes in the assumptions may occur at the same time as changes in the market value of the scheme assets, which may or may not offset the

change in assumptions.

Assumption Changes in assumption Impact on defined benefit liabilities
Discount rate Decrease by 0.25% pa. Increase of £172m

Rate of increase in inflation Increase by 025% p.a. Increase of £10.3m

Life expectancy Members assumed 1o live one year longer increase of £16.6m

If the change in assurnptions were in the oppaosite direction to that shown above, the impact on the defined benefit liabilities would be of a similar

magnitude, but in the oppesite direction.
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32. Retirement benefit schemes continued
Nature and extent of the risks arising frorn financial instrurments held by the defined benefit scheme

Pension assets and liabilities (pre-tax} of £450 7m and £392.0m respectively were held on the Group's Statement of Financial Position at
26 December 2017 (27 December 2016: £430.5m and £415.0m respectively). Through the scheme the Graup is expased to a number of potential
risks as described below:

— asset volatility: the scheme’s defined benefit abligation is calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corperate bond yields, however,
in agdition to corporate bonds, the scheme invests in asset classes other than corporate bonds which rmay cut or underperform corporate
bonds in the long term but provide volatiity and risk in the short term;

— changes in bond vields: the risk of a decrease in bond yields, which increases the value of the scheme liablities, is partially offset by the upside
benefit of an increase in the value of the scheme’s bond holdings;

— inflation risk: a significant proporticn of the scherme’s defined benefit obligation is linked to inflation and therefare higher inflation would
result in a higher defined benefit liability. Although a proportion of the scheme’s investrments are in inflation-inked securities which should
compensate for any changes in inflation, the balance of the scheme's assets is either unaffected by inflation or only loosely correlated with
inflation and therefore anincrease in inflation would also increase deficit; and

— life expectancy: if the scheme’s members live longer than expected, the scherne’s benefits will need to be paid for longer, increasing the defined
benefit abligation (longevity risk}.

The Trustees and the Company manage the investrnent risk {asset volatility} in the scheme by investing ¢90% of the scheme’s investrments in

Liability Driven Investments (LDI} strategies which airmn to invest in assets whose values move broadly in tanderm with changes inliability values

arising from market movements.

The Company accepts and indemnifies the ather residual risks in the scheme including longevity risk.

Funding
Alongside the risk assessment abave, the Group has agreed an ongoing funding requirement with the Trustees, as described in note 23.

The weighted average duration of the scheme's defined benefit obligation as at 26 December 2017 is 18 years (27 Decernber 2016: 20 vears).

The undiscounted maturity profile of the Defined Benefit obligation between one and ten years is shown below:

vodasdiaens
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26 December 27 Decernber

2017 2016

fm £m

Less than one year Li0)] 15.2
Between one and two years 107 15.6
Between two and five years 362 493
Between five and ten years 741 912

No allowance is made for commutation lump sums or individual transfers cut due to the fluctuating nature of these payments.

There were nc plan amendments, curtailments or settlernents during the peried.

33. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consclidation and are not disclosed
inthis note. Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiartes and
associates are disclosed in the Company's separate financial statements.

Trading transactions
Associates
During the period, the Group made purchases of £52.5m (52 weeks ended 27 December 2016 £50.5m) from Sports Information Services Limited,

a subsidiary of the Group's assodiated undertaking, Sports Information Services (Holdings) Limited. At 26 December 2017, the armount receivable
from Sports Infermation Services Limited by the Group was £nil (27 December 2016 £nil).

The Group made no purchases from its associated undertaking, NecGames. At 26 December 2017 and 27 December 2016, no amounts were due
to or from NeoGames.

All transactions with associates were made on market terms.

The Group has made available a US$15m loan facility to NeoGames, of which nil is drawn down.
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33. Related party transactions continued

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directars, who are the key management personnet of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories
specified in |AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

26 Decernber 27 December

2017 2006

£m fm

Short-term employee benefits (including salaries) 16 15
Post-employrnent benefits femployer's contribution) (03] 02
Share-based payments {IFRS 2 charges) 0.4 02
21 19

The disclosures above include c£46,000 received by directors in respect of dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares (52 weeks ended
27 Decerber 2016: c£26,000).

The values presented above inciude share-based payments measured in accordance with IFRS 2. This is a different basis from that used for the
presentation in the directors’ Remuneration Report (ORR). In addition, the above includes bonuses on a paid basis, whereas the DRR includes
them on an accrued basis. Other than the inclusion of dividends, the timing of bonus inclusion and the basis of measurement of share-based
payments, all values above are presented on a consistent basis with those disclosed in the DRR.

Pension schemes
The pension schemes of the Group are related parties. Arrangements between the Group and its pensicn schemes are disclosed in note 32,

34, Contingent liabilities

As an international business the Group is exposed to uncertain tax positions and changes in legislation in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
The Group's uncertain tax positions prinaipally include cross border transfer pricing and the interpretation of complex tax legislation. The Group
is alsa monitoring developments in relation to EU State Aid investigations including the EU Commission’s annauncements that it will be opening
a State Aid investigation inta the UK's Controlied Foreign Company regime (announced on 26 October 2017) and into certain aspects of the
Gibraltar corporate tax regimes fannounced on 16 October 2013 and 1 October 2014). The Group does not currently consider any provision is
required in relation to EU State Aid. The assessment of uncertain tax positions is subjective and significant managemeant judgement is required.
This judgernent is based on interpretation of legislation, managernent experience and professional advice.




PPy iphoc 4 PA1S)
Parent Company Statement of Financial Position g
as at 26 December 2017 %
g
26 December 27 December
2017 2006
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets: Investments 4 382 382
Current assets: Trade and cther receivables 5 32598 31947 §
Total assets 32980 3329 | &
Current liabilities: Trade and other payables 6 (821.5) (708.6)
Non-current labilities: Borrowings 7 (720.5) (78.6)
Total kabilities {1.542.0) (14272) =
H
i
Net assets 1,756.0 18057 2
H
- 3
Equity 4
Called-up share capital 8 887 887
Share premium account 9 6894 6833
Capital redemption reserve 6.8 68
Own shares held 0 970 (985)
Retained earnings 1,068.1 me4
Total equity 17560 18057

The Company's profit for the year was £58.4m (52 weeks ended 27 Decernber 2016: £126.3m).

The Parent Company financial statements of Willizrm Hill PLC, registered number 4212563, were approved by the Board of directors and

autharised for issue on 23 February 2018 and are signed on its behalf by.

P Bo
Director

R Prior »
Director 2&: c p-l\:..u .
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

Called-up Share Capital Qwn
share premium  redemption shares Retained

capital account reserve heid earnings  Totalequity

£m £m £m £m £mn £m

At 27 December 2016 887 6893 6.8 (98.5) 194 1,805.7
Profit for the financial period - — - - 584 584
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 58.4 58.4
Purchase and issue of own shares (note 10) - - - {14) {n {1.5)
Transfer of own shares to recipients {note 10) - - - 29 {15) 14
Qther shares issued during the period - Cl - - - Q1
Dividends paid (note 3) - - - - (1081 (1083
At 26 December 2017 88.7 6894 6.8 (970) 1,0681 1,756.0

Called-up Share Capital Own
shara premim  redernption shares Retzined

capital account reserve beld earnings  Tctal equity

£m £Em £m £m £m £m

At 29 December 2015 88.4 686.6 68 “@n 1033 18810
Profit for the financial period - - - - 1263 1263
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 126.3 1263
Purchase and issue of own shares — - - (950) 04 (Q54)
Transfer of own shares to recipients - - - 06 [(15)] -
Other shares issued during the period 03 27 - - 02 28
Dividends paid (note 3) — - - — {1090) 1090)
At 27 December 2016 BB7 6893 6.8 (98.5) 1194 1,805.7
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Parent Company Statement of Accounting Policies

for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The Company meets the definition of a quakifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard 10C, and as such, these financial statements were
prepared in accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework! as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by section 408 of the Cormpanies Act 2006, the income Staterment of the Company has not been presented.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Investments
Neon-current asset investments are shown at cost less provision, if any, for impairment.

Taxation
Thetax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxabie profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement.
because it excludes items of ncome ar expense that are taxable or deductible in cther periods and it further excludes itemns that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the period end date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxabie profit, and is accounted for using the liability method.
Deferred tax liakilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are racognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill ar from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Ceferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and assocates, except where
the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each period end date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax
laws and rates that have been enacted at the period end date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly toequity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the date of the transaction or at an average
rate. Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end date are reported at the rates ruling at that date.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange rates subseguent to the date of the transactionis included as an exchange gain or loss in the
Income Statement.

Finance costs

Finance costs and income arising on interest-bearing financial instruments carried at amortised cost are recognised in the incorme Statement
using the effective interest rate method. Finance costs indude the amortisation of fees that are an integral part of the effective finance cost
of a financial instrument, including issue costs, and the amortisation of any other differences between the amount initially recognised and the
redemption price.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recorded at the fair vaiue of the proceeds receved, net of discounts and direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including the unwinding of any discounts, premiums payable on settlernent or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged on an accrual
basis to the Income Statement using the effective interest method. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost. Any accrued finance costs are included in accruals within trade and other payables.

podasxBaens
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Parent Company Statement of Accounting Policies continued
for the 52 weeks ended 26 December 2017

Own shares held
Own shares held in treasury and held in emiployment benefit trusts are included within equity.

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees within the William Hill PLC Group and operates a nurmber of
HMRC-approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option schemes open ta all eligible employees within the William Hill PLC Group, which allow the
purchase of shares at a discount. The cost to the Company of both of these types of share-based payments is measured at fair value at the date
of grant. Fair value is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pericd, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest
and is barne by the emplaying Company within the Group.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing formula. The expected life used i the made! has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimates, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Where relevant,
the value of the option has also been adjusted to take into account any market conditions applicable to the option.

Further descriptions of the Group's share-based payment plans are given in note 31 to the Group financial statements.

Going concern

A full description of the Group's business activities, financial position, cash flows, liguidity position, committed facilities and borrowing position,
together with the factars likely to affect its future development and perfarmance, is set out in the Strategic Report, including the Financial Review,
and in notes 22 and 23to the Group financial staterments

As highlighted in notes 22 and 23 to the Group financial statements, the Group and the Company meet their day-to-day working capital
requirements from the positive cash flows generated by their trading activities and their available cash resources. These are supplemented
when required by additional drawings under the Group's revolving credit bank loan facilities, which are committed until May 2019, Whilst there
are a number of risks to the Group's trading performance, as summarised in the ’Managing our risks’ section on pages 45 to 50, the Group and
the Company are confident of their abitity to continue to access sources of funding in the medium term. The Group's strategic forecasts, based
on reasonable assumptions, indicate that the Group and the Company should be able to operate within the level of their currently available and
axpected future faciiities and their banking covenants for the period of the strategic forecast.

After making enquiries and after consideration of the Group’s existing operations, cash flow forecasts and assessrment of business, regulatory and
financing risks, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in cperational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the directors do not consider that there are any judgermnents, estimates or assumptions
that could lead to a material change in the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

1. Directors’ remuneration and interests

The Company had noemployees ather than directors during the current or prior period. The Company did not operate any pension schemes
during the current or prior period. Details of directors’ rernuneration, share interests, share options and other enttlements, which form part
of these financial statements, are given in the parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 77 to 97 which are described as having
been audited.

2. Income statement disclosures
As perrmitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own Income Statement for the year.

The audit fee for the Cornpany and the consolidated financial statements is disclosed in note 5 of the Group financial staternents. Fees payable
to Deloitte LLP and their associates for audit and non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed because the Group financial
statements disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

3. Dividends proposed and paid

Hodar »8Iens

FIUBUIBAOG

52 weeks ended S2weeksended 52 weeksended 52 weeks ended
26 December 27 Decernber 26 Decernber 27 December

2017 2006 2017 2016
Per share Per share £m £m

Equity shares:
—current pericd interim dividend paid 43p 4lp 365 356
— prior period final dividend paid 84p 84p e 734
127p 12.5p 1081 1080
Proposed final dividend 89p 84p 76.8 721

FIMFRIERS [RDURY g

Further details of dividends paid and proposed are shown in note 10 to the Group financial statements.

4. Investments

£m
Cost and net bock value:
At 26 December 2017 and 27 December 2016 382

It is the opinior: of the directors that the total value of the Company's investrment in its subsidiaries is not less than the amounts at which they are
stated in the Parent Company Statement cf Financial Positicn.

Ali subsidiaries of the Campany, their country of incorporation and cwnership of their share capital are shown in note 14 to the Group
financial statements.

5. Trade and other receivabies

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 32598 31547
6. Trade and other payables

26 December 27 December

2017 2016

£m £m

Amounts owed to Group undertakings 8151 7007

Accruals and deferred income 6.4 79

8215 7086
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7. Borrowings
26 Decemnber 27 December
2017 2016
£m fm
Borrowings at amortised cost
Bank lpans - -
Less: expenses relating to bank loans (1.2) 20
£375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020 375.0 3750
Less: expenses relating to £375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020 (1.4) 20)
£350m 4.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023 3500 3500
Less: expenses relating to £350m 4.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023 (1.9) 23)
Total Borrowings 7205 7186
The gross borrowings are repayable as follows:
Amounts due for sattlement within one year - -
Inthe second year - -
In the third to fifth years inclusive 3750 3750
After more than five years 3500 3500
725.0 7250
Bank facilities

At 26 December 2017, the Company had a committed revolving credit bank loan facility (RCF} of £540m provided by a syndicate of banks which
expires inMay 2019. At the period end, £nil of this facility was drawn down (27 December 2016: £nif).

Borrowings under the RCF are unsecured but are guaranteed by the Company and by certain of its operating subsidianes.

Borrowings under the Facility incur interest at LIBOR plus a margin of between 1.25% and 2.50%, determined by the Group's consolidated net
debt to EBITDA ratio as defined in the loan agreement {see note 23 to the Group financial statements). A utilisation fee is payable if more than a
certain percentage of the loan is drawn. A commitment fee, equivalent to 40% of the margin, is alsc payable in respect of available but undrawn
borrowings under the RCF

Upfront participation and arrangement fees plus associated costs incurred in arranging the RCF have been capitalised in the Statement of
Financial Position and are being amartised on a straight line basis over the life of the Facility.

Corporate bonds
(i) £375m 4.25% Guaranteed Notes due 2020

n June 2013, the Cormpany issued £375m of corporate bonds and used the net proceeds to repay £275m borrowed under a Term Loan Facility
used to part fund the acquisition of Sportingbet plc's Australian business and Playtech’s stake in Qnline, with the remainder of the bond used
to reduce outstanding amounts under the Company's RCF. The bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its operating
subsidiaries, bear a coupon rate of 4.25% and are due for redemption in June 2020,

(i} £350m 4.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2023

0n 27 May 2076, the Company issued £350m of corporate bonds and used the net proceeds to refinance the Company's existing debt and for
its general corporate purposes. The bonds, which are guaranteed by the Company and certain of its operating subsidiaries, were issued with a
coupon of 4.875% and are due for redemption in September 2023.

Finance fees and asscciated costs incurred on both issues of bonds, together with the discount on the 2009 issue, have been capitalised in the
Statement of Financial Position and are being amortised over the Iife of the respective bonds using the effective interest rate method.

Further detalls of borrowings are shown in note 22 to the Group financial statements.
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8. Called-up share capital
26 December 2017 27 December 2016
Number Number
of shares £m of shares £m
Called-up, autherised, allotted and fully paid - ordinary shares of 10p each:
At start of period 887,251,884 887 884309807 884 I
Shares issued in the period 43388 - 2942077 03 %
Atend of period 887,295,272 887 847251884 8g7 | #
The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income.
Share options
Options have been granted to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company under various share option and award schemes as shown below:
Number
aof shares Price Exercise -
under option per share period B
Performance Share Plan 2014) 70277 N Between2018a3nd 2024 | &
Performance Share Plan (2015) 787582 Nil Between 2013 ang 2025 B
Performance Share Plan (2016) 1733194 Nil Between 2020 and 2026 §
Performance Share Pian {2017) 2482748 Nl Between 2020 and 2027
Exetutive Bonus Matching Scheme (2015) 1884970 Nil March 2018
Executive Bonus Matching Scheme (2016) 155428 Nil March 2019
Executive Bonus Matching Scheme (2017} 243295 Nil Between 2018 and 2021
Retention awards 526,743 Nil Between 2018 and 2020
Restricted Share Plans 980,344 Nil Between 2018 and 2020
SAYE 20712 67944 E1.65 Between 2015 and 2018
SAYE 2073 93737 £312 Between 2015 and 2019
SAYE 2014 1189722 £273 Between 2016 and 2020
SAYE 2015 988,297 303 Between 2017 and 2021
SAYE 2016 1,650855 £264 Between 2019 and 2022
SAYE 2017 5,058484 £196 Between 2020 and 2023

Note 31 to the Group financial staternents has further information on these schernes, including the valuation models and assumptions used.

9, Share premium
26December 37 Decernber
2017 2016
£m fm
At start of period 6893 686.6
Shares issued in the period 01 27
At end of period 689.4 6893
10. Own shares
£m
At 27 December 2016 (985)
Purchase and issue of own shares 14
Transfer of own shares to recipients 29

At 26 December 2017

(57.0)
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10. Own shares continued
Own shares held comprise:

26 Decernber 2017 27 Decernber 2016

Nominal Nominal
Number value Cost Number value Cost
of shares £m £m of shares £m £m
William Hill Holdings Employee Benefit Trust 185,009 1) 33 1065915 al 35
Treasury shares 28,913,092 29 9317 29573675 30 S50
30,098,101 30 970 30639590 31 985

The shares held either in treasury or in the William Hill Holdings Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) were purchased at a weighted average price of

£3.22 {27 Decamber 2016: £3.22),

Further to the shareholders' resolution of the Company passed at the AGM held on 9 May 2017 the Company did nct purchase any of its own

shares during the period (27 December 2016: 29,573,675). The reason that no shares were purchased was the completion of the Company's

share repurchase programme in December 2016. The shares previously acquired under the share repurchase programme are alt held in treasury

with no shares cancelled in the period. The Company has the authority, under the sharehoiders' resolution passed on 9 May 2017 to purchase up

toamaxirnurm of 85,774,500 shares of the Company. The minimum price (excusive of all expenses) which may be paid for an erdinary shareis

10p (being the nominal value of the ordinary share). The maximum price (exclusive of all expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share is an

amount equal to the higher of:

— 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days immediately preceding the day on which that ordinary share is purchased; and

- the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest independent current bid on the London Stock Exchange at the time the
purchase is carred out.

The authority conferred, unless varied, revoked or renewed prior to such time, expires at the earlier of the conciusion of the next AGM of the

Company or ¢n 30 June 2018.

1. Financial commitments
The Company had no capital commitments at 26 December 2017 (27 December 2016: £nil).

The Company had no cormmitments under non-cancellable operating leases at 26 December 2017 (27 Decernber 2016: £nil).
12. Related party transactions

The Company is taking advantage of the exemption granted by paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disclose transactions with cornpanies within the
William Hill PLC Group, which are related parties.
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Five-year summary §
g
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
£m £m fm fm £m
Summarised results:
Revenue 1,711 16038 1,5909 16093 14865
Profit/(Loss) before interest and tax 43.7) 2256 2243 2818 3030 o
Profit/{Loss) before tax (74.6) 1813 1847 2339 2570 §
Profit/{Loss) for the financial period (83.2) 1645 1899 2063 2265 w
Summarised statements of financial position:
Assets employed:
Non-current assets 1968.6 21510 20038 20984 2412
Current assets 3934 2917 3429 2822 2727
Current {iabilities (477.9) @on (663.2) (369.8) (3286) :‘5,
Non-current liabilities (821.4) (8071} {4677) (850.5) (1:0620) §
Net assets 1,0627 12255 12158 11603 10233 g
7
Financed by:
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 10627 12255 12158 11603 10233
Minority interest ~- - - - —
Totai equity 1,062.7 12255 12158 11603 10233
Key statistics:
Adjusted operating profit' 2913 2615 2914 3.2 3350
Adjusted basic earnings per share 276p 223p 2479 2%99p 288p
Diluted (loss)fearnings per share {970 188p 215p 234n 2470
Dividends per share {paid) 12.7p 12.5p 123p N9p 108p
Share price - high £18 £416 £4.32 [ZA V4 £495
Share price — low £2.39 £236 £312 £315 £339

1 Adjusted operating profitis defined as profit before interest and tax, excluding exceptional iterns and other defined adjustments. Further detail on adjusted measures is

provided in note 3 to the Group financial statements.
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Statement of Group Accounting Policies

General information

William Hill PLC is a Company incarporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office

is Greenside House, SO Station Road, London N22 7TP. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 1to 50 and note 2.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, the currency of the primary economic enviranment in which the Group operates.
Foreign operations are included in accardance with our accounting policies.

Basis of accounting
The Group financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the (ASB and endorsed by the Eurepean Union

The Group financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where certain assets or liabilities are held at amortised
cost or at fair vaiue as described in our accounting policies. The key accounting policies adopted are set cut on page 114

Below is a complete list of the remaining accounting palicies adopted.

Adoption of new and revised standards

In preparing the Group financial staterments for the current period the Group has adopted the following new IFRSs, amendments to IFRSs and
IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) interpretations, none of which have had a significant effect on the results or net assets of the Group:

IAS 1 (amended) Presentation of Financial Statements

1A5 16 {armended) Property, plant and equipment

IAS 27 (amended) Separate financial statements

1AS 38 (@amended) Intangible assets

IFRS 5 (amended) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
IFRS 10 (armended) Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11 (amended)

Joint arrangements

FRS4

Regulatory deferral accounts

Standards in issue but not effective
At the date of authorisation of the Group financial statements, the fallowing Standards, amendments and Interpretations, which have not been
applied in these Group financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

New standards

IFRS S Financial instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 17 Insurance Cortracts

Amendments and interpretations

IAS 7 (amended) Statement of Cash Flows

1AS 12 (amended) Income taxes

IAS 28 (amended) Investments in associates and joint ventures

|AS 40 (amended) Investment property

IFRIC22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

IFRIC23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatrments

IFRS 2 (amended} Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions
IFRS 12 (amended) Disclosure of Interests in other entities

IFRS g ‘Financial Instruments’ replaces IAS 39 and is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1January 2018, The Group has

performed a high-level impact assessment of the key aspects of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes in the future.
Classification and measurement

New classification and measurement criteria reqguire financial mstruments to be classified into one of the three categories being amartised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income, or fair value through profit or loss. The Group expects there to be nil impact based on our current
prefile of financial instruments, excluding those held relating to NY X, which have been disposed of in January 2018,
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Impairment

IFRS 9 requires the Group to use an expected
credit loss model for its financial assets
measured at armortised cost, eitheron a
12-month or a lifetime basis. The Group
financial assets at amortised cost currently
consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivabies and loans receivable. None of
these financial assets have a significant
financing cormponent and the Group expects
to apply the simplified approach and

record lifetime expected losses on alltrade
receivables and loans receivable measured at
amortised cost. The Group does not expect
these changes will have a significant impact.

Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting mechanism of
IAS 39 has been retained, however greater
flexibility has been introduced over the
instrurnents eligible for hedge accounting and
effactiveness testing. The changes relating to
hedge accounting are not expected o impact
the Group.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts

with customers’ establishes a single
comprehensive madet for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers, with an effective date for
accounting periods beginning on or after
1January 2018, Under [FRS 15, an entity
recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e, when control’ of the
goads or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

The Group's core revenues of sports betting
and gaming are not within the scope of

IFRS 15. Other gperating income mostly
represents rents receivable on properties

let by the Group, bookmaking software
licensing income, bookmaking services income
and income from saftware development.
Rents receivable is also not within the scope
of IFRS 15.

Early assessment of the new standard
suggests that the performance obligations

of bookmaking software licensing income,
bookrnaking services income and income
from software development are satisfied
over time and that the method currently used
to measure the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations
will continue t¢ be appropriate under IFRS 15

The Group expects there to be a nil impact
on the financial statements on adoption of
IFRS1S.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will replace 1AS 17 in its
entirety and is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
It will result in most leases being recognised
on the Statement of Financial Position.

The Group continues to assess the fullimpact
of IFRS 16 but since the impact s nfluenced
by interest rates in future years, it is not yet
possible to reasonably quantify its effects.

At this stage, the directors assess that

the implementation of the new standard

will likely have a material impact upon the
Group's reported performance, Staterment of
Financial Positicn and operating cash flows.

We do nat anticipate a material impact
on the results or net assets of the Group
from any other standards, amendments
or interpretations that are in issue but not
yet effective.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company

(its subsidiaries) up to 26 December 2017,
Controlis achieved where the Company

has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an investee entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the pericd are induded in
the Consolidated Income Statement from the
effectve date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial staterents of subsidiaries to

bring the accounting policies used into line
with those used by the Group. All intra-Group
transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

On acguisition, the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair values at the date

of acquisition. Any excess of the cast of
acquisition over the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired, including
separately identifiable intangibie assets,
isrecognised as goodwill. Any discount on
acquisition, i.g, where the cost of acquisition
is below the fair values of the identifiable net
assets acquired, is credited to the Income
Staterment in the period of acquisition

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
is in a position to exercise significant influence,
but not control or joint control, through
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee.

The results and assets and liabdities of
associates are incorporated in the Group
financial statements using the equity methed
of accounting. Interests in associates are
carried in the Statement of Financial Position
at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the net assets
of the entity, less any impairment in the value
of individual investments. Losses of the
associates in excess of the Group's interest in
those entities are not recognised.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable net assets of the entity at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwil
within the interests in associates line.

Any deficiency of the cost of acquisiticn
below the Group's share of the fair values
of the identifiable net assets of the entity
at the date of acquisition {1.e, discount

on acquisition) is credited to the Income
Statementin the period of acquisition.

Where a Group Company transacts with an
associate of the Group, profits and losses
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interestin the relevant entity. Losses may
provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case appropriate
provision is made for impairment.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on consclidation represents
the excess of the cast of acquisition over
the Group'sinterest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities, including
separately identifiable intangible assets, of
a subsidiary, asscciate or jointly controlied
entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
inrtially recognised as an asset at cost and

is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Ondisposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly
contralled entity, the attributable armount of
goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwil arising on acquisitions before the
date of transition to IFRS has been retained
at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to
impairment testing.

Investrment income
Interest income

Interestincome is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal cutstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially alt the risks and rewards

of ownership tc the lassee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to incorne on a straight-ine basis
over the term of the relevant lease period.

Benefits received and receivatle as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are
also spread on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currericies other than pounds
sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevaifing on the dates of the transactions.
At each period end date, monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currendes are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the penod end date. Nan-
monetary assets and liabilities carried at

fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Gains and losses arising

on retranslation are inciuded in net profit

or loss for the penod, except for exchange
differences arising on non-monetary assets
and liabilities, where the ¢changes in fair value
are recognised directly in equity.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group makes
efforts to match its foreign currency assets
and liabilities and where necassary the Group
takes out foreign currency hedges.

On consglidation, the assets and liabilties

of the Group's overseas operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the
period end date. Income and expense iterms
aretranslated at the average exchange rates
for the pericd unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly, in which case the spot rate for
significant items is used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group's translation reserve.
Such translation gifferences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the period in which
the operation is disposed of.

Finance costs

Finance costs and income arising on interest-
bearing financial instruments carried at
amortised cost are recognised in the Income
Staternent using the effective interest

rate method. Finance costs nclude the
amortisation of fees that are an integral part
of the effective finance cost of a financial
instrument, including issue costs, and the
arnortisation of any other differences
between the amount initially recognised and
the redemption price.

Profit before interest and tax

Profit before interest and tax is stated after
the share of results of associates but befcre
nvestment incorme and finance costs,

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes are charged as an expense
as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement schemes,

the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carned cut at each
period end date. Actuarial remeasurements
are recognised in full in the period in which
they occur. They are recognised outside profit
orloss and presented in the Staterment of
Other Comprehensive income,

The net retirement benefit asset or cbligation
recognised in the Statement of Financial
Paosition represents the present value of

the defined benefit obligation as adjusted

for unrecognised past service cost and as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets,
Any asset resulting from this calcufation is
limited to past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

Taxation

Thetax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Thetax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the period. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the Income
Statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in gther periods and it further
excludes items that are never taxabie or
deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the period end date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities in the financial staterments

and the corresponding tax bases used in

the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary
differences ard deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can
be utiised. Such assets and liabifities are not
recognised if the ternporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition
{cther than in a business combination) of
ather assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group s able to control the
raversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the termporary difference will
nat reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each period end date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prohable that sufficient taxable profits will
he gvailable to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based
on tax laws and rates that have been enacted
at the period end date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the Income Statement,
except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Internally generated intangible
assets — computer software and
systems

Expeanditure oninitial investigation and
research of computer software and systems
is recognised as an expense in the pencd

in which itis incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset
arising from the Group’s development, of
computer systems is recognised only if all
of the following conditions are met:

— anassetis created that can be identified
(such as software and new processes);

— It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits; and

— the development cost of the asset can be
measurad reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets

are amortised on a straight-line basis
avertheir useful lives, generally between
three and five years. Whera na internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognisexd as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets — licences

Betting licences recognised in acquisitions
are recorded at fair value. They are judged
to have an indefinite life and are accordingly
not amertised but are subject to annual
impairment reviews. The directars consider
that the Group's licences have an indefinite
life owing to: the fact that the Group is a
significant operator in a well-established
market; the proven and sustained demand
for bookmaking services; and the Group's
track record of successfully renewing its
betting permits and licences.
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Intangible assets arising on acquisitions
Intangible assets arising on acquisitions are recorded at their fair value.

Amortisation is provided at rates calculated to write off the valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line basis over
its expected useful life, as follows:

Acquired brands — assessed separately for each asset, with lives ranging up to five years
Customer relaticnships —between 18 months and eight years

Bookmaking and mobile technology — between three and five years

Wagering/lottery contracts —tento 12 years

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the Staternent of Financial Pasition
at their cost, less any subseguent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment {osses.

Fixtures, fittings and equipment are stated at cost less accurmnulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is provided on all property plant and equipment, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less
estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings — 50 years

Long leaseheld properties —50 years

Short leasehold properties —over the unexpired period of the lease

Short leasehold improvements —ten years

Fixtures, fittings and equipment and motor vehicles —at variable rates between three and ten years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each period end date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its goodwill, property plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. if any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated m order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estirmnates the recaverable ameunt of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
beiongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite usefullife is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future pre-tax cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. This process is described in more detailin
note 12 to the financial statements.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or cash-generating unit) is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Other than for goodwill, where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the point that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no tmpairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior periods. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees and operates an HMRC-approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) share
aption scheme open to all eligihte employees which allows the purchase of shares at a discount. The cost to the Group of share-based payment
plans is measured at fair value at the date of grant. Fair value is expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vasting period, adjusted for the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing formula. The expected fife used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimates, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavicural considerations, Where relevant,
the value of the option has aiso been adjusted to take into account any market conditions applicable to the option

At each period end date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the ariginal estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumuiative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment in reserves.

SAYE share options granted to employees are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme or resign from the Group.
This results in accelerated recognition of the expenses that would have arisen over the remainder of the original vesting period.
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Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the Group’s Statement of
Financial Position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts comgrise cash and
short-term bank deposits held by the Group
with an original maturity of three months

or less.

Receivabies

Trade and other receivables do nat
carry any interest and are stated at their
gross receivable value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable comprise loans grantad

to ather parties which have fixed or
determinable payments and are not quoted
in an active market. These are measured at
amortised cost, less any impairment, with
interest income recognised using the effective
interest method.

Investments

Investments comprise shareholdings in
entities where the Group is not, in a position
to have control, joint control or significant
influence over the financial and operating
policy decisions of the entity. These are
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets and are revalued to fair value at each
pericd end with any fair value movements
recognised in other comprehensive income.
The fair value is measured based on the share
price of the entity.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into.
Anequity instrument is any contract that
evidences aresidual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its labilities.
The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when and only when the Group's cbligations
are discharged, cancelled or otherwise expire.

Interest-bearing borrawings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recorded

at the fair value of the proceeds received,
net of discounts and direct issue costs.
Finance charges, including the unwinding

cf any discounts, premiums payabie on
settlement or redernption and direct issue
costs, are charged on an accrual basis to the
Income Statement using the effective interest
method. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amertised cost. Any accrued finance costs
areincluded in accruals within trade and
other payables.

Payables

Trade and other payables are not interest-
bearing and are initially measured at

fair value, and subsequently at their
armortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments
and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it to the risks of
changes ininterest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group may use fixed rate
barrowings to hedge some of its interest rate
exposure. The Group may make use of foreign
currency forwards to hedge a proportion of
its largest net foreign currency transacticnal
exposures. Where passible and practicable,
the Group retains foreign currency cash
balances equivalent toits foreign currency
liabilities to hedge its exposure to foreign
currency exchange rates. The Group does

not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by
the Group's policies approved by the Boarg of
directors, which provide written principles on
the use of financial derivatives.

All derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value at the contract date
and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in fair value of any derivative
instrument that is not part of a hedging
relationship are recognised immediately in the
Income Statement.

For any derivative instrument that is part of
a hedging relationship which is designated
as effective, changes in the fair value of

the derivative financial instruments are
recognised directly in equity. Changes in the
fair value of ineffective hedges, nduding

the ineffective portion of effective hedges,
are recognised immediately in the Incorme
Statement. If the cash flow hedge of a firm
commitment or forecasted transaction
results in the recognition of an asset or
aliability, then, at the time the asset or
liability is recognised, the associated gains or
losses on the derivative that had previously
beenrecognised in equity are included in
the initial measurerment of the asset or
liability. For hedges that do not result in the
recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts
deferred in equity are recognised in the line
of Incorne Staterment relating to the hedged
itern, in the sarme period in which the hedged
item affects net profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when
the hedging instrument expires or is scld,
terminated, exercised, or no longer gualifies
for hedge accounting. At that time, any
cumulative gam or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in equity is retained
in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs, If a hedged transaction is no longer
expected to accur, the net cumulative gain
or loss recognised inequity is transferred
to net profit or loss for the period.
Derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments or other host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of host contracts and the
host contracts are not carried at fair value
with unrealised gains or iosses reported

in the Income Statement under other
operating expenses.

Ante post bets are carried at fair market value
as they meet the definition of a derivative.
The resulting gains and lcsses from bets

are included in revenue. The net liability
resulting from open positions is reported on
the Statement of Financial Position under
the term Cerivative financal instruments
within financial liabilities under the term ‘Held
for Trading’




Willlam Hill PLC
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

o)

Abbreviations and glossary

Adjusted operating profit

Profit before interest and tax, excluding
exceptional items and other defined
adjustments. Further detail on adjusted
measures is provided in note 3 to the Group
financial statements

AGM

Annual General Meeting

Amounts wagered

This is an industry term that represents the
gross takings on sports betting

CAGR

Compound Annual Growth Rate
Company

William Hill PLC, the ultimate holding
Company of the Williarm Hill Group

CR

Corperate Responsibility

DCMS

Departrment for Digital, Culture, Media &
Sport

Digital

Inthe context of our Australian operations,

digital revenues are those that do not derive
from our BDM operations

DPS
Dividends per share
EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxaticn,
depreciation and amortisation

EBMS

Executive Bonus Matching Scheme
EPS

Earnings per share

FTE

Fuil Time Equivalent

Gambling Commission

The Gambling Commission for Great: Britain,
the regulatory body for casinos, bingo clubs,
gaming machines, betting, remote gambling
and larger lotteries (including all locat lotteries
but excluding the National Lottery)

GGY

Gross Gambling Yield

Grand Parade
Grand Parade Limited and subsidiaries

Gross win

Gross win is an industry measure which

is calcuiated as total customer stakes

less customer winnings. This measure is
non-statutory and differs from net revenue
as net ravenue is stated after deductions for
free bets and customer bonuses. It is used
by management to evaluate the impact

of sporting results and customer activity

on performance

Gross win margin

This is an industry measure that
represents gross win as a praparticn of
amounts wagered

H2GC

H2 Gambling Capital

HMRC

HM Revenue and Customs

Horseracing levy

A levy attributable to bets taken on UK horse
racing and payable to the Horserace Betting
lLevy Board, primarily for the purposes

of augmenting prize money available

for winning horses and providing certain
racecourse amenities

I1AS

International Accounting Standards

1ASB

International Accounting Standards Board
IBAS

Independent Betting Adjudication Service
IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards
KPl

Key Performance Indicator

LBO

Licensed Betting Office

LIBOR

London interbank Offered Rate

LT

Long Term Incentive Plan

MGD

Machine Games Duty. A duty charged by
the LK Government on gaming machine
net revenue

NeoGarnes

NeoGames S.arland subsidiaries

Net revenue

This is an industry term equivalent to
Revenue as described in the notes to the
financial statements

NYX
NYX Gaming Group Limited and subsidiaries

oTC
Over-The-Counter

PBIT
Profit Before Interest and Tax

POCT

Point of Consumption Tax. The UK
Government implemented a new

online gambling regulatory regime on

1 Novermniper 2014 on the hasis of

where the consurmer is located. From

1 Decermber 2014, it also implermented a new
gross profits tax at 15% on revenue on the
same 'point of consumption’ basis

PSP

Performance Share Plan

RIDDOR

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences

RSP

Restricted Share Plan

SIS

Sports Information Services (Holdings)
Limited (formerly Satellite Information
Services (Holdings) Limited) or its subsidiary
Sports Information Services Limited (formerly
Satellite Information Services Limited), as the
context requires

Sportshook

Bets placed and accepted online on sporting
and other events, or via OTC and SS5BTs

in Retail

Sports books

The dedicated sports betting areas operated
within casines in Nevada

SSBT

Self-Service Betting Terminal

TSR

Total shareholder return

VAT

Value Added Tax

Williarm Hill or the Group

The Company and its subsidiaries or any
of them, as the context may require
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Shareholder information

William Hill PLC listed on the London Stock Exchange on 20 June 2002
and the share price oniisting was 225p. Shareholders cart access
the current share price on wwwwilarmhiliplc.com

To find the shop closest to you, go to our shop locator on
wwwwilliamhillpic.com.

Financial calendar

2017 Full Year Results 23 February 2018
2077 Final Dividend Record Date 27 April 2018
2018 Annual General Meeting 8May 2018
2077 Final Dividend Payment Date 7June 2078
2018 Half Year Results 3 August 2018
Registrar

The registrar of the Company is Computershare Investor

Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 622
(www.computershare com). Telephone 0370 703 6251, Please contact
Computershare for advice regarding transfer of shares, change of
name or loss of share certificate. Computershare will be able to
change yaur address or add/change your bank mandate over the
telephone and reissue outstanding dividend payments subject toan
administration charge.

You may give instructions for your dividend 1o be used to purchase
additional William Hill shares and fuil details of the Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) can be found in the Investor Relations
section of our corporate website (www.willlamhillplc.com)

under shareholder centre. A DRIP Election Form and Terms

and Condlitions can be obtained from Computershare Investor
Services PLC, in writing, by telephoning the number above or online
atwww.investorcentreco.uk, in the Downloadable Forms section.

Professional advisers
Auditor:

Deloitte LLP
2 New Street Sguare
London EC4A3BZ

Financial adviser and corporate broker:
Citi
Citigroup Centre

33 Canada Square
London E145LB

Corporate broker:

Barclays

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

tondon E14 48R

Legal Adviser:

Slaughter and May
18unhill Row, London EC1Y 8YY

Registrar:

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavitions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

B599627
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